Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau

Lleoliad: Cynulliad
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - y Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru
Dyddiad: National
Dydd Mawrth, 19 Mawrth 2013 VAVSaSIS;“bW for

09:00

| gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch a:

Naomi Stocks Kayleigh Driscoll

Clerc y Pwyllgor Dirprwy Glerc y Pwyllgor

029 2089 8421 029 2089 8421

deisebau@cymru.gov.uk deisebau@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon 9.00

2. Deisebau newydd 9.00 - 9.30

2.1 P-04-459 Cysylltiad rheilffordd uniongyrchol o Faes Awyr Caerdydd i ganol
Caerdydd a gorllewin Cymru (Tudalen 1)

2.2 P-04-460 Moddion nid Maes Awyr (Tudalennau 2 - 8)

2.3 P-04-461 Achub Pwll Padlo Pontypridd (Tudalen 9)

2.4 P-04-462 Gwahardd codi baner y Deyrnas Unedig ar adeiladau swyddogol yng
Nghymru (Tudalen 10)

2.5 P-04-463 Lleihau Lefelau Halen mewn Bwyd (Tudalen 11)

2.6 P-04-464 Gwneud Wenglish yn iaith gydnabyddedig swyddogol yng Nghymru,
fel Sgoteg yn yr Alban! (Tudalen 12)

2.7 P-04-465 Achub llaeth Cymru, a seilwaith a swyddi’r diwydiant (Tudalen 13)

2.8 P-04-466 Argyfwng Meddygol - Atal cyflwyno gwasanaeth iechyd o safon is
yng ngogledd Cymru. (Tudalennau 14 - 18)

2.9 P-04-467 Arholiadau ym mis lonawr (Tudalen 19)

2.10 P-04-468 Pryderon am Ddiogelwch Ffordd A48 Cas-gwent (Tudalennau 20 -
22)

3. Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ddeisebau blaenorol 9.30 - 10.45



Yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy

3.1 P-04-333 Rhoi diwedd ar esgeuluso a gadael ceffylau a merlod drwy orfodi
deddfwriaeth ar ddefnyddio microsglodion (Tudalennau 23 - 26)

3.2 P-04-383 Yn Erbyn Dynodiad Parth Perygl Nitradau ar gyfer Llyn Llangors
(Tudalen 27)

3.3 P-04-390 Dynodi Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos Caergybi (parc arfordir) yn
Warchodfa Natur Genedlaethol (Tudalennau 28 - 31)

3.4 P-04-399 Arferion lladd anifeiliaid (Tudalennau 32 - 34)

3.5 P-04-417 Achubwch Draeth Morfa ac ataliwch Lwybrau Troed Cyhoeddus 92 a
93 rhag cau (Tudalennau 35 - 36)
3.6 P-04-422 Ffracio (Tudalennau 37 - 38)

3.7 P-04-433 Teledu Cylch Cyfyng mewn Lladd-dai (Tudalennau 39 - 41)

3.8 P-04-439 Diogelu coed hynafol a choed treftadaeth Cymru ymhellach
(Tudalennau 42 - 43)

3.9 P-04-445 Achub ein cwn a chathod yng Nghymru rhag cael eu lladd ar y ffyrdd
(Tudalennau 44 - 49)

Addysg a Sgiliau
3.10 P-04-346 Gofal di-dal i blant 3 a 4 oed yng Nghymru (Tudalennau 50 - 51)

3.11 P-04-437 Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n derbyn addysg
yn y cartref (Tudalennau 52 - 53)
3.12 P-04-443 Hanes Cymru (Tudalennau 54 - 56)

lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol

3.13 P-04-362 Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans ym Mynwy (Tudalennau 57 - 58)

3.14 P-04-395 Dylai Ambiwlans Awyr Cymru gael arian gan y llywodraeth
(Tudalennau 59 - 61)

Caiff y ddwy eitem ganlynol eu hystyried gyda'i gilydd
3.15 P-04-367 Achub ein Gwasanaethau Ysbyty (Tudalen 62)

3.16 P-04-394 Achub ein Gwasanaethau - Ysbyty Tywysog Philip (Tudalennau 63
- 65)

3.17 P-04-430Y bwriad i gau Uned Man Anafiadau Dinbych-y-pysgod
(Tudalennau 66 - 68)

3.18 P-04-431 Preswylwyr Sir Benfro yn erbyn Toriadau i Wasanaethau lechyd
(Tudalennau 69 - 249)

3.19 P-04-400 Safon Ansawdd NICE ym Maes lechyd Meddw!| (Tudalennau 250 -
256)

3.20 P-04-440 Dywedwch ‘Na’ i werthu asedau Ysbyty Bronllys (Tudalennau 257 -
306)



3.21 P-04-451 Achub Gwasanaethau Ysbyty Brenhinol Morgannwg (Tudalennau
307 - 318)

Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth

3.22 P-03-263 Rhestru Parc y Strade (Tudalennau 319 - 332)

3.23 P-04-322 Galw am ryddhau gafael Cadw ar eglwysi yng Nghymru (Tudalennau
333 - 334)

3.24 P-04-365 Diogelu adeiladau nodedig ar safle hen Ysbyty Canolbarth Cymru
(Tudalennau 335 - 337)

3.25 P-04-381 Adfer Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru (Tudalennau 338 - 342)

3.26 P-04-403 Achub Plas Cwrt yn Dre/ Hen Senedd-dy Dolgellau (Tudalennau
343 - 355)

3.27 P-04-407 Achub Llety Gwarchod Kennard Court ar gyfer Pobl Hyn (Tudalen
356)

3.28 P-04-420 Adeiladu Cofeb i Owain Glyndwr (Tudalennau 357 - 358)

Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth
3.29 P-04-404 Awyrennau Di-Beilot Aberporth (Tudalennau 359 - 361)

3.30 P-04-414 Swyddi Cymreig (Tudalen 362)

Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
3.31 P-03-187 Diddymu'r Tollau ar ddwy Bont Hafren (Tudalennau 363 - 364)

3.32 P-03-240 Diogelwch ar ffordd yr A40 yn Llanddewi Felffre (Tudalennau 365 -
366)

Caiff y ddwy eitem ganlynol eu hystyried gyda'i gilydd

3.33 P-03-261 Atebion lleol i dagfeydd traffig yn y Drenewydd (Tudalen 367)

3.34 P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd (Tudalennau 368 - 373)

3.35 P-04-380 Dewch a'n bws yn 6l! Deiseb yn erbyn diddymu’r gwasanaethau bws
o ddwyrain Llanbedr Pont Steffan, Cwm-ann a Phencarreg (Tudalennau 374 -

379)
3.36 P-04-453 Gwelliannau ym Maes Awyr Caerdydd (Tudalennau 380 - 381)

Cyllid
3.37 P-04-436 Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru (Tudalennau 382 - 383)

4. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y



cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y canlynol: 10.45

Eitem 5

P-04-335 Sefydlu tim criced cenedlaethol i Gymru: Adroddiad
drafft 10.45 - 11.00 (Tudalen 384)



Eitem 2.1

P-04-459 Cysylltiad rheilffordd uniongyrchol o Faes Awyr
Caerdydd i ganol Caerdydd a gorllewin Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ddatblygu cysylltiad rheilffordd uniongyrchol o Faes Awyr Caerdydd i ganol
Caerdydd a gorllewin Cymru.

Mae angen mawr am linell reilffordd gyflym uniongyrchol o Faes Awyr
Caerdydd i orsaf drenau Caerdydd Canolog (ac i orllewin Cymru) fel bod y
gwasanaethau a r ddarpariaeth briodol ar gael yn ein Maes Awyr
Cenedlaethol ar gyfer ymwelwyr cenedlaethol a rhyngwladol. Mae gorsaf
reilffordd yn y Rhws eisoes, sy n llai na milltir o r maes awyr. Mae n gyfle
na ddylid ei golli i estyn y llinell i Faes Awyr Rhyngwladol Caerdydd fel y gall
teithwyr o bob rhan o r byd neidio yn syth ar 6l glanio ar drén sy n mynd a
nhw i brifddinas Cymru a thu hwnt i hynny.

Prif ddeisebydd: Cymru Sofren
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 39

Tudalen 1



Eitem 2.2

P-04-460 Moddion nid Maes Awyr
Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ystyried y ganlyn.

Mae’r gweithdrefnau sydd ar waith ar hyn o bryd i benderfynu ar gyflenwi
moddion arbenigol i gleifion ar sail achos drwy Bwyllgor Gwasanaethau
lechyd Arbenigol Cymru yn ddiffygiol ar lefel sylfaenol, yn niweidiol ac yn
peri gofid i gleifion. Mae angen protocolau a gweithdrefnau newydd ar
fyrder...Rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru adolygu’r weithdrefn o ddyrannu moddion
arbenigol i gleifion yn gyfan gwbl. Mae angen sicrhau bod y system yn haws
o lawer i’'w deall. Rhaid i feddygon gael mwy o lais yn y broses o wneud
penderfyniadau gan mai nhw yw’r bobl orau i farnu beth yw anghenion
‘cleifion’. Dylid edrych ar ffyrdd amgen o ariannu moddion, fel trafod a
chynhyrchwyr i negodi strwythurau prisio mwy realistig, a’r posibilrwydd o
dreialon unigol tymor byr ac am ddim.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol:

1. Pan fydd Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau lechyd Arbenigol Cymru yn asesu
cyffur y gwneir cais amdano, ni ddylai’r argymhellion gan y Grwp Strategaeth
Feddyginiaethau Cymru Gyfan fod wedi’u cyhoeddi fwy na 18 mis yn ol. Y
rheswm dros hyn yw’r ffaith nad oes gan argymhellion a gafodd eu gwneud
flynyddoedd yn 6l feincnod dibynadwy. Mae data dibynadwy sydd ar gael ar
gyfer pob math o foddion yn gwella o ddydd i ddydd wrth i nifer yr
astudiaethau achos gynyddu. Dylai fod gan Bwyllgor Gwasanaethau lechyd
Arbenigol Cymru yr hawl i wneud cais am adolygiad newydd gan y Grwp
Strategaeth Feddyginiaethau Cymru Gyfan a dylid gwneud hyn ar fyrder.

2. Pan fo Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau lechyd Arbenigol Cymru yn gwrthod cais
am foddion, bydd proses apelio yn cychwyn lle caiff y claf, y meddygon neu
eiriolwr fod yn bresennol ond nid oes gan yr un ohonynt yr hawl i siarad. Ni
ddylai hyn barhau, felly dylid deddfu i’'w wneud yn ofynnol bod yr achos yn
cael ei glywed gyda chyfranogiad llawn y claf, y meddygon neu’r eiriolwr.

3. Mewn llawer o achosion, mae cleifion yn sal iawn, yn unig ac yn agored
i niwed. Dylai fod yn flaenoriaeth sicrhau bod gan gleifion o’r fath eiriolwr
i’'w helpu drwy’r gweithdrefnau sy’n ymwneud ag ariannu moddion. Mae gan
feddygon Iwyth gwaith trwm ac felly nid ydynt yn gallu rhoi mwy o’u hamser
i gleifion.

4. Dylid cynnal adolygiad o gostau gwirioneddol moddion arbenigol a
wrthodwyd ac o’r gost o dderbyniadau ysbyty yn dilyn hynny a chostau

Tudalen 2



triniaeth amgen. Byddai hyn yn fuddiol i bennu cost wirioneddol moddion
arbenigol i drethdalwyr.

5. Dylai Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau lechyd Arbenigol Cymru gael y pwer i
ganiatau moddion os yw’r timoedd meddygol wedi penderfynu bod pob
triniaeth arall wedi bod yn aflwyddiannus a’u bod yn credu bod posibilrwydd
y bydd y moddion o dan sylw’n helpu’r claf.

6. Dylai Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau lechyd Arbenigol Cymru gael y dewis o
gynnig treial o foddion i glaf o leiaf i ganfod a ellid disgwyl canlyniad
cadarnhaol.

Prif ddeisebydd: Jeremy Derl-Davis

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 51

Tudalen 3



Members of the committee,

Firstly I would like to thank you for taking the time to consider the points of our petition. I
feel this petition is made as free of political partisanship as is possible. However I feel a duty
of care has to be shown by any government that is in office.

Whilst I know that your remit may be limited you do have an ability to move some of our
concerns on for further discussion. I hope you will find enough here to do so.

For the sake of these notes I am using my wife’s case as an example of the pitfalls and
difficulties that are experienced by many very ill and vulnerable patients throughout Wales.

I am confining additional points to the headings of “Additional Notes” taken from our
petition.

An important point | wish to make to you is that in the case of my wife, as with many other
people, the real danger of death is ever present. We know that change of some sort is overdue
and extremely urgent.

Brief synopsis of the case of Kate (Example Case).

Kate is 33 years old and was diagnosed with Acromegaly in December 2009.

Treatment to date which consisted of ten hours of brain surgery, 26 radiotherapy sessions and
the administering of the drug Octriotide have so far failed to improve her condition. As a
result it continues to decline. She is a patient strongly thought to be in a position to
substantially benefit from a drug called Pevisomant. A request and subsequent appeal to the
WHSSC for this drug have both been unsuccessful even in the face of recent and positive
clinical data. This is not an isolated case and drugs and treatments are regularly being
declined to patients causing untold damage. We don’t for one moment say that every drug
and treatment should be handed out but the decision process is extremely flawed and needs to
be transparent, fair and above all the right thing to do.

Tudalen 4



Points for your consideration.

1.  When the WHSSC assess a requested drug the recommendations from the All Wales
Medicines Strategy Group (AWMSG) should be no more than 18 months old. This is due to
the fact those that are years old do not have a reliable bench mark. Reliable data for all
medicines improve day by day as case studies multiply. The WHSSC should have the right to
request an up to date review from the AWMSG and this should be carried out as a matter of
urgency.

This of course might be impractical due to the amount of drugs listed but as in the example
case it should be possible for the AWMSG to be approached on a particular drug by
clinicians or the WHSSC to reassess a drug as a matter of urgency. In the case of Kate the
bench mark used is from 2005. The WHSSC themselves pointed out that an urgent review
of this drug should be carried out by the AWMSG.

NICE (National Institute for Clinical Excellence) recommended back in 2009 that
Pegvisomant was a drug they felt did not need a full recommendation from them. They felt
it was appropriate that this drug should be used and decided on a case by case basis by
individual Primary Care Trusts.

NICE guidelines for unlisted medications is as follows....

“Medicines and treatments not recommended or assessed by NICE

The NHS is not legally obliged to fund a medicine or treatment not recommended by
NICE, even if your GP thinks it would benefit you.

In fact, most NHS medicines and treatments have never been looked at by NICE. The
Department of Health (DH) only asks NICE to provide guidance when there’s uncertainty
over the use of a treatment.

All medicines must be licensed by the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory
Agency (MHRA). There is no ban on prescribing licensed medicines that NICE has not yet
assessed or where a NICE appraisal is in progress.

The DH has issued clear guidance to local organisations, such as Primary Care Trusts
(PCTs) and NHS Trusts, on what to do when NICE has not issued guidance on a new
medicine. In these circumstances, the DH expects PCTs to take into account all the
evidence available when deciding whether to fund treatments. “

(Here you see that the DH expects the latest available information to be considered. In this
case as with many others this has not been done)

2. When the WHSSC declines a request for a medicine an appeals process is then initiated
in which the patient, doctors or an advocate can be present but none are allowed to speak.

Tudalen 5



This must not continue therefore the WHSSC should by law be required to hear the case with
the full participation of the patient, doctors or advocate.

This does not need to be elaborated on too much. It has to be obvious that an appeal should
be a forum for all vested opinions to have a say. At present this is how appeals work. The
question is who does this help. Quite easily this can be changed by giving a voice to those
best able to put a case forward. Having an appeal that you can’t appeal at is a nonsense by
any standard.

3. In many cases patients are extremely ill, alone and vulnerable. It should be a priority to
make sure such patients have an advocate to help them through the procedures in place for
the funding of medicines. Doctors have large case loads so are unable to give extra time to
patients.

The Minister of Health herself believes patients have their doctors as advocates. This is not
true nor practical.. There are organisations that may be able to assist (without cost or very
little) patients who find themselves alone, confused and frightened. It should be a relatively
practical to make support in the process of applying for drugs available to patients who
need it.

4. A review of the actual costs of specialized medicines that have been refused and the
subsequent hospital admissions, alternative treatment costs should be carried out. This would
be beneficial to determine the true costs of specialized medicines to the tax payers.

In many cases not giving requested treatments can result in far higher costs due to
hospitalisation or heavier burdens on community or family carers. As complicated as this
kind of information is to collect, analyse and review it should be looked at in the future to
unearth the real costs.

5. The WHSSC should have the power to grant a medicine if the medical teams have
concluded that all other treatments have failed and that the said medicine in their opinion has
a chance to benefit the patient.

In the example case the only three possible treatments tried have been unsuccessful. The
drug requested is the only alternative that has a chance to give real and positive results.
Even if a drug proves unsuccessful it must be right to give Doctors and patients a window
of opportunity to try it. The WHSSC if they already don’t have the right to do so should be
able to override AWMSG guides and fund a drug. The AWMSG should not become just
another government rationing body.

6. The WHSSC should be given the option to at least give a patient a trial run with a drug
to ascertain if a positive result could be expected.

This point makes sense as many drug companies will on occasion give a starting dose for
free and possibly work on costs.

Conclusion:

Tudalen 6



Our points may come across as naive and difficult to pursue but what is at stake are peoples
lives, wellbeing and hope. It is no exaggeration to point out that the system as it stands is not
fair to patients and their families nor indeed to the tax payers of Wales.

I hope you will see that this attempt to bring this to the attention of the parliament has merit
and deserves more than a pat on the head. In looking after my wife I am frustrated to be
spending a vast amount of time trying to fight these issues. My wife and I are both of the
opinion that others should not have to go through this ordeal. Your input and advice will be
of great value to us. The outcomes of your discussions are very important to highlight this
problem. I have no choice in the case of a negative response to but carry on.

The simple answer is that any drug that is licensed in the United Kingdom should, if
clinically viable in the opinion of a team of specialists, be funded especially if no alternative

exists. Sometimes life has to override economics.

Again I thank you for your time and consideration.

Jeremy Derl-Davis

24-02-2013

Tudalen 7



Katy, 32, denied treatment which
is available to English

EXCLUSIVE by Antony Gedge

A WEYMAN who suffers from
an emely rare disease claims
she% been “sentenced to death”
becagge the Welsh Government is

refu to give her drugs.
KaEEerl—Davis, 32, suffers from
acromegaly, a tumour in the pi-
tuita r,l.md which releases in-
©

creased levels of growth hormones
and causes joint pain, enlarged
bones and headaches,

There are only around three or
four cases per million people in the

UK each year and hers is one of the
worst kinds of the disease, which
can’t be treated by radiotherapy
or the medication used by other
patients. ;

Katy’s husband, Jeremy, has ac-
cused health minister Lesley Grif-
fiths and the authorities of failing
in a duty of care to his wife, be-
cause she has been denied the drug
Pegvisomant despite both her con-
sultant and GP insisting it would
be hugely beneficial and was very

TN

'MRIvEI01101Y

patients

Katy, seen with husband Jeremy,
before the disease progressed
likely to add years to her life.

The drug is available to patients
in England.

Katy, who is an Aberystwyth
University graduate living in Cw-
merfyn, near Penrhyncoch, said:
“Day-to-day life is very difficult.
I'm 32, but I feel like a pensioner.
I ache. The headaches are horrific.
It's life-changing. It's gradual, but
constant. I can’t leave the house
other than to go to hospital or the
surgery.”

And Jeremy said: “This decision
could take years off Ke;?l’s life and
these people in Cardiff are doing
nothing. They’ve sentenced her to
death so they can buy Cardiff Air-
port. They don’t seem to care. This
1s my wife.”

» Story continues on page 3

John and

Caryl

. tlarke

with

daughter

Hafwen

making the

sign for

. ‘ please

Please get me a Welsh sign tutor
PARENTS of a profoundly deaf eight-year-old girl are battling to get a Welsh-medium sign language tutor for

her. John and Caryl Clarke say they are prepared to take legal action if a learning support assistant is not found
for their daughter Hafwen at Penrhyncoch Primary School. =» See full story on page 3 |




Eitem 2.3

P-04-461 Achub Pwll Padlo PontypriddGeiriad y ddeiseb:

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ddynodi’r pwll padlo ym Mharc Coffa Rhyfel Ynysangharad yn adeilad
rhestredig Gradd 2, yn yr un modd a’r Lido, ar sail ei bwysigrwydd
hanesyddol fel rhan o’r Parc.

Prif ddeisebydd: Karen Roberts

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 345

Tudalen 9



Eitem 2.4

P-04-462 Gwahardd codi baner y Deyrnas Unedig ar
adeiladau swyddogol yng Nghymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i wahardd codi baner y Deyrnas Unedig y tu allan i adeiladau swyddogol
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae’r arddangosfa gywilyddus hon o ansicrwydd ac ufudd-dod ar ran
Llywodraeth Cymru a’n swyddogion cyngor lleol yn arfer trefedigaethol
ffiaidd ddylai fod wedi marw’r un pryd a’r ’'Ymerodraeth Brydeinig’ lawer o
flynyddoedd yn ol.

Prif ddeisebydd: Plaid Glyndwr

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 200

Tudalen 10



Eitem 2.5

P-04-463 Lleihau Lefelau Halen mewn Bwyd

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i leihau’r
swm o halen sydd mewn bwyd, fel bod modd i bobl ddewis ffordd o fyw iach
yng Nghymru.

Gwybodaeth gefnogol: Mae bwyta llawer o halen yn gyfrannwr nodedig at
orbwysedd (pwysedd gwaed uchel) a all achosi stroc a thrawiad ar y galon.

Prif ddeisebydd: Harry Hayfield

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 11

Tudalen 11



Eitem 2.6

P-04-464 Gwneud Wenglish yn iaith gydnabyddedig
swyddogol yng Nghymru, fel Sgoteg yn yr Alban!

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i gydnabod Wenglish yn iaith
swyddogol, fel Sgoteg yn yr Alban.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol: Mae Wenglish yn cyfeirio at dafodieithoedd
Saesneg a siaredir yng Nghymru gan bobl Cymru. Mae dylanwad gramadeg y
Gymraeg yn drwm ar y tafodieithoedd hyn ac yn aml maent yn cynnwys
geiriau sy’n tarddu o’r Gymraeg. Yn ogystal a’r geiriau a’r gramadeg
gwahanol, mae amrywiaeth o acenion i’w cael ledled Cymru - o dafodiaith
Caerdydd i iaith Cymoedd y De a Gorllewin Cymru.

Prif ddeisebydd: Adam Rhys Davies

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 10

Tudalen 12



Eitem 2.7

P-04-465 Achub llaeth Cymru, a seilwaith a swyddi’r
diwydiant

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ddiogelu’r gwaith o gynhyrchu llaeth yng Nghymru, y gwaith o’i brosesu a’r
seilwaith llaeth yng Nghymru.

Ni ddylai ddibynnu ar y cyfleusterau a gaiff eu rheoli’n ganolog yn ehangach
yn y DU. Mae’r cyfleusterau hynny gryn bellter oddi wrth lawer o’r ffermydd
yng Nghymru, yn arbennig y ffermydd yng ngorllewin y wlad. Nid ydym yn
awgrymu y dylai’r Llywodraeth hyrwyddo un busnes neu frand, ond yn
hytrach, y dylai hyrwyddo buddsoddiad mewn unrhyw fusnes sy’n prosesu
llaeth yng Nghymru, naill ai llaeth ffres i’'w yfed, ymenyn neu gaws.

Prif ddeisebydd: Richard Arnold
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 426

Tudalen 13



Eitem 2.8

P-04-466 Argyfwng Meddygol - Atal cyflwyno gwasanaeth
iechyd o safon is yng ngogledd Cymru.

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni sydd wedi llofnodi isod yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i
annog Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau nad yw’r cynigion yn ymgynghoriad
Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr, Mae Gofal lechyd yng Ngogeldd
Cymru yn Newid yn arwain at ddarpariaeth iechyd o safon is a marwolaethau
a dioddefaint dianghenraid.

Bydd y cynigion yn cael effaith andwyol ar y rhan fwyaf o feysydd darpariaeth
iechyd a gwasanaethau brys ac ni ellir galw’r cynigion yn welliant mewn
unrhyw ffordd, fel yr honnir. Mae’r gwasanaeth iechyd yng Nghymru eisoes
yn mynd a’i ben iddo, a bydd yn wynebu chwalfa lwyr os caiff y cynigion hyn
eu rhoi ar waith ar eu ffurf bresennol.Mae cynigion ymgynghori presennol
Bwrdd lechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr ar ofal iechyd yng ngogledd Cymru
yn ymddangos yn andwyol i’r ddarpariaeth iechyd gyffredinol ac i
ddiogelwch ein cymunedau. Mae hygyrchedd, darpariaeth pelydr-X, man
anafiadau, iechyd meddwl, y gwasanaeth ambiwlans, y gwasanaeth tu allan i
oriau a gallu meddygon teulu i ddarparu gwasanaeth integredig yn mynd i
gael eu taro’n benodol gan y cynigion - gan eu bod yn cyferbynnu’n llwyr a
gweledigaeth Llywodraeth Cymru yn y dogfennau Law yn Llaw at lechyd,
Gosod y Cyfeiriad a Cyflenwi Gwasanaethau Gofal Brys - ymddengys ei bod
hefyd yn mynd yn groes i’r “compact” a gyhoeddodd y Gweinidog lechyd ar
25 Medi 2012.

Prif ddeisebydd: Mike Parry
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 306

Tudalen 14



GT usjepnyL

“TERMINAL” THOUGHTS AND

CONCLUSIONS

However much “hype” and “spin” is given to the BCUHB
proposals — there is absolutely no way that the proposals
contained within, can deliver a better and safer Health Ser-
vice, as is continually suggested.

The word consultation is clearly misleading —as GP’s and
health professionals are continually articulating. They are
not persuaded that that they have been real partners in this
process, as they were not properly engaged in the pro-
cess—as is being suggested and promoted within the docu-
ment.

Some of the proposals within the consultation - will with-
out doubt cause unnecessary suffering and deaths, -
thus anyone sanctioning the detrimental consultation
proposals — should in the future be held to account — per-
haps we could call their actions “Health Crimes”

To conclude, if the BCUHB members genuinely cannot re-
spond positively to the hues, cries and concerns of the pub-
lic and the health professionals - then communities and the
general public expect and indeed demand that the Welsh
Government and its Assembly Members intervene and
protect what is - literally— OUR LIVES !

This is happening on your watch— do not be seen to and go

down in history as someone who did nothing .
History is littered with such people !

We fully realise that these problems are not localised—though
rural areas do have their own unique characteristics. Wales re-
spectfully expects its politicians to do something about these
proposals —~ which are literally, going to threaten our future
existence ! Thank you.

A DOCUMENT PURPORTING TO BE DELIVERING AN IMPROVED
SERVICE !!!

OCTOBER 2012

Health Care in North Wales is
Changing — a critique of the
BCUHB consultation

proposal.

A ticking
Time-bomb ! -
That must be

DEFUSED !

How the proposals will -

. Be detrimental to the health and indeed safety of the general

public— particularly to those residing in rural areas.
. Severely impact on existing health provision and services.
. Cause unnecessary suffering - and indeed deaths.

o Be unacceptable to the communities it is meant to be in theory

serving.



Page? The Consultation

The purpose of 3 consultation document is to sell
products or services to a targeted audience—in this
case the general public— as contained within the ge-
ographical area serviced by the BCUHB —basically
North Wales.

Consultations can be a great way of selling provided
—the arguments are convincing and compelling.

c

g.The staff, GP’s and the public in North Wales remain
unconvinced by the proposals and rationale contained
> within the consultation. This has been reflected in
some of the hostile demonstrations and meetings held
across North Wales as part of the consultation process.
That might be a bit of 3 problem for BCUHB—but
that is the medicine that the public and GP’s demand
that they take on board—it is also the reason why
WAG need to intervene to ensure that we do not
come to any harm !

This will be an acid test to see if WAG really does care
about our communities and our wellbeing—and that
they are willing to do something about it !

Background information—Service Failures and problems

Terminally ill patient in the
Bala area with Hospice
Nurse in attendance -OOH
Doctor was summoned
urgently, but Doctor was in
Machynlleth -then went on
to Tywyn and then arrived
in Bala some 3 Hrs later —
by which time the patient
had unfortunately died - in

some considerable distress.

Totally, totally
unacceptable !

Haven holiday Camp —
with some 5000+ people
residing at its peak -
was directed to send
people to Allt wen
Hospital for Minor
Injuries — not to Bryn
Beryl that they have
historically used for
50+years !!

we have regular
reports of NHS Direct
also doing this -thus
undermining the
service provided at
Bryn Beryl- to the
detriment and safety
of the public !'OOH
GP’s also more or Tless
refuse to go to Bryn
Beryl- they demand
that the mountain has
to go to Mohammed !!

Page 7

Gentleman in Llangwnadl
subject of 999 call, no
ambulance available locally
-one dispatched from
Dolgellau — some 1 1/2 hrs
away. Arrived to take
patient to Bangor which is
still a good 1 1/4Hr +
away .

AmbuTance got Tost in
Nanhoron — eventually made
its way to Bangor— where
the gentleman’s daughter-
who had been summoned, had
been waiting for some
considerable time.

So much for the “Golden
Hour” - this example had
all the ingredients of a
fatal tragedy !

One ambulance man only covering
Pwllheli and the Llyn Peninsula
15/8/12— not an isolated instance ! !

S

)

We deserve something better than
sticking plaster !

SADLY AND SHOCKINGLY
THERE ARE PLENTY MORE
STORIES LIKE THESE
AVAILABLE!




Page 6

The Consultation Document

Time and in particular the “Golden Hour” is something that
the seriously ill and emergency patient cannot afford to miss
out on ! The new proposals in the consultation will not
improve the “Golden Hour” scenario—in fact it will worsen
the situation. Demands on the Ambulance service in
particular will increase - as they are already presently
struggling. Living in a rural area is now becoming literally
dangerous !The future is bleak and increased suffering and
unnecessary deaths will without doubt occur - due to the
poor response times of the beleaguered Ambulance service
and the thinly spread OOH service !

@

Recent work by Professor Jon Nicholl Dean
of School of Health and Related Research,
University of sheffield clearly shows
that travelling time clearly has a
proportional impact on the survivability
of emergency patients. These proposals
clearly work against the interests of
patient ! So much for the patient safety
argument that is being continually rolled
out by BCUHB !!

LT usjepnyt

Cause and effect, proposals, costings and practicalities
clearly have not been properly discussed with the
Ambulance Service, staff, GP’s, Social Services etc before
the consultation was published. The consultation
document however does give a slightly contrary
impression !! Naughty !

UNLOCKING RECRUITMENT —
A TALE OF WOE

BCUHB have failed in their recruitment drives to attract
more health professionals. Locum costs are going
through the roof. The Out Of Hours service continues to
struggle for Doctors. The crisis is unlikely to be unlocked
by what is contained in the consultation. GP practices in
Dwyfor cannot attract new doctors and have numerous
obvious retirements pending - which will be the
eventual straw that breaks the camel’s back. To address
this crisis -something needs to be done NOW - as some
GP practices are oversubscribed and must be
approaching operating “unsafely” and subsequently will
have to consider closing their “lists”.

IMPRESSIONS OF A SELF CONFESSED CYNIC

Page 3

Reflections on past performance locally

Past BCUHB management proposals for restructuring our local
Community Hospital over the winter period, clearly demonstrated
an embarrassing and total lack of knowledge of the building,
what was physically there, and what they are actually managing.
It also managed to de-motivate a despairing workforce who were
shocked by their lack of specifics. When presented with some
facts and practicalities —-the proposals were eventually withdrawn

and an accommodation was reached.

The current proposals—suggest that a joined up approach to

services still has not been thought through and the continual

reference to delivering a better and safer service is offensive to

many at all levels and disciplines.

BCUHB like it or not, is presiding over the biggest meltdown of
Health Services in North Wales. This is happening on their watch.
The general public are certainly not fully aware of the potential

problems that lie ahead. Problems that will end in tragedy !

Transparency and cascading of information to staff at the coal
face appears not to have been considered a priority. If in doubt,

ask the staff I! Also take the time to ask GP’s !!

OUR COMMUNITIES — IN URGENT NEED OF HELP FROM WAG!!




Paged The Consultation Document @

Cause and effects at Bryn Beryl (just one example)

Proposed closure of X-Ray Department

As with the proposed temporary closure of a ward last Xmas —in
relation to the recently upgraded X ray Department, no discus-
sions took place with the health professionals that were most af-
fected —in this case being the Local GP’s, the X-ray Department ,
the MI Unit and significantly visiting Clinicians. So much for the
aspiration to deliver locally community based services as alluded
to in “Setting the Direction” and “Together for Health “  both
of course WAG publications. Despite calls by the community for
El the X ray department to be better used, the facility has laboured
8’ under the poor management and the obscenity of hundreds of
) people literally passing its door to be carted off to remote loca-
j— tions for the same service that was available on their doorstep.
©0 Madness. A cursory glance at the figures also demonstrates how
very efficient the Bryn Beryl Unit is when compared to others.

Removal of X ray facilities will mean that :

1. Rheumatology and Orthopedic clinics taken by visiting Consult-
ants cannot thus take place at Bryn Beryl. Patients many of
whom have already spent some considerable time in just getting
to Bryn Beryl will then have to travel even further to Allt Wen or
Ysbyty Gwynedd . Some areas of the Llyn would mean, that cer-
tainly with public transport — these journeys could not be made in
one day. Also to be considered is the fact that many of these peo-
ple already have mobility problems and are in constant pain. The
sum total will be therefore that an outreach service delivered in a
local community hospital will be lost completely -with all the

poor outcomes that will result from such an action.

Page 5

2. A GP wanting to admit a patient say with a suspected fall/and
chest infection or Urinary Tract Infection be they in their home or on
a Ward at Bryn Beryl — will not under the consultation proposals,
have the flexibility or convenience of the X-ray facility at Bryn Beryl.
This therefore will delay diagnostics, will mean tying up ambulance
resources even further and will add to the distress and discomfort
being experienced by the patient. Travelling times would also in-
crease dramatically. It has never made sense that a digital machine
capable of excellent results and diagnostics has been underutilized
and certainly has not embraced the best use of resources that the
BCUHB has been continually advocating. Carting ill people around
in ambulances on long journeys and in all weathers cannot be inter-
preted as being in their best interests or their improved safety.

. GP’s who would far prefer to access community based solutions to

their problems, will by default in the best interests of the patient—be
forced to send people to hospital with all the problems and logistical
debris that results from such a decision -adding even more to the
woes of a beleaguered Ambulance Service and the Acute hospital.

The resultant bed-blocking and inevitable increased demand on the
Acute Hospital X-Ray department will be chaotic, inefficient and
undoubtedly will compromise patient safety.

Scheduled precautionary/prudent X-rays by GP’s or indeed the
MI Unit would not be carried out locally — with all the resultant
inconvenience, time and resultant expense for all parties in-
volved.

THE ABOVE COMMENTS ARE BY NO MEANS EXHAUSTIVE - AND
ARE BRIEF COMMENTS IN RELATION TO JUST ONE SERVICE PRES-
ENTLY AVAILABLE AT THE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL. IF THE
BCUHB CONTINUE TO PULL BRICKS OUT OF THE WALL THAT
COMPRISES OF THE FACILITIES AT BRYN BERYL —THEN THE
WALL WILL EVENTUALLY COLLAPSE —WHICH IS PERHAPS THE
LONG TERM GOAL OF THE BCUHB.!!



Eitem 2.9

P-04-467 Arholiadau ym mis lonawr

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i barhau i gefnogi’r drefn o gynnal arholiadau ym mis lonawr ar gyfer TGAU,
UG a Safon Uwch.

Prif ddeisebydd: Myfyrwyr Lefel - A

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 90

Tudalen 19



Eitem 2.10

P-04-468 Pryderon am Ddiogelwch Ffordd A48 Cas-gwent

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ostwng y terfyn cyflymder ar Bont yr A48 yng Nghas-gwent o 50mya i
30mya.

Prif ddeisebydd: Cyngor Tref Cas-gwent
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 19 Mawrth 2013

Nifer y llofnodion : Casglodd deiseb gysylltiedig 1,000 o lofnodion

Tudalen 20



INFORMATION TO SUPPORT PETITION WHICH CALLS ON THE NATIONAL
ASSEMBLY FOR WALES TO URGE THE WELSH GOVERNMENT TO
REDUCE THE SPEED LIMIT ON THE A48 BRIDGE FROM 50MPH TO 30MPH

This is an important issue which affects the lives of young people in Chepstow, who walk
to school along the A48 Bridge to Wydean School.

The safety of this stretch of road has been a matter of concern to Chepstow Town
Council for some considerable time.

The Town Council did seek to address concerns and hosted a joint meeting inviting
representatives from the Forest of Dean, Monmouthshire County Council and the South
Wales Trunk Road Agency on Monday 5™ November 2012, in the event, the Forest of
Dean was not represented. At the meeting the Town Council stressed the fact that in
recent years the number of school children from Chepstow attending Wyedean School
had increased dramatically and that therefore large numbers of school age children
regularly crossed the A48 Bridge at peak times. The pedestrian carriageway on the
bridge is narrow and therefore concerns for the safety of the school children and other
pedestrians had been raised. It was also noted that the improved safety of pedestrians
using the A48 Bridge had been identified as one of the three main priorities for action by
the first Youth Council of Chepstow. The Town Council requested that barriers be
installed to separate pedestrians from vehicles.

In response the South Wales Trunk Road Agency officers advised that the pedestrian
carriageway was not standard width and that the Welsh Government would not support
the installation of barriers at this location.

When the speed of traffic was raised, South Wales Trunk Road Agency officers
explained that the speed limit had relatively recently been reduced to 50 mph which was
considered reasonable in traffic management terms.

Subsequent to this meeting, Chepstow Town Council on 28" November 2012 received a
delegation of pupils from Wydean School. The pupils very eloquently addressed the
Town Council and handed in a petition calling for improvements in pedestrian safety
along the A48 Bridge and in particular a reduction in speed limit to 30mph. (A copy of
the Wyedean presentation is attached for information)

Currently the students have collected in excess of 1,000 signatures to their petition and
held a peaceful protest on Saturday 2™ March to draw further attention to their cause.

Chepstow Town Council has resolved to strongly support these young people and to
work with them to try to secure the necessary road safety improvements along this
stretch of the A48.

Protest on Saturday 2" March

Sandra Bushell
Town Clerk Tudalen 21



Hello. My name is Anna Dewar and | am a Sixth Form student at
Wyedean School. | am representing our Student Campaign Group.
We strongly feel that the speed limit on the A48 Bridge of 50 miles
per hour is completely unacceptable, and we think that it should be
lowered to 30. If you are hit by a car travelling at 30 miles per hour,
you would have an 80% chance of living; at 50, this figure is less than
5%.

Approximately a quarter of Wyedean students walk across this
bridge twice a day: that is over 300 children crossing the bridge each
way. Therefore, there is a large volume of students walking along the
pavement with no gap or barrier between them and the fast moving
traffic. The beginning and end of school is also the peak time for
traffic flows, which is obviously a very dangerous combination.

In the last couple of years, 2 students have been hit by a car on this
stretch of road in two separate accidents. Do we need to wait for
someone to be killed before the speed limit is reduced?

Our campaign group has started a petition, and we already have over
400 signatures, and this number is growing rapidly. These include
signatures of parents of children at the school, and also other
concerned residents of Chepstow. We gained 200 signatures in just
one parents evening, which shows how strongly people feel about
this issue.

We feel that this overwhelming support from the public should be
taken seriously, and the speed limit reduced to 30 miles per hour as
soon as possible.

We know that child safety is of the upmost importance.

Thank you for your time.
Tudalen 22




Eitem 3.1

P-04-333 Rhoi diwedd ar esgeuluso a gadael ceffylau a merlod
drwy orfodi deddfwriaeth ar ddefnyddio microsglodion.

Geiriad y Ddeiseb:

Mae’r Gymdeithas er Lles Ceffylau a Merlod wedi cael Ilif o alwadau am
gymorth gan aelodau pryderus o’r cyhoedd, perchnogion ceffylau a’r heddlu
ynghylch ceffylau sydd wedi’u gadael, eu hesgeuluso neu sydd wedi’u
hanafu. Mae nifer ohonynt wedi eu hanafu wrth iddynt grwydro ar ein ffyrdd
sy’n beryglus iawn i fodurwyr.

Does dim microsglodyn gan yr un o’r ceffylau hyn - sydd wedi bod yn
ofyniad cyfreithiol ar ebolion ac ebolesau sydd wedi’u geni ar 6l mis
Gorffennaf 2009 - sy’n golygu nad yw hi’n bosibl olrhain perchnogion y
ceffylau. Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog
Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod microsglodion yn cael eu defnyddio a bod
pasbortau gan geffylau fel sy’n ofynnol yn 6l Deddfwriaeth 2009.
Cynigwyd gan: Y Gymdeithas er Lles Ceffylau a Merlod

Ysytyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 11 Hydref 2011

Nifer y llofnodion: 2114

Y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf: Bydd y Pwyllgor yn ystyried y ddeiseb hon am y
tro cyntaf.

Tudalen 23



Alun Davies AC / AM / f?
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Amaethyddiaeth, Bwyd, Pysgodfeydd a F\/

Rhaglenni Ewropeaidd -
Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Food, Fisheries and ;JB
European Programmes

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-333
Ein cyf/Our ref AD-/00037/13

William Powell AM

Chair Petition's committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

N\ TKF:\’\ \ ?"\' February 2013

Enforcement of micro chipping and equine passport legislation

Thank you for your letter of 23 January in respect of the petition that is currently being
considered, calling for effective enforcement of the Equine Identification (Wales)
Regulations 2009.

As part of the approach | am taking in dealing with the issue of fly grazing | have made it
clear that | expect enforcement authorities to take a very robust approach to the problem
and use all available legislation open to them. This includes the enforcement of the equine
identification regulations.

| am disappointed with Defra’s decision not to award a new contract for the provision of a
central equine database and concerned about the difficulties that the loss of the database is
causing to enforcement authorities. | am also concerned that in reaching this decision Defra
did not consult the Welsh Government. Defra considered the views of the Animal Health
and Welfare Board for England who concluded that the costs of continuing to fund a
database were not justified.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdygdd é rw Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
u a n 24 Correspondence.Alun.Davies@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



| have also given an undertaking to review the legal framework and to seek any additional
powers enforcement authorities might require to enable them to effectively deal with the
problem. In order to inform this review, | will undertake a consultation in early March. A copy
of the consultation will be forwarded to the Committee Clerk for your information as well as
to members of the Cross Party Group on the Horse for their consideration and input.

A ot

e

—

Alun Davies AC /| AM
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Amaethyddiaeth, Bwyd, Pysgodfeydd a Rhaglenni Ewropeaidd
Deputy Minister for Agriculture, Food, Fisheries and European Programmes

Tudalen 25



P-04-333 Stop neglect and abandonment of horses and ponies by enforcement
of microchipping laws - Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Committee
25.02.13

Dear Sian,

Many thanks for forwarding the letter from Alun Davies AM to William Powell AM in respect of our Micro -
Chipping Petition and would appreciate your forwarding our response to the Petitions Committee for their
meeting on 5th March.

We are heartened to receive the pro-active response by Alun Davies AM and action already being taken
with regard to our Petition and wish to bring the following points to the Petitions Committee.

The total lack of enforcement of the micro-chipping laws has been ongoing since its conception in 2009
and with the decision by Defra not to continue the National Equine Database last year makes it
impossible for tracing of equines. The original decision to allow so many Passport Issuing bodies is also
questionable in being able to control the issuing of Passports.

The recent massive and ongoing media coverage regarding Horse Meat in the food chain with some
containing Bute must surely bring about an enforcement of the Micro-chipping and Passport laws and
indeed the introduction of a scheme to make the tracing of equines similar to that of Farm Animals.The
fact that it is currently so newsworthy and involving so many agencies adds further impetus to the need
for the Passport and Microchipping laws being robustly enforced.

Some further points that we have discussed at The Society for The Welfare of Horses and Ponies are as
follows.

The impact on equine charities and to the tax payer of so many unwanted equines due to indiscriminate
breeding calls for the Registration of Stallions under a licensing scheme.

Equines are a very important part of Tourism in Wales and if a highly contagious disease came into this
country under the current situation there is no way it can be policed.

The thorough checking of equines when leaving Ports in Wales to cross to Ireland needs to be looked at
very carefully. Do the Shipping companies check the Passports??. There is no need for equines to be
traveling long distances in appalling conditions to overseas Abattoirs.

We do hope that further legislation can be introduced to end the appalling suffering to equines that we
see on a daily basis at The Society for The Welfare of Horses and Ponies. The entire system needs to be
looked at with additional legislation but first lets implement the existing laws on Microshipping and
Passports. It would indeed be wonderful if Wales could lead the way on Equine Welfare.

Many thanks for your continued interest in our Petition.

Yours sincerely,

Sian Lloyd
The Society for The Welfare of Horses and Ponies

Tudalen 26



Eitem 3.2

P-04-383 Yn Erbyn Dynodiad Parth Perygl Nitradau ar gyfer
Llyn Llangors

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

‘Rydym yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i wrthdroi’r dynodiad Parth Perygl
Nitradau arfaethedig ar fasn Llyn Llangors, sy’n debygol o effeithio ar tua 25
o fusnesau ffermio.’

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Kaye Davies
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 27 Mawrth 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 43

Tudalen 27



Eitem 3.3

P-04-390 Dynodi Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos Caergybi (parc
arfordir) yn Warchodfa Natur Genedlaethol

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Yr ydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth
Cymru i ddynodi Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos Caergybi (parc arfordir) yn
Warchodfa Natur Genedlaethol.

Gwybodaeth ategol:

Mae’r gymuned wedi bod yn defnyddio Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos (parc
arfordir), Caergybi am 40 mlynedd. Mae’n dirlun sy’n cael ei werthfawrogi
gan gymdeithas. Mae’n drysor naturiol. Yr ydym yn credu y dylid cael gafael
ar etifeddiaeth barhaus y warchodfa natur annwyl hon a’i rheoli ar gyfery
gymuned. Dylai Cyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru ei dynodi yn warchodfa natur
genedlaethol gyda gweledigaeth hir dymor sy’n cynnwys menter
gynhwysfawr i gysylltu’r gymuned gyfan a’i ‘chyfalaf naturiol’: yn cael ei
rhedeg gan y bobl ar gyfer y bobl.

Mae Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos wedi’i hamgylchynu gan arfordir hanesyddol
sydd wedi’i ddynodi yn ardal o harddwch naturiol eithriadol ger safle o
ddiddordeb gwyddonol arbennig ac sy’n llunio’i thirlun eiconig. Mae Gorsedd
y Penrhyn, uwchlaw llinell llwybr yr arfordir, wedi ei dynodi yn safle
daearegol a geomorffaidd pwysig (UK RIGS) gan y Gymdeithas Geocadwraeth.
Ynghyd a hyn mae’r cynefinoedd dwr croyw yn cynnwys cynefinoedd
gwelyau cyrs sydd wedi’u blaenoriaethu o dan gynllun gweithredu
cynefinoedd y DU (UK hap). Wrth ddynodi’r warchodfa yn barc cenedlaethol
byddwn yn gallu gwneud y gorau o fanteision economaidd ‘cyfalaf naturiol’
yr ynys. Harddwch digyffwrdd yr ynys yw sylfaen twristiaeth. Mae’n drysor
ysbrydoledig yng nghanol y gymuned a chanddi dapestri cyfoethog o fywyd
sy’n cael ei werthfawrogi gan y gymuned gyfan. Yn 6l y s6n, mae’n
‘baradwys ddiwinyddol’ ac yn rhan o allorlun Ynys Gybi. Yn wir, mae’r
100,000 o ymwelwyr sy’n dod yno bob blwyddyn yn cydnabod hyn. Fel
dywedodd y bardd R S Thomas:

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Jenny Amelia Jones
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 15 Mai 2012
Nifer y llofnodion: 826 (casglodd deiseb cysylltiedig 1,100 o lofnodion)

Tudalen 28



- -

= Cyngor Cefn Gwlac! Cymru
C—' Countryside Council for Wales

Countryside Council for Wales

CADEIRYDD/CHAIRMAN: MORGAN PARRY e PRIF WEITHREDWR/CHIEF EXECUTIVE: ROGER THOMAS

Anfonwch eich ateb at/Please reply to: Roger Thomas, Prif Weithredwr/Chief Executive
Cyfeiriad Isod/Address Below
Llinell Union/Direct Line: 01248 387146; Ffacs/Fax: 01248 385506
Ebost/Email: n.sanpher@ccw.gov.uk

By e-mail:- naomi.stocks@wales.gov.uk

Ms Naomi Stocks
Committee Clerk
Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay
CARDIFF
CF99 INA
29 January 2013

Dear Ms Stocks
PENRHOS COASTAL PARK

Thank you for the letter, dated 28 November, from Mr William Powell AM, Chair of the
Petitions Committee.

The proposed development lies within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).
AONBES are protected by law to ensure conservation and enhancement of their natural beauty
for present and future generations.

As the Government's statutory adviser on landscape conservation matters, CCW's main
interest in this proposal is in the impacts of a large scale development in an AONB. Section
85 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 imposes a statutory duty on local
authorities, other public bodies and relevant authorities to have regard to AONB. The
statutory purposes of AONBs are, as noted above, to conserve and enhance their natural
beauty.

There is an underlying policy assumption that explicitly states “major developments should
not take place in National Parks or AONBs except in exceptional circumstances”. AONBs
will generally be free of new large scale development, except where certain stringent tests of
need and acceptability are met. In Wales, the policy and tests are detailed in paragraph 5.5.6
of Planning Policy Wales (PPW):

PPW 5.5.6: In National Parks or AONBs, special considerations apply to major

development proposals which are more national than local in character. Major
developments should not take place in National Parks or AONBs except in exceptional

yias

Noddir gan
Lywodraeth Cymru

Sponsored by
Welsh Government

Gofalu am natur Cymru - ar y tir ac yn y mér e Caring for our natural heritage - on land and in the sea

Prif Swyddfa/Headquarters
MAES-Y-FFYNNON, PENRHOSGARNEDD, BANGORWdMe‘ﬁOQGL: 01248 385500; FFACS/FAX: 01248 355782

http://lwww.ccw.gov.uk



circumstances. This may arise where, after rigorous examination, there is demonstrated
to be an overriding public need and refusal would be severely detrimental to the local
economy and there is no potential for locating the development elsewhere or meeting
the need in some other way. Any construction and restoration must be carried out to
high environmental standards. Consideration of applications for major developments
should therefore include an assessment of:

+ the need for the development, in terms of national considerations, and the impact of
permitting it or refusing it upon the local economy;

* the cost of and scope for providing the development outside the designated area or
meeting the need for it in some other way;

+ any detrimental effect on the environment and the landscape, and the extent to which
that could be moderated.

PPW also states at 5.3.5 that “although it will also be appropriate to have regard to the
economic and social well-being of the areas™ ... “the primary objective for designating
AONBE: is the conservation and enhancement of their natural beauty” and that at 5.3.6 “In
National Parks and AONBs, development plan policies and development control decisions
should give great weight to conserving and enhancing the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural
heritage of these areas”.

I trust that this information is of assistance to you.

Yours sincerely

[ Bogonn

Roger Thomas
Chief Executive

Tudalen 30



P-04-390 Designate Penrhos Holyhead Nature reserve (coastal park) a National
reserve: Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Clerk. 21.02.2013

Dear William Powell,
In response to letter dated 29 January by Robert Thomas CCW

The CCW is instituted for the protection of the landscape: AONB designations and National Parks and |
welcome participation that would scrutinise any proposals that would undermine the natural citizenship
that has been forged in the AONB of Penrhos.

The accustomed failure of Anglesey County Council (loACC) should not lead to the blind destruction of
Holy Islands most treasured outdoor space. The natural character of Wales is fully appreciated in the
dramatic power of the Penrhos Reserve landscape and it should not be at the mercy of hollow
propositions: the plans of Land and Lakes can not reasonably be supported-we do not ask for Penrhos to
be for the benefit of the few, as envisaged by the Land and Lakes plans, we simply ask for Penrhos to
remain an open Nature Reserve in perfect liberty for the community. The sublimity of Penrhos must
remain the Reserve of Holyhead people ' run by the people for the people' fulfilling agenda 21 and its
principles.

The character of Penrhos and its divine bay is this small Islands masterpiece, it is the keystone splendour
of the North Wales Coastal Path Initiative for Holy Island a scene that comprises the most admirable art:
our landscape is our greatest exhibition, the theatre of Welsh creation that displays throughout the
seasons like an illuminated landscipt of our Natural Heritage and | commend the CCW's position as its
legal custodians

Yours Faithfully,

Jenny Amelia Jones.
(Petitioner)

Tudalen 31



Eitem 3.4

P-04-399 Arferion lladd anifeiliaid

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Galwn ar y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i wahardd yr
arfer o ladd anifeiliaid heb eu llonyddu i ddechrau.

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Royce Clifford
Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 19 Mehefin 2012
Nifer y llofnodion: 400

Tudalen 32



! (=
John Griffiths AC /AM N / ( f

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy g
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development - ,JL)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref p-04-339
Ein cyf/Our ref JG/00241/13

William Powell AM

AM for Mid & West Wales
Chair Petition's committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Deec WlMa~ | March 2013

Thank you for your letter dated 6 February concerning the implementation of Regulation
1099/2099 on the protection of animals at time of killing.

A brief summary of the consultation responses that cover the main issues raised has been
published as part of the Decision Report on the Welsh Government website -

http://wales.qov.uk/publications/accessinfo/drnewhomepage/dr2012/octdec/enviro/ig3800/7|
ang=en

http://wales.gov.uk/publications/accessinfo/drnewhomepage/dr2012/octdec/enviro/jg3800/7?
skip=1&lang=cy

My officials are working with colleagues in the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs to finalise the domestic legislation which is scheduled for implementation in May.

A number of changes are being made as result of the responses that were received to the
consultation. These include —

A simplified method of application and assessment for first time applicant of a
Certificate of Competence;

e A simplified method for issuing existing licence holders with a Certificate of
Competence;

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cagdiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1u«dalen 33 Correspondence.John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



e The retention of all existing National Rules in place that provide greater animal
welfare protection than EU Regulation 1099/20089.

| have responded to the Committee about CCTV in slaughterhouses separately. The subject
of non-stun method of slaughter is a matter that will be considered once the EU Regulation

has been fully implemented.
V Gt~ ,
A

Joh'“n)Grm AM

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen 34



Eitem 3.5

P-04-417: Achubwch Draeth Morfa ac ataliwch Lwybrau
Troed Cyhoeddus 92 a 93 rhag cau

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Darn o’r morlin rhwng Gwaith Dur Port Talbot a Thraeth Sgér yw Traeth
Morfa, gerllaw Gwarchodfa Natur Cynffig . Dim ond ar droed neu ar feicy
mae’n bosibl cael mynediad i’r traeth, felly mae wedi dod yn fan gwerthfawr
o heddwch a thawelwch. Yn 2011 ffurfiwyd y grivp cymunedol , a€ceSave
Morfa Beach (Friends of Morfa) &€ mewn ymateb i fygythiad drwy Waith Dur
TATA a oedd yn ceisio atal mynediad i’r traeth. Mae hyn yn cynnwys cau dau
Iwybr troed cyhoeddus o arwyddocad hanesyddol sy’n cael llawer o ddefnydd
ac sy’n arwain i’r traeth: Liwybr troed 92 o Longlanda€™s Lane ym Margam a
Liwybr Troed 93 o Warchodfa Natur Cynffig. Mae’r DEISEBWYR yn cefnogi
ymgyrch sefydliad Save Morfa Beach (Friends of Morfa) i ddiogelu’r hawliau
tramwy ar hyd llwybrau troed 92 a 93 a chadw’r mynediad i Draeth Morfa.
Rydym yn gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru a Chyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
gynnal a chadw’r holl hawliau tramwy ar Margam Burrows, ac ymgysylltu a
Tata Steel er mwyn sicrhau bod mynediad cyhoeddus i’r traeth yn parhau.

Gwybodaeth ategol: Pa un ai a yw hawliau tramwy’n croesi tir preifat neu dir
cyhoeddus, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot a Chynulliad
Cymru sy’n gyfrifol yn y pen draw am sicrhau eu bod yn cael eu gwarchod,
eu bod ar gael a’u bod yn addas i’r diben. Rydym felly’n lobio, ond fel
sefydliad nid ydym yn wleidyddol . Cafodd Grwp ei greu ar Facebook
(www.facebook.com/groups/SaveMorfaBeach/) fel proffil cyhoeddus y
sefydliad.

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 2 Hydref 2012
Prif ddeisebydd: Save Morfa Beach (Friends of Morfa)
Nifer y llofnodion: 1191

Tudalen 35



P-04-417 Save Morfa Beach and Prevent the Closure of Public Footpaths 92 and 93

Correspondence from Petitioner to Chair

Mr William Powell AC

Chair of the Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

30 January 2013
Dear Mr Powell

Thank you for your letter of 14 December and the enclosures. | apologise for the lateness in
replying; the Friends of Morfa (Save Morfa Beach) have naturally been considering our response,
and given that there are now over 1,000 members this has taken some time.

In response to your letter and its enclosures, SMB would like to note the following:-

1. The e-petition was one of the most widely supported ever on the Assembly website. It
attracted signatures not only from NPTC but from around Wales and farther afield. This
is therefore not a purely parochial issue. Our Facebook membership and Twitter
following confirm the strength of feeling. We therefore expect the Welsh Assembly and
Government to act in accordance with this strongly held public opinion, and to carry out
the actions requested in the petition.

2. The delay between the public footpath closure order being made and the calling of a
public enquiry is unacceptable, it is now well over a year. It is creating uncertainty in the
community, and incidentally damaging the viability and credibility of the All Wales
Coastal Path and threatening the Morfa Burrows Site of Special Scientific Interest.
Meanwhile NPTC does nothing to maintain footpaths 92 and 93 on the pretext that an
enquiry is imminent. We ask the Welsh Assembly and Government to instruct NPTC
officers either to call an enquiry or rescind the closure order forthwith.

I, and the group, thank you and the Petitions Committee for your continued interest in this matter.

With very best regards

3 (A
L%f/ I\ N t‘JAM

Kath Nichdlson

Tudalen 36



Eitem 3.6

P-04-422 : Ffracio

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Gweinidog yr
Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy i lunio Datganiad Polisi Cynllunio
Mwynau Interim Gweinidogol, yn ogystal a nodyn cyngor technegol newydd, i
gryfhau’r egwyddor ragofalus ynglyn a cheisiadau cynllunio ar gyfer olew a
nwy ar y tir, gan gynnwys ffracio. Rhaid dileu pob amheuaeth wyddonol
resymol bod risg o effeithiau niweidiol, a rhaid rhoi’r ystyriaeth gryfaf i’r
angen brys i liniaru’r newid yn yr hinsawdd.

Prif ddeisebydd: Cyfeillion y Ddaear Cymru

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 2 Hydref 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: Tua 1000

Tudalen 37



Our Ref/Ein Cyf:

Your Ref/Eich Cyf:
Date/Dyddiad:

Please ask for/Gofynnwch am:
Direct line/Llinell uniongyrchol:
Email /Ebost:

14" January 2013
Jane Lee

02920 468515
jane.lee@wlga.gov.uk

William Powell AM

National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear William
PETITIONS COMMITTEE

With reference to your letter dated 14™ December 2012 which sought
views from local planning authorities regarding current planning
guidance in relation to the issue of fracking, I can confirm that this
has been discussed with members of the Planning Officers Society for
Wales.

The view from local planning authorities is that there is a lack of
Planning Policy Guidance/Technical Advice Note/Best Practice notes
etc with regard to fracking and assessing planning applications for
that form of development. The existing planning policy guidance was
drafted prior to the increase in interest in exploiting the underlying
geology for fracking. It is of note that the Planning Officers Society in
England has recently made a similar plea to UK Government for some
clarity.

It has been suggested that an addendum to the existing Technical
Advice Note specifically on fracking may suffice.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you require any further

views from local planning authorities.

Yours sincerely

r “‘pfm

Tim Peppin
Director of Regeneration and Sustainable Development

WLGA-CLILC

Steve Thomas
Chief Executive
Prif Weithredwr

Welsh Local Government
Association

Local Government House
Drake Walk

CARDIFF CF10 4LG

Tel: 029 2046 8600

Fax: 029 2046 8601

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth
Leol Cymru

Ty Llywodraeth Leol
Rhodfa Drake
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG
Ffon: 029 2046 8600
Ffacs: 029 2046 8601

www.wlga.gov.uk

The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or Engﬁsh - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur eildro



Eitem 3.7

P-04-433 : Teledu Cylch Cyfyng mewn Lladd-dai

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i’w
gwneud yn orfodol i osod teledu cylch cyfyng mewn lladd-dai er mwyn helpu
milfeddygon i reoli a monitro yn well, darparu deunydd ffilm er budd
hyfforddiant ac ail-hyfforddi, atal camdrin anifeiliaid, fel y ffilmiwyd gan
Animal Aid, ac fel tystiolaeth ar gyfer erlyniad mewn achosion o gamdrin.
Prif ddeisebydd: Animal Aid

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 6 Tachwedd 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 1066

Tudalen 39



7
John Griffiths AC /AM iﬁg

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy i
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development ;JA)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref PO4-433
Ein cyf/Our ref JG/00240/13

William Powell AM

AM for Mid & West Wales
Chair Petition's committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

_ ‘ March 2013
Thank you for your letter dated 5§ February concerning CCTV in Welsh slaughterhouses.

I have met with Animal Aid and other animal welfare organisations to discuss the issue of
CCTV at an event arranged by Animal Aid at the Senedd on 10" October 2012.

Retailers and Assurance Schemes such as the Red Tractor and the RSPCA Freedom Food
encourage the installation of CCTV at slaughterhouses as better practice. A number of
slaughterhouses in Wales do have CCTV installed to monitor animal welfare standards.

For CCTV to have a positive impact on welfare standards at slaughterhouses it must be
recognised that appropriate time would be required for officials to view at least a sample of
recorded footage. This would remove officials from other health and welfare responsibilities
at slaughterhouse.

To develop policy on this subject, the Welsh Government would need to show that there
was a reasonable basis for a decision to introduce legislation,that the decision was taken in
accordance with the principles of procedural fairness and that it was lawful.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdrdddgé\.rfiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
U en 40 Correspondence.John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



In relation to the timescale, the Welsh Government will approach the industry and welfare
organisations to establish a clear position before making any further commitments. | will
make a further announcement after the implementation of PATK later this year.

A\
[ v
b)

N

ﬁloh% Griffiths AC / AM
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Tudalen 41



Eitem 3.8

P-04-439 : Diogelu coed hynafol a choed treftadaeth Cymru
ymhellach

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym o'r farn bod coed hynafol a choed treftadaeth Cymru yn rhan
hanfodol ac unigryw o amgylchedd a threftadaeth y genedl.

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i'w diogelu ymhellach, er enghraifft, drwy:

o roi dyletswydd ar yr Un Corff Amgylcheddol newydd i hyrwyddo
cadwraeth coed o'r fath drwy roi cyngor a chymorth i'w perchenogion,
gan gynnwys cymorth grant lle bo'n angenrheidiol;

o diwygio'r ddeddfwriaeth Gorchymyn Cadw Coed bresennol i'w gwneud
yn addas i'r diben wrth ddiogelu coed hynafol a threftadaeth, a hynny
yn unol a chynigion Coed Cadw (the Woodland Trust);

e cynnwys cronfa ddata o'r coed a gofnodwyd ac a nodwyd yn ddilys gan
y Prosiect Helfa Coed Hynafol fel casgliad o ddata i'w gadw gan unrhyw
olynydd i Gynllun Gofodol Cymru, gan gydnabod y rhain fel '‘Coed o
Ddiddordeb Arbennig' a rhoi'r wybodaeth hon i awdurdodau cynllunio
lleol fel y gellir ei chynnwys yn eu systemau gwybodaeth ddaearyddol,
er gwybodaeth.

Prif ddeisebydd: Coed Cadw Cymru
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 4 Rhagfyr 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 5,320

Tudalen 42



John Griffiths AC /AM ‘\/ (ﬁ

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy ;
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development ,J()

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-439
Ein cyf/Our ref JG/07689/12

William Powell AM

Chair Petition's Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

C~99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

: ' f February 2013
r

Thank you for your letter asking for my views on the need to increase the protection of
ancient, veteran and heritage trees in Wales. | welcome Coed Cadw highlighting this matter
and recently visited them in Wentwood forest to hear their ideas on how this work can be
teken forward.

Aithough it was not possible to place additional duties in this area on Natural Resources
Wales (NRW) ahead of its vesting in April this year, the conservation of trees and promotion
of woodlands will be a major part of the remit of the new body and there will be other
opportunities in the coming months in the form of the planned Environment Bill to explore
how we might do this.

The legislation and management of Tree Protection Orders is currently complicated due to
the involvement of several public bodies but | believe that the establishment of NRW and
a'so of a forestry policy team in Welsh Government offers a real opportunity to deliver
improvements in this area too.

| will be highlighting these issues to the forestry policy team when it has taken its place
within my Department and | am sure that officials in this new team will be contacting Coed
Cadw and a range of other interested stakeholders to discuss how they can work together
tc.address these issues.

Se gj{

John anflths AC/AM
Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Casdiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 dalen 43 Correspondence.John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



Eitem 3.9

P-04-445 : Achub ein cwn a chathod yng Nghymru rhag cael
eu lladd ar y ffyrdd

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, y rhai a lofnodwyd isod, yn galw ar breswylwyr Cymru sy’n
berchen ar gwn a chathod i gefnogi ein deiseb i Lywodraeth Cymru i gael
gwared ar y gwaharddiad ar goleri electronig wedi’u cysylltu a ffensys ffin
anweladwy/ffensys cudd fel y gallwn ddiogelu ein hanifeiliaid anwes rhag
niwed naill ai o: a) Traffig Ffyrdd b) Crwydro i Berygl c) Achosi damweiniau a
allai olygu y byddwn ni, perchenogion y cwn a’r cathod, yn gyfreithiol atebol
iddynt.

Prif ddeisebydd: Monima O’Connor

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 15 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 10 - Casglodd deiseb gysylltiedig 500 o lofnodion

Tudalen 44



John Griffiths AC /AM ’\ (f—-

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy ¢
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development / J)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-445
Ein cyf/Our ref JG/00130/13

William Powell AM

AM for Mid & West Wales
Chair Petition's committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

, 5 February 2013

y

Thank you for your letter about a petition to revoke the Animal Welfare (Electronic Collars)
(Wales) Regulations 2010.

The Regulations were made due to the physical and mental harm that could occur with the
use of devices such as ‘invisible’ electric fencing; an electric shock is an electric shock
whether caused by a remote or by an underground circuit system.

The Welsh Government reviewed the use of electronic collars thoroughly, carried out three
public consultation exercises and successfully defended against two judicial challenges
reviews. The Companion Animal Welfare Council (CAWC) recently researched the use of
these devices and noted that they “can give rise to both behaviour and welfare problems”.

With regard to the petitioners request for the Welsh Government to amend the legislation,
we will always review Regulations after they have been in force for a period of time to
ensure they are still fit for purpose. We will also review if there has been a change in the
science of the use of these collars. So far, no significant proposals or change has been
seen to warrant an amendment or reversal of this legislation.

John G%fitlg{)/‘/wm

Gweinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

p)

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Ca,[l::hff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 Mdalen 45 Correspondence. John.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov. uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi'i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



e L.

P-04-44:5 Save our Welsh cats & dogs from death on the roads :
Correspondence from the Petitioner to the Chair

.vﬁ
ﬁ‘ A

This paper is in response to John Giriffiths, Minister for Environment &
Sustainable Development’s letter of 5" February to William Powell AM

| must stress that this campaign is about reinstatement of pet containment
fencing linked to electronic collars (E-collars) and NOT for dog training E-
collars.

1.

The Minister refers to a report on electronic collars produced by the
Companion Animal Welfare Council (CAWC) in August 2012, where he
cites that the Council noted that they ”...... can give rise to both
behaviour and welfare problems.”

Mr Griffiths only used a fraction of the sentence in the report and he
has taken it completely out of context. It is wholly incorrect to say this.
The full sentence reads:

“Finally, it is clear that poor contingency between the application of an
electrical stimulus and the behaviour to be modified can give rise to
both behavioural and welfare problems”

| spoke to the CAWC council yesterday and they told me that the word
“contingency” means “timing of an event”. This means that if the
electrical correction is discharged at a different time to the pet’'s
unwanted behaviour, it could cause confusion and distress to the
animal.

Well of course it would — even to a human being !

| must strongly disagree when the Minister writes “ an electric shock is
an electric shock”. It isn’t — it depends entirely on the magnitude of the
shock and whether it is live or static.

Some pregnant women are given TENS nerve machines by the NHS
when in labour and this machine sends out electric pulses to the
nerves to reduce pain. Also, some overweight people use Slendertone
slimming machines pads to assist weight loss and there are anti-
wrinkle electric facials too for women who wish to stimulate their facial
muscles.

All these machines give out static electrical stimuli - similar to an E-
collar.

This is complete contrast to a completely legal livestock fence which
sends out a live electric shock of up to 10,000 volts.

Even the CAWC comments on page 7 of its report :

Tudalen 46



e
ARy “;és.
‘ There is a moral inconsistency in attitudes towards the use of electric

current for the containment of animals, for example, the general
acceptance of electric fences to contain livestock

3.The Minister writes that the Government would review this legislation if
there has been a change in the science, but there has never ever been
any scientific research into electronic collars used with containment
fencing — all the research produced over the decades has only ever
been about training dogs with a remote device held by the owner or
trainer and these are prone to human error. The CAWC reports makes
this distinction very clear, again on page 7:

“Whilst there are some features in common to all Electric Pulse
Training Aids (EPTAs), meaningful distinctions with regards to the risk
to animal welfare can be made between:

“those devices which are activated by the animal’s behaviour and
those which depend on some other party for discharge of the stimulus”.

The E-collars for containment fencing only discharge the electrical
correction after a series of warnings beeps if the pet approaches the
danger zone or road.

It is the animal’s own behaviour which triggers the beeps and after
proper training, they avoid the beeps and electrical stimulus completely
as was shown clearly in the Welsh/English short film accompanying
this Petition.

4. Across the UK it is perfectly legal to use electric mesh-type livestock
fence to contain companion pets which :

a) give no warning and will shock unsuspecting children and
adults passing by.

b) the pet can get caught up /stuck in it

c) gives out live shocks at a far, far higher output than a
containment fence

e) has no shut-down facility, so if the animal is stuck in the fence
it has to stay there and continue to be shocked until it is found.

Yet_.in Wales only, a person who owns a containment fence to keep his or her
pet out of danger, could face a fine of £20,000 or go to jail for a year.

Does the Minister agree with me that this situation is utterly absurd ?

5. As there are many containment fences in Wales which were not dismantled
as the owners were afraid to lose their pets to the road or other dangers, |
would be very pleased to invite the Minister to meet one of my petitioners to

Tudalen 47



e,

view a containment fence in his own constituency, as | suspect the Minister
hasn’t had the opportunity to see one in action.

Tudalen 48



ADDENDUM

There was additional information and Welsh film presented with the Petition
on 15" January 2013

Yet, judging from the Minister’s letter, this would not have appeared to have
yet been digested by him or his officials.

6. It must be reiterated that the shockingly low responses from the 2™ &
3™ public consultations, specifically 51 and 18 respectively, (as given in
the published summaries) are totally swamped by the all-Welsh
signatures of some 500 (mostly within Ceredigion) in my Petition and
the then 1,380 + campaign supporters on Facebook
(www.facebook.com/saveourwelshpets) now numbering 1,431 today.

The Welsh public has not had its voice heard on this matter until now.

7. There was only one judicial review — not 2 as stated in the Minister’s
letter. To put this into context, a judicial review is an expensive way to
check if a judge has followed the procedures correctly during a
courtroom trial.

It has no bearing at all on whether the final judgement was right or
wrong.

8. No-one has been prosecuted for using electronic collars in the UK
under the Animal Welfare Act of 2006 since it came into force.

Mo 0" (misy
Nt ﬁdyww(;

Tudalen 49



Eitem 3.10

P-04-346 Gofal Di-dal i Blant 3 a 4 yng Nghymru
Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Galwn ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau
bod gofal di-dal i blant 3 a 4 mlwydd oed ar gael mewn modd mwy hyblyg
ledled Cymru er mwyn galluogi rhieni, yn enwedig rhieni sy’n gweithio, i
ddewis pryd a lle y maent yn cael mynediad at ofal plant di-dal.

Gwybodaeth gynorthwyol:

Mae gan blant 3 a 4 mlwydd oed hawl i gael 15 awr o addysg di-dal mewn
ysgol feithrin cyn iddynt gyrraedd oed ysgol gorfodol. Fodd bynnag, nid yw
llawer o rieni sy’n byw o fewn ffiniau ambell i awdurdod lleol yng Nghymru
yn gallu defnyddio’r gofal plant di-dal hwn oherwydd y cyfyngiadau sy’n
bodoli.

Gall rhieni ym Mro Morgannwg, er enghraifft, ond hawlio gofal plant di-dal
mewn ysgolion meithrin sy’n gysylltiedig ag ysgolion, ac mae’r gofal hwn
wedi’i rannu’n 2.5 awr y dydd o ddydd Llun i ddydd Gwener. Fodd bynnag,
mae Cyngor Casnewydd yn cynnig ‘gwasanaeth cynhwysfawr’ i rieni, lle mae
12.5 awr ar gael i’'w hawlio ar gyfer gofal mewn ysgol feithrin neu feithrinfa
breifat o’u dewis nhw. | ryw raddau, mae hyn yn camwahaniaethu yn erbyn
rhieni sy’n gweithio mewn rhai awdurdodau lleol ac sy’n methu gollwng a
chasglu eu plant am 2.5 awr o ofal plant, sy’n golygu eu bod yn colli’r cyfle i
gael gofal plant di-dal. Ar y llaw arall, mae rhieni eraill yn cael cyfanswm
anghymesur o arian tuag at eu costau gofal plant. Annogwn Lywodraeth
Cymru i gysoni’r system fel y gall rhieni ymhob awdurdod lleol gael
‘gwasanaeth cynhwysfawr’. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau bod gofal plant di-dal ar
gael i bawb - gan gynnwys rhieni sy’n gweithio.

Prif ddeisebydd: Zelda Smith
Y dyddiad yr ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 29 Tachwedd 2011

Nifer y deisebwyr: 67

Tudalen 50



5, (F
Leighton Andrews AC / AM A\ / (gﬁ

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau .
Minister for Education and Skills JA)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-03-346
£in cyf/Our ref LA/07481/12

William Powell AM
Chair Petitions committee .

committeebusiness@\VWales.gsi.gov.uk

.o February 2013

RTPERTIS

As agreed, | am writing further to my letter dated 13 December regarding the delivery of
=~oundation Phase provision across Wales.

i met with my officials on 24 January to discuss the options for addressing the perceived
variation and inflexibility of provision. | am keen to ensure that children and parents can
access the Foundation Phase entitlement in a way that supports their family circumstances.
My understanding is that most local authorities offer equal hours over 4 or 5 days in either
morning or afternoon sessions.

As we know the early years are critical to children outcomes and later life chances. | have,
therefore, agreed to undertake a pilot programme to explore ways in which flexibility of
orovision for 3 and 4 year olds can be improved. My officials will be working with local
authorities to identify settings and schools, in a range of geographical areas, to take part in
the pilot with immediit_e/effect.

or— }mwxg
oAb

— < *(_»g
Leighton Andrews AC AM -
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enguiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. Leighton.Andrews@wales. gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 51



Eitem 3.11

P-04-437 : Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant
sy’n derbyn addysg yn y cartref

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i roi’r gorau i gynlluniau ar
gyfer cyflwyno cofrestr orfodol ar gyfer plant sy’n derbyn addysg yn y cartref
fel rhan o Fil Addysg (Cymru) drafft. Mae’r gyfraith yn nodi mai rhieni, nid y
wladwriaeth, sy’n gyfrifol am addysg eu plant, sy’n golygu bod cofrestr o’r
fath yn amhriodol ac yn ddiangen.

Prif ddeisebydd: Wendy Charles-Warner

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 20 Tachwedd 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 1614

Tudalen 52



Leighton Andrews AC / AM / r

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau e
Minister for Education and Skills le

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-437
Ein cyf/Our ref LA/00341/13

William Powell AM
Chair Petition's committee

committeebusiness@VVales.gsi.gov.uk

%ﬁ*{’ Q MG~ ¢

Thank you for your letter of 6 February regarding an update on the analysis of the
responses to the elective home education consultation.

{4 February 2013

Due to the volume of responses received to the consultation, the analysis is still in progress.
Once this is completed | will ensure you are provided with a copy of the analysis along with
an update as to the way forward.

= "l'\_\ -~ \'-\/-
Leighton Andrews AC/AM -l

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd - Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. Leighton.Andrews@wales. gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 53



Eitem 3.12

P-04-443 : Hanes Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Galwn ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i wneud
Hanes Cymru yn orfodol yn ein hysgolion o saith oed.

Gwybodaeth ychwanegol: Addysgu am Gymru o’r oes Geltaidd hyd aty
presennol, yn cynnwys Llywelyn, Glyndwr, pob Tywysog Brodorol Cymreig
arall, Tryweryn, y Welsh Not, y Goresgyniad Normanaidd, y Ddeddf Uno a
diwydiannu. Ymddengys nad yw hanes Cymru i gyd yn cael ei ddysgu, a rhai
elfennau yn unig yn cael eu cynnwys i gyd-fynd a chyfnodau a digwyddiadau
penodol.

Prif ddeisebydd: BALCHDER CYMRU / PRIDE OF WALES
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 15 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 597

Tudalen 54



Leighton Andrews AC / AM ”\/ (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau .
Minister for Education and Skills p})

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-443
Ein cyf/Our ref LA/00205/13

William Powell AM

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

S February 2013

buv s G,

Thank you for your letter of 23 January writing on behalf of the Petitions Committee asking
for my views on making Welsh History compulsory in schools in Wales and for an update on
the work of the review group established to consider the teaching of Welsh history, the story
of Wales and Curriculum Cymreig.

The 2008 curriculum, while recognising the importance of subject content, offers teachers
more flexibility to determine the detailed content of the curriculum in their schools, allowing
them to use their professional expertise and judgment to plan and deliver content that
reflects their pupils’ needs and the context of the school.

There is also a focus within the 2008 curriculum on developing skills. In History the skills of
knowledge and understanding, interpretation, and enquiry, are central to the curriculum and
regarded by most historians as integral to the study of history.

While skills and flexibility are central to the 2008 curriculum there are some constraints to
flexibility which we think are appropriate and there are aspects of history that teachers are
required to cover in their lessons. For example, at Key Stage 2, pupils should be given
opportunities to study the daily life of people living in either the time of the Iron Age Celts or
the Romans. At Key Stage 3, pupils should be given opportunities to explore how the
coming of the Normans affected Wales and Britain between 1000 and 1500, the change
and conflict in Wales and Britain between 1500 and 1760, and the changes that happened
in Wales, Britain and the wider world between 1760 and 1914, and people’s reactions to
them. At both Key Stages, the importance of studying local history is emphasised, giving
proper prominence to the study of Welsh History.

Through Curriculum Cymreig, it is a requirement across the curriculum that learners should
be given opportunities to develop and apply knowledge and understanding of the cultural,
economic, environmental, historical and linguistic characteristics of Wales. The History
Curriculum contributes to this requirement by making local and Welsh history a focus of the
study and helping learners to understand the factors that have shaped Wales and other
countries today.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Leighton, Andrews@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi'i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 55



On 1 October 2012, | announced a review of assessment and the National Currictdum in
Wales. The review aims to streamline and simplify assessment arrangements and consider
the National Curriculum core and other foundation subjects at each stage, to ensure that
our expectations of content and skills developments are suitably robust, sufficiently
demanding and in line with the Literacy and Numeracy Framework (LNF).

The review of the Curriculum Cymreig, to which your letter refers, forms part of that wider
review. The review group, chaired by Dr Elin Jones, is considering the teaching of Welsh
history, the story of Wales and the Curriculum Cymreig. It met for the first time in November
and will be meeting again in February. | have asked the group to consider, in particular:

e \Whether the Curriculum Cymreig should be best delivered through the discipline of
history and, if not, the best means of ensuring that the elements of Curriculum Cymreig
are delivered across the curriculum;

o \Whether there is sufficient emphasis on Welsh history and the stories of Wales in the
teaching of history and the current programme of study; and,

o Whether the teaching of history, from the Foundation Phase through to the Welst: Bacc,
GCSE and A level sufficiently take account of the latest research and the new resources
available about the historical development of Wales to the present day.

The group will be providing recommendations to me in July this year, and any subsequent
changes to the teaching of Welsh History and Curriculum Cymreig will then form part of the
wider review of the National Curriculum in Wales.

o~ Sandny \

Leighton Andrews AC /| AM Eé\ﬂ /Q_/—B

Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Tudalen 56



Eitem 3.13

P-04-362 Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans ym Mynwy

Geiriad y ddeiseb:
Rydym ni o’r farn y dylai Mynwy gael y ddarpariaeth ambiwlans briodol. Gan

fod disgwyl i boblogaeth Mynwy gynyddu, a bod Uned Man Anafiadau
Monnow Vale wedi cau’n ddiweddar, bydd rhagor o alw ar y gwasanaeth
ambiwlans.

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru:

Rydym yn gofyn i Bwyllgor lechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol y Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol gynnal ymchwiliad i’r gwasanaeth ambiwlans yng nghefn gwlad
Cymru. Byddem yn annog y Pwyllgor i ymchwilio i’r problemau penodol sy’n
bodoli ym Mynwy a pha effaith gafodd cau’r Uned Man Anafiadau yn Monnow
Vale ar y gwasanaeth ambiwlans.

Llywodraeth Cymru:

Rydym yn annog y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol i
ddefnyddio’i phwerau i’'w gwneud yn ofynnol i Ymddiriedolaeth GIG
Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru ddarparu gwasanaeth ambiwlans o safon
uchel ledled Cymru ac yn enwedig mewn ardaloedd gwledig fel Mynwy.

Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru:

Rydym yn galw ar Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru i
wella’r ddarpariaeth ym Mynwy mewn termau real, gydag uned dibyniaeth
fawr a/neu ambiwlans yn nhref Mynwy.

Prif ddeisebydd: Mathew Davies
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 7 Chwefror 2012

Nifer y deisebwyr: Casglwyd tua 450 o lofnodion.

Tudalen 57



5~
Lesley Griffiths AC / AM ’\/ (gfj

Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol f
Minister for Health and Social Services _ ;JL)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-362
Ein cyf/Our ref LG/00277/13

William Powell AM
Chair

Petition's Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

/
7§Z, February 2013

e Bl

Thank you for your letter of 23 January asking to be kept informed of progress of the
Review of Welsh Ambulance Services.

You will appreciate at 10 weeks in length, the Review period is short. It is, therefore,
essential for all resources to be used appropriately and efficiently to deliver a quality final
report.

However, | will of course, send the Committee a copy of Professor Siobhan McClelland's
findings when appropriate.

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence,[esley,Grifﬁths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i affgy% @é?éh 58 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Eitem 3.14

P-04-395 Dylai Ambiwlans Awyr Cymru gael arian gan y
llywodraeth

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Ers dros 10 mlynedd, mae Ambiwlans Awyr Cymru wedi ymateb i fwy na
15,000 o alwadau, gan ddarparu gwasanaeth hanfodol i bobl Cymru. Mae’'n
debygol ei fod yn aml iawn wedi achub bywydau a fyddai fel arall wedi’u colli
o orfod dibynnu ar gerbydau ambiwlans ar y ffordd. Mae’r Ambiwlans Awyr
wedi’i ariannu’n llwyr gan roddion gan bobl hael Cymru, ond erbyn hyn
mae’r gwasanaeth yn rhan mor hanfodol o’n gwasanaethau argyfwng fel y
dylai gael ei ariannu gan Gynulliad Cymru. Bydd y gwasanaeth hyd yn oed yn
bwysicach os digwydd rhai o’r newidiadau mewn gwasanaethau Damweiniau
ac Argyfwng sy’n cael eu rhagweld. Byddai hynny’n gorfodi rhai pobl yng
Nghymru, yn enwedig yn y canolbarth, i deithio hyd at 12 awr ar hyd y
ffordd i gyrraedd eu hadran Ddamweiniau ac Argyfwng agosaf, sefyllfa a
fyddai’n peryglu bywyd ac yn annerbyniol. Galwn ar Gynulliad Cymru i
ddarparu’r arian angenrheidiol i sicrhau y gall Ambiwlans Awyr Cymru
barhau i ddarparu ei wasanaeth rhagorol a hanfodol i bobl Cymru ac i’r
niferoedd sy’n ymweld a’r wlad.

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Leslie Mark Wilkins
Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 19 Mehefin 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 63

Tudalen 59



5 L
Lesley Griffiths AC / AM N / (ggf

Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 5
Minister for Health and Social Services ;J()

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-395
Ein cyf/Our ref LG/07326/12

William Powell AM
Chair
Petitions Committee

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk avey
) / June 2012

¢

Decws Pl
f"/J -; P -41'.\l )

._ \ O DU L

Thank you for your letter of 26 June regarding funding for the Wales Air Ambulance service.

| recognise and very much appreciate, the vital role played by the Wales Air Ambulance in
providing a vital service through emergency air cover for those who face life-threatening
iliness or injuries. Patients in Wales can be difficult to access by land for a number of
reasons, including remoteness, rurality and difficult terrain and the Air Ambulance plays an
important part in mitigating such difficulties.

The Air Ambulance Charity provides a unique service and achieves a timeliness of access
into hospital unachievable by land and this can result in improved patient outcomes. We are
always open to opportunities to build on the work done by the Air Ambulance Charity and
their existing partnerships with NHS Wales, although the Charity has not made a request to
the Welsh Government to provide additional funding for this service.

In terms of the current level of funding provided, the Welsh Government provides funding for
the salary costs of paramedics working on Air Ambulances.

J\L ( / fL A ( 7D

v

) ey
L _N;{,_:j(;' e R (/N /

Lesley Griffitl;?g ! AM
Y Gweinidogtechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol

Minister for Health and Social Services

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. lesley.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov. uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgyrwéql@ﬁ 60 Printed on 100% recycled paper



P-04-395: Wales Air Ambulance should receive government
funding - Petitioner to Deputy Clerk

Thank you for your message.

| now understand the situation better, and realise that the Air Ambulance
Service values its freedom to be run without too much control by the
government, and that is content with its current status. | therefore would be
happy for the petition to be closed.

Regards,
Les Wilkins

Tudalen 61



Eitem 3.15

P-04-367 Achub ein Gwasanaethau Ysbyty

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

- Rydym ni, y rhai sydd wedi llofnodi isod, am weld ein HOLL wasanaethau
iechyd lleol yn cael eu cynnal a’u diogelu yn Ysbyty’r Tywysog Phillip.

- Rydym yn gwrthwynebu’r bwriad i israddio’n hysbyty.

- Gofynnwn i’r Gweinidog lechyd a Llywodraeth Lafur Cymru adolygu’u
cynlluniau fel mater o frys.

Prif ddeisebydd: Rhydwyn Ifan
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 28 Chwefror 2012

Nifer y deisebwyr: Tua 9,000 o lofnodion

Tudalen 62



Eitem 3.16

P-04-394 Achub ein Gwasanaethau - Ysbyty Tywysog Philip
Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym ni, pobl Llanelli, y dref a’'r boblogaeth fwyaf yn ardal Hywel Dda, yn
mynnu bod Ysbyty Tywysog Philip yn cael ei adfer yn Ysbyty Cyffredinol
Dosbarth cwbl weithredol, a bod llawfeddygaeth ddewisol fawr yn dychwelyd
yno, gan gynnwys llawfeddygaeth gastroberfeddol, fasgwlaidd, ac ym
meysydd wroleg, gynecoleg a thrawma. Byddai hynny wedi’i gefnogi gany 5
gwely Uned Therapi Dwys gwreiddiol, a fyddai wedi’u staffio’n llawn, ac a
fyddai’n cefnogi Adran Damweiniau ac Achosion Brys wedi’i staffio’n llawn, y
byddai arbenigwyr ymgynghorol yn ei harwain, gan ddarparu cymorth i’r
meddygon.

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Rhwydwaith Gweithredu Tywysog Philip
Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 29 Mai 2012
Nifer y llofnodion: tua 24,000

Tudalen 63



P-04-394 Save our Services — Prince Philip Hospital : Correspondence from the Petitioner
to the Chair /"L//f

COMMITTEE FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF HOSPITAL SERVICES.

SOSPPAN.LLANELLI.

Mr William Powell AM,

Chairman,

Petitions Committee,

Welsh Assembly Government,
Cardiff Bay, CARDIFF. CF99 1NA.

Dear Mr ]%"w 4,%)

| thank you for seeking my views on the recent consultation exercise held by
the Hywel Dda Health Board. My observations and comments refer in the
main to public engagement process relating to the proposed healthcare
changes in LLANELLI and naturally at Prince Philip Hospital.

Suffice to say that:

It goes without saying that my committee and the people of Llanelli and
District are disappointed at the impact of the proposals on Prince Philip
Hospital and in particular on the A&E Service.

| welcome the opportunity to respond and my criticism of the ENTIRE
consultation comes under three main headings.

TIMING,PROCEDURE and EXCLUSION.

TIMING: *multi million pound expenditure had been committed prior to the
start of the consultation. *this was contrary to the principles of consultation in
public bodies as set out by WAG and the Gunning guidelines,which
emphasise the requirement of consultation at the FORMATIVE stage.*this was
raised publicly by SOSPPAN in our publication "Question Marks", distributed
in March 2012 and is on our website HYPERLINK "http://
SOSPPAN.co.uk"SOSPPAN.co.uk

PROCEDURE: *the distribution pattern of questionnaires was such that it
marginalised the population of LLANELLI and District by skewing the 'random'
distribution and deliberately asking questions relating to specific local
situations to a wide uninvolved population to dilute the impact of negative
responses.*the procedure involved distributing questionnaires 'randomly’
across the COUNTY areas of Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and
Cardiganshire.*this marginalised the MAJOR POPULATION CENTRE of
LLANELLI,which received only a tiny proportion of the questionnaires it would

Tudalen 64



have received if the distribution had been done in terms of hospital catchment
populations.* the result is illustrated in the tabular analysis of the
‘overwhelming'’ support for Option B shown on page 53 of the ORS report: the
support is clearly from the Withybush,Bronglais and Glangwili catchment
areas and the opposition is equally clear from the Prince Philip catchment
area,but with a weighting which vastly diminishes the impact it deserves
through the huge relative population affected.

EXCLUSION: *the design of the questionnaire was such as to make the key
issues unintelligible to a large section of the population.*major contributions
from elected representatives were ignored: from AM's, our MP and several
local authorities including the Llanelli Rural,the Llanelli Town and the Burry
Port Councils.* the concerns of the CHC have essentially been ignored.” the
OVERWHELMINGLY negative and hostile responses to their own 'focus
groups' in the PPH catchment area has been ignored.* the statement from
their own clinicians at PPH along with the GP's,stating that the proposed
changes are UNSAFE was NOT ONLY ignored but was misrepresented by
referring only to an earlier statement endorsing the plans at that time.* the
largest petition in the history of WAG was IGNORED: 26000 signatures in a
UNITED PUBLIC VOICE were NOT EVEN granted the courtesy of
acknowledgement,let alone respect.* votes of NO CONFIDENCE were
ignored:again without even the courtesy of acknowledgement.

Finally, | have no wish to dwell upon the fundamental factors of Geography,
but suffice to record once again that almost a third of the population of the
Hywel Dda area live in the Llanelli urban area. They have effectively been
under-represented and totally mis-represented by the LHB.

The LHB may have listened,but it is the opinion of many in Llanelli that it
certainly did NOT hear the voice of the people,who stated that they are totally
opposed to a nurse led A&E.

The question most frequently asked in Llanelli is: "Why does the LHB not offer
a nurse led A&E to Bronglais and Withybush,when it is deemed to be suitable
to Prince Philip?" The people of Llanelli simply ask for PARITY by having the
same facility as provided to Bronglais and Withybush.

Yours respectfully,

\[ D A - -
'~/ D /\») D~ A\/LLL I A
(CHAIRMAN OF CIHS/SOSPPAN) &

Tudalen 65



Eitem 3.17

P-04-430:Y bwriad i gau Uned Man Anafiadau Dinbych-y-
pysgod

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
i sicrhau nad yw’r cynigion a amlinellir yn nogfen Bwrdd lechyd Hywel Dda,
Eich lechyd / Eich Dyfodol, sy’n cyfeirio at gau’r Uned Man Anafiadau yn
Ninbych-y-pysgod yn cael eu gwireddu a bod yr Uned Man Anafiadau yn
Ninbych-y-pysgod yn parhau ar agor.

Prif ddeisebydd: Andrew James Davies

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 6 Tachwedd 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 157 Casglwyd dros 581 o lofnodion gan ddeisebau
cysylltiedig.

Tudalen 66



P-04-430 Proposed closure of Tenby Minor Injuries Unit : Correspondence from the Petiti{lgg
to the Chair T~
U320

Pafiliwn De Valence De Valence Pavilion

Upper Frog Street Upper Frog Street
DINBYCH-Y-PYSGOD TENBY
Sir Benfro Pembrokeshire
SA70 7JD SA70 7JD
E-bost: tenbytownclerk@btconnect.com E-mail:
Fon: (01834) 842730 tenbytownclerk@btconnect.com
Fax: (01834) 849094 Telephone: (01834) 842730

TENBY TOWN COUNCIL Fax: (01834) 849094

CYNGOR TREF DINBYCH-Y-PYSGOD

Clerk to the Council/Financial Officer : Clerc i’r Cyngor/Trysorvd

6" February 2013

Mr William Powell AM
Chair

Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 INA

Dear Mr. Powell,

Thank you for your committee’s consideration of our recent petition regarding the Hywel Dda
Health Board’s proposals to close the minor injuries unit at Tenby Cottage Hospital and transfer
its services to local GP practices.

Thank you also for giving us the opportunity to outline our views on the consultation process to
the committee.

I submitted the petition on behalf of both Tenby Town Council, and the South East
Pembrokeshire Health Network, and it is the view of both organisations that the consultation
process was flawed in that it was not conducted to garner public opinion but because it had to be
undertaken.

From the outset, indeed from the Board’s decision to temporarily close the unit last winter, it is
felt by over 20,000 people in the south east Pembrokeshire area, that the proposal document was
presented as a fait accompli and that the consultation exercise was no more than a sop.

Indeed comments made by Board representatives to a SEPCHN meeting of over 100 people in
New Hedges that people concerned about difficulties in travelling to facilities in Withybush
should ‘save money in a jar to pay for a taxi in an emergency’ appears to indicate that the Board
were of a mindset to press ahead with closure irrespective of the results of the consultation.

We also feel that the consultation document merely stated that views were sought on ‘re-
provision of minor injuries services ...to be delivered from GP practices’ with no substantive
detailing as to how this was to be undertaken, making it difficult for the general public to make an
informed decision and provide meaningful feedback as to whether the proposal was feasible.

Consultation meetings were held in Narberth for town and community councillors, with a public

‘drop in’ session from 2 pm to 7.30 pm in Kilgetty. Tenby Town Council asked the Health Board
to attend a public meeting in Tenby to allow questions to be put to senior staff from the Heath

Tudalen 67



Board but they declined, feeling that the sessions they had arranged in Narberth and Kilgetty
would allow enough opportunity to ask questions and provide comments.

Members feel that this is indicative of the Board’s failure to take account of the travel difficulties
experienced by people in the area which form part of the basis of public concern. (Statistics show
that 40 per cent of people in Tenby do not own, or have access to a vehicle).

The Board did hold a ‘drop-in’ session in relation to the consultation in Tenby but this was
merely to assist members of the public in filling in the consultation response and gave no
opportunity for members to speak to staff about the implications of the proposal.

Consultation documents and response forms available locally were also limited, and although the
Board did supply more on request, this did not meet demand, which resulted in a great number
having to be photocopied.

Again this appears to indicate that the Board was merely paying ‘lip service’ to the consultation
process.

We are also concerned that in their report on the results of the consultation exercise to the Board,
the ORS suggested that the opinions expressed in the ‘open’ consultation were not as
representative as those expressed in the ‘targeted survey’ as responses to the ‘open’ consultation
were greater in those areas more adversely affected by proposals.

It is our view that, if the people of the south east Pembrokeshire area took the time to source the
consultation documents, either on line or in hard copy, and to send in their responses, then their
views opposing the closure are more indicative of the strength of feeling locally as to the
difficulties the people of this part of the county feel they will experience as a consequence of the
Board’s decision. Is not the purpose of consultation to elicit public opinion?

We are also concerned that it appears that responses from organisations, such as Tenby Town
Council (representing an electorate of over 5000 people) and Pembrokeshire County Council

(representing an electorate of over 120,000) were given no more weight than that of an
individual’s response. i

It is therefore our contention that the consultation was nothing more than an expensive ‘paper
exercise’ undertaken not to elicit the views of the public but because the Board was obligated to
carry it out.

Yours sincerely

Mpr. Andrew Davies

FINANCIAL OFFICER/CLERK TO THE COUNCIL

Tudalen 68



Eitem 3.18

P-04-431 : Preswylwyr Sir Benfro yn erbyn toriadau i
wasanaethau iechyd

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Mae SWAT (Tim Gweithredu i Achub Ysbyty Liwynhelyg) wedi brwydro i gadw
gwasanaethau gofal iechyd eilaidd diogel, effeithiol a hygyrch i bobl Sir
Benfro ers 2005.

Ar ran SWAT, galwaf ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth
Cymru i sicrhau bod y cynlluniau ar gyfer darparu Gofal lechyd Eilaidd, y mae
ymgynghoriad yn cael ei gynnal arnynt ar hyn o bryd yn ardal Bwrdd lechyd
Lleol Hywel Dda, yn cynnal y lefel bresennol o wasanaethau sydd ar gael yn
Ysbyty Liwynhelyg. Nid yw’r 14,000 o bobl a lofnododd y deisebau a
ddosbarthwyd i’ch swyddfa gan SWAT yn cytuno a’r opsiwn a ffefrir, sef bod
Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Hywel Dda yn canoli’r rhan fwyaf o wasanaethau cleifion
mewnol yn safle Glangwili. Mae’n eithaf clir i bobl Sir Benfro a thu hwnt sydd
wedi llofnodi’r deisebau hyn, os oes yn rhaid canoli gwasanaethau, mai
Ysbyty Liwynhelyg yw’r safle y dylid ei ffafrio. Byddai hyn yn sicrhau darparu
gwasanaeth gofal iechyd eilaidd teg, hygyrch, diogel a chynaliadwy i ardal
gyfan Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Hywel Dda tra byddai canoli gwasanaethau yn safle
Glangwili yn rhoi pobl Sir Benfro o dan anfantais ddifrifol.

Prif ddeisebydd: Tim Achub Ysbyty Liwynhelyg

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 6 Tachwedd 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: Casglwyd deiseb gysylltiedig tua 14,000 o lofnodion.
Casglodd deiseb gysylltiedig tua 14,000 o lofnodion. O’r 14,000 llofnod,
casglwyd dros 10,000 o lofnodion ar gyfer deiseb a oedd yn galw’n benodol
am achub Uned Gofal Arbennig Babanod Liwynhelyg, a 4,000 o lofnodion ar
gyfer deisebau a oedd yn galw am ddiogelu’r holl wasanaethau yn Ysbyty
Llwynhelyg.

Tudalen 69



Css board report

9.2

We should provide more care for children in their own homes
Or as close to home as possible

Distance from st davids to carms 1s 46mi

Distance from aberystwyth to carms is 48.9mi

How 1is this close to home

We sometimes transfer to many other women to hospitals
Outside hywel dda hb

Why are they being transtered if not needed

Is 1t lack of bed space

I Does that not indecate the need to upgrade

Sometimes we struggle to meet royal collage of obs and gynae
Guideance on consultant cover

Why are we under statfed

Already in discussion on trainging improvement

So why can the improved training not work for our unit

Neonatal network believe they can only deliver special care
On one site

How does this ettect families and statt

Must consolidate services to one site

Why not have level two in withybush and scbu in carms n aber

Reasons for hywel dda hb glan gwili choice
Critical mass would be lost to swansea if neonatal in withybush

how many would go to swansea compared to how many would go to
Withybush

Population of east carms to swansea
Population of west carms Pembrokeshire and cardigonshire
To withybush

More accessible for all 3 counites

How many roads in the past week have been inaccessible due to
Weather

How will they get to carms then

Currently more births in carms
How many in comparison with pembs and Ceredigeon

How many neonatal births
High risk babies get to swansea quicker from carms

How many of those babies are level 3 and how many are level 2

And would not need to travel to swansea

Tudalen 70



Residents of east carms will choose swansea
East carms population is fewer than west carms pembs and Ceredigion
Put together

Only level 3 babies to swansea

Women from postcodes closer to withybush are going to glan gwili
To deliver can go to withybush to deliver

Why can they not deliver in withybush now

Is it lack of space is that not a good reason to upgrade

Does that not show the numbers could increase in pembrokeshire

Baby deliveries

1, 350 babies delivered at swansea instead of carms if neonatal
At withybush

Why can they not deliver at glan gwili now

If Pembrokeshire women are deliveting there now

Is this not another good reason to upgrade withybush

So there is more room in glan gwili

Women go to quickest accsess women from carms
Postcodes got to singleton
If the neonatal is built in carms singleton is still quicker

For those in the postcode areas so why would they change there
Choice

960 women who deliver at carms would go to swsnsea
Whilst an unsustainable 1, 900 will deliver at witybush
Is 960 such a big impact on sustainability

9.3

Women should have the option of giving birth in a 20 min transfer time
What about unsuspected births in cere or pembs that need

Transfer to carms or even swansea

Both withybush and bronglais are more than 20 mins away

How long have they been transferring babies to swansea

Level 2 in pembs much closer for bronglais

Bronglais has not had a 4 bed scbu for 14 yrs

How many babies closer to bronglais go to withybush
Or even further what about travel for those families

The stress and strains and most importantly bonding and

Breastfeeding

Transport needs to be 24/7

Chant are working 12 hrs looking to extended
What about helicopters

Do they have room and right equipment

Also weather condition in air and on roads

Tudalen 71



Mothers and families will be supported if they can not deliver
Locally
How will they be supported and what about long term

Eg babies in care for 6 weeks +

Accommodation provide
Thats good but what about families with other children and fathers
That can not get time from work

What about single mothers with more than one child

We are trying to balance this with the needs of rural communities
Hence the retention of obs and peads in all 3 counties

So why not scbu's for the rural communites in all 3 counties

Obs trainees competence is difficult in less than 2, 500
Births

Each birth is different and educational and competence
Could still be met

Ors report

Household survey says 72% for glan gwili

28% for withybush

Where was this survey done

Carms communities have no fears they stand to either gain or stay
As they are do they have threats of closure is neonatal 1s

Placed at withybush

The number of births in pembs is to small to develop
Enhanced neonatal

If neonatal was at withybush all 3 counties would use it
Raising the birth rate and you have already said yourself
Women from pembs are delivering in carms so get them to

Pembs and the number would be greater

Fewer families would have to tracel out of hywel dda hb

But they would still have a great distance to travel everyday

A thought from me
If a level 2 1s built in carms why can scbu

Not stay open in pembs and cere for babies
Who dont need level 2 but just need that little help
Or for babies coming out of level 2 not quite ready

To go home at least they can be closer to home

Which from my own experiencence is so reliving

Tudalen 72



Q G IG Bwrdd lechyd
m Hywel Dda
g N H S Health Board

Ein cyf/Our ref: TP/elc Hywel Dda Health Board Headquarters

) ) Merlins Court, Winch Lane, Haverfordwest,
Gofynnwch am/Please ask for:  Trevor Purt, Chief Executive Pembrokeshire, SA61 1SB
Rhif Ffon /Telephone: 01437 771220 TelNr: (01437) 771220

Ffacs/Facsimile: 01437 771222 Hywel Dda Health Board Headquarters

E-bost/E-mail: Trevor.purt@wales.nhs.uk

Merlins Court, Winch Lane, Haverfordwest,
Pembrokeshire, SA61 1SB
Tel Nr: (01437) 771220

30%" January 2013

William Powell AC/AM

Chair

Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Dear Mr Powell

Thank you for your letter dated 23rd January 2013.

Please find attached details of the following:

Report on feedback received to the Health Board's Consultation

This report, prepared by Opinion Research Services on behalf of the Health
Board, analyses all the feedback received during the formal consultation
process. The feedback received included a full submission by the South
East Pembrokeshire Community Health Network which included the issues
now being raised and the analysis records this.

Assurance Report on the Conduct of the Consultation

This paper was considered by the Health Board on 15th January 2013 prior
to the final decisions being made. It describes the consultation process in
the round and provides assurance in relation to compliance with Ministerial
Guidance on Engagement and Consultation on Service Change and the legal
duties established through the Gunning Principles.

It describes how feedback received was analysed and considered in
preparing final recommendations for the Board.

Pencadlys Bwrdd lechyd Hywel Dda Hywel Dda Health Board Headquarters Cadeirydd / Chairman
Llys Myrddin, Lon Winch, Hwlffordd, Merlins Court, Winch Lane, Haverfordwest, Mr Chris Martin
Sir Benfro, SA61 1SB Pembrokeshire, SA61 1SB Prif Weithredwr /Chief Executive
Rhif Ffén: (01437) 771220 Tel Nr: (01437) 771220 Yr Athro/Professor Trevor Purt
Rhif Ffacs: (01437) 771222 Fax Nr: (01437) 771222
Tudalen 73

Bwrdd lechyd Hywel Dda yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Hywel Dda
Hywel Dda Health Board is the operational name of Hywel Dda Local Health Board



!Q'. G IG Bwrdd lechyd
L))o Hywel Dda
- N H S Health Board

¢ Recommendations Considered by the Board

This report describes the themes emerging from the consultation, the
process of analysis and final recommendations around each service change
under consideration. It reflects on the themes heard and provides a Health
Board response where appropriate and also describes how options for
change have moved as a result of the feedback received. It also highlights
significant submissions received from a variety of sources.

The original petition submitted by Llanelli residents in relation to PPH was
received during the Listening and Engagement Phase of the process.
However, the views expressed in the petition were reflected upon and a
change to the option for consideration was made (with the incorporation of
an EMAU within PPH and the retention of the medical take). The
Consultation Document included a section specific to PPH and provided a
clear explanation of why the petition's demands could not be met. This
included a description of there being no clinical case to revisit an earlier
consultation (held in 2006) and to restore emergency surgical services at
the hospital to allow a full A&E Department to be on the site.

I hope this provides the necessary information for the Committee but please
let me know if you require more.

Yours sincerely,

Trevor Purt
Chief Executive

Enclosures:

1. Balancing Opinions; A report by Opinion Research Services (December 21 2012)
2. Your Health; Your Future - Consulting Our Communities - Consultation Assurance
Report

3. Your Health; Your Future - Consultation Final Recommendations

Pencadlys Bwrdd lechyd Hywel Dda Hywel Dda Health Board Headquarters Cadeirydd / Chairman
Llys Myrddin, Lon Winch, Hwlffordd, Merlins Court, Winch Lane, Haverfordwest, Mr Chris Martin
Sir Benfro, SA61 1SB Pembrokeshire, SA61 1SB Prif Weithredwr /Chief Executive
Rhif Ffon: (01437) 771220 Tel Nr: (01437) 771220 Yr Athro/Professor Trevor Purt
Rhif Ffacs: (01437) 771222 Fax Nr: (01437) 771222
Tudalen 74

Bwrdd lechyd Hywel Dda yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Hywel Dda
Hywel Dda Health Board is the operational name of Hywel Dda Local Health Board



Ko

Opinion Research Services

YOUR HEALTH, YOUR FUTURE

Hywel Dda Health Board’s
Consultation on Healthcare
Services

Balancing Opinions: a report by

Opinion Research Services
December 21 2012

Q G IG Bwrdd lechyd

Hywel Dda

b NHS Health Board

b 1 1 _15
ruuucduclin




l% Opinion Research Services

w Excellent research for the public, voluntary and private sectors

YOUR HEALTH, YOUR FUTURE

Hywel Dda Health Board’s
Consultation on Healthcare
Services

Balancing Opinions: a report by
Opinion Research Services

Q G IG Bwrdd lechyd
0{, N ‘I\ilDSJ Hywel Dda

Health Board

WALES

Opinion Research Services
The Strand - Swansea - SA1 1AF
01792 535300 | info@ors.org.uk | www.ors.org.uk

As with all our studies, findings from this survey are subject to
Opinion Research Services’ Standard Terms and Conditions of Contract.

Any press release or publication of the findings of this survey requires
the advance approval of ORS. Such approval will only be refused on the
grounds of inaccuracy or misrepresentation

© Copyright December 2012

o L 1 2

rugdaquiectit 1



Contents

Executive SUMMary and CONCIUSIONS ......iiiiueiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiiiieiiiiieneiiiieeeiiriessiisisssissiesssssssssssssssssssssssannss 8
T i agoTe [VTo1dTe] o DR T OO P OO U SR UPRTOUPROTOPPROPPONt 8
PUDBIIC CONSUITAION ...ttt b e bbbttt et esbe e saeenane e 8
Y=o I fo Y [ =Yg T =] =Y o o [PPSR 9
Executive SUMMAry and FUIl REPOIt.......oci it e e et e e e era e e e e eare e e e e eanes 10
Quantitative and focus Sroup fINAINGS .....cooeciiiiiiie e e e e s e e e e 10
Awareness of Consultation and Proposals .......cc.ueieviiiieiiiiiee et e e 10
Community SErvices and PrimMary Care ......occueeieccieeeieiiieeeeeciiee e e eeieeessetteeesestteeeessteeesesaeeessseeeessnssenesanns 10
Community Hospitals: MYyNYdd IMAWT .......cccuiiiiiiiiiee ettt e vt e et e e s ebae e e e eaaeeeeenaeaaeeans 11

Y T g To T ol Lo} ST =TT VAol =T PP PPPPPPPPPR 12
Community Services and Primary Care Proposals: Further Comments ..........ccooeviveeiiiiiiecccieee e 13
WOomMeNn and ChildrEN SEIVICES. ...c.uiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e sabe e st e e sbte e sbe e e bt e e sabeeebeeesabeeennes 13
Emergency Care (AcCident and EMEIZENCY)...ccuuiiiiieeiiiieciee ettt ettt et sare e s e e eaae e sbeeeneees 15
Planned Care (OrthOPAEAICS) ...ccveeiuieeciiee ettt ettt ettt et s et e e s e e e be e e baeesbeeesaseesaseeeasseesnbeeeseeas 15
SUBDIMISSIONS ..ttt e h e s bt s bt st et e et e e bt e bt e sb e e sae e eat e eateebeesbeesatesaeesateeabeenbeenbeennees 16
[[aiagoTe I¥ Lot To] o DT OO TP PP PP SR OPROP 16
SEIECTEA ADSTIACES ...ttt ettt e b e s bt sat e st et e bt e bt e s bt e eh e e eae e et e e bt e nbeesheesaneeane 17
Analysis of Submissions’ Themes and COMMENTS .......uiiiiiiiiiieeiiiii e e e sbee e e 19
Organisations in the Open Consultation QUESTIONNAINE .....cc.uviiieciiiie e ee e 19

P EtITIONS et e 20
[[aiagoTe [¥To1dTo] o DU TSP TP PSPPI 20
(01T 1 | I @o Ty Lol [V {01 F-J PO PU PSPPI 20

B R |1 o o 11T o 22
FOrmMal CONSUITATION ..ottt e st s bt e s e e be e e sab e e e sbeeesabeesabeeesabeesnnneas 22
Challenges anNd CRaNEES .......uuiiiiiie ittt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s sttt raeeeeeesasastaaaeaeasesaasntenaeaeeeesnnnnnes 22

F N A Y - T o I Y=Y oYY o =P 23

2. Quantitative Findings: Household Survey and Open Questionnaire Compared ......c.cccceeevencireencrennns 25
OVBIVIBW ..ttt ettt et e e e e e et e e e s b et e e s s s et e e e s s et e e e as et e e e s s e e e e s n s ne e e e e s reeesaanreeesaanreeesanreas 25
THE CONSUITATION ...ttt sttt et e bt e s bt e st s b bt e b e e sbeesseesnneenneens 25

Tudalen 77



(@7 7=T o IO T 1Ty 4 o o o - 11 o = 26

[ (oYU =1 aTo] Lo BTV T PSSP 28
Questionnaire Profiling INfOrmMation ..........occiiiiioiiec et 30
INterpretation Of The Data.......cccciii it e e e e e e ebe e e e e a e e e e eabaeeeeares 33
SUMMArY Of K@Y FINAINGS .......ooiiiiiiiii ettt e et e e et e e e s sbe e e e e snbeee e snnbeeeeennes 33
QUANTILATIVE RESUIES ...ttt ettt st e e st e e s bt e s bt e e s bt e e sbteesabeesabeeesabeesnnee 35
Community HOSpitals — MyNYAd IMAWF .....cocuiiiiiiiiee ettt e st e e e saae e e s snteeeeeaes 35
Minor Injuries Services — Tenby HOSPItal .......ccocuiiiiiiiiii e 37
Minor Injuries Services — South Pembrokeshire Hospital ..........cccooiiiiieiiiiei e, 39
Community Services and Primary Care: FUrther COmMmMENTS........ccuviiiiciiieeiiieie et 41
WOomMeNn and ChildrEn SEIVICES. ...c.uiiiiieiie ettt sttt st sbb e e s bt e e sab e e sabeesbeeesabeesnnes 44
L g T=T =0 LoV G- | PP PP P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPRY 50
PLANNEA Car@....eii ittt ettt et e bt e s a bt e s bt e e bt e e s abe e e abeesabe e e bt e e s abe e e ehbeesabeeebbeesbeeenreas 54
Equalities Issues, including Welsh LangUABE .........oeoeciiii ittt e 57
FUPENEE COMMENTS ettt ettt e h e s b e sht e sat e st e bt e b e bt e s bt e sbeesaeeeaneenteens 58
A) Deliberative findings: FOCUS GrOUPS ......ccieririirmmmenseierireeenmnsssesessseeessnsssssssssssssssnsnssssssssssessnnnssnns 59
Focus groups with members of the PUBIIC ..........ooi et 59
[[aiagoTe [V Lot To] o DSOS OOTR PRSP SRRSO 59
SUMMArY Of K&Y FINAINGS .oeeiiiiiie ettt e e e e et e e e e e ab e e e e sasaeeeeanseeeeentaeeesnseeeean 60
IMEQIN FINGINES vttt ettt b et e st e st e e e bt e e s bt e e sabeesabeeebbeesabeeesabeesabeesabbeesabeeeaeean 62
Awareness of Consultation and Proposals .......cc..eieiiiiieiiiiieeciieee et 62
Planned Care (OrthOPaEaiCSs) ...ccuuiie it et e e e e et e e e et a e e e e ate e e e eeabaeeeesareeeeennnes 63
Unplanned Care (Accident and EMErZENCY SEIVICES)....ccciiiuireeiiiriieeeeieeeeeeiteeeeeteeeeeetree e eeraee e e sreeeeeeaneas 65
Women and ChildrEn’S SEIVICES .....c..i ittt b e st sttt et e b e saeeeaee e 70
Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr HOSPItal) ......ccoocuiiiiiiiiiic et 73
IVHINOT TNJUIY UNTES.ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiieieeeeee ettt ettt ettt ee et e e et e e e e e e et e e e e et s e e e s e e ee e e ee e e e e e ee et e ee e e e e e aeeeeaseaaeesanasasanssannes 75
Community Services and PrimMary Care ......cccueeeiicuieeeiiiieeeeeciieee e eeiee e e ettt e e e setteeeesebteeessbaeeesssseeesssseaeeanns 77
(O [N @ (o Y=Yl ol o [ 1 41 T OO OPU PP 77
Moving Services from Hospitals to the CommUNIty ........cocciiiiiiiiiiii e 78
ACCESS 1O GP SEIVICES .oieiiieee ettt et e e e e s e e e s e e e e s e e e e s eanreeesenreeeseanrees 78
OUT Of HOUIS G ...ttt ettt ettt sttt e b e bt bt s bt e ae e et et e e sbe e sheesenesane s bt e b e enneennees 79
PRAIMACIES . ettt sttt ettt h e bttt et b e bt b et shee st e re et ens 80
OtNEI ISSUBS ...ttt a ettt et e bt e s bt e s bt e sh et e bt et e e nbe e sae e sae e st e e n e e b e e reennees 81
CENTIAlISEA SEIVICES. ...ttt et ettt e s bt e e st e s b e e bt e e sabeeesabeesabeeeneeesabeeesaneesnnes 81

Tudalenr 78



Yo U TR =] g LA I U LT 82

SEANAAIAS OF CAIE .ttt sttt et b e b e s bt e bt ettt et e nbeesaeenare e 83

4 B) Focus Groups and Telephone Interviews with Staff........c..cccciiiiiiiiiiciiiiiiiiiniincceeeeene 85
T agoTe [VTo1dTe] o FUNSR T TP PP S U PROTOVPROPRROPI 85
SUMMArY Of K@Y FINAINGS w.eeiiiiiiiieciiiee ettt e e e e e e e st e e e ssana e e e seaaaeeeenntaeeesnanaeaean 86
Main Findings: Staff Focus Groups and Telephone INterviews .........ccoceveeeieiiiciiei e, 88
Awareness of Consultation and Proposals .......cc..eieiiiiiieeiiiie e e e 88
Planned Care (OrthOPAEAICS) ...ccvieiiieeciiieciee ettt et e e et e e te e s ete e e st e e st e e e staeesbeeesaseesaseeeasseesnsaeeseeas 90
Unplanned Care (Accident and EMEIZENCY)...ccuuiiiiieiiiieeiieeeciieeeieeesteeeeteeeteeestteesteeesaseesareessaeesnreeeseeas 93
Women and Children’s SEIVICES .....eiiuiiiiiie ittt ettt et sbee e st e e sat e e sabeesbteesabeeennes 96
NEONALAI SEIVICES ...ttt ettt e bt e s b e sat e sat e st e bt e b e e nbe e s beesbeesaeeenteenteens 96
PABAIALIICS ..ottt h e bt h e eh et b e bt bt bt a bt et e bt e nhe e sheeeare e 100
(0177 o 1| RO OO P TP PTPPTOPOTSRRPSRRPRIN 101
Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr HOSPITal) .......eecueeiiuieeiiie ettt e e 102
IMIINOT INJUNY UNIES.ciiiiiiiiiiittie ettt e e e e ettt et e e e s s s saabb bt e e e e e e s ssaabsbeteeeeeee s sabebeaaeeeesesannsesaees 103
Community Services and Primary Care .......c.eooieeiiieeiieeiiie ettt ettt ettt st e st essabeesbeeesasee e 104
Care ClOSEI £0 HOMIB ...ttt b e a ettt e bt e s he e she e sab e et e e b e e nbeesbeesbbesnneanteens 104
Moving Services from Hospitals to the CommUNItY ........coociiiiiiiiiii e 107
Other SINITICANT ISSUBS ...eiiiiiiee ettt e e e et e e et e e e e e aba e e e esataeeesaasaeeeeansseeesnsaeeesnnsneeans 108
RECTUITMENT ISSUBS ..ttt et e e et e e s s bt e e s et e e e e s sabt b e e s sabbeeessbeneesabeeeesaane 108
ISSUES SPECITIC T0 BrONGIAIS .. .veiiiiieiiiiieiie ettt ettt e st bt e et esbaeesabeesaes 109
Main Findings: In-depth Telephone Interviews with DOCLOIS ..........cccouiiieiiiiieiciiiee e 110
Unplanned Care (Accident and EMEIZENCY)....ccccuuiiiiiiiieeeeciieeeeeitee e ecttee e e eette e e e etreeeeerreeeesnsaeeesnseeeeanns 110
Planned Care (OrthOPaaICS) ..ccccuuiii ettt ettt e e et e e e et e e e e e bt e e e e ebbeeeeebbeeaesbseeaesasranaeanns 112
Women and Children’s SEIVICES .....c..uiiiiiiieiece ettt re e 113
Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr HOSPItal) ......ccoccuiiiiiiiiiiecciiie e e 113
IMIINOT TNJUIIES UNTTS ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitieieeee ettt ettt e et e et e e et e e e e e et et e e e e e e e e et e ee e s e e e e ee e e e et e ee e s eseseeeeaeeaesesesenenanee 114
Community Services and Primary CAre .....uccei o ccciiiiiee et e e e e e ecrtee e e e e e e e s ratraa e e e e e e e s ennbaaeeeeesesnnnnnns 115
Other I1ssues: CentraliSation ..........eooieeeiiie it e b e e sneeesnneeeas 116
4. Key Submissions SUMMANISEd .......ccceeiiiimeiiiiiimeiiiiienieiiieneeirreneeesrenesessrenssesssenssssssenssssssenssssssannns 117
Ta 1A goTe [V 1T ] o HN PSP PRR PPN 117
Some Key SUbmMIisSioNs SUMMATISEA .........uiiiiiiiiiiiciiiiieee e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e sarbre e e e e e e e esnrrbareeaaaeean 118
Analysis Of Other SUBMISSIONS. .....ciiiii e e e e e e e st e e e e e e e e s eaabreaeeeeeeeennnnes 147

Tudalen 79



County Councils and Local HEalth BOArds .........coccuiiiiiiiiieiiiiiee ettt e s e s anee s 147

Submissions from Politicians and Political GroUPS........cccuueieiiiieie e 148
SPECIAI INTEIEST GIOUDS ..uvviiieiiiiieeciiiee e ettt e e ettt e e et e e e e e e e bt e e e e atbeeeesaabeeeeaaaeeeeassaeeeassaeeeenraeesannsees 151
Voluntary and COMMUNITY GIrOUPS......eiiiiiuiieeeiiieeeeiiteeeeeeiteeeeeteeeeesbaeeeesabaeeeesbaeeeesssaeeessnsaeeeesnseeeesnnsens 153
Staff and GP SUDMISSIONS ANGIYSIS ...vveiiiiiiiiieiiiiee ettt e e et e e e s e e e sabae e e s nabaeeeenreeesennnees 154
Town and Community Councils” SUDMISSIONS ANAIYSIS .....vvviiiiiiiie i 156
Residents’ SUDMISSIONS ANGIYSIS.....iiiicuiiieiiiiiee ettt e st e e e s e e e st e e s ebre e e e sbteeessbteeesssteeessasteeeesnns 158
Organisations’ Open Consultation QUESTIONNAITES ......c.uviiiiiiiiieciie e e aaee e 162
Community Hospitals — MyNYdd IMAWF ..........uiiiiiiiieeceee ettt et e e et e e e e aaa e e e e aareee s 163
IVHINOT INJUIIES SEIVICES ..ceeeieiiiiiiiiieitieeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e eeeeeeeeea e e e e taeetaaeeseaeeaasaeeeaeeesasssesesssenssessnnnnnnnnns 164
Community Services and Primary Care: Further COmmeNntS.........coociiiiieeeeiieicciiiieeee e 164
WOomMen and ChildrEn SEIVICES. ......uuiiiiieiie ettt ettt ettt e st e st e e st e s bt e e sabeesbeeesaneeaas 165
[ g T=T =L LoV G- | PP P PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPRE 167
T TTe [ T T OO TP UPOPOPRROPPR 168
PeUItiONS...cciiiinniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e s s s s e e e e s s s s s s e s e e 170
Ty e o [¥ o1 o] o H TP PR PR PPOPRPPRN 170
Withybush HOSPITAl SEIVICES ....veiiiiiiiiee ettt e e et e e e et e e e e abae e e eenbaeeeennreas 170
Withybush Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) .......uviiiiiiiiee ettt e et e e aree e e e e e e 170
Tenby MiINOr INJURIES UNITt......ooiiiie ettt eetae e e e et e e e e eata e e e eeabaeeeeeasaeeeeenraeeeennres 171
Need fOr INtErPretatioN . ..o i e e et e e e et e e e e sbt e e e e sbteeeeebaeeeesnseeeaeanns 171
List of HDAHB Public Engagement ACtiVities.......cccceeeiiiruiiireinciriiincereeeneereenneeeseennseeseensssssenansanens 173
L0 o] ol =T d T Y=L P PPPPPPRR 173
Meet the Health Board PUBIIC EVENTS.......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeceeee et 173
o Tol R 1o 1] o L3P PP P P PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPRE 174

Tudalen 80



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

The ORS Project Team

Project design, management and reporting

Dale Hall
Jonathan Lee
Kester Holmes
Kelly Lock

Claire Thomas
Anna Shakeshaft
Hannah Champion

Kathryn Middleton

Fieldwork management

Kirsty Millbank

Leanne Hurlow

Data Analysis

Richard Harris
Joe Marchant
Jonathan Jones

Hugo Marchant

Tudalen 81



Executive Summary and Conclusions

Introduction

Public Consultation

L ‘Together for Health’ was published by the Minister for Health and Social Services in November 2011 to
offer a five-year vision in the context of the challenges facing the health service in Wales. The document
declares that Health Boards need to change to provide the very best quality of services for their
population in the future. In this context, at the end of 2011 Hywel Dda Health Board (HDdHB) embarked
on a major review of its services through an extensive and intensive Listening and Engagement process
which sought to clarify the general principles that would eventually inform proposals for changes to
services and give the public and stakeholders the opportunity to influence at a very early stage. ORS
reported the outcomes of the listening and engagement process progressively from March to July, 2012
and the Board has taken the wide-ranging inputs fully into account in formulating it current proposals
for formal consultation.

2 The formal consultation period ran from August 6™ to October 29" 2012 (extended until November 12"
for Machynlleth) and included an extensive programme of engagement with staff, stakeholders and the
public — including all the following elements:

Open Consultation questionnaire (both on-line and paper versions) — widely distributed and
with responses from 4,422 residents and organisations

Postal survey of residents — with responses from 697 (14%) of the 5,000 randomly selected
households

Seven focus groups with members of the public

Six focus groups with members of staff and five telephone interviews with doctors
Written submissions from stakeholders

Petitions

Three public meeting events (chaired by ORS) and a further seven locality meetings by
HDdHB

Staff roadshows run by HDdHB

Records of consultations, meetings and other activities by HDdHB.

3. As a research practice with wide-ranging experience of controversial statutory consultations across the
UK, ORS is able to certify that both the listening and engagement and the formal consultation processes
undertaken by HDdHB have been both intensive and extensive. Overall, there is no doubt that both
exercises have been conscientious, competent and comprehensive in eliciting the opinions of
stakeholders and many members of the public.

Tudalers 82



4 Proper interpretation of HDdHB’s consultation programme should distinguish the findings of the
various elements — for example, to compare the results of the open consultation questionnaire with the
more representative random sample household survey, while also comparing the quantitative
outcomes generally with the qualitative deliberative forums, focus groups and depth-interviews, on the
one hand, and the public meetings, submissions and petitions, on the other.

5 This executive summary considers the detailed findings from each of the different consultation
elements in relation to the Board’s various proposals. However, our following detailed report considers
the different consultation elements separately while having regard to important common themes and
differences, and, where possible, highlighting relevant assumptions or beliefs that influence people’s
views.

Need for Interpretation

& Interpreting the overall outcomes of the consultation is neither straightforward nor just a ‘technical’
matter — for the different methodologies have to be respected and recognised and cannot be simply
summated. ORS attaches particular weight to findings that are representative of the general population
(the household survey) and/or deliberative (based upon thoughtful reflective discussion in non-emotive
forums and focus groups) and/or based on professional expertise (staff focus groups, interviews with
doctors, and some important stakeholder submissions); but, of course, all the other consultation
elements have to be recognised and interpreted as well.

7. The results of the open consultation questionnaire (from 4,422 respondents) — have to be interpreted
carefully because the profile of respondents does not match the population profile for Hywel Dda at all
closely — whereas the weighted household survey respondent profile is representative. For example, in
the open questionnaire data, Pembrokeshire is very over-represented due to its high response rate
(54% of responses but only 32% of the Hywel Dda population) whereas Carmarthenshire and
Ceredigion are under-represented (respectively with 37% and 9% of the responses compared with their
actual 48% and 20% proportions of the Hywel Dda population). Similarly, older people (aged 55 to 75+
are highly over-represented compared with those aged under 44 who are very under-represented.
However, in contrast, the achieved household survey sample though smaller is broadly representative
of the population overall and within each county.

8 These issues are important, for whereas the open consultation questionnaire (public meetings and
submissions from community groups) makes the opposition to many of the HDdHB proposals very clear,
the findings of the household survey, deliberative focus groups with members of the public and staff,
and the submissions from professional bodies, present a very different picture and deserve at least as
much notice as the outcomes of the open consultation questionnaire.

% While ORS makes the above assessments, there is no single ‘right interpretation’ of all the consultation
elements, for professional and political judgement is needed. Ultimately, an overall interpretation of
the consultation will depend upon the executive and non-executive members of the Health Board itself:
they will consider all elements and determine which seem the most telling — above all, by considering
the relative merits of the various opinions as the basis for public policy.

Tudalen 83



10.

The Board consults the public and stakeholders because it is accountable — but in this context
accountability means giving an account of its ideas and then taking into account public and stakeholder
views: it does not mean that the opinions of the largest majority should automatically decide public
policy. After all, consultations are not referenda: they should inform, but not displace, professional and
political judgements, which (above all) should assess the cogency of the views expressed.

Executive Summary and Full Report

11.

Although the submissions are dealt with separately (due to their complexity and scope), in this
executive summary the outcomes of most of the consultation elements are integrated under headings
for the main proposals, in order to highlight the basis for key conclusions; but in the full report that
follows each consultation method is reported in separate chapters. Needless to say, a summary such as
this cannot do justice to the detail in the full report — so readers are encouraged to consult the full
analysis for greater insight into people’s concerns and the issues raised by a wide range of informed and
committed commentators. Whereas this summary travels towards overall consultation outcomes fairly
quickly, the full report traverses public, professional and stakeholder opinions and feelings in detail to
achieve a comprehensive understanding — and it is the journey as well as the destination that will
matter to those wishing to understand views about current and future healthcare services in Hywel
Dda. We trust that both the summary and full reports will be helpful to all concerned.

Quantitative and focus group findings

Awareness of Consultation and Proposals

Public Focus Groups

There was evidence of good awareness of HDdHB's proposals across all groups (more so in
‘sensitive’ areas such as Llanelli and Pembrokeshire), but also some scepticism as to whether
people’s views will be considered.

Staff Focus Groups

Staff were well-aware of HDdHB’s proposals and consultation process, but they also had some
concerns about allegedly: inconsistent messages from senior staff; the vagueness of some
proposals (which were also considered too Carmarthenshire-centric and to be causing divisions
among staff); the ‘too broad’ principles underpinning them; and staff roadshows being held at
inappropriate times.

Community Services and Primary Care

Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

In general, the majority of household survey residents and open consultation questionnaire
respondents disagree with the proposals regarding Community Services and Primary Care, with
the open questionnaire respondents showing higher levels of disagreement than household
survey residents.

Tudalemr 84



Across all the Community Services and Primary Care proposals, residents/respondents who live
closest to the affected hospitals are more likely to disagree than those who live further away.

Public Focus Groups

There was general approval for ‘care closer to home’ — providing it works in practice and is
operational before the removing secondary care services.

There was general praise for moving services out of hospitals and into the community. People
must travel considerable distances for routine healthcare and brief appointments - and would
welcome being able to access such services closer to home.

Given the widespread complaints about GP access (and, especially, out-of-hours care), there
was a great deal of support for longer hours and a six-day week for GP (to improve evening and
weekend access for working people). There was also a great deal of support for pharmacies
offering more healthcare services.

Staff Focus Groups

Although there was general enthusiasm for care closer to home, staff expressed caution about
its achievability in practice: it should be ‘tried and tested’ before secondary care services are
ended and quality and safety should not be traded for accessibility.

Some achievements were highlighted, namely the Carmarthenshire Community Resource and
Acute Response Teams, and Pembrokeshire Care Closer to Home, which has been picked as one
of five sites for research. However, community healthcare workers strongly desire more
resources and more GP involvement for even greater success.

There was general praise for moving services from hospitals into communities and improving
access to primary care. There was, however, scepticism that GPs will offer longer hours and that
pharmacies can be reached by everyone in 15 minutes.

District and community nurses were thought to play an important role in community
healthcare, but it was said that the rurality of Hywel Dda should be recognised — and
appropriate resources provided to overcome this.

Community Hospitals: Mynydd Mawr
Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

Both the open consultation questionnaire and the household survey show considerable
disagreement with the proposals to close Mynydd Mawr Hospital and provide the services
currently delivered from there in other ways. Disagreement is particularly strong in the open
consultation questionnaire — with 75% disagreeing (62% strongly disagreeing) compared with
59% disagreeing (40% strongly) in the household survey.

The location of respondents to the open questionnaire is a key factor: those living closest to the
hospital show much higher levels of disagreement than those who live further away.

In the consultation questionnaire, just over seven in ten of the organisations responding
opposed the closure of Mynydd Mawr.

Tudalen 85



Public Focus Groups

There were divided feelings about the possible closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital, mainly within
Carmarthenshire. Most were of the view that it is ‘past its sell by date’ and should be closed, but
some at Tumble and Llanelli disagreed, commenting on the quality of care provided there and
the lack of space (and parking) at Prince Philip. They were also suspicious of HDdHB’s motives
and whether they are closing it to build new homes on the land.

Staff Focus Groups

The proposed closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital was discussed in depth only in
Carmarthenshire, where there was some division of opinion. The majority agreed that the
hospital building is no longer fit for purpose and that better patient care can be provided on a
state-of-the-art ward at Prince Philip — though they often added that community services should
be in place before closure.) Those against the closure were concerned about the loss of some
inpatient beds and, especially, the loss of a community rehabilitation facility, which could lead
to ‘bed blocking’.

Minor Injuries Services
Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

There was considerable disagreement with the proposals for minor injuries services at Tenby
Hospital: 80% disagreed in the open questionnaire (62% strongly) compared with 59% in the
household survey (39% strongly).

The majority of both household survey and open questionnaire respondents also disagree with
the proposals for minor injuries services at South Pembrokeshire Hospital. In the open
questionnaire 78% disagree (58% strongly) compared with 57% disagree (38% strongly) in the
household survey.

In the consultation questionnaire, more than three-quarters of the organisations responding
opposed the transfer of minor injuries services from Tenby and South Pembrokeshire hospitals
to GP surgeries.

Both the household survey and open questionnaire indicate that people who live closest to the
hospital are much more likely to disagree than those living further away.

Public Focus Groups

Only in Pembrokeshire were there strong feelings about the proposed closure of the Tenby and
South Pembrokeshire MIUs. There was certainly opposition to the proposal at the Pembroke
Dock group — mainly because of the consequent strain that could be placed on GPs and nurses;
the lack of space in GP surgeries; the increased summer population in Tenby; and the ‘waste’ of
a new building in the town.

Tudaler 86



Staff Focus Groups

Some staff could understand the proposal to close the MIUs at Tenby and South Pembrokeshire
Hospitals as they are currently under-used. Others were concerned about: the potential impact
on Withybush A&E; the lack of healthcare for the increased summer population in Tenby; and
the potential difficulties in increasing the number of nurse practitioners.

There was support for GPs providing Minor Injuries Services, but scepticism about their
willingness to do so. There was also concern about the potential impact on waiting times and
the possibility of increased referrals to A&E, due to the lack of X-Ray facilities at GP practices. It
was also said that hospital-based doctors must continue to be exposed to minor injuries to be
able to deal with them effectively.

Community Services and Primary Care Proposals: Further Comments

Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

19% of household survey residents and 36% of open questionnaire respondents provided
further comments with regards to the community services and primary care proposals. The
main comments that were made by both sets of respondents are:

Closing services and redirecting to GPs would mean GPs will be unable to cope with the
increased demand

Minor Injury Units are critical, in particular in terms of Pembrokeshire and Tenby, as more cover
is needed during the tourist season

Alternative services should be tested and must have enough resources before any changes are
made. In particular, GPs need to:

— Be more accessible

— Have longer opening hours/days

— Have extra staff and equipment

— Have more skills for minor injuries

Concerns around transport and availability for local people

Concerns about how the proposed changes will affect the elderly in terms of travel.

Women and Children Services
Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

The household survey shows that the majority of residents would prefer Women and Children’s
Services to be located at Glangwili Hospital, whereas respondents to the open questionnaire
would prefer these services to be located at Withybush Hospital. ORS believes that the
household survey is the better guide to general public opinion.

Tudalen 87



In general, the results show that residents whose nearest district general hospitals are
Bronglais, Glangwili and Prince Philip prefer the services to be located at Glangwili Hospital,
while those who live closer to Withybush would prefer services to be located there.

In the consultation questionnaire, almost six in ten organisations supported Glangwili as the
base for a paediatric high dependency unit and a level 2 neonatal unit.

Overall, location is also an important factor when analysing the results for Women and Children
Services, Emergency Care and Planned Care, with a resident/respondent’s nearest district
general hospital playing a key role in their responses.

Public Focus Groups

Five groups (Aberystwyth, Llandeilo, Llanelli, Lampeter and Tumble) supported the development
of the Level 2 Neonatal, Paediatric High Dependency and Complex Obstetrics Units at Glangwili
because: Glangwili is nearer to larger centres of population (with higher birth rates); it is more
central within HDdHB; and it will be easier to recruit doctors to Carmarthen than to
Haverfordwest.

Participants at Pembroke Dock and Newport felt they could support Glangwili as a location —
providing the Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) remains at Withybush. This was considered
essential for stabilisation, to alleviate some parents’ travel difficulties and to negate the
possibility of losing paediatrics entirely.

Staff Focus Groups

Staff at Glangwili and Prince Philip (as well as the doctors) supported the development of the
Level 2 Neonatal, Paediatric High Dependency and Complex Obstetrics Units at Glangwili —
mainly because it is nearer to larger centres of population (with higher birth rates) and is more
central within HDdHB.

At Bronglais, there was some debate about the need for a Level 2 Neonatal Unit, with some
expressing a preference for improving services at existing sites. If the new services are
developed, Glangwili was preferred for ease of access.

At Withybush, staff argued that HDdHB's proposal risks disadvantaging the majority of babies to
cater for the minority — so they supported the status quo of sending special care babies to
Swansea — with investment to raise standards on the three existing sites. If the proposal is
implemented, there was very strong feeling that the SCBU should remain at Withybush for
stabilisation.

A centralised paediatric HDU was considered desirable but unworkable at Withybush — where
staff mainly worried about: the detrimental effect of additional travelling on children’s health;
the HDU (and possibly all inpatient paediatrics) at the ‘other’ hospital becoming unviable; the
de-skilling of staff at the ‘other’ hospital; and increasing demand on A&E and the Ambulance
Service. The preference was to re-direct finances into raising standards and strengthening
services at the three main sites.

Tudalem 88



Emergency Care (Accident and Emergency)

Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

Both the open consultation questionnaire and the household survey showed overwhelming
support for Option B across the Health Board area: 85% in the household survey and 78% in the
open questionnaire.

However, particularly in the open consultation questionnaire a significant minority of people
whose nearest hospital is Prince Philip supported “Another alternative”.

In the consultation questionnaire, 85% of organisations supported option B for the provision of
A&E services at three centres and a nurse-led local accident centre at Llanelli.

Public Focus Groups

Five of the seven groups (Aberystwyth, Lampeter, Newport, Pembroke Dock and Tumble)
approved the retention of full A&E services at Glangwili, Withybush and Bronglais.

Participants at Llanelli and Llandeilo felt strongly that Llanelli should have a full A&E service —
mainly because of the town’s large population and the distance to Carmarthen, and waiting
times at Glangwili. In fact, most would prefer to go to Morriston as they said the care is better
and it is more easily accessed. There were also strong objections in these two groups to the
proposed nurse-led ‘Local Accident Centre’ at Prince Philip. They considered this to be a
downgraded service and worried about: the ability of nurse practitioners to assess and treat the
whole range of incidents; and the onus being placed on the patient to decide what is a major
and minor injury. If the nurse-led unit is introduced, people strongly desired co-located
emergency diagnostic and stabilisation facilities.

Staff Focus Groups

HDdHB's preferred Option B was readily endorsed at Glangwili, Bronglais and Withybush, where
it was felt strongly that full A&E services at three acute hospitals is sufficient for the Health
Board area. There was also support for a nurse-led model of emergency care at Prince Philip.

Prince Philip staff understood the need for change but rejected a wholly nurse-led unit on the
grounds that: some patients (such as children) cannot be dealt with by an emergency nurse
practitioner and will be sent to Glangwili or Morriston; many minor injuries need medical input,
which can currently be provided by A&E doctors; the removal of doctors will put excessive
pressure on staff within the Emergency Medical Admissions Unit; the change will impact on the
training of junior doctors and recruitment of good quality consultants/registrars to Prince Philip.

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)
Consultation Questionnaire and Household Survey

The household survey showed that the majority of residents (62%) would prefer the
Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence to be located at Prince Philip Hospital, whereas the majority
of respondents to the open consultation questionnaire (58%) would prefer these services to be
located at Withybush Hospital.

Tudalen 89



In the open consultation questionnaire, the organisations responding were divided on the
merits of Prince Philip and Withybush for an orthopaedic centre of excellence.

In general, residents whose nearest district general hospitals are Bronglais, Glangwili or Prince
Philip prefer services to be located at Glangwili Hospital, while those who live closer to
Withybush Hospital would prefer services to be located there.

Public Focus Groups

In all seven focus groups, there was strong support for the proposed Orthopaedic Centre of
Excellence (but the Llanelli group was only prepared really to endorse it if it was introduced
alongside a full A&E service; otherwise they would be prepared to ‘trade’ the Orthopaedic
Centre for an A&E!).

Overall, though, there was general support for the Prince Philip location, due to its good
reputation, existing facilities and the easier access to Llanelli for the majority of the HDdHB
population. The Pembroke Dock group, however, favoured Withybush as it currently provides
excellent care — and because Prince Philip is close to Swansea’s two hospitals.

Staff Focus Groups

The proposed Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for the South of HDdHB was broadly welcomed
by staff — and there was general support for Prince Philip as its location, mainly because: all
Carmarthenshire elective operations are done there already; the facilities and staff are in place;
and it is more easily accessible from most areas of HDdHB than Withybush.

Withybush staff strongly advocated keeping orthopaedic services at Withybush, with only
complex cases and revisions at Prince Philip — an approach that was driven by fear that
Withybush will lose all inpatient orthopaedics which is its bread and butter.

Submissions

Introduction

12.

During the formal consultation process 274 written submissions were received from professional,
political, interest, voluntary and community groups as well as from many residents and staff. The full
report contains a detailed tabulated analysis of the points made by the various organisations and
people making submissions. As well as identifying the important general themes and topics, a selected
range of the submissions has been summarised in detail by ORS in the main report, order to make them
more accessible to readers. It was neither practical nor necessary to summarise all the submissions in
the same manner, but we trust we have chosen fairly a wide range for illustration. Summaries cannot
do full justice to the arguments and evidence of the many submissions, but they at least they make
them accessible and indicate the main points expressed. Readers are encouraged to consult the full
submissions documents available from HDdHB.

Tudalers 90



Selected Abstracts

13.

As a guide to the submissions selected for summary, key abstracts are given immediately below. Most
of the following are broadly positive about HDdHB’s proposals, but there is also considerable criticism
from the CHCs and community groups, staff and some local physicians. The overall impression the total
body of submissions makes will depend on the relative weightings given to the submissions from
professional bodies, on the one hand, and community organisations, on the other.

Royal College of Surgeons: Professional Affairs Board in Wales — supports HDdHB’s key
principles while saying more inter-health board collaboration and co-ordination is required

Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health and the Paediatric and Child Health National
Speciality Advisory Group — supports HDdHB’s direction of travel while having reservations
about the proposed number of inpatient paediatric units, particularly in the context of
impending retirements

Royal College of Nursing in Wales — does not criticise the principles underlying the Health
Board’s proposals, but questions the adequacy of the planning for their implementation

The Royal College of Midwives — supports HDdHB’s proposals for maternity and related services

National Clinical Forum — supports moving appropriate care from secondary settings into the
community, but believes the current plans have not taken sufficient account of the practical
challenges involved; four secondary care facilities are unsustainable and a two-centre model is
the only option with a chance of long-term sustainability

Wales Deanery — HDdHB should take full account of the Deanery’s reconfiguration proposals for
postgraduate medical training in Wales

Healthcare Professionals Forum — supports HDdHB’s key proposals for hospitals and also the
move towards community care

National Specialist Advisory Group: Mental Health — the proposals seem well-intentioned but
poorly evidenced; plans for community services and equitable access across three counties are
welcomed, but there is no detailed service model and in the short term the changes may
exacerbate staffing problems

Powys Teaching Health Board — supports HDdHB’s strategic goals while seeking to improve the
planning of services for north Powys, north Ceredigion and south Gwynedd, based on co-
operation on community services and recognition of Bronglais as a strategically important
hospital

Society and College of Radiographers — sees benefits in the proposals and believes there are
opportunities for role development and skills mix across HDdHB

Chartered Society of Physiotherapy — notes the proposals and is concerned that
implementation should be managed successfully in terms of staff resources and training for all
professions

Public Health Wales — broadly supports the direction of travel and believes public health has a
contribution to make, particularly through enhanced health improvement activities; there are
challenges in delivering the services, including the enhancement of primary and community
services, workforce issues and the public health agenda; and further work is required in relation
to some of these issues

Tudalen 91



Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust — supports the key principles of HDdHB’s proposals, but is
concerned about the outcomes if sufficient additional resources are not available to facilitate
their implementation; and also concerned about resilience, continuity and staffing implications

Hywel Dda Maternity Services Liaison Committee — supports Glangwili as the best site for the
PHDU, level 2 neonatal and complex obstetrics units, but also argues for midwifery-led units at
all three sites

Emergency Nurse Practitioner Team Leader — there benefits that could follow from the closure
of the Tenby and South Pembs MIUs

Hywel Dda Community Health Council — while there have been improvements in the Health
Board’s thinking since the Listening and Engagement phase, the CHC still believes that the
current proposals do not meet the healthcare needs of the Hywel Dda population

Montgomeryshire Community Health Council — the status quo is not acceptable, but there has
been insufficient co-ordination between Hywel Dda, Powys Teaching and Betsi Cadwaladr
Health Boards; but the collaboration that has now been put in place is welcomed

Betsi Cadwaladr Community Health Council — agrees with HDdHB on several major issues of
principle, but is concerned about possible implications for South Meirionnydd residents
accessing services from Bronglais; pleased that three health boards are now collaborating on
the newly established Mid Wales Planning Board

Prince Philip Physicians — the proposal for a nurse-led emergency department is unsafe

Llanelli Rural Council — Carmarthenshire’s major emergency department with full A&E services
should be based in Llanelli rather than Glangwili, but if this is not possible then Prince Philip
should have a doctor-led emergency department; supports developments that strengthen
Prince Philip, but community care is not a panacea

Report commissioned by Llanelli Rural Council (Bellis-Jones Hill, Healthcare Management
Solutions) — the proposals do not downgrade Prince Philip; regarding emergency services, the
Rural Council has three main options: (i) try to maintain the current status quo; (ii) consider
adopting a nurse-led Urgent Care Centre (UCC) with the option of sending the more serious A&E
cases to Morriston; or (iii) accept the HDdHB proposals subject to an assessment by an
independent panel of experts

CIHS / SOSPPAN - criticises proposals for a nurse-led minor injury service at Prince Philip and
argues that implementation plans for community care are inadequate; above all, it wishes for
four DGHs providing full A&E services

Residents of Glanymor Ward, Llanelli — the proposals will pressurise GP services and will have a
detrimental effect on the health of Llanelli residents, particularly the proposed changes to A&E
at PPH

Clinical Team Leader, General Surgery (Withybush) — welcomes moves to comply with Royal
College requirements, but details a number of issues particularly affecting Withybush

Save Withybush Action Team (SWAT) — all of Wales’ current rural secondary care and maternity
services should be maintained and the whole population should be within one hour of a fully
functioning A&E department with supporting secondary care services

Tudalem 92



Pembrokeshire Health Concern — the proposals downgrade Withybush by removing elective hip
and knee replacements and night time and weekend treatment of trauma and emergency
surgery

Ward 9 staff at Withybush hospital — criticise proposals for community hospitals, paediatric,
neonatal and orthopaedic services; moving orthopaedic services to Llanelli will disadvantage
people west of Carmarthen whereas moving them to Withybush would give Llanelli residents a
choice of either Withybush or Swansea

South East Pembrokeshire Community Health Network — retain the Tenby Cottage Hospital
Minor Injury Unit

Pembrokeshire Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Forum — the third sector should be an
important partner in implementing changes, particularly regarding transport; there needs to be
a balanced approach with respect to Withybush

UNISON - sees some benefits for patients and staff in the proposals, but has some concerns
about implementation

aBer Campaign Group — key services should continue at Bronglais and services recently
diminished should be reinstated; the proposals for community care cannot be implemented
successfully without substantial investment and more time.

Analysis of Submissions’ Themes and Comments

4. A detailed break-down of the submissions made during the consultation is given in the full report
below. It is not possible to summarise the detailed and lengthy table effectively here, but readers are
urged to study the analysis in the relevant chapter below.

Organisations in the Open Consultation Questionnaire

15 Most responses to the open consultation questionnaire were by individuals rather than organisations;
but many organisations submitted consultation questionnaires rather than formal written submissions.
For the sake of completeness, therefore, the organisations’ responses to the open questionnaire are
analysed alongside the submissions in the full report —and in summary the analysis shows that:

Just over seven in ten organisations opposed the closure of Mynydd Mawr

More than three-quarters opposed the transfer of minor injuries services from Tenby and South
Pembrokeshire hospitals to GP surgeries

Almost six in ten supported Glangwili as the base for a paediatric high dependency unit and a
level 2 neonatal unit

85% supported option B for the provision of A&E services at three centres and a nurse-led local
accident centre at Llanelli

Opinions were exactly divided on the merits of Prince Philip and Withybush for an orthopaedic
centre of excellence.

Tudalen 93



Petitions

Introduction

16.

17.

During the formal consultation the following petitions were organised objecting to important proposals:

Save Withybush Action Team (SWAT) — a 14K signature petition to the Welsh Government
opposing the centralisation of inpatient services on Glangwili

Hywel Dda residents — 84 signatures demanding that all HDdHB services should be centralised at
Withybush

Stephen Crabb, MP - 1,264 signatures objecting to the closure of the Withbush Special Care
Baby Unit an urging that the paediatric high dependency unit and the level 2 neonatal unit
should be based at Withybush

Tenby petition — 637 signatures objecting to the closure of the Minor Injuries Unit in Tenby.
The petitions are clearly important and HDdHB will treat them very seriously, but the Board should also

note that petitions can exaggerate public sentiments and fail to take account of the needs of the whole
Hywel Dda area.

Overall Conclusions

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

It would be a brave author who claimed to derive a single, unambiguous set of conclusions from the
various consultation elements reported here, but without hubris it is possible to identify some signposts
to assist the Board and others in their deliberations.

As we have said, the household survey findings are much more representative of the general
population than the open consultation questionnaire data — in which Pembrokeshire, and also people
aged over-55, are very over-represented compared with Ceredigion, Carmarthen and those under-44.
Of course, the responses to the open questionnaire reflect the strength of feeling of many people in
Pembrokeshire: that is democracy in action; and it is good that people organise to promote their ideas
and protect their interests; but the HDdHB has to make public policy choices on the basis of the safety,
quality and sustainability of services, as well as accessibility, for the whole of Hywel Dda.

The focus groups with the public and staff showed that both could reflect relatively dispassionately
about the proposals — and, though they do not welcome some of the changes, many can accept most of
them in the light of the Board’s key considerations.

The submissions made during the consultation are clearly very important and the fall into two distinct
groups: those from professional bodies, which broadly support HDdHB’s proposals (while raising issues
about the implementation of ‘community care’), and those from residents and community
organisations, which typically object strongly to any centralisation at the expense of access.

The conclusions the Board reaches about the issues will depend partly on how its members weigh the
professional bodies’ submissions alongside those from community groups and residents. This is a
critical issue. For example, the National Clinical Forum believes HDdHB has been too conservative in
trying to protect acute services at four sites because it believes that only a two-site solution is

Tudalerr 94



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

sustainable and safe for patients in the long run. Of course, community groups and most residents
would abhor a two-hospital model for Hywel Dda — so the tension between safety, specialisation and
resilience, on the one hand, and access, on the other, defines the dilemma for the Board: many oppose
the proposed changes even though some professional groups believe HDdHB’s review of the current
pattern of services is too conservative. In this context, it is helpful to take stock of the balance of
opinions.

The consultation shows that there is overwhelming support for HDdHB’s Option B proposals for
Emergency Services at three main sites. Almost everyone who took part in the consultation supports
this approach, though there is important vociferous local opposition to the proposed nurse-led minor
injuries service at Prince Philip, and some want full A&E restored there.

Overall, there is very strong support for the proposals for Planned Services (Orthopaedics), but there is
strong opposition in Pembrokeshire.

Similarly, there is very strong support for the proposals for Women and Children’s Services and
Glangwili is very generally supported as the most appropriate location in the south; but there is strong
opposition in Pembrokeshire, based mainly on worries about the future of the Withybush SCBU and
paediatric services in the county.

Although the problems of the Mynydd Mawr site were acknowledge in both the public and staff focus
groups, there is widespread opposition to its closure: the public clearly dislike the very idea of hospital
closures, whatever the circumstances, and this will always present problems for any review of services.
There is also widespread opposition to the discontinuation of the minor injury services at Tenby and
South Pembrokeshire hospitals (in favour of their transfer to GPs and primary care), though some staff
said the services are under-used. In considering such issues, the Board will need to balance the support
for general principles (demonstrated in the listening and engagement Exercise) against the intense local
opposition to their implementation.

In Pembrokeshire in particular there are considerable anxieties about access to services and distances
to travel, particularly but not only for the elderly, and the Board will probably want to consider how
these issues can be mitigated.

There is very strong support for the general principle of care in the community, but many people
(including supporters) have very strong concerns about its practical implementation — in terms of GPs’
current willingness and capacity, and whether adequate funding will be provided. Apart from the
tension between centralisation and access (which is particularly evident in Pembrokeshire), there are
widespread worries about the manageability and deliverability and safety of care in the community.
This is a huge issue for many consultees and seems likely to define the challenge facing HDdHB.

Tudalen 95



11

12

13

1. Introduction

Formal Consultation

Challenges and Changes

‘Together for Health’ was published by the Minister for Health and Social Services in November 2011 to
offer a five-year vision in the context of the challenges facing the health service in Wales. The document
declares that Health Boards need to change to provide the very best quality of services for their population
in the future. In this context, Hywel Dda Health Board (HDdHB) faces particular challenges in running four
district general hospitals across a large rural area with a population of only about 380,000 people. The
specific issues it faces include: an aging population; health inequalities; difficulties in recruiting and
retaining sufficient well qualified clinical staff; sustaining excellent and safe medical care across a large rural
area with dispersed communities; and managing services effectively within a limited budget.

Facing these issues, at the end of 2011 HDdHB embarked on a major review of its services through an
extensive and intensive Listening and Engagement Exercise with staff, stakeholders and the public,
originally planned to run from 19th December 2011 until 31st March 2012 but then extended it to the 30th
April 2012, in order to allow more time for public and stakeholder participation. The listening and
engagement process did not address specific proposals, but sought to clarify the general principles that
would eventually inform proposals for changes to services. The Board saw the listening and engagement
process as a way of giving the public and stakeholders the opportunity to influence the evolution of its
thinking at a very early stage; and it sought to be open, accessible and fair to those wishing to express their
views.

ORS reported the listening and engagement process and the Board has taken it fully into account in
formulating draft proposals for formal consultation — which ran from August 6™ to October 29" 2012
(extended until November 12" for Machynlleth) and included an extensive programme of consultation with
staff, stakeholders and the public. The formal consultation included all the following elements:

Open Consultation questionnaire (both on-line and paper versions) — widely distributed and
with responses from 4,422 residents and organisations

Postal survey of residents — with responses from 697 (14%) of the 5,000 randomly selected
households

Seven focus groups with members of the public

Six focus groups with members of staff and five telephone interviews with doctors
Written submissions from stakeholders

Petitions

Three public meeting events (chaired by ORS) and a further seven locality meetings by
HDdHB

Tudalerr 96



14

15

1.6

17

1.8

1.9

Staff roadshows run by HDdHB

Records of consultations, meetings and other activities by HDdHB.

As a research practice with wide-ranging experience of controversial statutory consultations across the UK,
ORS is able to certify that both the listening and engagement and the formal consultation processes
undertaken by HDdHB have been both intensive and extensive. Overall, there is no doubt that both
exercises have been conscientious, competent and comprehensive in eliciting the opinions of stakeholders
and many members of the public.

Analysis and Reporting

Proper interpretation of HDdHB’s consultation programme should distinguish the findings of the various
elements — for example, to compare the results of the open consultation questionnaire with the more
representative random sample household survey, while also comparing the quantitative outcomes
generally with the qualitative deliberative forums, focus groups and depth-interviews, on the one hand,
and the public meetings, submissions and petitions, on the other. To facilitate such comparisons, in the full
report (as distinct from the executive summary) ORS has reported the different consultation elements
separately, while having regard to important common themes and differences, and (where possible)
highlighting relevant assumptions or beliefs that influence people’s views.

Interpreting the outcomes of the consultation is neither straightforward nor just a ‘technical’ matter (as, for
example, assessing survey error margins is a technical issue). For there is no unambiguous calculus through
which the different elements of the consultation listed above can be ‘reduced’ or ‘condensed’ into a single
homogeneous ‘output’ or ‘finding’. For example, qualitative and quantitative data cannot be simply
combined — for the different methodologies have to be respected and recognised in any proper report; and
likewise, submissions, petitions and deliberative events are different in kind and cannot be simply
summated. In fact, these different outputs are incommensurable (not comparable) and their differences of
kind need to be recognised.

ORS attaches particular weight to findings that are representative of the general population (the household
survey) and/or deliberative (based upon thoughtful reflective discussion in non-emotive forums and focus
groups) and/or based on professional expertise (staff focus groups, interviews with doctors, and some
important stakeholder submissions); but, of course, all the other consultation elements have to be
recognised and interpreted as well.

While ORS makes the above judgements, the process of weighing up, and taking into account, the
outcomes of different kinds of consultation is not capable of ‘objective proof’, but requires professional and
political judgements. Ultimately, an overall interpretation of the consultation will depend upon the
executive and non-executive members of the Health Board itself: they will consider all elements and
determine which seem the most telling — above all, by considering the relative merits of the various
opinions as the basis for public policy.

The Board consults the public and stakeholders because it is accountable — but in this context
accountability means giving an account of its ideas and then taking into account public and stakeholder
views: it does not mean that the opinions of the largest majority should automatically decide public policy.
After all, consultations are not referenda: they should inform, but not displace, professional and political

Tudalen 97



1.10

judgements, which (above all) should assess the cogency of the views expressed. Influencing public policy
through consultation is not primarily a ‘numbers game’ or ‘popularity contest’ in which the loudest voices
or greatest numbers automatically win the argument; it is more a matter of informing authorities about
things they might have overlooked or contributing to the re-evaluation of things already known. Popularity
does not itself mean that proposals are feasible, safe, sustainable, reasonable and value for money — and
unpopularity does not mean the reverse. The allegedly Confucian aphorism, When all applaud: verify; when
all condemn: verify! summarises the approach the Board will no doubt wish to take.

In the report that follows, the results of each consultation method are reported in separate chapters.
Whereas the earlier summary report reaches overall conclusions quickly, the full report traverses public,
professional and stakeholder opinions and feelings in detail — because the journey is necessary for those
wishing to understand views about current and future healthcare services in Hywel Dda.

Tudalerr 98



21

2.2

23

24

2. Quantitative Findings:
Household Survey and
Open Questionnaire Compared

Overview

The Consultation

As part of the Your Health Your Future consultation, Hywel Dda Health Board (HDdHB) produced a
consultation document about their proposed changes which was made available to residents and
organisations on request. A shorter summary version of this document was also produced.

To gather feedback about the proposed changes, a consultation questionnaire was developed by ORS
working in partnership with the Health Board. The questionnaire included questions on the following key
topics:

Community services and primary care
— Community hospitals

— Minor injuries units

Hospital services

— Women and children services

— Emergency Care

— Planned Care

Given the complexity of some of the Health Board’s proposals, the questionnaire development was very
careful and conscientious. This process sought to ensure that the questions asked were clear and
unambiguous and that respondents were given the necessary information to give an informed response. In
particular, a programme of cognitive testing was undertaken to evaluate draft questionnaires, which
provided detailed feedback that informed the final version.

The consultation questionnaire was available on request, and the questionnaire was also typically enclosed
with the consultation document. It was also available to be completed online. Feedback from respondents
that completed these questionnaires is reported in this chapter as results to the “Open Questionnaire”. The
guestionnaire was also distributed with a summary of the Health Board’s proposals to 5,000 addresses that
were selected at random from across the Health Board area. This sample survey ensured that residents less
likely to be engaged with the wider consultation were included and encouraged to give their views about
the proposals. The results from this survey are reported separately in this chapter as the “Household
Survey”.

Tudalen 99



25

26

2.7

28

29

2.10

212

213

Open Questionnaire

The open questionnaire was available online throughout the consultation period, from 6 August 2012 until
29 October 2012.

HDdHB published an online resource centre on their website www.hywelddahb.wales.nhs.uk/consultation

and this was launched through a press release issued on 6 August 2012. The link to the online resource
centre was publicised throughout the consultation period on the HDdHB website and on numerous other
websites, as well as being widely promoted through the local press.

Paper copies of the questionnaire were available from libraries and GP surgeries across the area, and
HDdHB also provided paper copies to residents on request. Completed paper questionnaires were returned
directly by post to ORS, and all questionnaires received by 31 October 2012 were included in the analysis.

Questionnaire Responses

A total of 1,120 questionnaires were completed online and 3,302 paper questionnaires were returned —
yielding a total sample of 4,422 completed questionnaire.

It is important that consultation questionnaires are open and accessible to all, while being alert to the
possibility of multiple completions (by the same people) distorting the analysis. Therefore, while making it
easy to complete the survey online, ORS monitors the IP addresses through which surveys are completed.
On this occasion, the monitoring showed that there were 5 IP addresses which each generated more than
one response.

A total of 225 completed questionnaires were submitted from one IP registered to the Welsh Assembly
Government, which we understand to be associated with the wales.nhs.uk domain. As a major employer, it
is not surprising that many submissions originated from the NHS Wales network. These responses provided
a range of different views and ORS therefore consider it appropriate that all of the submissions are
individually counted in our analysis.

The remaining 4 IPs generated a total of 35 completed questionnaires. After careful study of these
responses, in which we looked at cookies, date stamps as well as the nature of the answers; none were
considered to be identical responses or appeared to be attempting to skew the results, so (given that more
than one person at an IP address might want to complete the questionnaire) we have not excluded any
online submissions due to malicious intent.

The paper questionnaires were subject to similar scrutiny. 142 paper questionnaires were returned with
pre-printed answers (mainly disagreeing with the question statements and giving Withybush as the
preference for the Women and Children’s Services proposals) — although the personal profile questions
(including postcode) were completed individually. A further 5 paper questionnaires were returned with pre-
printed answers for the Emergency Care proposals and identical comments provided relating to concerns
about Bronglais Hospital.

Whilst these responses were clearly co-ordinated, they did appear to have been provided by individual
residents that subscribed to a common view. Given that the Open Questionnaire is intended to provide
everyone with the opportunity to share their views it is important to recognise that the results will not

' Due to local circumstances in Machynlleth at this time, surveys from there were accepted until 12 November 2012.

Tudalen2800



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

2.14

2.15

2.16

necessarily provide a representative cross-section of views; and as these questionnaires only constituted a
small minority of all responses received, they are unlikely to systematically distort the responses provided
by other respondents. In this context, ORS has decided that all of the paper questionnaires should be
included within the analysis.

Of the 4,422 responses received, a total of 164 responses were representing the views of organisations
with 4,134 individuals responses (124 respondents did not answer this question). This chapter considers all
responses collectively, but responses from groups have also been reported alongside other submissions.

Respondent Profile

Figure 1 shows the distribution of Open Questionnaire responses received for those questionnaires where a
postcode was provided. The map shows the number of questionnaires received in each area relative to the
number of usual residents aged 16+ identified by the UK Census of Population 2011.

It is clear that responses were generally higher in a number of locations — in particular the areas
surrounding Mynydd Mawr Hospital, Prince Philip Hospital, Tenby Cottage Hospital and Withybush
Hospital. Response rates were also generally higher in Pembrokeshire and the rural areas around Bronglais
Hospital (including from parts of Gwynedd and Powys).

Figure 1: Open Questionnaire responses per 1,000 residents aged 16+ by Lower Super Output Area (LSOA) — All individual
respondents that provided a postcode

Z 4 &
Responses per 1,000 population S 3 b s
(at LSOA using Census 2011) W g )&K ( 7 P
B 50 and Above Qe N 4
W 25t0 50 i é
@ 15to0 25 |
[ 5to15 E

[] Above 0to 5

AN

b

'GIéngwili

5 5
(

£

Hospital

Tudalen 101



2.17

218

2.19

2.20

Household Survey

Questionnaires for the Household survey were distributed in the week commencing 17 September 2012 to
5,000 addresses that had been selected at random from across the Hywel Dda Health Board area. The
sample was selected from the Royal Mail Postcode Address File and was stratified by Local Authority area
(Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire) to ensure that the correct proportion of addresses was
sampled in each of the three counties.

Paper questionnaires that had been pre-printed with a unique reference number were distributed to every
selected address, together with a copy of the summary version of the Health Board’s consultation
document and a Freepost return envelope. Respondents were also able to participate online by using their
unique reference number.

Questionnaire Responses

Of the 5,000 questionnaires that were distributed, a total of 697 were completed and returned by the
survey closing date (8 October 2012), including 671 postal returns and 26 questionnaires completed online.
A further 36 questionnaires were returned by the Royal Mail as having failed addresses, thereby reducing
the effective sample to 4,964 and yielding a 14% response rate.

Figure 2 shows the distribution of the completed questionnaires. It is clear that responses have been
received from across all of the Health Board area.

AN T P T
»‘ % .N” "‘n g i 2N
e U 338 Mynydd Mawr.
.‘ By P’Iospltal *
: ,?o % ‘;- -0
Tenby Cottage g oay,

o o Prince Philip*

Tudalen2802



Respondent Profile

221 The extent to which results can be generalised from a sample depends on how well the sample represents
the population from which it is drawn. Although a random sample of addresses was selected, different
types of people in different places may have been more or less likely to take part. This is known as response
bias, and can be corrected for through a process of statistical weighting.

222 |t is also necessary to compensate for a bias introduced by sample design. Whilst the survey is
representative of all residents aged 16+, the sample involved randomly selected addresses — so people
living in larger households had less chance to take part than single people living on their own. For example,
a single person household has the same chance of being selected as a couple household (as both have one
address on the Postal Address File) — but in the couple household, each person only has a 1-in-2 chance to
participate. Statistical weights are therefore also derived to compensate for this.

23 For the household survey, the survey data was weighted by the number of people aged 16+ in the
household (to compensate for sample design); and subsequently weighted by age, gender and local

authority area (to compensate for response bias).

Characteristic Unweighted Unweighted Weighted Resident
Count Valid % Valid % Population %
BY AGE
Under 35 47 7% 22% 26%
35-44 61 9% 13% 14%
45-54 103 15% 16% 17%
55-64 140 21% 19% 17%
65-74 201 30% 16% 14%
75+ 116 17% 15% 12%
Total valid responses 668 100% 100% 100%
Not known 29 - - -
BY GENDER
Male 248 38% 48% 48%
Female 413 62% 52% 52%
Total valid responses 661 100% 100% 100%
Not Known 36 - - -
BY LOCAL AUTHORITY AREA
Carmarthenshire 324 47% 48% 48%
Ceredigion 118 17% 20% 20%
Pembrokeshire 254 36% 32% 32%
Total valid responses 696 100% 100% 100%
Not Known 1 - - -

Tudalen 103



224

2.26

227

228

Following the weighting process, survey results based on the weighted data will be broadly representative
of the entire population across the Hywel Dda Health Board area. After taking account of the weighting
process and sample design effect, we can be 95% confident that the household survey results will be within
15% points of the views of the population that the sample represents. Therefore, if everyone in the
population had given their views, then 19-times-out-of-20 the results would be within 5% points of the
survey estimate.

Given this context, when the report refers to results based on the weighted data the results are given as
the proportion of “residents”. Any results based on unweighted data (including the results from the Open
Questionnaire) refer specifically to the proportion of “respondents”.

Questionnaire Profiling Information

Figure 4 to Figure 7 compare the profile for the household survey with respondents from the Open
Questionnaire.

Whilst the household survey is broadly in line with the resident population in terms of age and local
authority area, it is apparent that the Open Questionnaire has a proportionately higher response from
respondents aged 55 or over and, as previously noted, those living in Pembrokeshire.

Given that the household survey is broadly representative whereas the Open Questionnaire is not
representative of the resident population, more emphasis should typically be placed on the household
survey for those questions where the two results significantly differ.

Tudalen3t04



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Figure 4: Response by Age. Comparison between household survey, open questionnaire and general population

m Resident Population » Household survey ® Open questionnaire

30% - 28

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%
Under 35 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+

Figure 5: Comparison of socio-demographic characteristics for the Household Survey and Open Questionnaire (Note: Figures based
on valid responses. Figures may not sum due to rounding)

Household Survey Open
(weighted) Questionnaire

Characteristic

BY GENDER
Male 48% 39%
Female 52% 61%
BY EMPLOYMENT STATUS
Working full-time 41% -
Working part-time 16% -
Not working 43% -
BY NHS EMPLOYEE
NHS employee 10% 9%
Not an NHS employee 90% 91%
BY LIMITING LONG-TERM ILLNESS OR DISABILITY
Limited a lot 13% 13%
Limited a little 17% 21%
No limiting long-term illness/disability 71% 66%
BY CARER STATUS
Carer 11% -
Not a carer 89% -
BY HOUSEHOLD TYPE
With children 53% -
Without children 47% -

Tudalen 105



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Figure 6:

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

Figure 7:

Response by Local Authority. Comparison between household survey, open questionnaire and general population

m Resident Population m Household survey ~ m Open questionnaire

54%
48%  48%

32%  32%

20%  20%

Carmarthenshire Ceredigion Pembrokeshire

Comparison of location characteristics for the Household Survey and Open Questionnaire (Note: Figures based on valid

responses where a postcode was provided. Figures may not sum due to rounding)

Characteristic Househ'old Survey OPen :
(weighted) Questionnaire
BY URBAN/RURAL
Urban 30% 28%
Rural 70% 72%
BY NEAREST DISTICT GENERAL HOSPITAL
Bronglais Hospital 14% 11%
Glangwili Hospital 22% 7%
Prince Philip Hospital 33% 31%
Withybush Hospital 31% 50%
BY DISTANCE TO NEAREST DISTICT GENERAL HOSPITAL
Less than 5km 28% 25%
5km but less than 10km 15% 12%
10km but less than 20km 35% 32%
20km but less than 50km 22% 32%
BY DISTANCE TO NEAREST LOCAL HOSPITAL
Bronglais Hospital 14% 11%
Glangwili Hospital 18% 5%
Mynydd Mawr Hospital 15% 12%
Prince Philip Hospital 22% 20%
South Pembrokeshire Hospital 11% 11%
Tenby Hospital 7% 24%
Withybush Hospital 13% 16%
BY DISTANCE TO NEAREST LOCAL HOSPITAL
Less than 5km 42% 55%
5km but less than 10km 26% 23%
10km but less than 20km 15% 9%
20km but less than 50km 17% 12%

Tudalen3t06



2.29

2.30

232

233

234

Interpretation of the Data
The results for the household survey and open questionnaire are presented in a largely graphical format.

Graphics are used extensively in this report to make it as user friendly as possible. The pie charts and other
graphics show the proportions (percentages) of respondents making relevant responses. Where possible,
the colours of the charts have been standardised with a ‘traffic light’ system in which:

» Green shades represent positive responses

» Beige and purple/blue shades represent neither positive nor negative responses

» Red shades represent negative responses

» The bolder shades are used to highlight responses at the ‘extremes’, for example, very

satisfied or very dissatisfied.

Where percentages do not sum to 100, this may be due to computer rounding, the exclusion of “don’t
know” categories, or multiple answers. Throughout the volume an asterisk (*) denotes any value less than
half of one per cent. In some cases figures of 2% or below have been excluded from graphs.

When considering responses between different groups within the population, differences have been
analysed using appropriate statistical means to check for statistical significance (i.e. not happened ‘by
chance’). Differences that are not said to be ‘significant’ or ‘statistically significant’ are indicative only.
Statistical significance is at a 95% level of confidence.

Summary of Key Findings

The following section summarises the questionnaire results

Community Services and Primary Care: Community Hospitals

The following summary table shows significant levels of disagreement with the proposals for Community

Hospitals and Minor Injury Units, with higher levels of disagreement in the Open questionnaire.

COMMUNITY HOSPITALS MINOR INJURY UNITS

To transfer the minor

Household
Survey

Open
Questionnaire

To close Mynydd Mawr
Hospital in Tumble (near
Llanelli) and provide the
services currently
delivered from there in
other ways?

26% 15%

Agree Neither

59%

Disagree

48% answered the question

15% 11% 75%

Agree Neither Disagree

53% answered the question

To transfer the minor
injuries service at Tenby
Hospital to local GP
surgeries and redeploy the
Nurse Practitioners that
currently work there?

25% 15% 59%

Agree Neither Disagree

58% answered the question

14% 5% 80%

Agree Neither Disagree

68% answered the question

injuries service at South
Pembrokeshire Hospital to
local GP surgeries and
redeploy the Nurse
Practitioners that
currently work there?

28% 15% 57%

Agree Neither Disagree

59% answered the question

16% 6% 78%

Agree Neither Disagree

66% answered the question

Tugtalen 107



Women and Children Services

235 |n general, the results for the Household survey show that Glangwili Hospital is the preferred location for
Women and Children’s Services. However, respondents to the Open questionnaire favour Withybush
Hospital.

Paediatric High Dependency

. . Inpatient paediatric services in
Unit, Level 2 Neonatal Unit P P

and Complex Obstetric Unit UIOETT
Household 72% 28% 71% 29%
Survey Glangwili Withybush | Glangwili Withybush
76% answered the question 79% answered the question
o 45% 55% 45% 55%
Questionnaire  Glangwili | Withybush  Glangwili = Withybush
73% answered the question 75% answered the question

Emergency Care

23 \When asked to indicate their preference for Emergency Services in Hywel Dda, respondents show
overwhelming support for Option B.

Preference for Emergency Services

1St an 3rd
Household survey B A Other
85% ranked 1st 10% ranked 1st 5% ranked 1st
Open consultation B Other A
questionnaire
78% ranked 1st 17% ranked 1st 6% ranked 1st

Planned Care

237 When asked to indicate their preferred location for an Orthopaedic Centre in the south, respondents to the
Household survey indicate a preference for Prince Philip Hospital, whereas respondents to the Open
guestionnaire show a preference for Withybush Hospital.

Preference for Orthopaedic centre in the south

62% Prince Philip 38% Withybush

80% of respondents answered the question

Household survey

Open consultation 42% Prince Phlllp 58% WithYbUSh

questionnaire
78% of respondents answered the question

Tudalen3208



Quantitative Results

Community Hospitals — Mynydd Mawr

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to close Mynydd Mawr Hospital in
Tumble (near Llanelli) and provide the services currently delivered from there in other ways?

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

Strongly agree Strongly agree
11_% 6% Tend to agree
: d 9%

Tend to agree
15%

Strongly disagree

Neither agree nor disagree
40% ~

11%

Strongly disagree

. -
61% Tend to disagree

13%

Neither agree nor disagree
15%

e
Tend to disagree
19%

238 The Consultation Questionnaire shows significant levels of disagreement with the proposals to close
Mynydd Mawr Hospital and provide the services currently delivered from there in other ways.

239 Disagreement is strongest in the Open questionnaire, where three quarters (75%) of respondents disagree
with the proposal, including 62% that strongly disagree. The Household survey shows that three fifths
(59%) of residents disagree with the proposal, including 40% that strongly disagree.

240 \When we consider the responses in terms of residents’ distance from Mynydd Mawr Hospital, the
Household survey shows little difference in levels of agreement and disagreement, but those respondents
to the Open questionnaire living closest to the hospital show much higher levels of disagreement than

those who live further away.

Tugbalen 109



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Figure 9: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Mynydd Mawr Hospital by distance from Mynydd Mawr Hospital.
Base: All respondents (Number of respondents shown in brackets)

Household Survey

Under 10km (96) 20
10-20km (104) ‘ 10
20-50km (63) 17 ‘
Over 50km (73) 1’5
0% 2(}'% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Open Questionnaire

Less than 5 km (263)
5-10 km (340)

10-20 km (474)
20-50 km (361)

Over 50km (484)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree nor disagree
» Tend to disagree m Strongly disagree

241 The following chart shows how the responses vary across different sub-groups of the population who
stated they agree with this proposal. Results for sub-groups which are significantly more likely than the
overall score are highlighted in green, whilst results which are significantly less likely are highlighted in red.

Tudalen3t10



Opinion Research Services

Hywel Dda Health Board

December 2012

Figure 10: To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to close Mynydd Mawr Hospital in Tumble and provide the

services currently delivered from there in other ways? Demographic sub-group analysis. Base: All Respondents (number of

respondents shown in brackets).

Open Questionnaire

Overall (2356)] 15
16 to 24 (111) |8 )
35 to 44 (197)] 21 *»
Male (839) 18 +3
Limited alot by LLTI (301)] 9 b |
Not limited by LLTI (1365) | 18 +3
NHS Employee (250) 32 +18
Ceredigion (130) | 35 +21
Rural (1218) 17 +3
Nearest Local Hospital: Bronglais (123)] 26 +11
Glangwili (117)] 45 +31
Mynydd Mawr (412)] 8 =6
Prince Philip (631)] 11 =
South Pembrokeshire (155) 21 +7
Withibush (213)’ 21 +7
Mynydd Mawr Hospital: Less than 5 km (263) ()
20 to 50 km (361)] 20 +5
More than 50 km (484) 22 +8
0% 20% 40% 60%
% of respondents who agree

Significantly above average
Not significantly different from average

 Significantly below average
No significance test performed (not enough cases)

Minor Injuries Services — Tenby Hospital

Figure 11: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Minor Injury Services at Tenby Hospital

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to transfer the minor injuries service at
Tenby Hospital to local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse Practitioners that currently work there?

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

Strongly agree

9% Strongly agree
f ¢ 4% Tend to agree
|
Tend to agree , 10%. i
17% Neither agree nor disagree
Strongly disagree - _ 5%
39%
Tend to disagree
Strongly disagree - 19%

Neither agree nor disagree 62%

15%

i
Tend to disagree
20%

Base: All Respondents (402) Base: All respondents (3,025)

Tugfalen 111



242 The Consultation Questionnaire also shows significant levels of disagreement with the proposals to transfer
the minor injuries services at Tenby Hospital to local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse Practitioners that
currently work there.

243 Once again, disagreement is strongest in the Open questionnaire, where four fifths (80%) of respondents
disagree with the proposal, including 62% that strongly disagree. The Household survey shows that three
fifths (59%) of residents disagree with the proposal, including 39% that strongly disagree.

244 \When we consider the responses in terms of residents’ distance from Tenby Hospital, both the Household
survey and the Open questionnaire show that those respondents who live closest to the hospital indicate
much higher levels of disagreement than those who live further away.

Household Survey

Under 15km (70) 19 9
15-30km (99) 12 5| 23
30-50km (178) 17|
Over 50km (54) | 23
0% 2{;% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Open Questionnaire

Less than 5 km (616) 3

5-10 km (190) 6 2

10-20 km (314) 9 4 | 22

20-30 km (384) 13 7 35 )

30-50 km (779) 12 8 21

Over 50km (208) 25 b 19
| | | |
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree m Strongly disagree

245 The following chart shows how the responses vary across different sub-groups of the population who
stated they agree with this proposal. Results for sub-groups which are significantly more likely than the
overall score are highlighted in green, whilst results which are significantly less likely are highlighted in red.

Tudalen3$12



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Figure 13: To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to transfer the minor injuries service at Tenby Hospital to
local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse Practitioners that currently work there? Demographic sub-group analysis. Base: All
respondents (number of respondents in brackets)

Open Questionnaire

Overall (3025)] 14
Limited a lot by long-term illness or disability (356) 10 = )
NHS Employee (315) 24 +10
Carmarthenshire (662) 18 +4
Ceredigion (145) | 36 +21
Pembrokeshire (1658) | 11 =
Nearest Local Hospital: Bronglais (135) 32 +17
Glangwili (121)’ a4 +29
Mynydd Mawr (188)| 22 +7
Prince Philip (405)| 11 =il
Tenby (865)] 8 > |
Tenby Hospital: Less than 5 km (616)| 6 e ]
5to10km (190)] 9 I=E
More than 50 km (208) 34 +19
0% 20% 40% 60%
% of respondents who agree
Significantly above average » Significantly below average
Not significantly different from average No significance test performed (not enough cases)

Minor Injuries Services — South Pembrokeshire Hospital

Figure 14: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Minor Injury Services at South Pembrokeshire Hospital

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to transfer the minor injuries service at
South Pembrokeshire Hospital to local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse Practitioners that
currently work there?

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

Strongly agree Strongly agree

3?{’ 5%

Tend to agree
11%

|

Tend to agree /

20%

Neither agree nor disagree
Y 6%

Strongly disagree
38% y

Strongly disagree_

58% 4
Tend to disagree
Neither agree nor disagree 20%
15%
i
Tend to disagree
19%
Base: All Respondents (412) Base: All respondents (2,940)
59% of respondents answered the question 66% of respondents answered the question

Tugdalen 113



246 The Consultation Questionnaire also shows significant levels of disagreement with the proposals to transfer
the minor injuries services at South Pembrokeshire Hospital to local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse
Practitioners that currently work there.

247 Once again, disagreement is strongest in the open questionnaire, where four fifths (78%) of respondents
disagree with the proposal, including 58% that strongly disagree. The household survey shows that three
fifths (57%) of residents disagree with the proposal, including 38% that strongly disagree.

248 \When we consider the responses in terms of residents’ distance from South Pembrokeshire Hospital, both
the household survey and the open questionnaire show that respondents who live closest to the hospital
indicate much higher levels of disagreement than those who live further away.

Household Survey

Under 10km (74) 14 4 17
10-20km (80) 21 7
20-50km (96) 25
Over 50km (161) 19
|
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
Open Questionnaire
\ \ | |
Less than 5 km (215) 10 4 16
5-10 km (212) 12 5 20
10-20 km (948) 6 3 20
20-30 km (163) 12 9 - 30
30-50 km (223) 18 8 : S
Over 50km (687) 15 8 i
| | | |
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m Strongly agree Tend to agree Neither agree nor disagree
Tend to disagree m Strongly disagree

249 The following chart shows how the responses vary across different sub-groups of the population who
stated they agree with this proposal. Results for sub-groups which are significantly more likely than the
overall score are highlighted in green, whilst results which are significantly less likely are highlighted in red.

Tudalen414



Open Questionnaire

Overall (2940) 16

NHS Employee (308) | 24 +8

Carmarthenshire (658) 23 +7
Ceredigion (145)] B4 +18

Pembrokeshire (1599) 12 -4
Nearest Local Hospital: Bronglais (132) 3p +16
Glangwili (122) 44 +28
Mynydd Mawr (182) 38 +22

Prince Philip (402)] 11 4

Tenby (751)] 8 -8

South Pembrokeshire Hospital: 10 to 20 km (948)_ 9 7
30 to 50 km (223) | 27 +11

More than 50 km (687) | 24 +8

0% 20% 40% 60%
% of respondents who agree
Significantly above average Significantly below average
Not significantly different from average No significance test performed (not enough cases)

Community Services and Primary Care: Further Comments

250 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the community
services and primary care proposals. Around a fifth (19%) of household survey residents made any further
comments, in comparison to more than a third (36%) of open questionnaire respondents.

Tudalen 115



251 The table below shows the top main comments that were made by both sets of respondents.

Number of Responses

Household Open

Main further comments . .
Survey Questionnaire

(134) (1579)

Closing services and redirecting to a GP would mean GPs won't be able to

cope with the increased demand . -
Minor Injury Units are critical, in particular in terms of Pembrokeshire and

. . . 27 172
Tenby, as more cover is needed during the tourist season
Alternative services should be tested and must have enough resources
before any changes are made. In particular, GPs need to:
Be more acce55|bI.e 24 220
Have longer opening hours/days
Have extra staff and equipment
Have more skills for minor injuries
Concerns around transport and availability for local people 15 217
Concerns about how the proposed changes will affect the elderly in terms of ; 85

travel

252 The table below shows a summary of the different groups of respondents who are significantly more or
likely to have made the following further comments about.

Groups significantly MORE likely than average to give comment

Main further comments

Household Survey Open Questionnaire
Nearest local hospital is South Nearest local hospitals are South
Pembrokeshire Pembrokeshire & Tenby
Closing services and redirecting to a
, Under 10 km from South Less than 5km and 10-20 km from
GP would mean GPs won't be able brokeshi ol h brokeshi tal
to cope with the increased demand Pembrokeshire Hospita South Pembrokeshire Hospita
Under 15 km from Tenby Hospital Less than 5km and 10-20 km from

Tenby Hospital

Minor Injury Units are critical, in Nearest local hospitals are South Nearest local hospital is Tenby

particular in terms of Pembrokeshire | pembrokeshire & Withybush 10-20 km from South

and. U119, 5 rT\ore coveris needed |y, qer 10km — 20 km from South Pembrokeshire Hospital

S e e Pembrokeshire Hospital Less than 5km and 10-20 km from
15-30 km from Tenby Hospital Tenby Hospital

Tudalen4116



Groups significantly MORE likely than average to give comment
Main further comments

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

Alternative services should be tested
and must have enough resources
before any changes are made. In
particular, GPs need to:

Be more accessible

Have longer opening hours/days
Have extra staff and equipment
Have more skills for minor injuries

Concerns around transport and 10-20 km from South Nearest local hospitals are South
availability for local people Pembrokeshire Hospital Pembrokeshire & Tenby

Less than 5km - 20 km from
Pembrokeshire Hospital
20-30 km from Tenby Hospital

Concerns about how the proposed Nearest local hospital is Mynydd
changes will affect the elderly in Mawr

terms of travel Less than 5 km from Mynydd Mawr

Hospital

253 The table below shows other comments which were mainly made by open questionnaire respondents, but
by very few household survey residents.

Number of Responses Open Questionnaire:

Further comments mainly made by . .
Open Questionnaire respondents Household Open Groups significantly MORE likely
Survey Questionnaire than average to give comment
Changes should not be made without
consultation with medical staff/GPs

Nearest local hospitals are South
Pembrokeshire & Withybush

Less than 5km - 30 km from
209 Pembrokeshire Hospital
10-30 km from Tenby Hospital

More than 50km from Mynydd
Mawr Hospital

w I

Tenby has received a lot of Nearest local hospital is Tenby
investment, so why transfer services? Less than 5km and 10-20 km from
2 72 South Pembrokeshire Hospital
Less than 5km — 10km from Tenby
Hospital
The proposals will have a negative 5 35 More than 50 km from Mynydd
impact on rural areas Mawr Hospital

Tugtalen 117



Number of Responses Open Questionnaire:

Further comments mainly made by . . .
Open Questionnaire respondents Household Open Groups significantly MORE likely
Survey Questionnaire than average to give comment

Hospitals / health service is already
struggling and the proposals will make 6 33 -
the service worse

Standard of care needs to be increased Nearest local hospital is Bronglais
in the community before services 1 35 More than 50 km from Tenby
moved from the hospital Hospital

Women and Children Services

Hywel Dda Health Board proposes to develop a Paediatric High Dependency Unit and a Level 2
Neonatal Unit (a unit that offers specialist care to sick babies) to provide a comprehensive higher
level sick children’s service for the first time within the Health Board.

For pregnancies where a risk has been identified for either mother or baby, we are proposing that
care will be consultant-led in a new Complex Obstetric Unit, which would be co-located with the
Level 2 Neonatal Unit.

There are two options for this — either Glangwili Hospital or Withybush Hospital.
Hywel Dda Health Board is proposing GLANGWILI HOSPITAL.

Please indicate where you would prefer the Paediatric High Dependency Unit, Level 2 Neonatal Unit
and Complex Obstetric Unit to be located.

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL
Haverfordwest
28%

GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
Carmarthen
WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL 45%
Haverfordwest

55%

“GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
Carmarthen
72%

Tudalen4218



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

254 The household survey shows that the majority of residents (72%) would prefer Women and Children’s
Services to be located at Glangwili Hospital. Conversely, the majority of respondents to the Open
Questionnaire (55%) would prefer these services to be located at Withybush Hospital. The main reason for
the difference is the disproportionately high number of responses to the open questionnaire from residents
whose nearest District General Hospital is Withybush.

255 \When we consider the geographic spread of response preferences (Figure 21), it is evident that residents
whose nearest district general hospitals are Bronglais, Glangwili and Prince Philip show much more support
for services to be located at Glangwili Hospital, while those who live closer to Withybush Hospital would
prefer services to be located there.

256 The subsequent charts (Figure 22) show that this is consistent for both the household survey and open
questionnaire.

Figure 21: hresponses mapped by area, with shaded zones depicting 5km, 10km, 20km and 50km from named General Hospital —
All individual respondents that provided a postcode

I Glangwili

. Withybush

Aberystwyth
I4 (Bronglais)

Aberaeron

Lampeter

Fishguard L d.
Carmatrthen e,
’ (Glangwili)

Haverfordwest
{Withybush)

: Llanelli
Q' (Prince Philip)
& 7o \‘9

Pembroke

(Morriston)

NZW& nsea\

Tu#balen 119



257 The following graphs show a breakdown of responses by residents’ nearest general hospital.

Household Survey

Overall (530)

Bronglais (51)

Glangwili (122)

Prince Philip Hospital (159)

Withybush (198)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Open Questionnaire

Overall (3239)
Bronglais (187)
Glangwili (205)
Prince Philip Hospital (749)

Withybush (1567)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m GLANGWILI HOSPITAL Carmarthen WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL Haverfordwest

There is a possibility that we may not be able to recruit sufficient Doctors to the service even if one
of the above options was adopted. This would affect our ability to deliver inpatient paediatric

services across the three sites.

If this was the case, we might need to consider an alternative option where inpatient paediatric
services are delivered on two sites only — Bronglais Hospital in the north and either Glangwili
Hospital or Withybush Hospital in the south. This option would be a very last resort if emergency
transport solutions were in place and our clinicians were satisfied it was safe to implement.

In such circumstances, Hywel Dda Health Board would propose GLANGWILI HOSPITAL.

If it was only possible to provide inpatient paediatric services at Bronglais Hospital in the north and
one hospital in the south, please indicate the hospital where you would prefer services to be

provided in the south.

Tudalen4820



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Household Survey Open Questionnaire
WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL
Haverfordwest
29%
GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
- Carmarthen
WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL 45%
Haverfordwest -
55%
“GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
Carmarthen
71%
Base: All Respondents (548) Base: All respondents (3,294)
79% of respondents answered the question 75% of respondents answered the question

258 Figure 24 shows how the results for the household survey vary by area.

Figure 24: Household Survey responses mapped by area, with shaded zones depicting 5km, 10km, 20km and 50km from named
General Hospital — All individual respondents that provided a postcode

[ Glangwil
[l Withybush

Abe h
r (Brmg_‘lais

Aberaeron

Llandovery
(Glangwili)

Fishguard

Haverfordwest
(Withybush)

Qg  Llanellip
- .

(P.rince.lF)_ ilip)

i
(Morriston)

LN

Tudtalen 121



259 Once again, residents whose nearest district general hospitals are Bronglais, Glangwili and Prince Philip
show much more support for it to be located at Glangwili Hospital, while those who live closer to
Withybush would prefer the Unit to be located there.

260 This result is consistent for the household survey and open questionnaire.

Household Survey

Overall (548)

Bronglais (46)

Glangwili (133)

Prince Philip Hospital (166)

Withybush (203)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Open Questionnaire

Overall (3294)
Bronglais (195)
Glangwili (212)
Prince Philip Hospital (758)

Withybush (1585)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m GLANGWILI HOSPITAL Carmarthen WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL Haverfordwest

261 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the women and
children services proposals. More than 1 in 10 (13%) household survey residents made any further
comments, in comparison to 3 in 10 (30%) of open questionnaire respondents.

262 The table below shows the top main comments that were made by both sets of respondents.

263 Both sets of residents/respondents who said that their preferred choice is Withybush Hospital for both the
Level 2 Neonatal Unit and inpatient paediatric services are significantly more likely to have concerns about
the negative impact on families/visiting and women, mothers and babies.

264 |t is also worth noting that a small proportion (35) of open questionnaire residents mentioned concerns
that the ambulance service will not be able to cope with the neonatal transfers / lack of skills of ambulance;
again, residents who would prefer Withybush Hospital to be the location for both the Level 2 Neonatal Unit
and inpatient paediatric services are significantly more likely to feel this way.

Tudalen4822



Number of Responses

Main further comments Household Ly
Survey Questionnaire
(85) (1,325)

Support for Withybush

. ) . 23 181
Glangwili too far for people in West Wales / Pembrokeshire to travel
Support for Glangwili

- . . 14 64
Glangwili provides excellent services and central
General
Concerns about negative impacts on families/visiting

- Poor road network and public transport 14 352

- Distance, cost of travelling and stress

- Services need to be local
Withybush Support
It is not beneficial to locate neonatal unit in Glangwili because they are close 9 281
to Swansea/Cardiff
Withybush Support
Keep Special Care Baby Unit / current level of services at Withybush/ there 8 195
are already excellent services already provided at Withybush Hospital
General
There will be a negative impact on women, mothers and babies. Some 3 109
respondents feel that the proposed changes will cause a higher number of
deaths to mothers and babies
Reopen neonatal unit / maternity ward at Prince Philip Hospital/ Centralise 5 147
according to area with greater population
Have SCBU in Bronglais 6 124

Tu#dalen 123



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

2.65

Emergency Care

Figure 27: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Emergency Care

Option A Emergency services centralised at Glangwili  Prince Philip Hospital (Llanelli) to only
Hospital (Carmarthen) with more limited provide a nurse-led Local Accident Centre
emergency services provided at Bronglais for minor accidents
Hospital (Aberystwyth) and Withybush
Hospital (Haverfordwest)

Option B NO CHANGE to the existing emergency Prince Philip Hospital (Llanelli) to have an
services provided at Bronglais Hospital emergency medical admission unit and also
(Aberystwyth), Glangwili Hospital provide a nurse-led Local Accident Centre
(Carmarthen) and Withybush Hospital for minor accidents
(Haverfordwest)

Ad(dition of Clinical Decisions Units at
Bronglais Hospital and Glangwili Hospital
once construction work has been
completed
Household Survey Open Questionnaire
Option A .
Another alternative 10% Another alternative on;n ”
5% / 17% |
Option B Option B
85% 78%
Base: All Respondents (662) Base: All respondents (3,917)

95% of respondents answered the question

89% of respondents answered the question

The Consultation Questionnaire shows overwhelming support for Option B across the Health Board area —

but there are some significant local differences as shown on the following maps (Figure 28). In particular,
respondents whose nearest hospital is Prince Philip tend to support “Another alternative”, especially in
responses to the Open Questionnaire. Further details about the alternatives proposed are provided in

Figure 30.

Tudalens®24



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board

December 2012

Figure 28: Household Survey and Open Questionnaire responses mapped by area, with shaded zones depicting 5km, 10km, 20km

and 50km from named General Hospital — All individual respondents that provided a postcode

[] option A
[ option B
B Alternative Option

Household Survey

Aberaeron

L]
S Llandovery

Haverfordwest
(Withybush)

Open Questionnaire

L4
Llandovery

Tudalen 125



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

266 The following graphs show a breakdown of responses by residents’ nearest general hospital.

Figure 29: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Emergency Care by nearest District General Hospital. Base: All
respondents (Number of respondents shown in brackets)

Household Survey
Overa(62) [N 50 S S e s
Bronglais (76) | I e

Glangwili (154)

prine it (151 S A S

Withybush (240)

m Option A w Option B Another alternative

Open Questionnaire

overall (3517) [ I I I @

Bongai (405) 0 06 S 2

Glanguili (251) T T
prince Philp (917 [ I SO 55
wiyoush (1726) N I S
| | 1 |
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
m Option A w Option B Another alternative

Tudalenst26



Opinion Research Services

Hywel Dda Health Board

December 2012

below.

267 Respondents were also asked to give reasons for their preference(s), which are summarised in the table

Figure 30: Please indicate your preference for Emergency Services, with 1 being your first preference, and 2 and 3 being your
second and third choices, if appropriate. Summary of reasons given for choices. Base: All respondents who gave a reason for their

choice (2,886

)
6% support OPTION A 78% support OPTION B 17% support another option

Centralisation better

Concern with distance to

Keep status quo at Prince

than spreading out 21% travel — emergency Philip 55%
services should be kept

This option affects me local 46% Prince Philip should have

least 14% full A&E services restored 37%
Keep status quo at

Concern with distance to Withybush 26% Emergency services in

travel — emergency Llanelli should reflect the

services should be kept Keep status quo at large population and high

local 14% Bronglais 25% risk heavy industry 32%
The option covers a wider Concern with distance to
geographic area and travel — emergency
serves more population services should be kept
centres 10% local 18%
GPs need to play more of
arole 10%

- L L e I o Y

IF'uuQueoelil Lo i

53



Planned Care

Hywel Dda Health Board proposes to develop an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for
patients living in Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire in either Prince Philip Hospital or
Withybush Hospital in the south.

Hywel Dda Health Board is proposing PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL.

Please indicate where you would prefer the Orthopaedic Centre to be located in the south.

Household Survey Open Questionnaire

WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL
Haverfordwest -
38%

PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL
~ Llanelli
42%

PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL
~ Llanelli Haverfordwest -
62% 58%

268 The Household Survey shows that the majority of residents (62%) would prefer Orthopaedic Centre of
Excellence to be located at Prince Philip Hospital. Conversely, the majority of respondents to the Open
Questionnaire (58%) would prefer these services to be located at Withybush Hospital. Once again, the main
reason for the difference is the disproportionately high number of responses to the Open Questionnaire
from residents whose nearest District General Hospital is Withybush.

269 When we consider the geographic spread of response preferences (Figure 32), it is evident that residents
whose nearest district general hospitals are Bronglais, Glangwili and Prince Philip show more support for
services to be located at Glangwili Hospital, while those who live closer to Withybush Hospital would prefer
services to be located there.

270 The subsequent charts (Figure 33) show that this is consistent for both the Household Survey and Open
Questionnaire.




Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Figure 32: Responses mapped by area, with shaded zones depicting 5km, 10km, 20km and 50km from named General Hospital -
All individual respondents that provided a postcode

. Prince Philip
. Withybush

Aberystwyth
f (Bronglais)

Aberaeron

Lampeter

Fishguard L d.
Carmatrthen e,
’ Glangwili)

Haverfordwest
{Withybush)

L Llanelli
(Prince Philip)
& : *
®

(Morriston)

o 1 1 4.0\

rTadalcri 4o
55



271 The following graphs show a breakdown of responses by residents’ nearest general hospital.

Household Survey

Overall (560)

Bronglais (24)

Glangwili (121)

Prince Philip Hospital (192)

Withybush (222)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL Llanelli WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL Haverfordwest

Open Questionnaire

Overall (3470)

Bronglais (91)

Glangwili (212)

Prince Philip Hospital (929)

Withybush (1712)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL Llanelli WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL Haverfordwest

272 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the proposals for
planned care. More than 1 in 10 (12%) household survey residents made any further comments, in
comparison to more than two fifths (42%) of open questionnaire respondents.

273 The table below shows the top main comments that were made by both sets of respondents. Open survey
respondents who chose Withybush Hospital as their preference are significantly more likely to have
concerns about distance to travel/transport for patients, visitors and the elderly.

274 |n addition, 108 open questionnaire respondents said that they wanted the unit to be centralised in
Bronglais.

L aYal

Q

AT 1Iov



Number of Responses

Household Open

Main further comments L .
Survey Questionnaire

(180) (1,838)

Concerns re distance to travel, public transport and road networks for

patients and visitors 18 (16) 227
Travel distance from Pembrokeshire too far if service is in Prince Philip

Hospital 18 (11) 170
Elderly will be negatively affected in terms of distance to travel 11 (15) 58
Support for Prince Philip Hospital due to higher population in Llanelli and 9 (23) 81
that an excellent service already provided there

Support for Withybush Hospital because there is an excellent service already 9 (26) 239

provided there

Equalities Issues, including Welsh Language

275 Respondents were asked if there were any potential human rights or Welsh language issues that they

consider to relevant in terms of the implementation of the proposals. More than 1 in 10 (12%) household

survey residents made any further comments, in comparison to less than two fifths (37%) of open

guestionnaire respondents. These mainly included:

»

»

Human Rights Issues
Availability of local health care is a human right
Changes will infringe human rights of people in the south/Pembrokeshire

Changes will infringe human rights of people in the north (Mid Wales), Aberystwyth and
Powys

Distances to travel
Welsh Language Issues

It is important that Welsh is used as much as possible/ all patient services need to be
bilingual

Changes should not be made on the basis of Welsh language - health is a top priority
Staff need to improve communication with the patient in general
Not enough medical staff speak welsh/recruit more Welsh speakers

Changes unfair on Welsh speakers




Further Comments

276 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments about any of the proposals mentioned
in the consultation questionnaire. Less than a fifth (17%) of household survey residents made any further
comments, in comparison to more than two fifths (42%) of open questionnaire respondents. These mainly

included:

Main comments made by both Household Survey and Open Questionnaire responses

»

»

»

»

»

Concerns with distance to travel and that road infrastructure cannot cope

Changes are being made without the consideration of residents; the feeling that the
decision has already been made and that public opinion needs to be listened to

Hospital transport (ambulance services), public transport and parking should be improved

The Health Board needs to improve resources and the recruitment of doctors to minimise
closes

Too many services removed from Withybush/it needs upgrading

Main comments made mainly by Open Questionnaire respondents

»

»

»

»

»

Against the centralisation of services because:

reduces availability of local care
increases travel

overworks staff

The proposed changes are not sustainable

Too many services being removed from Mid Wales (in particular Bronglais)/ these services
need upgrading

Spend money on services not admin/cut back on management staff

General negative comments about politicians/ministers/senior health figures




3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

3. A) Deliberative findings: Focus
Groups

Focus groups with members of the public

Introduction

In order to provide thoughtful consideration of the issues by a wide range of ‘ordinary’ members of the
public, ORS recruited and facilitated seven focus groups across the whole of the HDdHB area during August
and September 2012.

The focus group participants were selected semi-randomly by ORS via random digit dialling in each of the
seven locality areas — and broad recruitment quotas were used for gender, age and other characteristics in
order to ensure a wide cross-section of participants. Care was taken to ensure that potential participants
were not disqualified or disadvantaged by disabilities or any other factor - and in accordance with standard
good practice, the participants were recompensed for their time in taking part. All of the meetings were
well attended, and broadly representative in terms of age, gender, social grade and limiting long-term
illness.

Although, like other forms of qualitative consultation, deliberative focus groups cannot be certified as
statistically representative, these seven meetings gave a wide range of people the opportunity to discuss
the health and organisational issues in detail. We believe the meetings are broadly indicative of how
informed members of the public would formulate and express their views in similar contexts.

Therefore, we believe that the seven meetings are particularly important within the context of the whole
consultation programme — because the focus groups were inclusive (encompassing a wide range of people),
not self-selecting (randomly recruited), relatively well-informed (following initial presentations of the key
issues and policy options), and fairly conducted (through careful facilitation by ORS). There was a
considerable contrast between the tone of these thoughtful and considered meetings, on the one hand,
and the confrontational atmosphere that HDdHB encountered in some of its public meetings, on the other.
ORS recruited and facilitated the seven meetings in each of the seven HDdHB localities, as follows:

» North Ceredigion (Aberystwyth) — nearest general hospital Bronglais — 10 attended

» South Ceredigion (Lampeter) — nearest general hospital Bronglais — 8 attended

» North Pembrokeshire (Newport) — nearest general hospital Withybush — 9 attended

» South Pembrokeshire (Pembroke Dock) — nearest general hospital Withybush — 11
attended

» Amman Gwendraeth (Tumble) — nearest general hospital Prince Philip — 11 attended

» Llanelli — nearest general hospital Prince Philip — 9 attended

1 1 LN aYal
adaicti—Lroo



3.6

3.7

3.8

» Tywi, Teifi and Taff Myrddin (LIandeilo) — nearest general hospital Glangwili — 9 attended.

The aim of the groups was to allow people to express their views on the following:

» The consultation process

» HDdHB’s proposals for...

— Unplanned Care (Accident & Emergency)

— Planned Care (orthopaedics)

— Women and Children’s Service

— Mynydd Mawr Hospital

— Minor Injury Units at Tenby and South Pembrokeshire Hospitals

— Community Services and Primary Care

» Any other relevant issues they wished to raise.
This section of the report presents the main themes and key points arising from the seven focus groups.
The opinions expressed were not always unanimous, but we have endeavoured to reflect the range of
views expressed. Some important common themes emerged from the group discussions and these are
reported below; but where issues related to a particular locality, these have been highlighted. Many

guotations have been used, not because we wish to endorse any views, but in order to illustrate some of
the more common and important themes and issues.

Summary of Key Findings
In summary, the main points to emerge across the seven focus groups were as follows.
Awareness of Consultation and Proposals

» There was good awareness of HDdHB’s proposals across all groups (more so in ‘sensitive’
areas such as Llanelli and Pembrokeshire) - but also some scepticism as to whether
people’s views will be considered.

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)

» There was good support for the proposed Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for the South
of Hywel Dda (although the Llanelli group was only prepared to endorse it if it was
introduced alongside a full A&E service - if not, they would be happy to trade it for the
latter).

» In terms of location, there was most support for Prince Philip due to its good reputation
and existing facilities, and the easier access to Llanelli for the majority of the HDdHB
population. The Pembroke Dock group, however, favoured Withybush as it currently
provides excellent care — and because Prince Philip is close to Swansea’s two hospitals.

Emergency Care (Accident and Emergency)

» Five of the seven groups (Aberystwyth, Lampeter, Newport, Pembroke Dock and Tumble)
approved the retention of full A&E services at Glangwili, Withybush and Bronglais.

LN aY,|

e o
I

(|
gddalcri— Lo



»

»

»

Participants at Llanelli and Llandeilo felt strongly that Llanelli should have a full A&E
service — mainly because of: the town’s large population; the distance to Carmarthen; and
waiting times at Glangwili (most would prefer to go to Morriston as the care is better and
it is more easily accessed).

There were also strong objections in these two groups to the proposed nurse-led ‘Local
Accident Centre’ at Prince Philip. They considered this to be a downgraded service and
worried about: the ability of nurse practitioners to assess and treat the whole range of
incidents; and the onus being placed on the patient to decide what is a major and minor
injury.

If the nurse-led unit is introduced, people strongly desired co-located emergency
diagnostic and stabilisation facilities (which could presumably be provided through the
Emergency Medical Admissions Unit).

Women and Children’s Services

»

»

Five groups (Aberystwyth, Llandeilo, Llanelli, Lampeter and Tumble) supported the
development of the Level 2 Neonatal, Paediatric High Dependency and Complex
Obstetrics Units at Glangwili because: Glangwili is nearer to larger centres of population
(with higher birth rates); it is more central within HDdHB; and it will be easier to recruit
doctors to Carmarthen than to Haverfordwest.

Participants at Pembroke Dock and Newport felt they could support Glangwili as a
location — providing the Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) remains at Withybush. This was
considered essential for stabilisation, to alleviate some parents’ travel difficulties and to
negate the possibility of losing paediatrics entirely.

Community Hospitals

»

There were divided feelings about the possible closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital — mainly
within Carmarthenshire. Most were of the view that it is ‘past its sell by date’ and should
be closed, but some at Tumble and Llanelli disagreed, commenting on the excellent
quality of care provided there and the lack of space (and parking) at PPH. They were also
suspicious of HDdHB’s motives and whether they are closing it to build new homes on the
land.

Minor Injuries Units

»

Only in Pembrokeshire were there strong feelings about the proposed closure of the
Tenby and South Pembrokeshire Minor Injuries Units. There was certainly opposition to
the proposal at the Pembroke Dock group — mainly because of the consequent strain
placed on GPs and nurses; the lack of space in GP surgeries; the increased summer
population in Tenby; and the ‘waste’ of a new building in the town.

Community Services and Primary Care

»

There was general approval for ‘care closer to home’ — providing it works in practice and
is operational before removing secondary care services.

1 1 W aY
adarcri—1roo



39

3.10

3.11

3.12

» There was general praise for moving services out of hospitals and into the community.
People must travel considerable distances for routine healthcare and brief appointments -
and would welcome being able to access such services closer to home.

» Given the widespread complaints made about GP access (and, especially, out-of-hours
care), there was a great deal of support for longer hours and a six-day week. There was
also a great deal of support for pharmacies offering more healthcare services.

Main Findings

Awareness of Consultation and Proposals

Most of the nine people at Llanelli had heard about the consultation, but they were very sceptical about
the extent to which their views will be taken into consideration. Essentially, they believed that: HDdHB’s
proposals will be implemented regardless of what people say; that the decisions were actually taken some
time ago; and that the consultation process is simply the Health Board ‘going through the motions’:

They’ll still go ahead with Prince Philip no matter what people feel about it (LIanelli)
| feel the decisions have already been made (Llanelli)
The decision was made a year ago | was told (Llanelli)

| feel that these are procedures that HDdHB have to be seen going through (Llanelli).

At the South Pembrokeshire group in Pembroke Dock, most had heard of certain proposals (those relating
to Women and Children’s Services in particular) and some had been actively involved in campaigns against
them. Generally, participants were sceptical about consultation in general and felt the same as those at
Llanelli — that the views of the general public will not be considered because decisions have already been
made:

I don’t think anyone listens to the general public. | have talked to a lot of people about what
they think of the Health Service and what | hear and what is said by councillors and politicians
is different to the decisions that are made (Pembroke Dock)

| think people treat it the same as any other consultation in that they think the decision is
already made and this is just to make it look pretty (Pembroke Dock).

Just over half of the eight participants at Lampeter (South Ceredigion) were aware of HDdHB’s consultation
- but they were limited in what they knew about the proposals themselves. Further, few had heard about
the Listening and Engagement process and how controversial it had been.

At Tumble (Teifi, Tywi, Taf Myrddin), Llandeilo (Amman Gwendraeth) and Newport (North Pembrokeshire),
some participants had heard nothing at all about HDdHB’s proposals and consultation process. Others had
heard of the proposals, but only through informal sources such as the media rather than official Health
Board channels. Indeed, there was some confusion in these groups about what exactly is proposed due to
differing reports in the media:

There is not much coming from the Health Board from official people (Tumble)

I have heard that they want to downgrade the A&E in Prince Philip to a nurse-run department
as opposed to having the doctor on emergency call. And that they are closing wards and they
are shutting beds (Tumble)

1 1 A D1
adarcti—1ro0



3.13

3.14

3.15

The bit that | found very confusing is that the Western Mail around six months ago said the
A&E at Prince Philip was not going to be changed. The latest report is that it is being changed.
How can they make such a statement? That is more than confusing, it’s inconsistent (Tumble)

I’'ve read some things in the newspapers but as for specifics | don’t know what this is about
(Newport)

The whole restructure of Withybush. One minute it’s going to get a baby unit and the next it’s
going to be closed down because there are no doctors and nurses. There are mixed messages
(Newport).

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)

A Centre of Excellence for Orthopaedics was considered to be a positive and important development by
many participants insofar as it will allow for the concentration of expertise and expensive equipment on
one site:

It’s better to have one really good than two mediocre (Llandeilo)

The idea of experts in centres means you need one centre in the large rural area with small
populations. The specialists are important and they cannot easily travel from one hospital to
another and equipment is very expensive (Lampeter).

In terms of location, most participants (including those at Newport, Pembrokeshire) preferred Prince Philip
Hospital over Withybush Hospital. This is, of course, to be expected for residents of Llanelli, Tumble and
Llandeilo considering its proximity to them and that the majority of orthopaedic services in
Carmarthenshire are already carried out there:

That’s where it is now for a lot of people living in Llandeilo (Llandeilo)

Most of the hip and the knee replacements I’'ve heard of being done with patients over the last
four or five years have been performed in Prince Philip (Llandeilo)

Well you’re gonna have us lot say obviously Prince Philip aren’t you? (Llandeilo)
We would obviously say Prince Philip (Tumble)
This makes sense to us. It’s our preferred option (Tumble)

You have a lot of people going to Singleton and Morriston from this area anyway...and it
seems to make sense that it’s put in Prince Philip (Newport).

Other arguments in these groups, and indeed in others, were that: Llanelli is a more central location for the
larger centres of population in Hywel Dda (one person even considered it to be the geographic centre of
the Health Board area); Prince Philip Hospital already has a reputation for excellence in Orthopaedics; and
good quality facilities already exist there:

If you look at where most of the population lives presumably it makes more sense because
you’ve got Llanelli and Carmarthen nearest to Prince Philip. Withybush has only really got
Pembroke (Llandeilo)

Prince Philip is probably the nearest you’re going to get to the centre of Hywel Dda (Llandeilo)

Prince Philip Hospital has a good reputation for Orthopaedics (Lampeter)

1 1 e W Y
dtalcli—Lof



It’s a good place to open it since the facilities are here (Llanelli).

316 With specific regard to the Llanelli group, however, the majority of participants would be happy to sacrifice

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

321

the Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence at Prince Philip Hospital if it meant they could have a ‘proper’ A&E
once more. As aforementioned, A&E services were the main preoccupation of the Llanelli group - and it
would be fair to say that their anger at the lack of full A&E services at their local hospital negatively
affected their consideration of all other issues:

If the A&E was here in Llanelli we wouldn’t mind travelling elsewhere for further care (Llanelli)
We don’t need that; we need Accident and Emergency (Llanelli)
Whether it is there or not they have got to have an Accident and Emergency (Llanelli)

| would love to see a Centre of Excellence here but with the provision of an Accident and
Emergency (Llanelli)

They should keep A&E in all major hospitals alongside a specialist centre...as long as you’ve
got your A&E first (Llanelli)

There was also general apprehension that Prince Philip will eventually consist of the specialist centre and
nothing else:

In a few years more departments might shut just like others have; how permanent is it? Will
the hospital just be for orthopaedics and there will be nothing else there at the hospital?
(Llanelli).

Prince Philip Hospital was also the preferred option for those in Ceredigion (Aberystwyth and Lampeter).
They argued that access to Llanelli is far easier for them than it is to Haverfordwest:

Transport to Llanelli is easier than to Withybush. There is only one main road to the hospital
with lots of congestion, but Prince Philip Hospital has different access routes (Lampeter).

There was, however, some concern at Lampeter that the North of HDdHB is being ‘forgotten’ and that all of
the proposals seem to primarily benefit the South:

All the specialists would be in the South East of the area near to Swansea and we seem to be
left behind (Lampeter).

The only group that argued for an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence to be located at Withybush Hospital
was that at Pembroke Dock. Their primary argument was that apparently excellent orthopaedic care is
provided there currently:

My husband had his knee replaced last week at Withybush and he had a top surgeon and the
best implant you can get and it went superbly so if they have them there then why move
them? (Pembroke Dock)

We have had the best orthopaedic care for miles and miles around — if it’s not broke don’t fix
it (Pembroke Dock).

They also argued that, as Prince Philip Hospital is closer to the Swansea hospitals, the population of
Carmarthenshire already has other Orthopaedic Centres of Excellence within close proximity — whereas the
people of Pembrokeshire do not:




3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

For certain specialist services, instead of looking at the catchment areas they should be
thinking about the wider area. So for Orthopaedics you go to Swansea. They look at it in a
narrow way (Pembroke Dock)

It’s the travelling. If you are in the Llanelli area there is no problem going to Swansea. We
need it in Withybush because you have to think of the travel if you live in, say, in Cardigan and
St Davids! (Pembroke Dock).

Finally in relation to Planned Care, there was general recognition that developing a specialist Orthopaedic
Centre of Excellence on one site will inevitably mean that a considerable number of people will have to
travel to access the service:

If you don’t live in the centre of Hywel Dda you’re travelling because people from Aberystwyth
have got to travel to Prince Philip (Llandeilo).

As such, it was considered imperative (especially by Ceredigion residents) that before- and after-care can
be provided locally:

Visiting patients is a problem for relatives. You need to get the operated patients back to their
home area quickly (Lampeter)

It is ok to go to specialist centres, but we need diagnosis and follow-up services to be more
local. The follow-up is very important to be local (Aberystwyth).

Unplanned Care (Accident and Emergency Services)

The issue of Unplanned Care was, without question, the main preoccupation of the Llanelli group, where
participants were extremely angry about the lack of a full A&E service at their local hospital. Indeed, this
group gave little consideration to the proposed change to a nurse-led ‘Local Accident Centre’; the majority
of participants’ comments were predicated on their belief that Llanelli should have a ‘proper’ A&E.

The main issue raised in relation to the lack of full A&E services in Llanelli was that HDdHB has not taken
into consideration the size of the town’s population. The Llanelli group (and that at Llandeilo) argued that
the location of emergency services must be based on population size — and wholly rejected the argument
that distance and accessibility for everyone must also be taken into consideration in an area as large as that
covered by the HDdHB:

It has to be population-led (Llanelli)

Prince Philip will lose its A&E and we are totally against it...it should be done via population
(Llanelli)

We're talking about an ageing population, more falls, more needing to be moved to hospital and
then they’re saying ‘we’re not going to have it in Llanelli’ which is the biggest area and biggest
population. It seems a bit odd to me (Llandeilo)

They should upgrade Prince Philip and downgrade one of those more West.
With the population in this town there is just not enough services....the population down there is
more sparse and spread out (Llanelli)

They have looked at this in terms of miles and not in population numbers (Llanelli).

1 1 LN aYal
adaictri1roJ



326 There was also significant concern across all groups about Glangwili’s ability to cope with the additional
demand from Llanelli — especially in respect to long waiting times:

There’s so many people with anecdotal evidence isn’t there? Everybody’s got a story about how
horrendous things are. So it’s not just one person saying it, it’s across the board (Llandeilo)

| was there last week with my friend. Four hours and forty minutes just to be seen and then you're
waiting another two and a half hours for a doctor because he had been called into surgery. So we
were there from half past ten in the morning and we didn’t get back for tea...she was actually sat
with a broken leg all those hours (Llandeilo)

The waiting time is so long there when you go in with something that is not all that serious it’s a
long, long wait (Llandeilo)

I've heard of people hanging around Glangwili for five hours (Llanelli)

It has awful waiting times in A&E now. We waited 13.5 hours before my brother was even seen
(and he had a bad head laceration) even though the place did not seem very busy. | was told that
there was only one Doctor on duty that night and after 13.5 hours they just stitched his head and
left him to go home (Lampeter)

My wife was taken in six weeks ago, she collapsed with stomach pains and she had no choice but
Glangwili. But she waited outside in the ambulance for six hours. (Tumble).

327 |n fact, the people of Llanelli stated that, given the choice, they would prefer to travel outside HDdHB to
access A&E services at Morriston, mainly because of the better transport links and the ‘better all-round
care’. Some people also said that going directly to Morriston would be the better option for them, since
they felt they would eventually be transferred there anyway:

Better all-round care (Llanelli)

It is easier and quicker to get to due to the motorway.... you can’t get to Glangwili in less than 40
minutes and the roads are quite hard (Llanelli)

You are most likely to be transferred there anyway (Llanelli)
| have been transferred to Morriston on two occasions from Prince Philip (Tumble).

328 There was strong feeling in the Carmarthenshire groups that people who would normally use Prince Philip
for A&E services should be allowed the option of being taken to Morriston — which is apparently not the
case currently. Also, good co-operation between the Ambulance Service and the area’s hospitals was
considered essential in ensuring patients are taking to the nearest available hospital as quickly as possible:

A week last Friday a lady next door to me, who is 88, she fell. The ambulance came and she said
‘where are you taking me?’ He said ‘Glangwili’. She said ‘I’'m not going’. He said ‘you have got to’.
She wanted to go to Morriston but he said ‘I can’t do that.” (Tumble)

| had a cousin...she was rushed to hospital and went down to Prince Philip from Ammanford. She
went to the gates of their A&E and was turned around and sent to Glangwili. She was alive in
Llanelli and dead by the time she reached Glangwili. She died of a pulmonary embolism which is

A4_A0\

e o
I

(|
gddalcri—1L14



quite treatable. If they were shut in Llanelli, why didn’t the ambulance know, because it’s just as
short to go to Glangwili as it is to Prince Philip? (Llandeilo).

329 QOther concerns (voiced at Llanelli and Llandeilo) were:

The distance between Llanelli and Carmarthen (and the potential issues this can cause in an
emergency)

It only takes twenty five minutes from Llanelli to Glangwili but a lot can happen in
twenty five minutes. If you have an accident in Trostre for example you’ve got to go
twenty five minutes to Glangwili. | think it’s wrong when it could be done in five minutes
(Llandeilo)

The length of journey to Carmarthen is a concern...both physiologically and medically
(Llanelli)

The cost of travelling from Llanelli to Carmarthen — especially for a population that is not
wealthy

They’re not a wealthy population...not all of them have transport so they’re going to be
calling out ambulances to take them to Glangwili. You’re actually maybe saving the cost
of the hospital but the outside services are going to be higher (Llandeilo)

They don’t think about getting back in an emergency: money, petrol, car, lifts. It's £40
plus to get a taxi back from Carmarthen (Llanelli)

The industrial nature of the Llanelli area

You've got more industry in Llanelli...more chance of accidents. You've got quite a lot of
miles on the M4 so there’s more load in Llanelli really (Llandeilo)

We've got far more chance of having a major incident happen here in Llanelli than in
Carmarthen (Llanelli)

Carmarthen is rural, Llanelli town has around three times the number of people of
anywhere else... (Llanelli)

Increased pressure on the Ambulance Service
This will place the service under greater strain (Llanelli)

There’s not enough ambulance provision but this will be stretched even more if
ambulances are travelling further to each hospital (Llanelli)

What about the cost of ambulances back and fore. The cost and availability of
ambulances may be affected if people have to travel further (Llanelli)




3.30

3.32

3.33

The waste/underuse of a new facility

Llanelli is virtually a new hospital, 19 years old. It's much newer than Glangwili or
Withybush so should be up to date (Llanelli)

You don’t upgrade old facilities; you’ve got new facilities here, use them (Llanelli)

Will there be under usage of a new hospital (Prince Philip) if these changes happen
(Llanelli).

Many comments were made at Llanelli about the need for diagnostic and emergency stabilisation facilities
at Prince Philip Hospital. Indeed, people seemingly accepted that they would have to travel further afield
for treatment but were adamant that they should be diagnosed and stabilised locally — and if this can be
achieved at the Emergency Medical Admissions Unit then residents must be reassured of this:

Time factor, speed is key. Diagnosis and then transfer (Llanelli)

You’ve got to have a local centre where diagnosis takes place and go to a specialist place
afterwards (Llanelli)

If it’s an emergency you need that local, and if needs be send them on to a specialist (Llanelli)

The first contact should be local and they should be able to deal with emergencies before they
are moved on or transferred (Llanelli).

The Llandeilo group was also vocal in its support for full A&E services at Prince Philip Hospital. Participants
strongly advocated the provision of emergency services at all hospitals, especially for effective stabilisation
prior to transfer to specialist centres. As at Llanelli, the group argued for stabilisation facilities at Prince
Philip Hospital and, again, if this can be provided at the Emergency Medical Admissions Unit, people must
be reassured of this:

I don’t see why Prince Philip shouldn’t have a full service (Llandeilo)

Emergency services is what it should be: emergency services. The bigger hospitals should be
able to deal with emergencies not be carted off somewhere else. Emergency is an emergency
(Llandeilo)

They’ve got to have somewhere to go to be stabilised, not to be cured of everything. They can
save their lives, stabilise them, and then shift them off somewhere else where they go to have

specialist care (Llandeilo).

At Llandeilo (and Tumble to a lesser extent), it was suggested that the proposed changes are a precursor to
closing the A&E department at Prince Philip Hospital:

They are going to shut it all down aren’t they? (Llandeilo)
Well they’re shutting down an A&E department...that’s what we all think anyway (Llandeilo)

One consultant has said that he is seeing Prince Philip fall down around his ears. If people
already there are concerned what is happening, then... (Tumble).

Some discussion was had at Llanelli and Llandeilo about the proposed nurse-led Local Accident Centre.
There was general concern that Nurse Practitioners may not have the required expertise to deal with
medical emergencies (although it should be said that participants in other groups felt that some nurses are

44D

e o
I

(|
gddalcri—1L14



just as skilled as doctors). People also found it difficult to make the distinction between the nurse-led Local
Accident Centre (for minor injuries and illnesses) and the consultant-led Emergency Medical Admissions
Unit (for medical emergencies) — which suggests that better clarification could reassure many people about
future provision at the hospital:

It’s quality of service isn’t it? You’re having a nurse instead of a doctor, let alone a surgeon or
consultant (Llandeilo)

Having nurses may not be enough to cope with emergencies and stabilisation of patients
(Llanelli)

What about things happening in the night, no doctor present? (Llanelli)

60% of strokes happen in the night...could these be handled in the new system? (Llanelli).

334 |n light of the various comments made above, no-one at the Llanelli group would offer an opinion on the

merits of Options A and B; they did not consider either to be reasonable as neither makes provision for full
A&E services at Prince Philip Hospital:

They are writing Prince Philip off - this isn’t a consultation (Llanelli)
This is picking between the lesser of two evils (Llanelli)

There is no one around this table who would openly agree with the two options provided
(Llanelli)

| won’t select either of the options because it’s not feasible or practical. They are not talking
about upgrading our area (Llanelli).

335 All other groups preferred Option B to Option A (albeit it was a reluctant preference at Llandeilo) insofar as

3.36

emergency services are maintained at Bronglais, Glangwili and Withybush Hospitals. Participants at Tumble
also commented positively on the fact that, under this option, an Emergency Medical Admissions Unit is to
be maintained at Prince Philip. The loss of this, they argued, was the main concern for many people and
they commended the Health Board for taking this into consideration moving forward:

For us, Option B is clearly the best (Lampeter)
Nothing is changing with us under Option B, so we are ok (Newport)

Aberystwyth has a large university and it needs an A&E — it should not be run down
(Lampeter)

| would like to have the best possible A&E at every hospital because the distances between
them are considerable so on balance | am 90% happy with option B (Aberystwyth)

| think the fact that they have to keep the Emergency Medical Admissions Unit is a big step.
That was people’s worst worry and now they have addressed it (Tumble).

On a final note, a few people across several groups felt that healthcare choices should not be made by the
individual but by medical professionals, as the former are often incapable of making rational decisions in
stressful situations. This was a concern in relation to having two layers of unplanned care in
Carmarthenshire — with people having to choose whether to attend the full A&E service at Glangwili (or
indeed Morriston) Hospital and the Local Accident Centre at Prince Philip Hospital. As such, more
information and guidance was thought to be needed about the general conditions for A&E care:

449D

e o
I

(|
gddalcriL14



3.37

3.38

You’re putting all the emphasis on the person involved to decide whether they’ve got a major
or a minor problem (Llandeilo)

You are putting the onus on either the patient or the one who’s looking after the patient to
decide ‘is this a minor injury or is this a major injury?’ Your pain in the tummy could be a burst
spleen but perhaps someone like me wouldn’t know that (Llandeilo)

Redirection is fine if people are not seriously ill, but lay people cannot make the decisions
about how ill people really are. For example, people with COPD can deteriorate quickly and be
either slightly or very seriously ill but it is hard to know what is needed (Aberystwyth)

| think it’s quite funny thinking of it. You can imagine looking in a book for where to go

(Tumble).

Women and Children’s Services

There was general support for HDdHB’s proposal to establish a Level 2 Neonatal Unit, Complex Obstetric
Unit and Paediatric High Dependency Unit (HDU) within its own area. It was also widely acknowledged that
these facilities should be concentrated on one site given the need for a critical mass of births to maintain
quality and safety standards:

We currently have only a midwife-led service so problem cases go automatically to Swansea.
So this proposal is a mid-way solution; it seems reasonable to do this within the HDdHB area
so most people would accept this (Aberystwyth)

I do think it is good that we are having a Level 2 (Newport)
It seems very sensible (Aberystwyth)
It’s got to be cost effective; we can’t just all want stuff for ourselves (Newport)

| can see the sense that you need a certain amount of children for the expertise to come and |
can accept that (Llandeilo).

Perhaps unsurprisingly, the three Carmarthenshire groups (Llandeilo, Llanelli and Tumble) and the two in
Ceredigion (Lampeter and Aberystwyth) preferred Glangwili Hospital as a location for the proposed new
service - as well as inpatient paediatrics for the South of HDdHB should recruitment prove too challenging
to provide this on the three sites. The main reasons for this preference were:

The East of HDdHB has a larger and younger population than the West

Glangwili is nearest to where the big population is. And you get a lot more younger
people living in Carmarthenshire than you do in Pembrokeshire (Llandeilo)

Glangwili is more central within the HDdHB area (and has better road and transport links)
Glangwili is more centralised and quicker to get to for most people (Lampeter)
It has to be central to the population (Tumble)

Easier staff recruitment

If you can’t attract them to Carmarthen you won’t attract them to Withybush will you?
(Llandeilo).

44 A

e o
I

(|
gdalcri—L14



339 1t should, however, be noted that this was the lesser of two evils for some people at Lampeter, who
regretted the need for such a degree of centralisation and felt that Women and Children’s Services should
also be developed at Bronglais (to serve the wider Mid Wales area):

Neither is a good option. It seems regrettable that we have to centralise so much; can we
have a centre in Bronglais as well? (Lampeter).

340 Although the Pembroke Dock and Newport groups generally accepted that Glangwili is the more
appropriate location for the proposed new services — their acceptance came with the strong caveat that the
Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU) and some level of Paediatric care remains at Withybush Hospital so that
babies and children can continue to be stabilised there prior to being transferred to a more specialist unit:

I think Glangwili is acceptable for people. It is central and everybody can get to it. But there
has to be a SCBU here (Newport)

| support it as long as they have some sort of emergency care that will stabilise any sick small
child or baby at Withybush (Pembroke Dock)

My son was born at home. He needed oxygen and care and they took him to the nearest
hospital where he could get that care. | am not really that fussed whether the unit is in
Glangwili or Withybush but they should they should keep the facilities in Withybush to sustain
him...keep something to stabilise (Pembroke Dock)

They want to get rid of the SCBU in Withybush and have this is Glangwili. Have it in Glangwili
but keep the SCBU in Withybush and bring it up to standard (Pembroke Dock)

| feel anywhere where you have a baby there needs to be the basic level of a SCBU unit. My
baby was fine born but | was in intensive care and they were looking after her in SCBU. Where
would she go? | think anywhere where you have a baby there should be SCBU (Newport)

I think all the mothers would be horrified if SCBU was going (Newport).

341 |Indeed, there was a great deal of concern that, if the SCBU is closed, Withybush Hospital will eventually
also lose its Paediatric HDU:

People say that if the SCBU goes the Children’s Department will go as well

There is much publicity around the SCBU and if it goes the Children’s Ward will go as well
because the staff do both (Pembroke Dock).

342 Only one person at the Pembroke Dock group (who has been actively involved in setting up campaigns on
the issue in the local area) argued that the proposed new services should be centralised at Withybush
Hospital:

| have got a Facebook page to save the SCBU with 8,500 people and | have got petitions all
over the county to try and save it and there are so many stories from people about the help
they have had from Withybush. | think Withybush would be the best place to centralise it
(Pembroke Dock)

348 Their main reason for this was that Glangwili covers both sides of Carmarthen so if they live the Swansea
side of Carmarthen they can go to Singleton, if they live the Pembroke side of Carmarthen they can go to
Withybush (Pembroke Dock).

a4 AL

1
adaicri 14



344 Despite their general acceptance of Glangwili as the best location for the proposed new services (and their
preparedness to travel to access the best possible care for their children), participants at Pembroke Dock
were concerned about the impact of the travelling distance on the affected babies’ and their
parents/siblings (something that will be an issue for an increased number of parents if the SCBU at
Withybush is closed — and especially if, as people fear, the Paediatric HDU follows suit):

If there is a problem with the baby or the mother here, how are they going to get it to
Glangwili? (Newport)

My dad was going on holiday and he said the part of the journey he hated the most is from
here to Carmarthen and he was going to Hong Kong! It’s a nightmare any way you go
(Newport)

It is a difficult one because of the travel (Pembroke Dock)
It’s very difficult, especially if you have young children (Pembroke Dock)

The issue that has attracted so much passion is with these special care babies you are often
talking months. How can people living in Pembrokeshire sustain months and months of
visiting and travelling on a daily basis? What is important is that they maintain that contact
with the child....it isn’t simple enough to just say it can be relocated (Pembroke Dock)

345 As such, it was considered important that excellent transportation arrangements are put in place — and that
accommodation is provided for parents whose children may need to be cared for on a long-term basis
(even though this, it was said, will also be problematic for those parents who work and/or have other
children):

| would rather get them somewhere where there will be the best care, it’s just getting there is
the problem. It’s essential that transport links are improved (Newport)

It’s a long way to travel and it’s a bumpy ride to Glangwili. Could there be a helicopter service
between Withybush and Glangwili? It’s obviously needed (Newport)

Really the priority is the health and it’s better they get the best care. | think personally that
travelling extra distance is fine for better care providing that journey is as easy and quick as
possible (Newport)

If it was my child | wouldn’t care where it was as long as | had the specialist care. If Glangwili
is closest to that Level 3 in Swansea then that is where | would want it to be. But there should
be accommodation there for mothers and their children... (Pembroke Dock)

There needs to be accommodation for mother and children. They do that in Great Ormond
Street (Pembroke Dock)

From personal experience my son can be there for a week and day or night | do not leave him.
So I’d have to live in Glangwili. It’s bad enough being in Withybush (Pembroke Dock).

346 Despite the overall preference for Glangwili as a location for the proposed new specialist Women and
Children’s Services, participants in all localities expressed concern about capacity at Glangwili — particularly
in respect to: space on the wards; whether existing staff can cope with the increased demand for services;
and the availability of car parking:

Will Glangwili become too congested with all these different services centring there (as well as
the others like A&E)? Can it cope with the demand? (Lampeter)

L, W al

e o
I

(|
gddalcri—1L14



Will the specialist unit be swamped with the number of cases? (Aberystwyth)
All these services, but where are they going to put them in Glangwili? (Llanelli)

This makes sense. But having spent a week in the special care baby unit, staffing was an issue.
There were four children in there and they couldn’t take any more because of staff. All that
would be great if you can get the staff. It’s fundamental. (Tumble)

| am not 100% certain they can provide that at Glangwili on the grounds of space - they
provide some care out of portacabins at the moment (Pembroke Dock)

One thing is that they keep on saying they will shift it to Carmarthen....I take the wife to
Glangwili for clinics and you can’t find a parking space — they are even parking on the road...if
they move things, no matter how small, they are still going to put a strain on parking
(Pembroke Dock).

347 Other concerns were: the effect on existing staff at the location that is not chosen; and the potential for
cuts to be made elsewhere to fund the new services:

How will this affect nurses’ jobs and where they live? (Lampeter)

I’m worried that there might be cuts elsewhere in order to fund this — so what will be lost?
This improvement should not be at the cost of losing other services (Aberystwyth).

Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr Hospital)

348 No strong feelings were expressed about the proposed closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital in Ceredigion,
Pembrokeshire and Llandeilo — although some comments were made about the building’s unsuitability as a
modern healthcare facility:

It is like an old-fashioned sanatorium (Lampeter)

| think it’s probably a good idea having been up to Mynydd Mawr recently. It’s more like Cefn
Coed was years ago; it’s horrible, and | would not like to put my mum there (Llandeilo)

| think it’s a good idea to get rid of Mynydd Mawr as | think it’s passed its sell-by date
(Llandeilo)

It is a very old building. My friend was in there a few weeks ago and my son has been in there
years ago. | think it is about time they moved it to Prince Philip because the conditions there
are archaic (Pembroke Dock).

349 In fact, it was only at Tumble (and to some extent Llanelli) that people commented in-depth on the
proposed changes. The main issues and concerns raised were:

Increased travelling times for patients and their families

If you have got to visit them every day and have got to drive twenty, thirty minutes to
get there and back, rather than ten minutes up the road then that is quite a big chunk of
your day. (Tumble)

The ability of the Prince Philip site to cater for additional services (particularly with regard
to space and parking provision)




Specialist dementia services at Prince Philip. This, alongside the specialist orthopaedic
centre, is concerning as there’s no room there now; where will all the people go?
(Llanelli)

Parking is a big, big issue in Prince Philip (Tumble)

There is no land at Prince Philip to expand. There are a lot of people working there.
Before now | have parked in the staff car park (Tumble).

350 There was also some suspicion about the motives behind the proposed closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital —

3.52

and particularly whether HDdHB wishes to sell the land on which it sits:
Are they closing it to build new homes on the land? (Llanelli)

My concern is there a vested interest in the value on the land that it is on and that has
influenced what they are deciding. There is a nursing facility next door and they obviously
want to extend that. | don’t know but you can’t help but think (Tumble).

After a full and frank discussion of the issues, the Llanelli group rejected the proposed closure of Mynydd
Mawr Hospital on the grounds that the service provided there is excellent and that Prince Philip would
struggle to cater for the additional demand:

| think we should keep it...you get proper treatment and the staff there are absolutely out of
this world (Llanelli).

At Tumble, around half of the participants (some reluctantly) accepted the need for change, and were, in
fact, positive about the promise of a Community Resource Centre in Cross Hands — but called for
guarantees that the change will be a positive one, that the money saved from the closure will be re-
invested into community services and for an improvement to the transport infrastructure around Prince
Philip Hospital:

I think on paper it sounds ok (Tumble)

Ty Bryn Gwyn is based next door to Prince Philip so Mynydd Mawr is out on a limb. | guess you
can see the sense of everything being at the same place so there are doctors on hand
(Tumble)

I think we are all in favour of the Community Resource Centre (Tumble)

If they go ahead with what they are planning then that will be better than what we have got
at the moment (Tumble)

If you are going to sell change, it’s got to be positive. | think everybody appreciates that things
have got to move on, but if it is at the expense of service then it’s going to be a bad thing. So |
think it’s a good idea, but if it is to change it should be to provide a better service. If it is any
worse than what we have had previously then no (Tumble)

It’s only good if the money from Mynydd Mawr is invested back into the community, because
they won’t have to put that much money into Prince Philip (Tumble)

| think community based services are the way forward (Tumble)

They should have a park and ride and I’m sure people would use it instead of the stress of the
car park (Tumble).

440

(|
adaicri 14



353 A minority, however, were strongly in favour of retaining Mynydd Mawr Hospital — again because of the
excellent service provided there and that it represents a ‘step closer to home’ for those returning from
hospital. These participants typically either had an emotional connection to the hospital (having had
relatives cared for there for example) or viewed it as an integral part of their community and were very
much against its closure:

From what | have seen, Mynydd Mawr provides an excellent service to the community and the
area. | don’t see why it should be taken away (Tumble)

I’'ve got an aunt who has just had an emergency op in Glangwili...she’s gone to Mynydd Mawr
for rehab and the nursing they provide up there is second to none (Tumble)

Patients from this area, if they have an operation in Singleton or Morriston or whatever and
they move back to Mynydd Mawr, it’s as if they are closer to home. It’s a half-way house and
it means they are on their way to recuperation (Tumble)

| don’t support it; my heart is in it and after being there | honestly am gutted. There is a sense
of community isn’t it; it’s a part that is being shut down and being removed (Tumble).

354 A further few desired more information about the proposal prior to making a decision either way:

| just don’t think we know enough about it. There should be meetings with the Health Board
before this type of meeting. (Tumble)

I don’t think I can really say what | think about it without all the information. | don’t know
what is behind it. | can’t say this is brilliant because | am not from this community. | can
understand why people would be upset and on the other hand | can see that if they are
making the effort with transport and everything then it might work. (Tumble).

355 There was also some feeling at Tumble that the decision on Mynydd Mawr has already been taken and that
the views expressed as part of the consultation are thus largely irrelevant:

What is the point of all this discussion if they are going to put it in the bin? We can’t do
bugger all. Whatever you get from this meeting, will they even look at it? (Tumble)

| think the decisions have already been made. | don’t think whatever we say here is going to
have a great deal (Tumble).

Minor Injury Units

356 Although there was some support for GP practices providing Minor Injury Services in principle, there was
considerable uncertainty across all groups as to whether GPs will be able, and indeed willing, to do so — as
well as a great deal of concern about the potential impact of this on waiting times for GP services (which
were considered excessive anyway):

Will the GPs be paid for this because it was a big bone of contention when it was at
Saundersfoot? In the Summer one GP and one nurse would deal with minor injuries, that is all
they would deal with and even the paramedics would go to the surgery with people on the
beach rather than go to Withybush. The doctors received no recompense for that and it was a
big bone of contention - are they going to get paid? (Pembroke Dock)




GPs are quite pushed because you can’t get an appointment for a couple of days so if you are
going to add all of these minor injuries onto this what’s going to happen to the overall GP
service then? (Llandeilo)

The GP’s are supposed to be taking on minor injuries and they cannot cope as it is. We have to
wait several weeks for an appointment and if you are going to put a minor injuries in there.
You just wonder what services will be like (Pembroke Dock)

The nurse practitioners in the surgeries are really busy with all the other national framework
stuff that they have to do like diabetes (Pembroke Dock)

| just can’t see how it will work practically, considering the issues and challenges they face
now (Pembroke Dock)

Providing GP and Out-of-Hours services work well this is a good idea...but access to GP
services is poor in Lampeter. If you do not get there before 8am you cannot get in (Lampeter).

357 Other issues in relation to the closure of the Minor Injuries Services at Tenby and South Pembrokeshire
Hospitals were: the need to cater for the area’s holidaymakers during the summer months; the lack of
space in some GP surgeries to cater for Minor Injury Services (which may lead to separation issues between
those who are ill and those who are injured); and the fact that the proposal represents the ‘waste’ of a new
facility at Tenby:

Holiday time is key; we can’t rely on GP services for the number of holiday visitors (Llanelli)

I live in Tenby and | access services there and in the Summer it is a nightmare; you have to
wait for hours with all the visitors (Pembroke Dock)

We are not talking about locals, we are talking about holidaymakers. You would be surprised
how many people come off the beach with a cut foot and go to the Minor Injuries. They don’t
go to Withybush. It would just put a strain on GP practices in Tenby and Saundersfoot
(Pembroke Dock)

If someone walks in with blood spurting out everywhere, how are they going to cope? Do they
have a separate part of the surgery where they wait? They are quite small some of these
surgeries (Pembroke Dock)

If you need to go to the minor injuries unit at Tenby you are there with people with minor
things. If you close that and put it into the surgery you are there with everybody who has
whatever disease and people with minor injuries are just going to end up with whatever
(Pembroke Dock)

So the staff are going to get redeployed? But they have a nice building — what is the sense in
that? (Pembroke Dock).

358 There was also some misconception that the two hospitals are to close completely — and it would certainly
seem that people would benefit from some reassurance on this:

They spent so much money doing Tenby up and you think of the waste...with all this
restructuring it is just another tranche of waste. It is depressing (Pembroke Dock)

Thinking about Tenby. We have a nice new place and | can’t believe they are just going to lock
it up and that goes for South Pembs as well (Pembroke Dock).

1 1 e il &\
adarcti—1rouv



359 Qverall, there were no strong feeling about this proposal anywhere other than at Pembroke Dock, where
participants expressed strong opposition — mainly on the aforementioned grounds of its impact on GP
access and the need to cater for the area’s increased Summer population:

They are just moving a fairly decent service into something it is not going to work (Pembroke
Dock).

Community Services and Primary Care

Care Closer to Home

360 The need to keep and treat people in their own homes as far as possible was widely acknowledged - but
only if the necessary care is provided, maintained and properly co-ordinated:

Who wouldn’t welcome this? (Tumble)
It’s a brilliant thing (Pembroke Dock)
If these proposals were achievable that would be good, fair (Llanelli)

| want to continue living at home for as long as possible providing there is sufficient
support...my elderly mother lived at home until two days before she died (Aberystwyth)

When you are in your own home you are independent...you can do whatever you like. When
you’re in a home you’re very restricted... (Llandeilo)

We need to empower people to be independent if they wish to be (Aberystwyth)

This is ok if it is run correctly and they really do co-ordinate properly... (Aberystwyth).

361 |n fact, despite their enthusiasm for the principles behind providing care closer to home, participants were
generally cautious about its achievability in practice and felt that it must be ‘tried and tested’ before
secondary care services are removed:

The idea is great but how would it work in practice? (Pembroke Dock)
How are they going to do it? How much more have we got to pay? (Newport)
It can take a very long time to organise community care like Home Helps (Aberystwyth)

They are doing this to free the bed spaces so we need to get the primary care services
successfully in place before we remove the secondary care services (Aberystwyth).

362 Moreover, it was said that HDdHB must increase front-line staffing levels if it is to have any hope of
successfully achieving care closer to home — and also that it must consider the specialist requirements of
those with long-term chronic conditions:

There’s not enough staff in the community to do that (Llandeilo)
This might mean that overall more staff are needed (Aberystwyth)

Community nurses are doing everything...it’s an extra pressure for them. Get more of them
before you increase their role (Llanelli)

Where are they going to get all these people from? They struggle now.....although the idea is
great (Pembroke Dock)




3.63

3.64

3.65

3.66

People with long-term chronic conditions often need very specialist care...from my experience
of looking after people with Multiple Sclerosis, staff have not got the specialist skills to look
after these people. There needs to be more people with specialist skills; general nursing teams
don’t have that experience (Pembroke Dock).

Many participants, particularly those at Llandeilo, also questioned the cost of the proposed community-
based care service. They certainly did not consider it to be a ‘cheap’ option, especially if it is done properly:

If you’re looking at a cost cutting exercise, care in the home can’t be that. Better, but more
expensive (Llandeilo)

Keeping people in their homes and care in the community is a fabulous idea but it’s not a
cheap option. They’re saying that it’s more cost effective to have people out in the community
than in hospitals...but if you’ve got somebody looking after a person properly, they can only
do one when they could do ten in a unit. So | think that if they do it properly, great, if they
don’t, its poor service (Llandeilo).

Moving Services from Hospitals to the Community

There was general praise for the principle of moving as many services as possible out of hospitals and into
the community. People are currently having to travel considerable distances for routine healthcare (blood
tests for example) and brief appointments - and would very much welcome being able to access such
services closer to home:

What they are doing is absolutely right...their vision is very good and thoughtful. | think the
ideas are brilliant (Newport)

I really welcome things like blood tests locally (Newport)

People in my village...even if they go down to have their blood pressure done on a weekly
basis they have got to track down to Ammanford to have it done (Llandeilo)

People have to go to Glangwili for very brief consultations (Aberystwyth)

Turning up to see consultants with on-going issues for short and not very useful
meetings...surely this would be better by telephone...that would free up the doctors and
surgeons? (Llanelli)

Indeed, one example was provided whereby this is already in progress:

We’ve already got that vision in our village. We’ve revamped the Memorial Hall and we’ve
just spent £500,000 on an extension to it and they’re all fit for doctor’s use...for instance, flu
jabs, diabetic care, chiropody, diabetic chiropody. We need it because we don’t do it in our
surgery (Llandeilo).

Access to GP Services

Participants in all groups commented on the difficult access to GP services in their local area, especially
since GPs have taken on new roles and provide additional services that were only previously available at
hospitals (although the latter was considered a positive development generally):

GP access is difficult - appointments can be for two weeks ahead (Lampeter)

1 1 4.0
gdalicri—1roc



It can be very poor to have to go to the GP at 7am to get into the surgery queue which is very
long for open surgery...and you have to queue outside even in the winter (Lampeter)

GPs vary a great deal in terms of what they offer and how responsive they are...Llandysul is
very good but Lampeter is very poor (Lampeter)

Getting through to a GP is very difficult. You have to ring between 8.30am and 9:00am
otherwise you get an appointment for two weeks’ time (Llanelli)

If you live in Pembroke Dock you phone the GP on a 0844 number. You do that two or three
times and then they say sorry all the appointments are booked up, ring back tomorrow
(Pembroke Dock)

If you want to see a particular doctor in Llandeilo you have to wait days (Llandeilo)
Some doctors you can’t see for three to four weeks (Llandeilo)

GPs are actually providing more services in general practice, for instance with diabetics - they
all went to hospitals whereas now you can get that at your GP practice. The problem is that
sometimes the money that should come along with that doesn’t, so the doctors and nurses
are doing these extra services and while all the time is taken up doing those kinds of things
they’re not actually seeing patients and | think that’s got to be addressed (Llandeilo)

If you ring up the GP now in Newport and say it’s an emergency appointment, you have got to
explain to the secretary what the problems are. She isn’t qualified to make those decisions
(Newport).

367 As such, the proposed changes with respect to ensuring GP access during evenings and on weekends were
considered positive — although there was some scepticism about how achievable this will be in practice:

Late appointments for people who are working and weekend appointments would be good
(Llanelli)

How on earth are they going to make doctors work on the weekends? (Tumble).
Out of Hours Care

368 Although apparently excellent out-of-hours care is in place at Llandeilo and Newport, participants in the
other localities were not quite as positive:

If you’ve got a big problem in Llandeilo, all you have to ask for is the doctor on call and the
doctor on call will ring you up and will see the person almost immediately. I've found they are
absolutely brilliant here (Llandeilo)

There is always an emergency doctor and from my experience | have always been able to see
somebody (Newport)

GP care is pretty good around here but the out-of-hours service is frustratingly poor. We only
have one GP on duty overnight and he covers a very large area so it is very slow to attend
(Aberystwyth)

You have to go down to Llandysul and Cardigan for an out-of-hours consultation but not
everyone drives (Lampeter)




With my daughter, sometimes | work away and she wouldn’t be able to go and see someone
and they won’t come and see you anymore. When we needed out-of-hours, there was no GP
closer than Bridgend who was working out of hours. We had to call the ambulance (Tumble).

369 Many negative comments were made about the particular need for better healthcare on weekends — as
highlighted by the higher mortality rate during the ‘out of hours’ period:

Mortality is higher at the weekend than in the week — but we should have the same level of
care (Lampeter).

370 There was certainly a strong sense that out-of-hours healthcare must be improved — mainly via better
evening and weekend cover by GPs:

| don’t think there’s a complaint about the quality of the doctors...it’s just the coverage of
doctors...I don’t think they should clock off at five (Llandeilo)

They’re not available when we want them. If you look at the statistics most people are
seriously ill between the hours of two and four in the morning, but there are no doctors then.
You’ve got to ring the emergency line... (Llandeilo)

You can’t dare be ill after the hours of nine ‘til six, otherwise you’re sent to a call centre ...they
don’t know who you are or where you are (Llandeilo)

If the surgery was on-call twenty four hours a day, think how much pressure this would take
off all these other services...the ambulance service, the emergency services. Some people who
have got a minor emergency would call a doctor rather than take themselves all the way to
the emergency services so | think the problem lies in GPs not working around the clock...not
each individual but they could do shifts (Llandeilo)

People want services to do things at different times. | think the GP’s have got to accept they

have got to change their working times (Tumble).

Pharmacies

371 People were eager to see pharmacies taking on a more proactive healthcare role within communities —and,
in fact, these services were widely praised for what they currently do, especially at the Carmarthenshire
groups:

| find the pharmacies really helpful.... you’re not waiting there long at all (Llanelli)

They’ve got rooms now where the pharmacists can do things like your blood pressure and help
for your asthma, for diabetes; they can do those tests actually in there. A lot of these
pharmacists have got rooms to do it and that’s a good thing (Llandeilo)

In Llandeilo you get a review every year and he does your blood pressure and your cholesterol.
You call in every year and he gives you a MOT! (Llandeilo)

I think we are quite lucky in this area. (Tumble)

Sometimes | prefer to go to a pharmacy rather than a doctor because | don’t want to bother
the doctor with some things (Newport).




3.72

3.73

3.74

Other Issues

Centralised Services

There was some recognition across all groups (and especially at Pembroke Dock) about the need to
centralise services and develop Centres of Excellence for better patient outcomes — and many people said
that they would be more than happy to travel to access the best possible care:

I personally think that if we have Centres of Excellence; that is not necessarily a bad thing.
Instead of having it watered down amongst a few hospitals having a specialist place is good
for us (Pembroke Dock)

Moving forward things do need to change...sometimes we need to look at what we are doing
and restructure and that doesn’t please everyone (Pembroke Dock)

| would want the best. | don’t mind travelling for that (Newport)

What matters more to me is accessing the best possible care (Pembroke Dock).

Nevertheless, there was concern about the impact of increased travel on patients (particularly those
without transport or family that can help with travelling) and it was considered imperative that accessing
services further afield be made as simple as possible - for example by not offering very early appointments
to those who have to travel long distances and improving technological communications between hospitals
so that patients do not have to travel unnecessarily:

If we are going to centralise services we need to support the people who need to be able
access it. We cannot afford to keep things that aren’t running at full capacity but we need to
provide support to make it easier to access (Pembroke Dock)

It’s alright for me, | got a car | can travel anywhere | like, but for the older people who are not
well and can’t drive, can’t catch buses, how do they get there? (Llandeilo)

That’s if you have a car, that’s if you don’t have caring responsibilities. There is a lot of things
to consider isn’t there when you have to travel (Pembroke Dock)

I have had Leukaemia for the past eight years and | have had to see the Haematologist in
Cardiff because there are no specialists here. To go further afield to get the support | need is a
nightmare. It is exhausting, it is expensive and there’s the childcare...I've had my carer out in
the early hours of the morning to look after the children (Pembroke Dock)

I’'ve had to be in Cardiff at a ridiculous time in the morning (Pembroke Dock)

We are expected to get to Glangwili by 8am for appointments which is impractical and
unreasonable (Aberystwyth)

IT has moved on, they are doing operations at a distance. Surely we should be incorporating it
into the medical service that we have got (Pembroke Dock).

Also in terms of centralisation, there was concern at the Pembrokeshire groups about the number of
services being centralised outside the county. In fact, there was a strong feeling in the Newport group that
Withybush will be either closed or downgraded sometime in the future (a view that has seemingly been
propounded by the local media):




There is a strength of feeling in Pembrokeshire because there seems to be a lot of things being
taken away from Pembrokeshire...nobody wants to say that we don’t want centralised
services but it seems it’s all going from here (Pembroke Dock)

It’s always seemed that it revolves around Carmarthen and that everything is heading that
way (Newport)

Really they want to close it and move everything to Carmarthen. That’s the impression we get
from the press (Newport).

Recruitment Issues

375 Participants typically understood the recruitment challenges facing HDdHB. Although some people were of
the opinion that doctors and consultants should simply be ‘offered more money’ to come to work in the
area, most acknowledged that such staff want to work in Centres of Excellence that undertake ‘cutting-
edge’ research and where they can progress their careers —and that HDdHB cannot currently offer this:

My brother is a doctor and he said the problem is none of the graduates want to come here
(Newport)

If you look on the job sites there is job after job that is unfulfilled (Pembroke Dock)

| think it is the career path; if they go to a large hospital they are going to progress quicker
(Pembroke Dock)

It’s not only the money, it’s the Centres of Excellence, it’s research; you need to be in an area
where there’s research. There’s a research centre in Cardiff, there isn’t one in Hywel Dda so if
you’re a consultant you want to be in a research area...if you’re in Hywel Dda you’re not so
you’re a bit stuck out on a limb (Llandeilo)

| think it is research. If they are going to be at the cutting edge they need to be involved in
research. | have worked with people with chronic conditions and they have to travel
miles....some have to travel to England that is because the expertise and the specialists are
there and they have a whole load of researchers behind them. They are looking at cutting
edge stuff as well (Pembroke Dock).

376 Incentives and secondments were proposed to attract doctors and consultants to West Wales — as was
more active promotion of the quality of life the area can offer:

What is wrong with very experienced consultants doing a secondment in Hywel Dda. Can they
offer some sort of incentive so secondments can cover down here for a bit? (Llandeilo)

The recruitment is more to do with the fact that doctors are trained in Cardiff and they are
incentivised to go to London — why aren’t they addressing that? It is central Government not
incentivising doctors to stay in Wales (Pembroke Dock)

They should mark the positive way of life in the area to recruit more staff; they would be
attracted to the way of life (Newport)

The question is; are they selling Wales when they are advertising the posts? (Tumble).




Standards of Care

377 Some Pembroke Dock and Newport participants were highly critical of the facilities, services and
communications at Withybush Hospital (as highlighted by the anecdotes below) — mainly based on past
experiences of using them. They strongly desired improvements to standards and were disappointed that
this is not expressly referred to in the consultation document:

My friend had a stroke in the middle of the night and was admitted to Withybush and he
didn’t receive care until 10 the following night...he is now permanently damaged. Someone
else drove all the way to London and we thought they were mad. The one who went to
London is fully recovered and the one that went to Withybush didn’t. | don’t have faith in the
services around here and if | need something | will go out of the area for it (Pembroke Dock)

| feel it is so poor that | won’t access the A&E at Withybush. | have to access emergency care
about 50 times per year to have adrenaline shots and you should go to an A&E and | can’t go
there. | stay at home and my partner has been trained to give me all the medication and the
CPR if needed - as an absolute last resort a paramedic will come out and he will give me the
additional medication that | need. This is not how I should be treated — this is not the position |
want to be put in. It’s not the actual unit or the doctors or nurses, it is the pressure they are
under that they cannot provide you the quality of care that is needed and the cleanliness is an
issue — | was put into a bed with somebody else’s blood on it (Pembroke Dock)

Safety and quality has been poor in Haverfordwest for a long time (Pembroke Dock)
The main wards are like a third world country (Pembroke Dock)

When my mother went down to the hospital, they asked me what | wanted to do with her.
They didn’t know. They were ringing me asking what | thought and | suggested blood tests
and they were like ‘oh yes that a good idea’. A few hours later they rang me saying they didn’t
know what to do and could | bring her home. You really have to be on the ball with doctors to
get good quality care (Newport)

The problem is there is no communication between doctors and consultants. It’s almost as if
they are working against each other (Newport)

I've got a friend who was dealing with two specialists on the same corridor and the records
weren’t getting from one to the other (Newport)

It’s a shame that the proposals didn’t say anything about improving standards (Pembroke
Dock).
378 Despite the above, however, there was some praise for the standard of the new Clinical Decision and

Assessment Facility at the hospital:

The new unit they have built the place you go to before you are assessed. It is beautiful, clean,
televisions on spindles — everything (Pembroke Dock).

379 There was also some criticism of healthcare standards and the quality of the operating theatres at Bronglais
Hospital — as well as concern that the hospital’s wards are being gradually run down:

| had severe chest pains and the ambulance was excellent but when | went to Bronglais they
diagnosed a chest infection and then the member of staff just went off duty and left me alone

1 1 10—
dtalcriL1of



to see another member of staff who just told me to go home at 10pm. The problem was the lack
of joined-up thinking (Lampeter)

The quality of the operating theatres at Bronglais is poor...will they carry on with surgery there
(Aberystwyth)

With Afallon Ward, is the closure really temporary? When will it be reinstated? The staff are
having to travel to Carmarthen to work at the moment (Aberystwyth).




3.80

3.82

3.83

3.84

4 B) Focus Groups and Telephone
Interviews with Staff

Introduction

As an important part of the listening and engagement process, HDdHB sought to involve its staff across
each of the four hospitals by commissioning small focus group discussions at two separate levels (up to and
including Grade 7, and Grade 8 and above) and in-depth telephone interviews with Junior and Middle
Grade Doctors.

Regarding the focus group discussions, eight confidential meetings (facilitated by ORS) were planned and
HDdHB conscientiously invited volunteers. Unfortunately, the take-up was not as enthusiastic as hoped; the
two Prince Philip meetings had to be cancelled, and the others had poor attendances. Nonetheless, a total
of six meetings took place — as outlined in the schedule below:

Place Date Grade Attendance
Withybush September 24 Upto7 3
Withybush September 24 8+ 3
Bronglais October 3 Upto7 3
Bronglais October 3 8+ 3
Glangwili October 8 Upto7 3
Glangwili October 8 8+ 1

Four in-depth telephone interviews were undertaken with members of staff who were unable to attend the
focus groups for legitimate reasons — one from Prince Philip Hospital, two from Withybush Hospital and
one community healthcare worker.

ORS were also commissioned to undertake in-depth telephone interviews with Junior and Middle Grade
Doctors — and while there was a relatively good response to HDdHB’s conscientious invitation programme,
ORS (despite repeated attempts to contact respondents via telephone and email) ultimately achieved only
five interviews.
The aim of the groups was to allow people to express their views on the following:

» The consultation process

» HDdHB's proposals for...

— Unplanned Care (Accident & Emergency)

— Planned Care (orthopaedics)

— Women and Children’s Service

— Mynydd Mawr Hospital




38 Owing to the relatively small numbers in some case, it is inappropriate to report each group separately, and

3.86

3.87

»

in any case there were some important common themes. Therefore, this review seeks to draw out the main

Minor Injury Units at Tenby and South Pembrokeshire Hospitals

Community Services and Primary Care

Any other relevant issues they wished to raise.

themes and comments in order to show the general tenor of opinion.

In the following report, quotations are given in italics (usually indented). Verbatim quotations are used not
because ORS agrees with them, but to illustrate important themes or points of view — but, of course, the

comments are not ‘objective fact’ but people’s perceptions.

Summary of Key Findings

In summary, the key findings from the focus groups and telephone interviews were as follows.

Awareness of Consultation and Proposals

»

»

Staff had good awareness of HDdHB’s proposals and consultation process — but they also
had some concerns. These were: inconsistent messages from senior staff; the vagueness
of the proposals (which were also considered too Carmarthenshire-centric and to be
causing divisions among staff) and the ‘too broad’ principles underpinning them; staff
roadshows being held at inappropriate times.

There was surprise at the low turnout to the staff focus groups. It was surmised that this
was due to a widespread belief that the decisions have already been made and that
HDdHB is simply ‘going through the motions’ with its consultation.

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)

»

»

The proposed Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for the South of HDdHB was broadly
welcomed — and there was general support for Prince Philip as its location because: all
Carmarthenshire elective operations are done there already; the facilities and staff are in
place; and it is more easily accessible from most areas of HDdHB than Withybush.

Withybush staff strongly advocated keeping orthopaedic services at Withybush, with only
complex cases and revisions at Prince Philip. This as driven by fear that Withybush will
lose all inpatient orthopaedics which is its bread and butter.

Emergency Care (Accident and Emergency)

»

»

HDdHB's preferred Option B was readily endorsed at Glangwili, Bronglais and Withybush,
where it was felt that full A&E services at three acute hospitals is sufficient for the Health
Board area. There was also support for a nurse-led model of emergency care at Prince
Philip.

Prince Philip staff understood the need for change but rejected a wholly nurse-led unit on
the grounds that:




»

»

»

Some patients (such as children) cannot be dealt with by an emergency nurse practitioner
and will be sent to Glangwili or Morriston, increasing demand there

Many minor injuries need medical input, which can currently be provided by A&E doctors.
The removal of this element will place excessive pressure on staff within the Emergency
Medical Admissions Unit

It will impact on the training of junior doctors at (and recruitment of good quality
consultants/registrars to) Prince Philip.

Women and Children’s Services

»

»

»

»

Staff at Glangwili and Prince Philip (as well as the Doctors) supported the development of
the Level 2 Neonatal, Paediatric High Dependency and Complex Obstetrics Units at
Glangwili because it is nearer to larger centres of population (with higher birth rates) and
is more central within HDdHB.

At Bronglais, there was some debate about the need for a Level 2 Neonatal Unit, with
some expressing a preference for improving services at existing sites. If the services are
developed, Glangwili was preferred due to ease of access.

At Withybush, staff argued that HDdHB'’s proposal risks disadvantaging the majority of
babies to cater for the minority. As such, there was strong support for the status quo of
sending special care babies to Swansea — with investment to raise standards on the three
existing sites. If the proposal is implemented, there was strong feeling that the SCBU
should remain at Withybush for stabilisation.

A centralised paediatric HDU was considered desirable but unworkable at Withybush —
where staff mainly worried about: the detrimental effect of additional travelling on
children’s health; the HDU - and possibly all inpatient paediatrics - at the ‘other’ hospital
becoming unviable; the de-skilling of staff at the ‘other’ hospital; and increasing demand
on A&E and the Ambulance Service. The preference was to re-direct finances into raising
standards and strengthening services at the three main sites.

Community Hospitals

»

The proposed closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital was only discussed in depth in
Carmarthenshire, where there was some division of opinion. The majority agreed that the
hospital building is no longer fit for purpose and that better patient care can be provided
on a state-of-the-art ward at Prince Philip. An important caveat, however, was that
community services must be in place before closure. Those who were against the closure
were concerned about the loss of some inpatient beds and, especially, the loss of
community rehabilitation facility, which could lead to ‘bed blocking’.

Minor Injuries Units

»

Some staff could understand the proposal to close the MIUs at Tenby and South
Pembrokeshire Hospitals as they are currently underused. Others were concerned about:
the potential impact on Withybush A&E; the lack of facility for the increased summer
population in Tenby; and the potential difficulties in increasing number of nurse
practitioners.

1 1 4001
dtalci 1oL



» There was support for GPs providing Minor Injuries Services, but scepticism about their
willingness to do so. There was also concern about the potential impact of this on waiting
times; and the possibility of increased referrals to A&E due to the lack of X-Ray facilities at
GP practices. It was also said that hospital-based doctors must continue to be exposed to
minor injuries to be able to deal with them effectively.

Community Services and Primary Care

» Although there was general enthusiasm for care closer to home, staff expressed caution
about its achievability in practice. There was a definite sense that it must be ‘tried and
tested’ before secondary care services are ended, and that quality and safety must never
be traded for accessibility.

» Some achievements were highlighted, namely the Carmarthenshire Community Resource
& Acute Response Teams and Pembrokeshire Care Closer to Home, which has been picked
as one of five sites for research. However, community healthcare workers strongly desire
more resources and more GP involvement for even greater success.

» There was general praise for moving services from hospitals into communities and
improving access to primary care. There was, however, scepticism that GPs will offer
longer hours and that pharmacies can be reached by everyone in 15 minutes.

» District and community nurses were thought to play an important role in community
healthcare, but it was said that the rurality of the HDdHB area must be recognised — and
appropriate resources provided to cater for this.

Main Findings: Staff Focus Groups and Telephone Interviews

Awareness of Consultation and Proposals

388 HDAHB staff were well aware of its proposals — although there was a degree of confusion about getting one
thing from one person and something different from the other (Withybush):

When you request the details they change their answers (Glangwili).

389 There was also some concern about the apparent vagueness of some of the proposals and the broadness of
the general principles underpinning the consultation — and that the proposals do not necessarily support or
help to achieve these principles:

There seems to be a lot of woolly issues and because there are no specifics people are getting
a bit concerned. For example, people are worried that Withybush is going to be made into a
large cottage hospital (Withybush)

It is incredibly difficult to make any comment on the consultation because the broad themes
they are consulting on are hard to have an opinion about (Glangwili)

There is not enough information to make an informed judgement. There is nothing to say
‘how’, it is just ‘this is what we will do’. It is all aspirational statements (Glangwili)

It doesn’t necessarily tie to what is being planned. The objectives are relatively acceptable, but
then the document does not really communicate how any of these changes are going to
achieve what their objectives are. The two things don’t tie together at all (Glangwili).

1 1 A 0N
udalicri—1ro4<



3% There was some concern about the way in which the various staff and public meetings have been run —
especially in terms of questions being ‘fobbed off’ and incorrect answers being provided. Further, it was felt
that some of the staff engagement opportunities have not been held at the most appropriate times to
enable as many members of staff as possible to participate:

| went to one of the events and asked various questions and | wasn’t particularly happy with
the answers. Sometimes you feel like you are being fobbed off. | have asked a couple of
questions and then been told ‘the person who can answer that question is not here’ and | have
also asked a question, had an answer and within weeks that answer has been shown to be
incorrect (Glangwili)

| went to a staff roadshow and people were asking questions and they didn’t really have any
answers (Bronglais)

| am concerned with the times of meetings and staff roadshows...there hasn’t been an
opportunity for some to speak who are on certain shifts. It’s very difficult for people to get
away at the busiest time of day or you just don’t work in the day anyway. The times have
been very rigid (Bronglais).

391 There was concern at both Withybush and Bronglais that the proposals are too ‘Carmarthenshire-centric’:

| think we have got to change, but | feel a lot of the documents are heavily weighted towards
Carmarthenshire. One of the senior managers actually said that things have to go towards
Carmarthenshire because nobody wants to come West and that we are surrounded by sea,
which is not helpful is it? They were then talking about Carmarthenshire becoming a centre of
excellence and attracting things from Swansea and Cardiff. These sort of comments are what
people are aggrieved about (Withybush).

392 Staff at Withybush claimed to have been ‘shocked’ at the nature of the proposals, as they had not been led
to believe (during the Listening and Engagement Exercise) that the choices would be so stark. One
participant - a member of staff from the SCBU - also alleged that they and their colleagues had heard about
the potential closure of their unit through the press, which was a somewhat distressing experience:

What was produced in the document was quite shocking in that they were talking about
closing units and inpatient services which | don’t believe was ever part of the initial
consultation. There was a discussion that there was need to centralise to strengthen services
but what it feel like is that everything is shifting wholesale. It was a shock, we didn’t see that
coming (Withybush)

It was very distressing for us to learn in the press that either us or Carmarthen could
potentially be closed down. | think that was a very poor decision on behalf of the Health
Board. | came in and expected to find a general letter to the staff and there was nothing. That
instantly upset and upped the anxiety rate and caused a lot of bad feeling and distress
(Withybush).

393 |t was said that the consultation - and its associated proposals - are causing unfortunate divisions among
staff at the different hospital sites — who are seemingly only concerned about protecting the interests of
their own area (rather than taking a HDdHB-wide view of the proposed changes):




3.94

3.95

3.96

| don’t want to get into the Withybush versus Carmarthen issue because that is a problem
here as well. This is despite the fact that we are three hospitals that have merged into one
Health Board (Withybush)

It is interesting in that each locality is only interested in their own problems. It’s not across the
Health Board; it’s each locality worrying what service is going to be taken away from them
(Bronglais).

Participants were surprised at the low take-up of, and turnout to, the focus groups among their colleagues:

I am shocked that there are only three people here; that is what’s most worrying (Withybush)

When asked why they felt this was the case, it was said that many members of staff feel that: HDdHB’s
proposals will be implemented regardless of what people say; that the decisions were actually taken
some time ago; and that the consultation process is simply the Health Board ‘going through the
motions’:

| think a lot of people think it’s just a done deal... a lot of staff think it doesn’t matter what we
do and it’s not a listening consultation (Withybush)

With the public meeting, it was full but most of us thought ‘why go and listen to that waffle,
it’s what we have all heard before’ (Withybush)

The other thing about the consultation is that you have articles coming out which are sending
the wrong message. If you go onto the BBC news website and you look on there, the Health
Board say they have been given this ‘super-duper’ Neonatal Unit which will benefit everyone.
There are also jobs being advertised in Carmarthen (Withybush)

People are a bit disillusioned by the fact that some of the people that have been speaking
don’t really listen to them. It’s disillusionment with the whole process...people don’t feel the
engagement process is worth the paper that’s it’s written on, generally (Withybush).

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)

It was generally agreed that an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for the south of HDdHB would be
welcome (although some desired more information about exactly what type of surgery will be undertaken
on what site before making a judgement):

A Centre of Excellence is a good idea and consultants who are doing things continually are
going to be more expert than people who do it once in a while (Withybush)

They need to clarify what surgery will take place on what site. And what they mean by
‘maintain orthopaedics in Bronglais’. There is no detail (Glangwili).

Staff at Glangwili (and the one interviewee at Prince Philip) were very much in favour of developing an
Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence at Prince Philip Hospital insofar as: patient outcomes should be
improved; all elective operations for Carmarthenshire are currently carried out there; and the facilities and
staff are already in place:

| totally support the idea...the whole population of Hywel Dda will get the expertise of those
consultants that are performing that surgery throughout the year (Glangwili)

Currently within Carmarthenshire all electives go to Prince Philip anyway and that doesn’t
cause any significant problems (Glangwili)

o 1 1 A0 AN
TauarcTr 104



| agree with this one. | worked at Withybush quite extensively and | work at Prince Philip.
Prince Philip is considerably ahead in terms of the theatre facilities and the ward and support
facilities for orthopaedics. It would seem to be the natural choice for the centre. Also, the
number of orthopaedic surgeons in Carmarthenshire far outweigh Pembrokeshire. The
surgeons, staff, wards and facilities are already in place here. (Prince Philip).

397 There were, however, some concerns at Glangwili about: whether HDdHB’s population can sustain an
Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence; whether there is sufficient space at Prince Philip Hospital to develop the
facility; and the potential difficulties for patients and their visitors (especially older ones) in travelling to
Llanelli — which could be potentially overcome with the use of volunteer drivers:

I don’t think we have got the population for it (Glangwili)

The majority of elective surgery is already done at Prince Philip. The problem for them is
theatre space (Glangwili)

A lot of the elderly population are cared for by their spouses who are also elderly and that | is
going to be an issue for them, both financially and emotionally (Glangwili)

My solution to this is to develop volunteer drivers. There are third sector organisations out
there who are trying to promote these workers to help hospital visiting. | think the Health
Board should consider subsidising something like this (Glangwili).

39 At Bronglais, participants generally agreed that an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence is needed in the
HDdHB area and, while in an ideal world they would like to see this developed at Bronglais, they accepted
Prince Philip as a more realistic option — and preferable to Withybush in terms of access from Ceredigion:

We do need a specialist centre in orthopaedics for the revisions, because at the moment we
have to send them away (Bronglais)

| would like to develop orthopaedics here, don’t get me wrong. But then for a Centre of
Excellence to be within Hywel Dda | would like that (Bronglais)

Llanelli is easier to get to because it’s straight down the road (Bronglais)

I wouldn’t be happy with it being in Withybush because of the travelling...it will take all day to
get there. A bus to Cardigan and then another bus to Withybush (Bronglais)

39 There were, however, some concerns about: the travelling distance from Ceredigion to Llanelli for patients;
and whether there will be a sufficient number of patients in the area to sustain the service:

Travelling distances do make a difference, especially if you have got a loved one (Bronglais)
| suppose my question would be, do they have enough complex operations to do to keep their
skills? (Bronglais).
3100 Bronglais staff also strongly desired improvements to the existing operating theatres at their hospital,
which they described as outdated and not fit for purpose:

We have to have our main theatres refurbished. We have one theatre where there is a column
that holds the roof up. When you have got a patient in a bed going down a ramp and there’s a
column at the end of it, well... (Bronglais).




3101 The Withybush staff who took part in either the focus groups or telephone interviews generally opposed
HDdHB’s preferred option of establishing an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence at Prince Philip. Their main
reasons for opposition were predicated on the belief that Withybush will lose all elective inpatient
orthopaedics — and were as follows:

The service provided at Withybush is just as good as (or even better than) that provided at
Prince Philip

| just don’t think Prince Philip are doing anything better; if anything our length of stay
is shorter than theirs (Withybush)

It could lead to the loss of services across Withybush Hospital as a whole (and subsequent
redundancies at all staffing levels)

Orthopaedics is the bread and butter stuff; it’s what keeps the service ticking over and
without it | think the service would collapse...if you start knocking out orthopaedics
then you start to lose your HDU and critical care units and without them we can’t do
what we do, because you need an ITU (Withybush)

Once you haven’t got orthopaedic cover overnight then all the trauma service goes.
It’s like Ker-plunk...when that’s gone and that’s gone and that’s gone then the whole
infrastructure goes. We do ten joints a week...if you lose those there is a gap and we
would need fewer domestics, less catering staff. You will need less of everybody
(Withybush)

It could impact on the recruitment of medical staff

If you lose hips and knees and just have the minor left you won’t have people applying
for jobs here and you won’t have staff to fill the rota (Withybush)

There was one useful page in the document that has ticks on it saying what you will
and won’t have, and next to inpatient orthopaedics there is a cross. In the literature it
talks about elective orthopaedic surgeries will be lost, but if we lose this we won’t
attract trainee doctors in to work here (Withybush)

The distance to Prince Philip for patients and visitors

The vast majority of people having the surgery are older. My parents live five minutes
down the road and she drives as far as Haverfordwest and that’s it. If my dad had to
go to Llanelli she wouldn’t drive there and so she couldn’t visit him. And they are lucky
they have got a car. It’s impossible for people this far away to get to Llanelli by public
transport to access day surgery in time. The NHS can’t afford taxis back and fore
either (Withybush)

Inaccurate and misleading supporting data

The technical information was incorrect. They have put wrong information down
regarding how many hips and knees we did in Withybush; the numbers at the bottom
were all correct but the actual breakdown of the numbers were incorrect. It appeared
that we didn’t do that many replacements when in fact we did a lot more (Withybush)

They said we didn’t have an NCPEOD (emergency theatre/operations) here to be able
to do emergencies; we do and it is manned 24/7 (Withybush)

1 1 W a¥al
adarcti— 100



On paper, we have the shortest length of stay and we have a hospital at home service
which is exclusive to Pembrokeshire which wasn’t brought out at all. It gave the
impression Prince Philip was the be all and end all. It also doesn’t say that we have
less consultants and a shorter waiting list (Withybush).

3102 There was some discussion around what would be considered ‘short-stay’ orthopaedics, with some staff
members claiming to have been told that, in future, Withybush patients would be typically expected to
have a maximum stay of three days. There was concern that this may mean people are discharged too early
—and also that it may not always be practically possible:

The argument is people are better out in the community, but take my own case. My mother
would moan and | would be like ‘sit there and don’t move again’ whereas an expert would say
‘no it’s going to be painful but get up’ (Withybush)

What | don’t like is this thing of, it’s a hip, it’s a knee — no it’s not it’s a patient. You can’t say it
will be three days because the patient might not be able to fit into that (Withybush)

If someone is really good on Friday they can be let home, but there are no physios and things
on the weekend and they would have to stay until Monday. So you are never going to get
those done within three days because of the weekend (Withybush).

3103 Generally speaking, Withybush staff argued that the current configuration of orthopaedic services can and
should be sustained - although there was some support for a Centre of Excellence for complex cases and
revisions _only at Prince Philip. Indeed, it was apparently said at the HDdHB Public Meeting in
Pembrokeshire that this would be the case, which was considered to be a positive example of HDdHB
taking heed of people’s views and moderating its proposals:

We feel having this on the both sites that there is enough operations to maintain it still. | think
the waiting list is huge for hips and knees (Withybush)

I don’t think you need a Centre of Excellence for hip and knee replacements. Maybe if it’s the
more complicated ones like if ones go wrong. If | had one done here and it had gone wrong,
then maybe | would like to go to Prince Philip to get it sorted (Withybush)

The proposal was initially for everything to go to Prince Philip, but that seems to have turned
tails after this meeting the other night where they said only specialist things should go there.
They said that we would still be keeping hips and knees here, which was not originally
mooted; that | agree with because the bread and butter of things should be at three sites.
They are probably learning that people are quite passionate about things and that’s a good
thing and that’s what the engagement is all about; that you can get people’s opinions and

that you can change it (Withybush).

Unplanned Care (Accident and Emergency)

3104 There was support at Glangwili for a nurse-led model of emergency care at Prince Philip Hospital, with all
participants feeling that full A&E services at three acute hospitals is sufficient for the HDdHB area:

I think as long as the people have got the right expertise to deal with things then that should
suffice (Glangwili)

| think Option B makes sense. It is the right thing to do. Prince Philip doesn’t have the same
level of services behind its A&E. For the sake of the distance it would be better if more of those

1 1 A0 -7
dtalcri—L1O7



types of patients went straight to an A&E that has the services that can deal with the patients
(Glangwili)

I think it is the right model...the three A&Es are plenty (Glangwili).

3105 There was, however, some concern that the medically unwell patients won’t go there either. It will get into
peoples mind-set that you go there with small injuries, and so by osmosis everyone will end up in Glangwili
(Glangwili).

3106 At Withybush and Bronglais, there was recognition that HDdHB’s preferred option will mean little change
for people in Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion and most of Carmarthenshire:

It’s not actually going to make a difference to those in Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion or
anywhere else really (Withybush).

3.07 Staff at these two hospitals did recognise the sensitivities around A&E services in Llanelli — but also argued
that the proposals represent little change in practice:

Prince Philip are probably a little bit concerned that their losing their A&E title, but it’s not
actually going to impact what they see anyway (Withybush).

This, however, was disputed at Glangwili, where participants felt that the proposal is not simply a name
change, but a fundamental service change from a doctor-led unit to a nurse-led unit:

During the consultation and roadshows it has been stated and advertised as just a change of
name to the unit, which it isn’t; it’s a change to the service. It’s not just a name change; it’s
going to be nurse-led (Glangwili)

It’s a completely different service. It’s not what is currently there. It’s not just a name change
(Glangwili).

3108 Further in terms of sensitivities, the public support for a full A&E service at Prince Philip was acknowledged
- and so managing expectations will, it was felt, be a difficult but important task:

There will be huge public support for the A&E label that is in Prince Philip. It’s going to be
about managing the change of public expectations (Glangwili)

3109 Finally, if the change to a nurse-led centre is implemented, staff at Glangwili and Bronglais stressed the
need to inform the public of the change so that they are able to choose the appropriate healthcare facility

according to their condition:

There needs to be a joined-up approach saying ‘patients with these injuries need to go to
these hospitals’ (Glangwili)

What some people may perceive as a minor injury may be different to someone else. There’s a
lot of choice there, and if you choose the wrong one you are in trouble (Bronglais)

What are people going to do if they live in Llanelli and have got chest pains. Do | go there or
do | go there? (Bronglais).

3110 The interviewee at Prince Philip also disagreed that the proposal represents ‘just a name change’; they
argued that it represents a fundamental service change insofar as certain patients (children for example)

1 1 400
adarcti— 100



and certain illnesses and injuries will not be able to be dealt with by a nurse practitioner. As such, it was
said that a high number of patients who would previously have been treated at Prince Philip will, in future,
have to go/be sent to Morriston or Glangwili — further increasing the demand on these acute hospitals:

At the moment there is an A&E consultant, there are middle grade A&E doctors and F1 juniors
and all the rest of it. | think the public in Llanelli are being misled because they are being told
that the name only is changing and the service that is being delivered will be the same and |
am arguing that this will not be the case in a nurse-led unit. There are a number of injuries like
fractures and minor head injuries, drunk patients that need assessment, children that do not
have major illnesses - none of these can be seen by Emergency Nurse Practitioners. That
means a significant amount of patients that we see coming through the doors now will no
longer be able to be seen and that means those people will have to travel further to seek
assistance, which will put more pressure on Morriston and Glangwili, neither of which are in a
position to absorb it (Prince Philip)

You are not talking a handful of patients here, you are talking about thousands and these will
have to be seen somewhere (Prince Philip)

Some things are minor injuries that need medical input...they are misleading the public. They
are saying 80% of injuries that come in are minor in nature; yes they are, but a percentage of
that 80% still need to be seen by a doctor (Prince Philip).

3111 Also, they suggested that a purely nurse-led unit could compromise patient safety as those needing medical
input will continue to present there, delaying their treatment (a viewpoint supported by some at Bronglais):

All the staff in this A&E department believe the new unit will make it less safe because the
inappropriate attendances that come through now will still come through. No matter how
much you try to educate the public, they will come through that door and there will not be a
doctor on site to help (Prince Philip)

| got caught out. | was in Essex and | went along to the Minor Injuries Unit and they said ‘we
don’t have doctors here’. | work in a hospital and | didn’t know there was not going to be a
doctor present, so how are they going to get it through to the public? This will happen in
Llanelli; people will still use it as an A&E (Bronglais).

3112 This participant acknowledged the need for change given that Prince Philip does not have the inpatient
services required to sustain a major A&E department — but, for them, the current proposal is not an
appropriate solution:

I understand the need for change as we have always had a kind of halfway house which could
be perceived as being a little bit dangerous because the inpatient services are not available.
But a pure nurse-led unit is not the answer either (Prince Philip).

They would thus prefer to see some kind of unit called the Local Accident Centre that has an element of
middle-grade medical cover working alongside the NP cover. This would enable all the patients who are
currently being seen here, to continue to be seen here (Prince Philip).




Women and Children’s Services
Neonatal Services

3113 At Bronglais, there was some difference of opinion as to whether HDdHB needs a Level 2 Neonatal Unit.
Some endorsed it (on the proviso that consultant-led services are maintained at Bronglais) whereas others
preferred using the money earmarked for the development to improve services at the three existing sites:

I don’t have a problem with that, along as we maintain our consultant-led service (Bronglais)

| think the new unit is needed in Hywel Dda...some of the babies that would end up in
Singleton would be back here, so that would be better for families (Bronglais)

We haven’t looked at the consequence of mothers not having access to treatment within
Hywel Dda. Like how many children or mothers have died? | suspect the answer is none and if
it is, then what is the problem? (Bronglais)

Is the new unit needed? Certainly when | went to the Withybush consultation they haven’t got
a problem so why do they need to change what is going on there? And to the best of my
knowledge there is not a problem here so why do we need to have another Centre of
Excellence? (Bronglais)

3114 If the decision is taken to establish the new services, Glangwili was the preferred location for Bronglais
participants due to the easier access from Ceredigion to Carmarthen (as opposed to Ceredigion to
Haverfordwest):

| would be horrified if they made the unit at Withybush from a Ceredigion point of view, purely
because of the road infrastructure. Withybush is a long way from anywhere else (Bronglais).

There was, however, some understanding of the issues raised by Pembrokeshire staff and residents —
particularly in relation to the distance to Glangwili, and the proximity of Carmarthen to the Level 3 Unit
in Swansea:

You can understand their point of view at Withybush in that they will have far to go to
Carmarthen, whereas Carmarthen can go to Swansea (Bronglais).

3115 Finally in terms of Bronglais, participants questioned whether the figure of 3,800 births per year across the
three counties includes the mothers from Gwynedd and Powys that give birth in Bronglais as | know dealing
with this myself; they say we need to take out Powys and Gwynedd when figures are involved (Bronglais).

3116 At Glangwili and Prince Philip, staff were of the view that:

This is one of the better planned and communicated of the proposals...it makes sense
(Glangwili)

The Health Board direction is right; you need people with the expertise there who are dealing
with it on a regular basis (Glangwili).

3117 In terms of location, three of the four participants spoken to at Glangwili and the one interviewee at Prince
Philip favoured Glangwili on the grounds of centrality (the remaining Glangwili participant favoured
Withybush because of Glangwili’s proximity to Singleton Hospital in Swansea):




If you have paediatric services in three hospitals, and one has the HDU and Level 2 Neonatal
Unit, then it should be Carmarthen. It’s central..you have to look at the geography
(Glangwili).

In fact, one Glangwili staff member was of the opinion that the decision to locate the new neonatal
services in Carmarthen has already been taken and that plans are already underway to develop the site:

| understand that the planning is quite well along. | know we are constantly being told
decisions haven’t been made and that we are in a consultation period but | think that it is not
totally accurate. | know there is a footprint on the Glangwili site for where they are going to
build the thing...it seems obvious that the Health Board have already decided that Glangwili is
where it should happen (Glangwili).

3118 There was some sympathy for the people of Pembrokeshire in terms of the distance and difficult transport
networks between some areas of their county and Glangwili (which could, it was felt, be overcome by
increased use of the air ambulance) - and also recognition that there will be resistance to HDdHB's
preference for Glangwili:

It should be on the M4 corridor and it should be close to Swansea so | would say Glangwili. But if |
lived in Pembrokeshire | would say different (Glangwili)

If you were a woman in that situation you would feel very apprehensive being so far away from the
specialist unit (Glangwili)

The only problem is the distance between Glangwili and Withybush...the transport and road
infrastructure does not lend itself well. If you have got somebody who has an unplanned
complicated delivery and they are in Fishguard, that journey from there to Glangwili
potentially could be very dangerous. That could be a problem when trying to sell it to the
public (Glangwili).

3119 Strong feelings were expressed on this issue at Withybush, where it was agreed that the Level 2 Unit is not
required (or indeed sustainable) — and that the status quo of sending the small number of babies that need
a high level of care to Singleton Hospital in Swansea should continue:

Why can’t we just put our hands up and say we don’t offer the Level 2 service to those 20
children a year? (Withybush)

Swansea want the Llanelli people and then that means Carmarthen haven’t got enough
people to fill this...there are not enough numbers to justify it. The people of Llanelli will not
want to go to Carmarthen anyway; they will want to go to Swansea because it’s closer
(Withybush)

Can we dafford to have a Level 2 unit within the health boundaries? (Withybush).
3120 Indeed, it was generally felt that establishing such a unit anywhere within HDdHB risks disadvantaging the

majority of babies in order to cater for the minority — and that, as a result, standards of care will not be
improved for most:

It’s benefitting a small amount of children, but it’s not benefitting a huge amount more. We
need to weigh up the risks of who is benefitting the most (Withybush)

The children who require the Level 2 neonatal intensive care...it’s a very small number of
children. I've got the impression that Level 2 across Hywel Dda is 20 children which equates to




half a cot in Singleton every six months. In an ideal world you wouldn’t want to move those
children, but with the proposal to keep them within the Health Board, you are then going to
disadvantage other children and put more at risk (Withybush)

What | am worried about is that | am here to give the best possible care to the children, and |
hand on heart can’t see how this will improve their care (Withybush).

3121 The Withybush staff were also opposed to HDdHB's preferred option of establishing a Level 2 Neonatal Unit
at Glangwili (and, especially, the consequent closure of the SCBU at Withybush). Their main reasons for
opposition were as follows:

Travelling will have a detrimental effect on the health of babies (some of whom are not
critically ill and thus should not have to be moved, as the level of care required can currently be
provided at Withybush Hospital)

You need to move the babies that are incredibly sick to where the experts are, but
when you move a baby that is not incredibly sick and perhaps just needs high
dependency you make it worse and it actually brings about the need for more
intervention because it hasn’t been able to rest. Those are the ones that should be
kept where they are (Withybush)

| would say 50% of all our admissions are those where things go wrong in the last
hour of labour or at delivery or just after delivery. It will make it worse because what
they need is minimal handling and rest (Withybush)

The effect of the travelling and separation on parents and families — and their ability to bond
with the new child

If they are there for three months and you are traipsing your family back and
fore...the financial and emotional pressure of the fact that you have still got to get on
with life will be immense (Withybush)

With SCBU babies, the bonding issues are horrendous. If they are in Carmarthen and
the parents can only see them once or twice a week, there is no hope (Withybush)

The deskilling of Withybush staff

If you cut us down to a two cot unit then we will have even less neonatal care
experience. We will all be further de-skilled (Withybush)

The impact on the recruitment of neonatal consultants

I’m worried it will downgrade the paediatric unit here and this would mean we would
lose the calibre of consultants it would attract (Withybush)

The ‘knock-on effect’ on other services such as A&E

If SCBU is moved, it has a knock-on effect on emergency services, which won’t stay the
same because there will not be the expertise to deal with critically sick children
coming in. If there is no ward there, there will be no nurses there with the expertise to
help. As a knock on effect, it will not be sustainable. It will be like what happened to
Llanelli (Withybush)

Glangwili is closer to Singleton Hospital in Swansea

1 1 A 70
adaiicri 11«



Their other argument to put it in Glangwili is that it’s closer to Swansea, but to me
that’s an argument to put it here (Withybush)

The people at Carmarthen will be given more choice and they are closer to Morriston
and Singleton anyway (Withybush)

There is more space to expand at Withybush

We were originally built for a 14 bed cot unit. The workload has gone up but we have
cut the cots down to seven now. We could actually expand back to 14 if we really
wanted to and if we had more staff and a few extras. At Glangwili their unit is tiny; it
was developed out of offices and there is hardly any room. If they are going to extend
then it will have to be new build (Withybush)

The figures used to justify Glangwili as the preferred option are flawed

| have been doing the figures for the past couple of years and they are trying to say
that Carmarthen has a bigger population and they have more admissions. They don’t
have more admissions, they are often more at capacity level because theirs is six and
ours is seven, which makes a bit of a difference when you are adding up figures. | also
noticed in the consultation document that the very year they say ‘Withybush has this
many admissions’ was the lowest year we have ever had in history. And they made a
comparison just for that year. It has been misrepresented a little bit (Withybush)

They use a scale which we calculate our numbers from. The new scale changed from
2011, and where we used to count babies on Continuous Areas of Pressure (CPAC) as
intensive care on the first 48 hours; we have stopped that now and basically intensive
care is just intensive care and CPAC is high dependency. | know Carmarthen are
putting down their CPAC babies for the first five days as intensive care. It totally skews
the figures (Withybush)

It will encourage some existing staff to look for work elsewhere

It takes me 25 minutes to get to Withybush now, but for me to get to Carmarthen that
is over an hour journey. | wouldn’t mind doing that now and again, but to do that day
in day out its not feasible with the petrol. So | would look for somewhere else to work
(Withybush).

3122 |n addition to the above, it was suggested that, if the proposals go ahead, the Neonatal Unit at Withybush
should remain as it is - especially in terms of being able to stabilise the mothers and babies that will still
present there in an emergency. As such, the cost saving from the proposal, it was felt, will be minimal:

Mums are still going to present here. It makes no sense at all. If a mother is bleeding, they are
going to come here; they are not going to drive 45 minutes with the baby coming out. We
need the equipment (Withybush)

You couldn’t put someone who is haemorrhaging in an ambulance; they have to be dealt with
here. You still have to have a high level of trained staff (Withybush)

Any baby that presents we would have to stabilise here. So we have already used a big bulk of
money to stabilise that baby and then they would move it to Carmarthen. Then what they are
proposing is that when it is well enough to have transitional care again they will move it back.
What’s the point? We will have used all the major drugs etc., and if the baby is too sick and

1 1 A7
ddalcri—Lrro



needs intensive care they will go straight past Carmarthen anyway because it will need to go
to Swansea (Withybush).

However, the general feeling was that resources at Withybush would be reduced, placing more
demands on staff as, it was feared, the same number of mothers will present there:

My fear is they will take away all our equipment - they will leave us with two cots and two
staff per shift to man it - and we will still get more or less the same amount of
babies...mothers will present here because there is lack of transport and there are hardly any
buses or trains (Withybush).

Paediatrics

3123 The paediatric wards at both Glangwili and Withybush currently have a high dependency base, which was
acknowledged to cause some issues at certain times:

The principle of having a high dependency base within a paediatric ward does cause issues
because sometimes you have to close the unit for safe practice (Withybush).

3.124 For this reason, the establishment of a Paediatric High Dependency Unit (HDU) was considered desirable —
but also, unfortunately, unworkable in practice. In fact, there was strong opposition at Withybush to the
establishment of such an unit anywhere within HDdHB on the following grounds:

Travelling will have a detrimental effect on the health of children (some of whom are not
critically ill and thus should not have to be moved, as the level of care required can currently be
provided at both hospitals)

What they want to do is centralise the HDUs so when they come off the wards they go
to a central unit, which on paper sounds great and that is almost an attractive option.
But it doesn’t seem practical because you are going to have to move children from
Pembrokeshire to Carmarthenshire and if it was the other side of the coin | would say
the same. You are moving children that do not need to move (Withybush)

The HDU (and potentially inpatient paediatrics as a whole) at the ‘other’ hospital could become
unviable

It would be lovely to spend the money and have this High Dependency Unit, but there
are not enough children to make it viable in one place without completely moving
paediatric services from another (Withybush)

The implications of moving all paediatric high dependency to Carmarthen means that
we won’t have any here at Withybush. If we don’t have Level 1 children in Withybush,
then we can’t do any surgery for any children whatsoever, which means the whole
inpatient service become unsustainable (Withybush)

We have roughly two children a week that go into high dependency. To make a four-
bedded HDU viable, you would have to have all those children in Carmarthen say.
Which means we can’t do any surgery at all, which means they would all have to go
to Carmarthen. Any child having operations would be affected because the ward
would be unsustainable. People would have to just be transferred from A&E
(Withybush)




Fear of a ‘knock-on effect’ on other services such as A&E — and on the recruitment of medical
staff

It cuts off a quarter of people coming to Withybush because a quarter of all patients
are children...then the A&E will be downgraded, which is what has happened to
Llanelli. They have taken paediatrics from there, and now it’s going to be a Minor
Injuries Unit (Withybush)

If we just have a treat and transfer cot like they have at Bronglais, we will really
struggle to get paediatric doctors to come there and work. If they move it from
Carmarthen they are in the same boat as well (Withybush)

The de-skilling of staff at the ‘other’ hospital

If we move the Level 1 beds from either Carmarthen or Withybush, then the surgeons
and anaesthetists lose the skills of looking after children. They won’t do emergency
surgery, so if we lose the emergency stuff like appendicitis and the manipulations,
there won’t be the skills there (Withybush)

The increased demand on A&E (and the knock-on effect on staffing the paediatric ward)

My understanding is that if you take high dependency off the ward so then these
children need to be stabilised in A&E...they haven’t got many paediatricians there. If
you take a nurse off the ward to go down to A&E to support a child who is unwell then
you are compromising the staffing levels on the ward (Withybush)

The increased demand on the Ambulance Service (and the need for more child-friendly
ambulances)

You would be transferring God knows how many times a week and the Welsh
Ambulance Service do not have enough ambulances. And because the children are not
critically ill, as far as they are concerned the child is in a place of safety in A&E and
they have to wait, but then they could be in A&E for hours. We need more
ambulances capable of transferring children... (Withybush)

If they are going to be transporting children and mums, they are going to have to
have more paramedics on board and have more ambulances for sure. Transport is a
huge issue (Withybush).

Overall

3125 The Withybush staff strongly urged HDdHB to reconsider its proposal to develop a Paediatric HDU and a
Level 2 Neonatal Unit on one site — and instead to invest the money earmarked for this to raise standards at
the three main sites (Withybush, Glangwili, and especially Bronglais):

There is going to have to be a significant investment to create the services and | think ‘why not use
that funding to strengthen services in the three counties?’ (Withybush)

If there is money to spend then it should be invested in staffing and training on the three sites.
I’m not saying stay the same, we have to advance and get better (Withybush)

Having a unit in Carmarthen is not going to make it any safer for those in Bronglais; why can’t
they have neonatal training there? (Withybush)

1 1 4 2.
ddalcri—L1ro



If this is not feasible, however, the preference was for a new, more central facility in, say, Whitland (a
site also championed by one Glangwili participant):

Personally, | think the best option would be to invest in the three sites. But if you can’t staff
the three sites then what may be better is a new hospital in between the two areas, which will
make the travelling more equal. Let’s make it equitable, and the proposals are not as there is
a wholesale shift westwards (Withybush)

You are always going to get somebody who will lose out. If you were to look at three counties
and to find the most central place it would be Whitland to build a super-hospital (Glangwili).

3126 |t was also said that Royal College guidelines (that stipulate the need for 2,500+ births per year for a safe
service) cannot be equally applied to urban and rural areas - and that HDdHB must accept the limitations its
geography poses on achieving these standards:

If someone comes up with a standard saying you must have 2,500 births in a centre, that’s the
standard. The point is we live in a rural area so we can’t meet these standards. To get this
standard we will need massive investment, when it’s better to focus on the three separate
units and spread the investment so people don’t have to travel so far (Withybush).

3127 On a final note, participants at Withybush expressed regret that the issue of location has proved divisive
amongst the staff on the different sites. They argued that staff at Glangwili and Withybush (and to some
extent Bronglais) have not taken a HDdHB-wide view on the issue due to their preoccupation with fighting
their own corner — and strongly advocated that they ‘come together as a group’ to discuss the issues in the
round and take a holistic view of the situation:

It’s trying to see what’s best for everyone and what really disappoints me is that the three
sites have not been strong as a group. We have all just been looking at ourselves and not the
Board as a whole. We should all be supporting each other. Now it has become a survival of
the fittest thing (Withybush)

What really disappoints me is it’s getting to the stage where it’s Withybush versus Bronglais
versus Carmarthen when we are all trying to provide the same service (Withybush).

Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr Hospital)

3128 The proposed closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital was only discussed in-depth with the Carmarthenshire-
based participants, among whom there was some division of opinion. Most participants supported the
change on the grounds that the hospital building is no longer fit for purpose and that patients will be better
cared for on a state-of-the-art ward at Prince Philip Hospital:

Mynydd Mawr hospital is an old, ropey building that is not really fit for purpose. So moving
the services that are there makes sense (Glangwili)

The building itself is no longer fit for purpose; the infrastructure is not accessible for people. |
think generally people will accept the relocation to Prince Philip (Glangwili)

| agree with the closure of Mynydd Mawr because it is an ancient hospital. The patients will be
provided with a state-of-the-art brand new ward that has never opened. It would cost very
little to open that ward, and they could be transferred. | have even talked to staff at Mynydd
Mawr and they have said they would be more than happy to transfer to Prince Philip in those
circumstances (Prince Philip).

1 1 A 270
gdalicri—Lr 19O



3129 The Prince Philip participant, however, caveated their acceptance of the proposed closure with a demand
for community services to be in place prior to the change being implemented:

| agree providing the community services are in place. This will reassure the public, staff and
patients (Prince Philip).

3130 One person disagreed with the plans because of the reduction in inpatient beds and the loss of a
community rehabilitation facility to prevent ‘bed-blocking’:

| understand that not that long ago Mynydd Mawr had 30-ish beds, and moving to the
planned ward at Prince Philip would reduce it to 15 (Glangwili)

At the moment Mynydd Mawr is a community rehab service and | don’t particularly see how
the specialist dementia ward is appropriate. If that’s all it’s going to do then we are going to
be bereft of a community rehabilitation service (Glangwili).

3.131 Staff also desired more information on what the proposed new Community Resource Centre in Cross Hands
will entail — and whether rehabilitation services will be provided there so that patients can be treated in
their own community:

It doesn’t state what is going to be at the Community Resource Centre in Crosshands.
Physiotherapy happens where people are so if you move the rehab service to Prince Philip, it
doesn’t make a lot of sense (Glangwili).

Minor Injury Units

3132 There was some disagreement regarding the proposed closure of the Minor Injuries Services at Tenby and
South Pembrokeshire Hospitals. Some people supported the change insofar as the current facilities are
underused:

| used to do clinics in South Pembs and my colleague does clinics at Tenby. They are
underused...| don’t think Tenby have much of an argument really because they don’t use what
they have got. It is not utilised (Withybush)

3133 Others, although not against the proposal in principle, were concerned about: the potential impact of the
proposal on A&E at Withybush; the difficult access to Withybush from the Tenby/Pembroke Dock area; the
increased population in Tenby during the summer months; and the possible difficulties involved in
increasing the number of Emergency Nurse Practitioners:

If you are going to close the Minor Injury Units in Tenby and South Pembs it’s going to create
much more stress on A&E and waiting times are going to be worse (Withybush)

They take away the stress from A&E because people can go there and then if they do need to
be seen at an A&E then they are referred. It takes strain off the A&E departments (Withybush)

People will go to A&E. This pressurises A&E even more and they are not coping well as they
are without potentially loading more pressure onto them (Glangwili)

It’s the other side of the river; it’s not very easy to get too. South Pembs is also the other side
of the toll bridge as well (Glangwili)

I have doubts whether they can carry it through. Not many people want to do it because it’s
quite a specialist area and ENPs are trained from A&E nurses and there is already a shortage
of these nurses and it’s difficult to recruit and retain once they are in A&E (Prince Philip)

2=
[

e =P DA | 1
Tadalcri—L



It sounds great, but | have worries about Tenby during the summer periods because they can
be quite busy | understand (Prince Philip).

313 Although there was support for GP practices providing Minor Injury Services in principle, there was
considerable uncertainty across all groups as to whether GPs will be able, and indeed willing, to do so
(especially out-of-hours) — as well as a great deal of concern about the potential impact of this on waiting
times for GP services:

Closing the Minor Injuries Unit is all very well if you are going to put something there in its
place, but historically GP practices haven’t been interested. So unless they come up with some
incentive... (Withybush)

Why are they are talking about GP practices? | can’t see them opening all hours (Glangwili)

| would argue for the Minor Injury Units; you can’t get an appointment with a GP for two
weeks... (Withybush)

I live in Pembroke Dock, and to try and get into the doctors surgery there is almost impossible
unless you are dying (Withybush).
Community Services and Primary Care

Care Closer to Home

3135 Despite a general enthusiasm for the principles behind providing care closer to home, many participants
were cautious about its achievability in practice and felt that it must be properly resourced — as well as
‘tried and tested’ before secondary care services are removed:

It would be a good vision, but in reality | can’t see how it is going to work in such a spread out
area (Bronglais)

What we haven’t got is enough resources. With the 80% shift from acute to community, we
need to have that (Glangwili)

| just want to see resources come from acute to community. The resource should be outside,
not where they spend a snapshot of their time in a hospital building. It’s about bringing the
services into a patient’s home to stop them from going into hospital (Glangwili)

Well that would be great wouldn’t it? But you would need that all in place before you reduce
the services (Withybush)

| do appreciate that in the long-term the services will be put into the community, but there
doesn’t seem to be any plan. Things need to be in place before they do this (Bronglais).

Indeed, some participants described a sense of déja vu in terms of having ‘heard all this before’ and
were somewhat cynical and disillusioned about the likelihood of success this time around:

| agree with that wholeheartedly. But | have been in the NHS for 37 years and we have been
talking about that since | joined...I am a bit disillusioned by it (Withybush).

3136 On staff member described their poor personal experience of care closer to home, which has led them to
view the proposals with some cynicism:

Some care in the community is exceptionally poor; it’s only better to be cared for in the home
if that care is properly organised and structured. My aunt recently died in hospital because

1 1 4270
adalcri—Lr1ro



she couldn’t get the care at home; it took so long to arrange that in the mean time she died in
hospital. There is not enough communication, the left hand doesn’t know what the right hand
is doing and there is a myriad of paperwork to get through. With my 23 years of experience in
the health service | have my doubts; if you can’t be cared for properly at home then hospital is
the better way (Prince Philip).

3137 However, community healthcare workers commented on the success of HDdHB’s Community Resource
Teams and Acute Response Teams, particularly with respect to integrated working between partners and
preventing avoidable hospital admissions:

I’m involved with the Community Resource Team. We have the physios, the nurses, the OTs,
the social workers and home care so we have already made that step into integrated working
and | think it is working very well (Glangwili)

Before we had Community Resource Teams you would have all the different disciplines in
different buildings, whereas now all the disciplines are in this building. It’s easy to just shout
across or knock a door if you need anything. There is a much stronger relationship now,
people are more comfortable and they have built up trust and knowledge between the
different professionals (Glangwili)

We have implemented Community Resource Teams in four areas which is a mix of
professionals from social workers, to social occupational therapists to health occupational
therapists to physios (Community, Pembrokeshire)

The Acute Response Team has taken steps towards stopping hospital admissions through
providing services that were never previously available in the community (Glangwili).

Despite their success in Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire, however, the rural nature of Ceredigion
means that they do not work as well there — and the Bronglais staff were more in favour of Community
Resource Centres to which patients can travel (but not too far!):

Distance is our problem...we have got an Acute Response Team that has started in Carmarthen; it’s
brilliant and it works very well when you have got a big population in a small area. They have
brought it up here and the girls are fantastic but they can’t see more than about four patients in a
day because they have got to travel (Bronglais)

We think that Community Resource Centres are better; they have to travel but it’s not too far. You
can‘t put a square peg in a round hole. That is what works and it is the most cost effective way
(Bronglais).

3138 A telephone interview was undertaken with a member of Pembrokeshire’s community healthcare team,
who claimed that much of what is being proposed by HDdHB is already being done there — and that they
are beginning to get recognition for their good work:

A lot of what he said we are already doing; that is what surprised me (Community, Pembrokeshire)

| have just recently read a report on palliative care in Pembrokeshire and it has significantly
increased at home. We are getting something right there. People are dying at home and that is
what they want to do. That is excellent. It just shows how much care is going on in the community
(Community, Pembrokeshire)

1 1 A 70\
ddalcri—L1ro



Pembrokeshire ‘care closer to home’ has been picked as one of five sites for research, which we are
quite pleased about because it will bring us forward on the map (Community, Pembrokeshire).

3139 However, the interviewee said that providing this is a struggle currently — and that proper resourcing is
necessary to be able to achieve proper success. Further, the need to recognise the differences between
what will work in each of the three counties was considered key in ensuring the success of community
healthcare:

There is a lot going on in the community. However, we all have concerns about resources being
stretched. The biggest thing from the community sector is what is going to be put in place? We
have not had any staff from the acute sector...even when a ward was closed the staff were put on
another ward. Nothing currently has been moved out into the community to help with what they
are proposing (Community, Pembrokeshire)

We are all struggling to provide what we are providing right now. That’s the difficulty. We are not
sinking, we are swimming but with difficulty. My concerns are what is expected of us. At the
moment we are stretched. For patients to be cared for within their home setting and provided with
expertise in their home...none of that can happen without more money being put in (Community,
Pembrokeshire)

Although Hywel Dda is supposed to be the three together we are like three different countries. We
all have different ways of working and often it is due to the rurality, cultures and beliefs. Ceredigion
is very rural and the district nurses have to travel a long way to get to patients. Pembrokeshire
again is rural but not as much as Ceredigion but then Carmarthen has the huge urban area of
Llanelli which takes a lot of resources because of deprivation. We are definitely three different
countries; we work differently. We have integrated with local authority and Pembrokeshire and
work as a joint team, but that doesn’t happen with community nurses in the other two areas. We
all have a different way of putting the development of this consultation forward (Community,
Pembrokeshire).

3140 According to the above participant, another significant barrier to successful community healthcare is the
reluctance of GPs to get involved with it to any great degree. They suggested that, until this situation is
addressed, properly provided care closer to home will be practically impossible:

The biggest thing | would say is that we need primary care on board. We have been doing an awful
lot of work on care closer to home and we have looked at frequent flyers into A&E to chronic
conditions, but we only have one GP on board from all of Pembrokeshire. Until we get the GP’s on
board then we won’t be able to deliver everything that is asked of us (Community, Pembrokeshire).

Community Virtual Wards are apparently a perfect example of the lack of GP engagement with
community services; in Ceredigion it was claimed that only three GPs have signed up to the scheme.
Further, the wards currently in operation have clearly not lived up to the expectations of some staff in
other ways:

As far as | know only three GP’s have signed up to the virtual ward! (Bronglais)

Community Virtual Wards are already happening but the one at Carmarthen didn’t achieve
what it was supposed to. The idea is fine and plausible but previously when it has been tried it
created an incredible burden of work; the manpower was huge and it didn’t succeed in its aim
(Glangwili).

1 1 4100\
adarcti—1rovu



3141 Finally in terms of care closer to home, one apparently significant issue that must be addressed is the
disconnect between current healthcare and social care IT systems, which apparently do not allow health
professionals to access social care information and vice versa. A single, integrated system would, it was felt,
greatly facilitate the development of jointly-provided community services in all areas:

There is real difficulty with the system the community social workers use. Everyone | know
thinks it’s a dreadful thing and find ways to work around it, but social services won’t hear a
word against it! (Glangwili)

Social care would probably say the same about the Health Service that they find it hard to
work with them. They usually complain they don’t have access to records. Our IT systems are
currently not configured in a way which we can share this information. It is still quite a
cumbersome process, but there is a commitment where we are going to have IT systems that
are going to be able to talk to each other (Glangwili)

IT is a huge hurdle because it depends whether you are looking at a health system or a social
system. That will only give you that level of information in health or social care. If as a nurse
you are going out to see Mrs Jones and she is a little bit confused, you may not know whether
she has a care package or family networks. But if you could click a button to know what is
going on then there is far more confidence to leave Mrs Jones in that situation because
someone will be there soon (Glangwili).

Moving Services from Hospitals to the Community

3142 There was general praise for the principle of moving as many services out of hospitals and into the
community as possible — and for improving access to GPs, dentists, opticians and pharmacists (although
there was some scepticism as to whether GPs will offer longer hours in reality and that pharmacies can be
reached by all patients within 15 minutes):

I fully support that. The majority of GP practices are only open during working hours for
people who have got day jobs. The only way they can visit the GPs is if they can take time off
work (Glangwili)

Access to Orthodontists is very postcode lottery; it’s not equal and certainly not local. | don’t
think there are any in Bronglais. | don’t think there is equity of care there at the moment
(Glangwili)

A lot of the chronic eye conditions should be managed in the communities in the opticians.
They do it in Carmarthen and elsewhere (Withybush)

It would benefit people who are in a more rural community who would otherwise have to
travel to see a GP to have, say, a flu jab. That would save a heck of a lot of time in the
surgeries if people were to be given them in the pharmacies (Withybush)

Wouldn’t it be great? But | don’t think they will achieve that in 20 years. Are the GPs going to
work until nine at night? | work with GPs and quite a lot of them are stuck in their ways. Also,
when they work out-of-hours they get paid an absolute fortune, so when there are routine
appointments it is going to be quite difficult (Prince Philip)

They won’t do more unless you pay them more and stop them being self-contracted. GPs
haven’t changed the way they work for years and years (Bronglais)

1 1 104
ddalcii—Lroxl



Some patients will not live 15 minutes away from a pharmacy. Some people live more than 15
minutes away from the nearest village so that is total nonsense really (Withybush).

3183 The need for more outpatients’ appointments to be held closer to home was also stated. One staff member
claimed that patients are having to travel unnecessarily for outpatient appointments due to the fact that
consultant clinics are not held in outlying hospitals:

You will find some consultants are not willing to travel or just want to do clinics in their own
hospital. Some trauma patients are operated on in Carmarthen and the consultant doesn’t do
clinics here and so they have to go back there for their outpatient appointments. Why make
an 80 year old travel a 40-mile round journey when they have all the facilities at Prince Philip
but the consultant won’t do the clinic here? (Prince Philip).

3.144 District and community nurses, it was felt, have a very important role to play in community healthcare —
particularly in terms of helping people manage chronic conditions:

Community nurses have got a massive role to play and they don’t do enough. A lot of the
chronic conditions could be managed in the community such as the diabetics and asthmatics,
people with coronary heart disease (Withybush).

However, the need to recognise the rurality of HDdHB (and provide an appropriate level of resource to
cater for that) was strongly advocated — especially with respect to Ceredigion:

It’s about taking into account that we are a rural area and we need the facilities to support
that as compared to the city. They could spend all day doing three cases if they are covering
large areas? Most of their day taken will be travelling (Withybush)

We have specialist nurses going to people’s homes, but the waiting list is growing because
they can only see a small number of people because of the distance in-between (Bronglais)

If they have a geographical spread of 20 to 30 miles of all the patients’” homes, how are the
staff, who they are talking about taking out of the acute setting into the community,
physically going to do it? (Bronglais).

3145 |t was also said that community nurses’ roles must be strictly defined insofar as they do a great job, but
they are often used as social checker uppers. They are a blanket cover for anything and everything. They
should be focusing on what they should be doing. It seems that in any service there needs to be a
community nurse there, when really there doesn’t (Glangwili).

Other Significant Issues
Recruitment Issues

3.146 |n terms of overcoming HDdHB’s recruitment issues (which were acknowledged), more active promotion of
the quality of life the area can offer was suggested - as was offering appropriate incentive packages:

On the recruiting side, there was some money for a paediatrician but they can’t recruit.
Everything is up in the air; it needs to be attractive (Withybush)

Most of the people that come to work here aren’t looking for a career move; it’s either
because there are family connections or they want to live in the countryside. We need to push
and build it up to make it look attractive (Withybush)

1 1 41 .09
gdalicri—1roc



We are advertising for new surgeons to come into the area and nobody wants to come here.
You have to offer the right packages for people to come here and that is what they are not
doing. They are not promoting the area either (Bronglais).

3147 There was some concern that, by developing Centres of Excellence on certain sites, recruiting good quality
staff to the remaining sites becomes increasingly difficult:

We have to provide essential services here and we need to make it exciting enough for us to
be able to recruit (Bronglais).

Issues Specific to Bronglais

3148 Staff at Bronglais were very concerned about the shortage of staff and beds across all hospital
departments:

Staff morale is very low. They feel strongly that we are working at unsafe levels and we have
had complaints and people in this area never usually complain. We have had too many staff
taken from us. We are working with skeleton staff and unsafe levels at time (Bronglais)

We are so short of beds; we don’t have enough in this hospital (Bronglais).

In fact, they saw this as symptomatic of HDdHB’s desire to eventually close the hospital — a feeling
compounded by the Health Board’s alleged disregard for patient flows at the very beginning of the
Listening and Engagement phase:

There is a hidden agenda and that is closing Bronglais...we are very suspicious because
Bronglais has been threatened for many years with closure (Bronglais)

Right from the beginning they didn’t look at patient flows...that 40% of our patients come
from Powys and South Gwynedd. We are very suspicious because of that...that they were
trying to make out that we were quieter than we are. They have been deliberately kept out to
get what they want (Bronglais).

3189 There was also a strong sense that Ceredigion is the ‘poor relation’” of HDdHB and that the views emerging
from the county are given less regard than those from Carmarthenshire and, to a lesser extent,
Pembrokeshire:

Ceredigion has always been the poor relation and we have to make do with a very small pot of
money. They don’t take into account the rurality so we don’t feel we get a big enough slice of
the pie (Bronglais)

We are not being treated equally; we get the feeling that Carmarthenshire are sitting pretty
because they know they are safe. And even the comments that come out of clinical meetings,
we are left to feel that our opinion is unimportant (Bronglais)

It’s a ‘them and us’ culture that has been created right from the beginning. We are made to
feel that we are insignificant purely because of the small numbers we have compared to other
areas (Bronglais).

3150 Although travel distance was an issue for many staff participants in relation to specific proposals, it was a
significant general concern at Bronglais. Many comments were made about the difficulties involved in
transporting patients — both within and outside HDdHB:

1 1 4109
adarcti—1roo



Ceredigion is a very rural area. People don’t consider how long journeys actually take. A birds-
eye view looks like it would take half an hour but when you’re on the road it may take an hour
and a half (Bronglais)

Transporting patients from here out to places like Swansea, Cardiff and Liverpool and
Birmingham for children; that is a huge problem for us. We don’t have enough ambulances in
this area, we can’t always get a helicopter. We do have problems obtaining transport when
we need to (Bronglais).

As such, they were very much of the view that HDdHB should ensure healthcare professionals are
making the best use of telemedicine, and look creatively at overcoming the issues presented by rurality
— by looking at how it is done elsewhere for example:

I think a lot of it will have to be thinking outside of the box and look at different ways of doing

it and | think telemedicine will have a huge bearing on that (Bronglais)

Telehealth in medicine is really helpful here, what we would like to do is to see the GPs taking
on more using our support (Bronglais)

We need to look outside the box. For instance, up in Scotland there are huge rural areas and
the Post Office vans deliver things and pick up people to come in (Bronglais).

3151 |n light of the distance issues outlined above, while Bronglais staff could see the need to consolidate some
services into Centres of Excellence, they felt that HDdHB should accept that some patients (some whom
have never travelled outside Ceredigion) will prefer to trade some degree of specialism for accessibility. As
such, the services outside the Centres of Excellence, it was felt, must also be maintained to a high standard:

Because it’s a huge area, they want to try and centralise things. We have got services that
might not be as good as they could be as in a specialist centre, but it’s getting there that is the
problem (Bronglais)

We have got specialists down south, but if you haven’t got access to them then it is better to
have something. | know that in this area it is diluted, but it is better than nothing (Bronglais).

Main Findings: In-depth Telephone Interviews with Doctors
Unplanned Care (Accident and Emergency)

3152 Discussions with Doctors about unplanned care centred around HDdHB’s proposal to develop a nurse-led
‘Local Accident Centre’ at Prince Philip Hospital.

3153 Of the five participants (three of whom work at Prince Philip Hospital), two were for the proposed change,
two were against and one was uncertain.

315 The two Doctors in favour of the proposal argued that A&E services at both Llanelli and Carmarthen are
unsustainable, and that Llanelli’s proximity to Swansea (and Carmarthen’s centrality within HDdHB) means
it is the most sensible location for the change:

There is a certain amount of budget and you can’t have the services everywhere. Llanelli’s
geographical location is so close to Swansea that it makes sense

In an ideal world it would be great to have all services everywhere but obviously you can’t
have everything in Carmarthen and Llanelli. Carmarthen has already got more and is more
central to the area which it serves. It is unfortunate that Llanelli has got a far bigger

1 1 1404
gdalcri— Lo~



population than Carmarthen. | don’t see sort of another way to do it and unfortunately | agree
with it.

315 They were also comfortable that nurse practitioners would be more than capable of running a Minor
Injuries Unit such as the one proposed:
On the whole the nurse practitioners on A&E are more experienced than the doctors. If it was
led by nurses and downgraded to minor injuries then | think they would be very capable of
running that.

315 Those who disagreed with the proposal felt that the current system at Prince Philip works well:
The A&E in its current form seems to do very well; the ambulance crews and staff are pretty
reasonable in directing surgical emergencies to Carmarthen and medical emergencies to us.
By and large, the right types of people go to the right places

The system here works pretty well most of the time; it would be a shame to lose it.

Their main argument against changing the system was that many of the minor injuries that currently
present at the hospital require some medical input, which can be provided by doctors within A&E. By
removing this element, it was suggested that increased (indeed excessive) pressure will be placed upon
the medical team within the proposed Emergency Medical Admissions Unit:
With nurse-led | don’t think you would be able to deal with as many patients...in terms of the
patients walking through the doors, many of those really require A&E doctors to be looking at
them before a referral

There are a certain number of people at A&E who need to be assessed by doctors. Because
doctors are there, they are able to start the correct process and management of it in the way |
genuinely don’t think nurses have the same capacity for. And that’s typically in terms of
seriousness; anything above a certain grade, more complicated things, there will not be the
capacity to make a decision

If there are no A&E doctors then more things would be referred to the medical team than
would be suitable. | think overall there will be a disproportionate number of people being seen
by the medical team.

3157 Despite the argument that certain minor injuries cannot be appropriately treated or assessed without
medical input, there was some fear that this will not be an issue at Prince Philip in future as people will no
longer self-present there due to the lack of doctors and the greater possibility of transfer elsewhere:

| wouldn’t want to go to Llanelli as a patient knowing | was going to be seeing a nurse rather
than a doctor

The thing with Morriston is you know if you go there you won’t be transferred anywhere else.

According to participants, this (as well as the expected increase in patient transfers to Carmarthen) will
impact on the training of junior doctors at the hospital — and may be a barrier to recruiting good quality
staff to work there in future:

People will choose other options other than going to the Minor Injuries Unit. It’s going to lose

out on training of junior doctors and registrars are not going to want to go there because

there is so little there

Junior doctors are losing out on the experience in A&E. They are losing out on any sort of
injuries that will come through there as they will all be transferred to Carmarthen. Prince

1 1 1.0
adarcti—1roo



Philip as a hospital will suffer in terms of junior doctors going there. This means less junior
doctors will go there because A&E is a hot topic and not only that it will have less input of
patients so then other specialties lose out as well. Why would | go to Prince Philip if | have to
be transferred?

3158 Other issues were: the potential impact of additional demand on Glangwili and Morriston Hospitals; the
need for more than one A&E in Carmarthenshire (one of which should be sited in Llanelli due to the large
population there); and the lack of nurse practitioners available to run the unit:

I was on call last night and the CDU, which | am assuming will be similar to the Medical
Admissions Unit, was full. They had to open a ward that was closed to put more patients
there. This is becoming a regular thing. So if the staff in A&E are downgraded to just nursing
care, it just seems like the other hospitals will struggle as well because there will be more
patients to deal with

| think we need to maintain the A&E here. | think you would be missing out on such a big
service for the area and | don’t think everywhere else would be able to cope really

| don’t think downgrading Prince Philip hospital in terms of A&E is appropriate, because
Llanelli has the bigger area in comparison to Carmarthen. The area of Carmarthenshire is too
big to have just the one A&E

From what | know in Prince Philip, there are not enough nurse practitioners there at the
moment to run the unit, and I’m very sure it will take quite a while to train them all and to get
people to do it. If it is going to be staffed 24-hours, then you will need a load of staff and at
the moment it is a long way off.

3159 Finally in terms of the proposed changes at Prince Philip Hospital, there were some specific issues with
regard to mental health services, as outlined below:

| work in mental health and at the moment the main acute admission ward for general adult
psychiatry is in Llanelli. So with the centralisation of A&E services in Carmarthen it’s going to
mean that more people who are taken by ambulance after an overdose or after self-harm will
be taken from Llanelli to Carmarthen where they will be assessed medically and if deemed
they have to see someone from mental health it will be the Carmarthen psychiatrist that will
see them. But then if they need admission the chances are they will have to go back to Llanelli.
It’s not ideal if a patient from Llanelli area has to go to Carmarthen for assessment only to go
back to Llanelli if they need admission. There is not continuity of care

| don’t know how comfortable nurses would be to deal with mental health problems. | am
concerned there will be a rise in referral rates. It might be that they will signpost them to the
psychiatrist on call whereas doctors may be a bit more confident in deeming something low
risk and dealing with it effectively. The implication of this is that the duty psychiatrist will have
to see a greater volume of patients in A&E and not all will be appropriate referrals. We don’t
want to get to the situation where everything is referred to mental health.

Planned Care (Orthopaedics)

3.160 OQverall, the doctors were comfortable with HDdHB's preferred proposal to establish an Orthopaedic Centre
of Excellence at Prince Philip Hospital — although one added the caveat that routine operations should
continue to be undertaken at Withybush:

1 1 4100
adarcti— 1o



That seems reasonable. Orthopaedics is one of the better specialties to expand; you can be a
bit clearer there of who is elective and who is not.

3161 There was, however, a concern that it's at the expense of the medical side of medicine. Because Prince
Philip is a relatively small hospital it's one or the other, and | think with the trauma and orthopaedic it’s like
a redistribution thing. As a junior doctor | know | would prefer to see more people turning up in A&E rather
than planned orthopaedics. It's a good thing for the hospital but from a junior doctor perspective, for
training purposes, in A&E you get such a wide spectrum of things whereas orthopaedics is quite focused.

Women and Children’s Services

3162 Again, participants were happy to see the establishment of specialist Women and Children’s Services for
HDdHB, particularly in terms of recruiting consultants and other staff to the area:
It makes sense to put the specialist area in one hospital. If you get one area with a Centre of
Excellence, then doctors will want to go there for training

3163 Glangwili was the preferred location generally as it is: more central within HDdHB; nearer the Level 3 unit in
Swansea; and nearer larger population centres with higher birth rates:
Of the two sites, it would be better to have it at Glangwili. The geographical nature of it, |
think it is more central, easier to transfer to a larger tertiary centre if necessary and near a
bigger population centre. There is not much between them in terms of what they offer really.

It’s probably the most sensible of the sites because it has the higher birth rate.

3164 There was, however, some concern about the future of existing services at Withybush; it was argued that at
least basic SCBU services should be retained there:
My concern is they need to try and build Withybush and develop it more if it’s feasible.

Community Hospitals (Mynydd Mawr Hospital)

3165 |n light of its apparent state of disrepair, doctors were prepared to accept the closure of Mynydd Mawr
Hospital — but on the proviso that inpatient rehabilitation bed numbers remain at the same level as
previously:

I am aware that places like Mynydd Mawr are haemorrhaging money for maintenance

If we have a specialist system here that deals with dementia then that’s great...if you have the
liaison of staff and the room then that is a good concept. But there must be at least as many
beds as provided before.

3166 Indeed, the issue for potential bed-blocking was a significant one for interviewees, who feared that,
without an ‘interim’ option like Mynydd Mawr, patients who are well enough to be discharged from an
acute setting but not yet well enough to go home will remain in hospital for longer than necessary — thus
taking up valuable bed space:

The last few weeks Prince Philip has been full and you often have a lot of social patients who
have the option of going somewhere else. It’s nice to know there are extra beds somewhere
else

We need an intermediate hospital or facility to transfer patients who are medically fit for
discharge but need more physio. At the moment half the patients in hospitals are 80 year old
patients who either their family have just dumped in hospital or have got nobody to look after

1 1 107
dtalcli— Lo



them. We need Mynydd Mawr to make the beds in the acute wards in hospitals available. If
the same service is provided then it is a suitable solution

| know it provides a valuable resource in getting people out of acute wards. Mynydd Mawr is
always quite a good place to have people to go to for a couple of weeks before they go home.
But if they can provide that in a different way then fine. My only concern would be if they
can’t provide the same efficient or effective service, especially with bed issues and backlogs, it
may put a strain on the beds in the acute wards

Where the service is provided isn’t important; as long as the same service is provided then
fine. If it isn’t as good then we are going to slower getting people out of hospital and it is
more likely that people will go back in.

3167 Further, there was a sense that any service provided for dementia patients at Prince Philip hospital must be
separate from other medical intake — again to prevent beds being ‘blocked’ unnecessarily:
If you end up with a lot of patients who are not medically unwell but are on site here, there is
a risk of beds being taking up that would be better suited for medical patients. If you can keep
the service separate that would be good. If there wasn’t the separate ward | would be quite
concerned because currently it’s difficult to discharge patients home; there are a lot of social
issues.

Minor Injuries Units

3168 There was some support for GPs providing minor injuries services insofar as this would ensure care closer
to home for many patients:
I think that’s a good idea. It’s offering the same quality of care but closer to people’s homes

| agree that it would be a good idea to provide it more widely as long as there is a high
demand for it

3169 There was, however, some scepticism that GPs will be able, and indeed willing, to provide the additional
service — and concerns about whether it would result in increased referrals to A&E due to the lack of X-Ray
facilities at GP practices:

Having it more widespread and available is a good thing, but are the GP practices really able,
willing and capable of providing these services?

It could work really well because it could reduce the minor injuries in A&E or it could end up
with an awful lot of referrals. There is quite a lot of caution in A&E at the minute...every injury
there needs an X-Ray. | am slightly concerned that people will go to the GP with a twisted
ankle but then to be safe will be transferred to get an X-Ray

If it worked well it would be a good success but | would be cautious to begin with. | don’t think
having an X-Ray service at a GP would be implementable because you would need a
radiographer to be employed, because as a doctor you are not trained to do that and nurses
aren’t either. It seems that it could spiral out of control.

3170 |1t was also said that, if minor injuries are now to be provided through GP surgeries and via nurse
practitioners, HDdHB must ensure that junior doctors continue to be exposed to such cases so that they are
able to deal with them effectively:




| think it sounds like a decent idea. The only thing is that doctors need to be able to do that as
well, so you got to be careful that you are not de-skilling doctors. | haven’t got any experience
in A&E yet but when | do | want to be seeing minor injuries and not only the major things.
Possibly doctors as part of their rotation can help the nurse practitioners who are leading this;
doctors need to be able to deal with minor injuries.

3171 |f the proposed changes to minor injuries provision are implemented, it was considered essential that a
public awareness campaign be undertaken so that patients are able to ‘choose well’ in attending the
correct healthcare facility for their particular injury or illness:

It really depends on the general education and awareness of the public, ensuring they go to
the right place for the right thing

There must be general awareness to make sure appropriate patients are going there. If people
are not educated then this is a big opportunity missed and they will go somewhere else

Some people really don’t understand what minor injuries are. | have seen posters for it and
things like that, but | think it needs to go more national.

Community Services and Primary Care

31712 Qverall, the doctors supported HDdHB’s proposed extension of community services and primary care —
mainly because the principle of reducing unnecessary admissions to acute hospitals and enhancing local
care was readily endorsed. However, one person was keen to stress that the quality of care received in the
community must be the same as that provided in hospital — and that quality and safety must never be

traded for accessibility:
If the patient doesn’t need to come into hospital in the first place and you can get these

community-based services then it has to be a good thing. | think we need to encourage care in
the community more. | think that would be an excellent idea

As long as the quality is the same and the time spent and resources from the Health Board’s
perspective, then it is a good thing. But we need to think, other than it being a shorter journey
for the patient, is the patient really getting a better service? | know it’s nice to be local but it’s

not paramount.

3173 Participants were particularly pleased with the prospect of more Community Resource Centres - and
suggested that these centres could (or certainly should) provide an opportunity for consultants to

undertake outpatient clinics in outlying areas:
| would like everything on one site. At the end of the day, when there are things like blood
results and X-Rays, it makes things easier if things are on one site

I have seen it being done very well in Scotland. As a concept, having all those people there in a

larger centre | think it’s works well

It’s not always that easy for patients to make it to hospital and if consultants have a once
monthly outpatient clinic at one of these centres so they can all be seen | think it would be a

good idea.

3174 Increased access to GP appointments was warmly welcomed — but again there was scepticism about how

readily GPs will agree to providing it:




| think that sounds good. For somebody who works 9-5 Monday to Friday, it’s very hard to
look after your own health. If there is a slot after 5pm then | think that is excellent

If all the staff members are happy to do it and you can get enough people to cover all those
hours then yes

It’s going to be a lot easier for people to get an appointment but how keen GPs will be at
implementing that I’m not really sure.

3175 Interviewees were more than happy to see pharmacists playing an increasing role in healthcare (and indeed

acknowledged that they have taken on more responsibility recently). The general sense was that an

increased use of pharmacists will improve accessibility - especially in rural areas - and reduce the demand

on GPs:

If they are happy to do things like vaccinations then great. pharmacists are good and quite
knowledgeable

The benefit is that there will be better accessibility for rural areas, and elderly people who live
alone. If it’s closer to home they are more likely to pick the medication up on time or get a lift.
It is also better for minor ailments; if you have got a cough and a cold then it’s better to see a
pharmacist. There are a lot of people that go to a GP but don’t really need to and they take up
a slot.

3176 The availability of pharmacies within 15 minutes of all patients was, however, considered somewhat
unrealistic — and it was suggested that, instead of striving for this, HDdHB should increase the use of
‘couriers’ to distribute medication in rural areas:

15 minutes, | don’t know how plausible that is. But it’s certainly a good target

If you had one big pharmacy in an area, the couriers could distribute the medication.

Other Issues: Centralisation

3177 Although a couple of doctors were opposed to the over-centralisation of services, one was very supportive

of the development of Centres of Excellence — particularly in terms of recruiting doctors to the area. They
acknowledged that the current configuration of services in HDdHB is not attractive to doctors and felt that
the proposed Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence and new Women and Children’s Services would assist in

drawing staff to the Health Board:

To centralise services makes sense because if you get an area of excellence in the middle, then
doctors will want to train there. Whereas at the moment doctors don’t have the Hywel Dda
hospitals at the top of their pecking order because they feel they are not as highly regarded as
the Swansea or Cardiff Hospitals. It’s not thought of as an area to go to because of the size of
the hospitals and the services they provide

If you have one hospital that is a Centre of Excellence then everyone will want to go there. You
will want to work somewhere where all facilities are available if possible. By centralising
services in one particular hospital then this will be achieved. Realistically if you get five or six
hospitals with half services then nobody will want to go there...




4.1

4.2

43

4. Key Submissions Summarised

Introduction

During the formal consultation process 274 written submissions were received from professional, political,
interest, voluntary and community groups as well as from many residents and staff. Both HDdHB and ORS
have separately read and reviewed all the submissions in order to understand their themes and issues; and
all of the submissions are available for inspection from HDdHB.

As well as identifying important themes, a range of the submissions have been summarised below by ORS
in order to make them more accessible to readers. It was neither practical nor necessary to summarise all
the submissions in the same manner, but in the sections below we have sought to highlight particularly
important points of view and to capture the main themes, topics and arguments while retaining at least
some of the documents’ original detail. Any selection of just some submissions (for detailed summary) is
problematic, but we trust we have chosen a wide range and we apologise in advance to anyone who feels
their document(s) should have been included.

Summaries such as these cannot do full justice to the arguments and evidence of the many submissions,
but they at least they make them even more accessible and indicate the main points of view expressed.
Each summary is prefaced with a ‘one sentence’ italic abstract by ORS which, of course, risks over-
simplification — but we thought it worthwhile to take that risk in order to make important submissions even
more accessible to readers. The submissions summarised below are:

Royal College of Surgeons Professional Affairs Board in Wales

Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health and the Paediatric and Child Health National
Speciality Advisory Group

Royal College of Nursing in Wales

Royal College of Midwives

National Clinical Forum

Wales Deanery

Healthcare Professionals Forum

National Specialist Advisory Group: Mental Health
Powys Teaching Health Board

Society and College of Radiographers

Chartered Society of Physiotherapists

Public Health Wales

1 1 104
ddalcri 1oL



44

4.5

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust

Hywel Dda Maternity Services Liaison Committee
Emergency Nurse Practitioner Team Leader

Hywel Dda Community Health Council

Montgomeryshire Community Health Council

Betsi Cadwaladr Community Health Council

Prince Philip Physicians

Llanelli Rural Council (including a commissioned report)
CIHS / SOSPPAN

Residents of Glanymor Ward, Llanelli (via open questionnaire)
General Surgery Clinical Team Leader

Save Withybush Action Team (SWAT)

Pembrokeshire Health Concern

Ward 9 staff at Withybush hospital (via open questionnaire)
South East Pembrokeshire Community Health Network

Pembrokeshire Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Forum (facilitated by Pembrokeshire
Association of Voluntary Services)

UNISON
aBer Campaign Group.

As the summaries will show, the majority of the above are broadly positive about HDdHB’s proposals, but
there is also considerable criticism from the CHCs and some community groups, staff and some local
physicians.

Some Key Submissions Summarised

Royal College of Surgeons: Professional Affairs Board in Wales (RCS-PABW)

Overall, this submission supports HDdHB’s key principles while saying more inter-health board collaboration
and co-ordination is required (ORS).

The RCS Professional Affairs Board supports and endorses Hywel Dda LHB’s proposals to improve the
quality of service and integrate services between the various parts of the Health Community: it is the
correct approach and the RCS-PABW hopes it is successful. The RCS agrees with focusing specialised
services in fewer centres. However, it is concerned that:

The documentation is lacking detail as to how service improvements will be achieved

1 1 LW aVal
gdalicriL1roc<



46

4.7

48

49

Statutory Professional bodies (like the RCS) have not been formally incorporated into
planning the proposals or the consultation process

Only a minority of respondents agree with focusing specialised services in fewer centres
—so the case needs to be made more clearly with the public.

The RCS-PAWB supports HDdHB’s proposals regarding emergency and non-emergency transport. It also
supports the increased role for primary care and is able to assist in developing plans and offering
educational support for this agenda. Overall, it believes that the status quo option of all emergency services
on all sites is neither sustainable nor safe.

However, some of HDdHB’s proposals appear to be independent of the larger South Wales Programme, but
it is not cogent to develop some services independently of neighbouring Health Boards since (for example)
percutaneous coronary intervention for heart attack, vascular surgery and surgical services for patients
with stroke are best delivered on a regional basis. The recruitment and retention of a specialist workforce
can only be achieved by configuring services collaboratively across Health Boards.

Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health and the Paediatric and Child Health National
Speciality Advisory Group (RCPCH)

The RCPCH supports HDdHB’s direction of travel while having reservations about the proposed number of
inpatient paediatric units, particularly in the context of impending retirements. (ORS)

The RCPCH welcomes the concentration of paediatric high dependency care and neonatal level 2 care on a
single site, but has significant reservations about the number of inpatient paediatric units that are
proposed. There are a number of trained middle grade paediatric doctors in Hywel Dda, but many of them
are close to retirement and will not be easy to replace. Therefore, the plan for inpatient paediatric units is
not sustainable in the middle to longer term. For geographic reasons it may be that two units will be
required, but they are only sustainable if the smaller unit moves to a primarily consultant-delivered model
of care. The need for improved transport services, a comprehensive community paediatric nursing service
and the availability of local enhanced primary care services will have significant financial and political cost.

The RCPCH recognises the proposed changes will produce different service structures across Wales,
depending on the size and geographical location, local demographics, and workforce availability within the
service. Any reduction in the number of inpatient units must be offset by improving local urgent and
emergency care systems complemented by community children's teams integrating different professionals.

410 The reconfiguration of paediatric services should be determined by the needs of the local population and

the resources available, and HDdHB and Welsh Government are best placed to make these difficult
decisions.

Royal College of Nursing in Wales

Overall, this submission does not criticise the principles underlying the Health Board’s proposals, but
questions the adequacy of the planning for their implementation (ORS).

411 The Royal College of Nursing in Wales recognises the challenges facing the NHS in Wales today and

supports the case for change. The challenges make it important that the Health Board ensures the
population receives safe care as close as possible to home while optimising health outcomes. ‘Your health

1 1 LW aVal
adaicti—1roo



4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Your Future’ is in keeping with government policy to increase the volume of care delivered in the
community and improvements in primary and community services will reduce the overuse of hospital beds.
However, the RCNW is concerned that there is no indication that there has been an assessment of the
financial impact of the proposed changes even though the proposed changes clearly have cost implications.
The RCNW asks:

Have the proposed changes been costed?

Is there evidence that the proposed community model is more cost effective (as well as
clinically effective) than the current model?

What is the expected patient base in the community and what corresponding workforce
will be required to serve it?

Despite their importance in spanning the hospital/community setting, Nurse Specialists and Nurse
Consultants are not mentioned in the reconfiguration plans. The RCNW is particularly concerned at the lack
of children’s nurses currently practising in the community. The Acute Response Teams (ART) need to grow
exponentially to accommodate the closure of acute and community hospital beds. Overall, it is essential
that primary and community services are in place in advance of hospital bed closures; and this will require
careful planning and timing of transfer of services.

Nursing workforce

Except for mental health, there is no evidence of a nursing strategy within the document and neither is
there detail about plans in each directorate whereas the realisation of change needs to be developed in
each directorate. For example, a key component of the on-going care of individuals with chronic disease is
the creation of new community virtual wards operated by highly trained staff using technology, such as
tele-health monitoring. In this context, the RCNW asks, How will the required staff be recruited and
trained? It argues that robust medium and long term planning of the health care workforce is required.
Minor Injury Units and Emergency Nurse Practitioners

The RCNW recognises that intention is to increase the numbers of emergency nurse practitioners (ENPs)
and redeploy the current nurse practitioners in the Minor Injury Units in Tenby and South Pembrokeshire.
Will the ENPs be recruited from existing trained staff? If so there will need to be a plan to replace the staff
trained to be ENPs. Overall, the consultation document does not appear to have a robust plan to address
medical staff shortages.

Neonatal care

A population the size of Hywel Dda Health Board should have a Level 2 Neonatal facility even though there
are not enough deliveries to develop this on all three sites. Therefore, the transport arrangements
(especially emergency ambulance) need to be developed in order to transfer sick babies rapidly between
children’s facilities across the Health Board. The Health Board should also make an explicit commitment to
increasing the number of nurses trained on neonatal care by releasing them for training and backfilling
these posts for the duration.

Transport

The document implies that there will be a greater reliance on patients making their own way to care
environments, which will incur financial costs as well as a dependence on public transport which can be
unreliable in rural areas. Depending on the development of the South Wales Health Boards Programme,
this may well extend east as far as to Cardiff.

1 1 LW aW, |
ddalcri— Lo



4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.22

The Hywel Dda transport plan describes the need to develop the Wales Air Ambulance Service into a 24/7
emergency medical retrieval service. This would require significant investment since the helicopters are not
24/7 and cannot transport neonates in incubators, but no costs are given nor any timetable for the
development.

The Royal College of Midwives (RCM)
The RCM supports the HDAHB’s proposals for maternity and related services (ORS).

The RCM supports HDdHB's preferred option for obstetrics and maternity services while stressing that the
service model should be safe and sustainable and enable women to access different forms of maternity
care as locally as possible. The RCM believes that due consideration should be given to the impact of any
potential service changes on neighbouring Health Boards and recommends that effective protocols for
patient transfers are put in place, particularly to avoid transfer rates and times increasing unduly in
Withybush. The RCM also recommends that sufficient midwives employed to meet Birth Rate Plus
requirements as a minimum.

National Clinical Forum (NCF)

The NCF supports moving appropriate care from secondary settings into the community , but believes the
current plans have not taken sufficient account of the practical challenges involved. It believes that four
secondary care facilities are unsustainable and recommends a two-centre model as the only option with a
chance of long-term sustainability. (ORS)

Some main issues

Overall, the NCF appreciates that HDdHB may face difficult issues over public acceptance of plans but feels
that its role is to concentrate on the clinical feasibility and sustainability of the service plan proposed. In
this context, the NCF has grave reservations about the current proposal for A&E on three sites and strongly
advises a two-site solution.

As well as emergency care, the NCF has serious reservations about HDdHB’s secondary-care proposals for
maternity, paediatrics, mental health, general surgery, and critical care. The Forum believes that a two-
centre model for secondary care would be appropriate, with emphasis on ensuring a sustainable service in
Bronglais and the development of clinical networks to provide high quality care. While a ‘three counties’
has some geographic merit, there are major concerns over the long-term viability of three secondary care
sites delivering a full range of services.

Bronglais Hospital poses a particular challenge as its strategic importance to secondary care in Mid Wales
far outweighs the service it provides to Hywel Dda residents. It is clear that plans for Bronglais Hospital
must take into account this fact.

The general proposal to move services out of hospitals into the community, wherever possible, makes
sense and as a principle is supported by the NCF, but there is no evidence of how the services will be
integrated and governance issues managed. There is an assumption that GPs will take on additional roles,
but there is no detail about workloads or training requirements. There are particular issues between
primary care and community care as more services become nurse or therapist led. Whilst there is reference
to the importance of collaborative working with relevant stakeholders, there is limited detail around formal
arrangements for integrated care. There is no real evidence to suggest a major positive strategic drive to

1 1 1.0
adairicti—1ro9



4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

428

improve work with local authority, third sector and criminal justice systems. There are also no details of
commissioning arrangements with the private care home and domiciliary care sector and there is no
reference to financial investment into community services. Overall, Forum members are concerned that
while the concept of moving care into the community has much to commend it, the proposals as they stand
do not seem to provide any indication of the financial consequences of such a strategy. Therefore, Forum
members believe that before there can be any increase in ‘community’ care a thorough survey of current
activity is essential to assess the workforce and training needs.

The proposed ‘Dementia Centre’ in Llanelli would be situated on the geographical margin of the Health
Board, thus imposing transport issues for elderly frail patients. It may be preferable to develop community
models with general and mental health staff working together. There is no mention of the response to
mental health emergencies.

Given the rural nature of the area, travel is a major issue and clearly more detailed work is required; but
there is no evidence that the proposals have undergone close scrutiny to ensure that they are appropriate
for the rural community. Patient transfer/transport throughout Wales requires urgent attention: in addition
to close working between Hywel Dda and WAST to plan local arrangements, there needs to be a central
plan for the whole of Wales. Meanwhile, consideration needs to be given to any onward transfer of
patients from Bronglais as the area it serves includes parts of Powys and Betsi Cadwaladr Heath Boards.
Workforce and staffing

The problems of recruiting staff (particularly GPs) to work in rural areas have not been covered and there
are no clear plans of how this might be managed. The recruitment of GPs in Wales is falling, particularly for
trainees and this is likely to be compounded by GP retirements, the increasing feminisation of the
workforce, increasing part-time working and a reluctance to work in rural settings as compared to larger
urban centres. In addition, recruitment of staff for out- of-hours care is becoming increasingly difficult.
District nursing services in many areas are already stretched and recruitment of high-quality practice nurses
can be difficult. Acute response teams or similar are being developed, but there are issues about
governance between the teams and primary and secondary care.

Continuing to provide a wide range of core services on three or four sites is unsustainable given the
recruitment and training challenges facing the service, for there is no longer any hope of trainees being
available in certain specialties in all current hospitals. There is no mention of how this shortage will be
overcome given the current very limited availability of ‘middle-grade’ doctors (non-trainee, non-
consultant). To provide services by consultants would be very expensive and there are likely to be
difficulties in recruitment.

No single unit is likely to fulfil Royal College requirements for training, particularly in obstetrics, paediatrics
and general surgery. For these reasons, a two-centre model of secondary care has a greater chance of long-
term sustainability, but even that will pose a great challenge and a one- centre model may yet have to be
considered.

A key issue is the staffing of Bronglais Hospital. On current activity, there would be no place for trainees
and it is unlikely that the Royal College of Surgeons would approve a ‘stand alone’ arrangement. However,
the strategic importance of Bronglais cannot be ignored and a long- term sustainable solution that
strengthens its geographic role must be found.




4.29

4.30

4.32

433

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

Quality and safety

Safety in patient care must be the priority in plan development, but there are concerns that problems in
maintaining a sustainable workforce could challenge the ability of centres to attain proper quality and
safety standards. The plan will still leave a number of single-handed consultant sub-specialties in hospitals,
which carry clinical and workforce risks. Amongst other concerns, it is unclear what facilities will be
provided in the community hubs and there is insufficient information with regards to out-of-hours clinical
cover in the various sites. There is very little within the plan to explain how integration with local
authorities might be explored.

Key conclusions

The proposal to shift care, where possible, from a secondary care setting into the community is supported
in principle and aligns with current thinking on best practice, but the plans do not appear to have taken
sufficient account of the workforce and training changes required/

Movement of care into the community will also impact on primary care, but there has been insufficient
consideration of GPs” workloads and there are real issues of future GP recruitment and training.

The opportunity to explore extended roles for a wide range of healthcare professionals — including nurses,
midwives, therapists, scientists, pharmacists — does not appear to have been fully investigated.

The proposal to maintain four secondary care facilities is unsustainable and so the Forum recommends that
a two-centre option of secondary care is the only option with a chance of long-term sustainability.
However, even that may not be fully sustainable.

The strategic role of Bronglais Hospital in the provision of secondary care for Mid Wales requires more
consideration. It is essential that any planned changes in Hywel Dda are considered in light of how they
may impact on neighbouring HBs and other providers.

Appendices

The submission includes two appendices containing copies of earlier correspondence with HDdHB following
various meetings.

Wales Deanery

HDdHB should take full account of the Deanery’s reconfiguration proposals for postgraduate medical
training in Wales because there are important challenges in training which directly affect service delivery;
and also service challenges affecting training delivery. It is essential that HDdHB and the Deanery work
together to reach models which are complimentary for obstetrics and gynaecology, paediatrics and core
surgical training and other specialties, including in particular anaesthetics.

Healthcare Professionals Forum (HPF)

The HPF supports HDdHB’s key proposals for hospitals and also the move towards community care. (ORS)

The HPF supports HDdHB’s direction of travel and continued service improvement. The HPF is concerned
that currently members of the public attend Prince Philip inappropriately (for example, for children and
ENT services) when it lacks the specialists services needed to support effective assessment and
intervention. Options A and B are both safer working models — and the HPF supports Option B. Members of
the public often have misconceptions regarding the current services provided, so they fear greater change

1 1 107
dtalichri—L1rav



4.38

4.39

4.40

4.42

4.43

4.44

than is planned at Prince Philip. CIVIAT development could reduce demand at minor injury units and A&E
and this should be explored as part of the CIVIAT pathway.

The HPF also commends the inclusive debate regarding the need for change in maternity services and
believes that the Level 2 Neonatal Unit should be at Glangwili, so that the small number of babies who
deteriorate to need the Level 3 services at Morriston can access more readily there.

The HPF welcomes the retention of locally based services for planned care but believes the principle of
delivering elective orthopaedic surgery in a dedicated area is supported as the evidence indicates that this
leads to lower infection rates. The HPF supports Prince Philip becoming the established elective site for the
south.

The HPF welcomes the development of community facilities, partly because many of the community
hospitals are no longer fit for purpose. Mynydd Mawr is institutional and not conducive to rehabilitation, so
the HPF supports its closure. HDdHB needs to consider what range of services will be available from
Community Resource Centres and should progressively re-align services as part of modernising pathology
services. There is a high dependency on GP commitment to implement the plans and there will need to be a
review of the roles of other professions in order to enable the capacity release for GPs as well as
appropriate funding.

The HPF would value the opportunity to gain a clear understanding of the plans for both mental health and
learning disability — for example: how mental health needs are to be addressed in generic services, the
repatriation of patients from specialist units, partnerships with housing associations and the opportunities
for developing generic clinical roles in CRTs to support the implementation of the mental health measure.

The IT infrastructure is not fit for purpose, particularly if required to support joint agency, multi-disciplinary
teams. The HPF welcomes the partnership developing between Hywel Dda and Aberystwyth University in
supporting the developing model of rural health services. Getting the balance right between generalist vs
specialist models is essential for a rural model to be safe and effective.

Overall, the HPF supports all the following: the status quo is not an option; the principle of clinical services
moving from secondary to primary/community care, with consistent core standard but bespoke local
models of delivery; locality based planning; the need for integrated local services; and education and
training being considered in the context of the consultation plan.

National Specialist Advisory Group: Mental Health (NSAG)

The proposals seem well-intentioned but poorly evidenced. The plans to develop community services across
three counties and ensure equitable access is welcomed, but there is no detailed service model and in the
short term the changes may exacerbate staffing problems. (ORS)

Integrating physical and mental health care

Mental health problems affect patients’ ability to manage chronic conditions and recover from acute
episodes of physical ill health is widely known, but the strategy does not refer to service developments to
meet the mental health needs of patients presenting in general medical or surgical settings: there is no
mention of how mental health emergencies will be managed in A&E departments, hospital wards or
community settings. New community resource teams are proposed as part of the care for older people, but
there is no clear description of which services will be provided and there are concerns about reallocating

1 1 LW aVa
adaiictri—1rIo



4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

scarce professional resources like physiotherapy from hospital to the community. Nonetheless, the
emphasis on developing community teams, working with local authorities and third sector partners, and
tele-medicine to provide services to rural communities with limited specialist resources is very positive.
Specialist mental health services

The plans to develop the current community services across all three counties and ensure equitable access
across the area is widely supported, but these developments are to be funded by the closure of three
hospital sites for which there is no detailed service model; and the transfer of staff from hospital to
community services might not be straightforward. The emphasis on ensuring access to mental health
services for people with learning disabilities is welcomed, but there is concern about the potential loss of
specialist expertise in learning disability services.

It is proposed to develop a Psychiatric Initial Assessment Unit and an Intensive care Unit without presenting
evidence to support a model integrating these two functions; but the development of a hospital-based
rehabilitation/recovery service is supported.

Workforce

There are concerns about the Health Board’s ability to provide adequate numbers of psychiatrists to staff
all inpatient settings since HDdHB is struggling to maintain four psychiatric rotas, recruitment has been
difficult and a significant number of senior mental health nurse retirements are impending. The plans
acknowledge the difficulties but do not address them. Moving services from hospitals to communities will
require different skills mix and establishment, but the creation of multi-disciplinary teams is mentioned
without detail about their organisation or services. There is a concern that HDdHB has not always been
perceived in the forefront of service development and, with many specialist services delivered outside the
area, career progression may be limited. The strategy does not go far enough to counter this perception.

There is no mention of strengthening links to academic institutions such as College of Medicine Swansea.
The academic links Hywel Dda has forged in western Wales could have been highlighted in the strategy.
Overall

The proposals lack detail and rely heavily on the supporting technical documentation to provide clinical
models of care and an evidence base for the changes, but the strategy and technical documents are not
cross-referenced well and it is difficult to identify which evidence underpins different aspects of the
strategy. The strategy seems well-intentioned but poorly evidenced. Difficulties in recruiting and retaining
staff is acknowledged, but without a clear plan to address these issues. Enhancing services in the
community will benefit patients and staff, but the transitional period will be demanding and in the short
term this may increase staff attrition and retirements. However, efforts have been made to engage the
local population, local authorities and third sector partners in developing the strategy, and this process
should enable a smoother implementation. Proposals to use tele-medicine for services to rural
communities are very positive.

Powys Teaching Health Board (PTHB)

PTHB supports HDdHB's strategic goals while seeking to improve the planning of services for north Powys,
north Ceredigion and south Gwynedd, based on co-operation on community services and recognition of
Bronglais as a strategically important hospital. (ORS)

Working with other Health Boards




4.50

451

4.52

453

4.54

4.56

Your document clearly sets out the case for change and the issues documented are also the key issues that
face Powys to securing services for its population. Value for money is clearly an absolute issue for the NHS
across Wales and we share the challenge of ensuring a sustainable financial future for the NHS. There is
much synergy between the plans of Hywel Dda, Powys and Betsi Cadwaladr Health Boards in respect of the
approach to community service development and the three Boards should enhance their approach to joint
planning and delivery of healthcare across North Ceredigion, North Powys and South Gwynedd. It is
important that secondary care services are provided in an overall system of care that includes Bronglais.

Transport

HDdHB has put forward a number of proposals that PTHB actively supports and wants to see delivered.
Powys has its own responsibilities in enhancing access, through making improvements to our own non-
emergency patient transport and supporting local community transport systems, and we are committed to
this moving forward across the County. PTHB would also like to see a more definite commitment to ways in
which Hywel Dda HB can facilitate access to low cost accommodation for patients and relatives travelling
long distances.

A key element of service delivery is that for some care pathways patients should be routinely offered
alternatives for specialist services that enable their personal domestic and transport arrangements to be
taken into account, rather than automatically assuming that the pathway of care will be to South Wales.

PTHB supports the reduction in unnecessary follow-up outpatient appointments, increasing day case
surgery and delivering chemotherapy locally to reduce the burden of travel and it believes HDdHB should
increase the range of outreach services through the use of tele-health and support to GPs in managing care
locally.

Care closer to home

HDDHB's plan to deliver services as close to home as possible aligns with PTHB’s priorities. In this context,
Machynlleth is relatively isolated from the rest of Powys and the PTHB would like to adopt a joint approach
to community service delivery there. The availability of consultant advice and support in innovative ways to
GP practices to assist them to manage this care is vital.

Hospital services

PTHB welcomes the proposals to invest in new facilities at Bronglais because it is an important strategic
centre for residents of north west Powys. The Board also welcomes providing as much as possible of the
care pathway for cancer locally and would like chemotherapy to be specifically provided to north Powys
and wants to work together to determine how this can be achieved.

PTHB welcomes the retention of a consultant-led obstetric unit, paediatric assessment and a short stay unit
at Bronglais. Pregnant women in Powys are guided through a risk assessment to help them decide the most
appropriate place to deliver their babies and the Board hopes HDdHB will support women who need
specialist obstetric care unavailable at Bronglais go to places other than Swansea if they prefer. PTHB
understands the dilemmas facing HDdHB in delivering a comprehensive emergency department service to a
smaller rural population and supports Option B. PTHB is seeking to lead the development of a planning and
delivery forum that covers the north Powys, north Ceredigion and south Gwynedd areas.

laVYaVal

(|
adarcti—<29u



457

4.58

4.59

4.60

4.62

Society and College of Radiographers (SCoR)

The SCoR sees benefits in the proposals and believes there are opportunities for role development and skills
mix across HDdHB. (ORS)

Greater emphasis should be given to role development and skills mix for the non-medical workforce, to
allow them to undertake tasks previously seen as the preserve of doctors (thus allowing doctors to focus on
more complex interventions). This will facilitate the career development of non-medical staff whilst
providing safe, high quality services cost effectively. In situations where there is a shortage of radiologists,
radiographers have the skills, knowledge and determination to facilitate service improvements.
Radiographers, and our Allied Health Professional colleagues, have the skills and flexibility to provide a high
quality service wherever they are required.

The benefit of treating patients closer to their homes is clear, but providing a wide range of diagnostic tests
in the community is challenging. Nonetheless, by reallocating resources and developing skill mix there is the
potential for more resilient and flexible services. The development of community resource centres and
community hospitals is a welcome proposal as long as they are adequately resourced and there is no
adverse effect on existing services. Extending minor injury hours is a welcome development provided
resources are adequate. The provision of a local accident centre at Prince Philip is an ideal opportunity to
develop skill mix and to extend the existing radiographer reporting service. Rapid access to diagnostics
prevents hospital admission and increases discharge rates, but in this context, radiographer reporting is
under-utilised across Wales.

Chartered Society of Physiotherapy (CSP)

The CSP notes the proposals and is concerned that implementation should be managed successfully in terms
of staff resources and training for all professions. (ORS)

General

It is difficult to comment on plans which do not include financial or workforce details demonstrating the
affordability and deliverability of the proposals. Why change is needed and the aspirations for services are
clearly explained, but not so clear is how the changes outlined will be delivered.

Specific comments

The CSP supports the vision of providing more NHS services locally, through primary, community and social
care teams working together. The challenge of recruiting, training and retaining doctors in some specialities
provide opportunities for Health Board to use other professions in new ways — for example, using Allied
Health Professionals and advanced practitioners to lead services.

Transport is a key issue and to get right where services are centralised and a 'whole systems' approach is
required, including a fully-funded air ambulance service and good local transport. Local centres should be
supported by experts tele-medicine must be the norm for clinicians and their patients. Changes to
antenatal and maternity care will raise travel issues the Health Board will need to address.

Early access to musculoskeletal services in primary care is important in preventing chronic conditions
developing and the CSP supports 'virtual wards' to co-ordinate inter-disciplinary services. However, there is
concern that without adequate resourcing over seven days there will be undue pressure on therapy staff.
The CSP supports redefining community beds with a focus on active rehabilitation (if adequately staffed),

1 1 laVaWil
ddalcri oL



4.63

4.64

4.65

4.66

4.67

but HDdHB needs to show, for example, how Mynydd Mawr services are to be provided in alternative
settings. Overall, the Health Board needs to demonstrate the continuum between home and hospital
provision.

The CSP would like to see reference in the sections on mental health and learning disability to physical
health and access to professionals with physical health expertise who also have expertise in mental health.
There is also scope for more detail on plans for child development services, particularly in Ceredigion.

The CSP is concerned that any paediatric high dependency unit, alongside the level 2 neonatal unit, must be
properly resourced since a recent review showed serious resource and staffing issues across Wales. The
CSP notes the proposal for a ‘Local Accident Centres’ and suggests that, as well as knowing what level of
services will be provided there, the public will need to know what service are available in hospitals
following admission via a local accident centre. The CSP also notes the preferred option for transforming
orthopaedic services and believes the public needs to understand what is/is not provided out of Prince
Philip. The difficulties of recruiting and retaining medical staff mean that more must be done to provide
training and support not just to the medical profession but to all staff.

Public Health Wales (PHW)

Public Health Wales broadly supports the direction of travel detailed within the consultation document and
believes public health has a significant contribution to make in relation to delivering the proposed changes,
particularly through enhanced health improvement activities. Health boards face significant challenges in
delivering the service models outlined in the documents, including the enhancement of primary and
community services, workforce issues and the public health agenda, and it is recognised further work is
required in relation to some of these issues.

Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust (WAST)

The WAST supports key principles of HDdHB’s proposals, but is concerned about the outcomes if sufficient
additional resources are not available to facilitate their implementation, and also about resilience,
continuity and staffing implications (ORS).

The WAST supports HDdHB’s strategy for more care to be provided within local communities and
recognises that ambulance services should evolve to meet future clinical needs and improve quality and
outcomes. However, it believes that the proposals will require additional resources to meet an increased
volume of work and skills requirements. The WAST believes HDdHB’s comprehensive proposals necessarily
require the two organisations to consult together in detail about changes in acuity, activity and flows of
patients — in order to clarify where and how the Trust can support the design of the service and what
resources will be needed. In this context, it addresses a number of specific issues.

Maximum wait for non-emergency patient transport (NEPT) of 60 minutes

Current compliance with this target is 72.3% for discharges and transfers and 87.5% for all other patient
categories respectively against a KPI target of 70% (August 2012 data). The reconfiguration of services may
mean that patients have to travel further for their NEPT and this will impact on the efficiency of the service
and potentially increase the unit cost of the service. The proposal, which will potentially see multiple
organisations providing NEPT, presents a number of risks, including possible fragmentation and
inconsistency in service delivery.

laVYaVal

(|
adairicti~29o<



4.68

4.69

4.70

4.72

473

4.74

Increased use of community transport association and social services transport

Increased use of community transport association and social services transport may release capacity within
the current service (which could be used to improve performance elsewhere), but there will be implications
for the current NHS workforce and the may be issues about resilience and continuity of services.

One booking number for transport

This will potentially reduce the number of walking patients eligible for NEPT since the Booking Centre at
Cefn Coed will be required to take both initial and follow-up bookings directly from patients in accordance
with national eligibility criteria. Providing a pan-Wales call centre to service all Health Boards may improve
the consistency of the services and achieve economies of scale.

One booking number for clinical and transport bookings

This will potentially reduce the number of walking patients eligible for NEPT as all booking requests will be
taken through the National eligibility criteria. This should improve the service that eligible patients receive,
but more detail is required in order to assess the potential impact. For example, depending on the detailed
proposals, Trust staff may be able to access to secondary care appointment booking systems, which will
improve efficiency; but there is a risk that the booking function could be outsourced.

Introduction of text message alerts for NEPT

Text message alerts to patients will support the reduction in the number of aborted patient journeys, which
is currently 14.3% of all non-emergency transport journeys in HDdHB area. Initial estimates indicate that
approximately 2,000 text messages a month could be sent. The Trust has also piloted automated voice
messages (rather than a text), which (though more expensive) are preferred by patients.

Increased provision of Emergency Department Discharges

This proposal should improve the level of service provided to patients and could support an improvement
in ambulance response times and patient handover if the system is used effectively. Where discharges are
from specialist centres to local hospitals an increased scope of practice may be required for PCS and HDS
staff; and a range of patient care services will be required outside of normal working hours, which is
outside of the existing funding. While it has not been possible to quantify any additional resource
requirements at this stage, the Trust would welcome a more planned approach to emergency department
discharges and could provide the required increases in Emergency Department discharges if appropriately
funded.

Introduction of a Critical Care Transfer and Retrieval Service

The proposal provides the basis for improved performance against clinical outcomes, but will require
Critical Care Paramedics with "M" level status and appropriate guidance will be required for the Trust crews
and hospital/community teams in calling the service. Initial indications suggest significant additional costs
in relation to this proposal, irrespective of the detailed service model employed. Overall, this is an
opportunity for the Trust to provide specialist staff to undertake the treatment of severely injured or
unwell patients at incident scenes and to co-ordinate and undertake their transfer to specialist care, with a
single demand-management point of contact for peripheral teams/units.

Clinical protocols for specialist trauma

This will Involve major trauma patients being conveyed by road direct to a specialist centre, rather than to
the closest Emergency Department. Clear clinical guidance will be required for staff in order that decisions
taken in the field are clinically sound; and the Critical Care Service will be key in providing direct transfers

laVYaVa

e o
I

1 1
adarct~29o



4.75

4.76

471

4.78

479

4.80

over longer distances to specialist units. The provision of a Trauma Centre split over two sites
(Cardiff/Swansea) will potentially be more complex than a single site trauma model. For patients conveyed
directly to the trauma centre(s), there will an increase in the job cycle time dependent upon the primary
location and so additional resources will probably be required.

There is an opportunity for improved multi-disciplinary teams to supports the speciality trauma service and
reduce inappropriate admissions to District General Hospitals.
Increased role for acute teams and the creation of Community Virtual Wards

This could potentially improve ambulance response times, quality of service and clinical outcomes — so the
Trust supports the concept of Community Virtual Wards, but needs further details about the necessary
resources and the necessary IT systems to support the timely sharing of patient information. Initial
indications suggest there will be significant additional costs in relation to the proposal and additional
information is required. Nonetheless, the development of virtual wards and increase in alternative care
pathways, the further development of Advanced and Specialist Paramedic Practitioners across three
localities, working in collaboration with Hywel Dda, could ensure a greater number of patients are cared for
within their communities.

Enhancement of primary care/community resource teams and centres

This could potentially support the improvement in ambulance response times, quality of service and clinical
outcomes, but there may be a need to provide additional skill and training to a range of clinicians or
increase the number of APPs and Specialist Paramedics to support the Acute Response Teams. Once more,
it is important that IT systems effectively support the timely sharing of patient information and additional
referral pathways will need to be developed. The Trust would potentially need additional advanced
paramedic practitioners and high dependency staff, but the proposal could allow for the rationalisation of
estates for both organisations.

Closure of Tenby and South Pembs Minor Injury Units

This could support the improvement of ambulance response times, but where an MIU is replaced by a GP-
led service, a clear clinical pathway and protocol will be required which includes an immediate response.
Staff remaining at sites without an MIU will also require clear clinical protocols when requesting urgent
transfer for self-presenting patients requiring transport to District General Hospitals. There could be an
increase in conveyances to Withybush and Glangwili and increased job cycle times and there are indications
of significant additional costs in relation to this proposal. The closure of both MIUs without sufficient
investment in alternative pathways could adversely affect overall unscheduled care system performance.
Creation of a single site Paediatric High Dependency Unit Special Care Baby Unit at Glangwili

There will be a need to provide skilled staff for the transfer of unwell babies and children over longer
distances. This service will include Critical Care Paramedics (CCP), who will require development to Masters
level status via a programme of academic and vocational training, and guidance will be required for the
ambulance crews and hospital/community teams in utilising the service — so there are likely to be
significant additional costs in relation to this proposal.

Possible reduction to two-site service for Paediatrics at Bronglais and Glangwili

Such a change would require the Trust to convey sick children to one of the two preferred sites and clear
clinical protocols will be required for this to be effective, safe and reduce variation. Trust crews will need
immediate access to the two sites and the use of Helimed/Critical Care Service may increase. Staff within
centres without paediatric services will require clear guidance on the type of ambulance to request for

laVYalW,|

e o
I

(|
adalcri<u



4.81

4.82

4.83

4.84

children requiring transfer. It is likely that about 1,000 patients a year will be taken direct to a paediatric
centre rather than to the closest A&E. The Trust believes that there will be significant additional costs in
relation to this proposal.

Prince Philip Hospital to become a Local Accident Centre

A clear clinical referral pathway will be needed to ensure that appropriate cases are conveyed by the Trust
to the Local Accident Centre. Initial indications suggest that an increase in the High Dependency Service
workforce will be required to support additional inter-hospital transfers, so there are likely to be additional
costs.

Development of an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence at Prince Philip Hospital

Clear protocols will be needed to ensure that requests for transfers of patients between sites are
appropriately categorised to ensure the appropriate transport is provided. Additional resources may be
required, depending on the number of elective procedures planned each financial year. There is an
opportunity to enhance the existing High Dependency Service in Carmarthenshire, whilst at the same time
offering economies of scale.

Hywel Dda Maternity Services Liaison Committee

The submission supports Glangwili as the best site for the PHDU, level 2 neonatal and complex obstetrics
units, but also argues for midwifery-led units at all three sites. (ORS)

The Paediatric High Dependency, Level 2 Neonatal and Complex Obstetric Units should be located at
Glangwili. However, there was less certainty about where the service should be located if it was only
possible to provide inpatient paediatric services at one hospital in the south: it was hoped that this would
be a very last resort and that further consultation would take place before such measures were taken. In
any case, women should have the option of giving birth in a midwife-led unit (MLU). Wherever the complex
obstetric unit is situated, there should also be an MLU either co-located or within 20-minutes transfer time.
Since the strategic vision stresses equity, there should also be that choice on all three sites.

Emergency Nurse Practitioner Team Leader (ENPTL)

The submission argues that there are potential benefits that could follow from the closure of the Tenby and
South Pembs MIUs. (ORS)

For the last year an Emergency Nurse Service has been provided within the Emergency Department at
Withybush and staff from Tenby and South Pembs minor injuries units have been rotating across to the
unit. However, the emergency department staffing is insufficient at times and then patients attending with
minor injuries will not be seen by the ENP. The staff feel that if the MIUs at South Pembs and Tenby were
closed then the HCSW and the ENPs could manage minor injuries much more effectively if they were
separated from majors conditions. For example, there would be a quicker through-put of patients in the
minors stream and more support for the OOH service — but only if all the current ENPs and HCSWs from the
MIUs were utilised within minors and worked as a team. There would also be improvements if qualified
nurses from the emergency department could be brought back into the main unit since some patients
presenting are medical, surgical and orthopaedic direct referrals needing assessment. In this model,
medical staff would be required less on the minors stream and their expertise would be more readily
available for the more complex patients.

laVa¥

1
adarcti—<29oo



4.85

4.86

4.87

4.88

4.89

4.90

Hywel Dda Community Health Council (CHC)

While there have been improvements in the Health Board’s thinking since the Listening and Engagement
phase, the CHC still believes that the current proposals do not meet the healthcare needs of the Hywel Dda
population (ORS).

Introduction

There is considerable distrust of the Hywel Dda LHB — though this does not reflect on the healthcare
services or staff: it arises from misgivings about the consultation exercise which seems to be only a token
gesture before the proposed changes are implemented irrespective of public opinion.

In responding, the CHC has sought widespread views from the communities across the entire Hywel Dda
region as well as listening to clinicians and other members of staff. Views on the plans have varied
considerably, with personal outlooks and geography determining priorities, and some sections of the public
were vocal whilst others were less engaged. Thus, CHC’s conclusions are not as simple as approving one
option over another — particularly because the membership of the CHC is not homogenous in its views.

The CHC agrees that all organisations need to change and accepts that all change comes with risks; it also
recognises that there are fixed parameters for what services can be provided and that there is a tension
between long term planning and short term financial pressures.

Mynydd Mawr Hospital

Public opposition to this proposal seems to be strong, but elsewhere there is a willingness to endorse the
closure with the proviso that effective replacement services are in place before the closure begins. It is
difficult to distil these views into support or opposition. However, the CHC understands the problems that
exist when providing care in older buildings that are not ideal for modern healthcare purposes (although on
recent visits it was noticeable that the ward does appear fit for purpose).

Nonetheless, the CHC does not support closure at this time, nor the loss of any community beds within
Hywel Dda, until comprehensive alternative facilities are available.

Tenby Hospital

There is a strong local opposition to this closure and there seems to be no clarity about whether local GPs
are willing to provide an alternative service — so it would be premature to close the service now, before
there is an alternative service via GP practices or other providers.

Minor Injuries Service at South Pembrokeshire Hospital

Once more, there is a strong local opposition to this closure and there seems to be no clarity about
whether local GPs are willing to provide an alternative service — so it would be premature to close the
service now, before there is an alternative service via GP practices.

Paediatric High Dependency Unit, Level 2 Neonatal Unit and Complex Obstetric Unit

The CHC cannot support the development of a neo-natal level 2 unit in either hospital location due to
public and patient opposition, the lack of a detailed justification for the proposal when the current facilities
in the ABMU area have not been fully evaluated, and the danger that a specialist facility would weaken
resources on the other sites. The CHC believes that any investment should be used to bolster existing
maternity facilities which work well and, in this context, believes it is premature to make a judgement
about any single site.

laVYaVal

(|
adarcti—290



4.93

4.94

4.96

497

4.98

4.99

Emergency Services ?

The CHC not only supports the retention of full A&E services at each of the three existing district general
hospitals, and opposes any reduction of current emergency care services at Prince Philip hospital, but
(given Llanelli’s population and relative deprivation) also believes that full A&E services should be restored
at Prince Philip. There has been widespread opposition to the current proposals, including from clinicians.
Orthopaedic Centre

The CHC believes there is a lack of clarity on this topic and that differing messages have been
communicated at the public meetings. The CHC wants more information on existing services and
reassurance about the implications for fracture and trauma services on the other site, if a centre of
excellence it developed.

General Comments

The CHC welcomes the better communications and signs of re-thinking that have followed from the
Listening and Engagement exercise — and the consultation document reflects feedback received.
Nonetheless, the CHC believes that many members of the public prefer to communicate their views to CHC
members rather than via HDdHB's questionnaire and other consultation routes. In this context, the CHC
draws attention to some general themes that transcend specific consultation questions.

Care Closer to Home

Integrated community care requires big changes in staff working practices, contracts, planning and delivery
modelling, training, retraining, changed quality assurance procedures and safety considerations, effective
networking, partnerships, communication, interdisciplinary and inter-agency team-working and the
purchase and use of advanced technology; but there is no detail about these crucial issues in the
consultation document. Most people doubt that services can be delivered effectively with ‘virtual ward’
settings — particularly when the quality of current community services is at best patchy across Hywel Dda.

There are big questions about equitable access to services in the context of rurality, distance, the 'golden
hour', funding for carers and volunteers, integration of transport services and systems, an ageing
population, isolation and suitability of some homes/domestic settings for care-based work. In this context it
is important to ask, How will the seamless progression of patients between primary and secondary care be
achieved in practice?

Conclusions

The CHC believes that the Health Board should provide equity of provision across all of the Hywel Dda rural
area while also recognising the population of Llanelli; but the current proposals do not address the major
issues detailed in the Listening and Engagement phase.

Montgomeryshire Community Health Council (CHC)

The Montgomeryshire CHC recognises that the status quo is not acceptable, but it believes there has been
insufficient co-ordination between Hywel Dda, Powys Teaching and Betsi Cadwaladr Health Boards — though
it welcomes the collaboration that has now been put in place (ORS).

General Comments

The Montgomeryshire CHC (MCHC) recognises that the status quo is not acceptable if safe and sustainable
services cannot be provided within available resources. However, while the consultation document explains

1 1 IV o Y ]
adalchi<O7



4.100

4.101

4.102

4.103

4.104

4.105

4.106

4.107

why change is necessary, provides clear evidence and includes a clear vision for the future of HDdHB, it
makes only brief references to services in Powys and does not explain the consequences of proposed
changes for Montgomeryshire patients. Therefore, it is unclear how the Powys Teaching Health Board
(PtHB) would develop its services in response to HDdHB’s proposals, particularly in relation to the
Machynlleth and Llanidloes areas.

The MCHC believes there is no evidence of support from clinicians for the proposed service changes and
the proposals have caused anxiety and uncertainty to Montgomeryshire residents. The lack of clinician
support for the changes is a critical failure that needs to be addressed. In particular, transport for
Montgomeryshire residents to access HDdHB services is a big concern.

While the consultation document highlights risks arising within existing services, MCHC is concerned that
risk profiles for work streams and clinical pathways for Hywel Dda and Montgomeryshire are not available.
The consultation document does not analyse the financial implications of the different proposals —so the
MCHC cannot be confident that they are sustainable — and there is no indication of how the
implementation would be evaluated.
Primary and Secondary Care services

MCHC wants to be reassured that services at Bronglais will continue to be safe, sustainable, maintained and
developed — and any proposals should be developed jointly with the PTHB. It also believes that admission
and discharge services in Powys should be enhanced to match changes within HDdHB — particularly
because the time is opportune for the provision of more community-based services available in Powys.

Orthopaedics

MCHC supports HDHB’s Option ‘A’ proposal to have a complex orthopaedic centre in Prince Philip Hospital,
but it would like reassurance that elective orthopaedic care will continue for Powys patients at Bronglais
and that patients needing complex interventions will continue to have the option of attending Robert Jones
and Agnes Hunt Hospital.

Strategic Partnerships

There has been insufficient co-ordination between the HDdHB, PtHB and Betsi Cadwaladr Health Boards,
but it is positive that the three boards will now work together in strategic partnership through a Mid Wales
Planning Board. The group should comprise senior officers from each Health Board and should work
throughout the implementation of HDdHB’s proposals.

Recruitment and retention of staff

The proposed shift in the location of care and for community staffing is excellent, but concerns about how
HDdHB will recruit remain and there no clear strategy is apparent. The issue of staff supply should be
brought to the attention of Welsh Government.

Transport and access

MCHC wants the current Accident and Emergency services at Bronglais to be retained and supports Option
B in relation to the location of a full emergency department and accident centre. The consultation
document makes no specific proposals for improving transport services, but work is being undertaken with
the Ambulance Trust around emergency and non-emergency services that would transform urgent care.
Risk assessments

There seems to be a need for a more systematic risk assessment and MCHC welcomes the opportunity to
join HDdHB'’s Implementation Board. MCHC also welcomes the proposal to establish a Patients’ Council

laVYaVYal

e o
I

(| 1
adarcti—29o



4.108

4.109

4.110

4111

4.112

from the membership of HDdHB’s "Talking Health' scheme and hopes that Montgomeryshire patients will
be involved. The panel should have access to independent clinical advice.
Women and children's services

MCHC is pleased that HDdHB does not plan to change the obstetrics team at Bronglais and that non-
complex pregnancies could continue to go there; but Montgomeryshire residents remain concerned
regarding emergency access to Level 2 and 3 units in the HDdHB region. In this context MCHC is pleased
that PtHB and HDdHB are liaising closely on these issues.

Conclusions

The consultation document does not explain the consequences to Powys patients of proposed changes in
HDdHB’s services — and in particular it does not demonstrate how integration is to be achieved, particularly
for those in the Machynlleth and Llanidloes areas. MCHC would like HDdHB to work closely with PtHB on
the impact of changes for Montgomeryshire service users.

There are worries about the lack of clinician support for the changes and the lack of a clear business case to
demonstrate sustainability and a commitment to continuing evaluation. Currently, there is no overall
strategy with detailed information about how HDdHB will recruit and retain staff. The key issues are that
MCHC:

Wishes to retain the current Accident and Emergency services Bronglais

Supports Option ‘B' in relation to the location of a full emergency department and accident centre
at Bronglais

Supports Option ‘A’ for a complex orthopaedic centre in Prince Philip Hospital, Llanelli — providing
elective orthopaedic care continues for Powys patients at Bronglais and patients needing complex
orthopaedics will continue to have the choice of attending Robert Jones and Agnes Hunt Hospital

Welcomes the proposal for a ‘Mid Wales Planning Board' and providing it includes senior officers
from each Health Board and has sufficient resources — and also formally accepts HDdHB's invitation
to join its Implementation Board.

Other documents

The MCHC submission encloses a number of appendices, including detailed notes taken during public
consultation events in Machynlleth and Llanidloes, questions submitted by Machynlleth Town Council. The
complete document consists of 63 pages.

Betsi Cadwaladr Community Health Council (BCCHC)

The BCCHC agrees with HDdHB on several major issues of principle, but is concerned about possible
implications for South Meirionnydd residents accessing services from Bronglais; but it is pleased that three
health boards are now collaborating on the newly established Mid Wales Planning Board.

The BCCHC recognises that the status quo is not acceptable if safe and sustainable services cannot be
provided from within available resources. Overall the BCCHC agrees with HDdHB on several key issues and
understands the pressures arising from reduced funding from the Welsh Government and greater demand
for services. Staff shortages in many disciplines means that agency and locum costs are high; and attracting
people to work in North Wales can be particularly difficult. Some of HDdHB’s services do not meet national
standards and must change; and people should be treated in hospital only when they need that sort of
care.

laVaVal

e o
I

1 1
adarcti~<9o9



4113

4114

4115

4.116

4117

4.118

4.119

4.120

However, while HDdHB’s consultation document provides clear evidence of the need for change and also a
clear vision for the future, it provides a brief reference to its role in providing services to South
Meirionnydd and working in collaboration with BCUHB. For example, there is no indication of how HDdHB's
integrated hospital service model will relate to or impact on South Meirionnydd residents accessing
services provided from Bronglais.

BCCHC is concerned at the lack of evidence for support from clinicians across the HDdHB area for the
proposed changes and it says there is no evidence of staff support for the proposals. Transport and access
issues continue to concern patients in South Meirionnydd accessing services from both the HDHB and
BCUHB areas. There should be further information on risk assessments, financial implications, equality
impact assessments and evaluation procedures for the different proposals in order to demonstrate their
feasibility. The consultation document lacks detailed proposals for improving transport in rural areas and
the BCCHC is concerned that there is currently no community transport within South Meirionnydd; but the
CHC is aware that work is being undertaken with WAST that would transform urgent care.

Residents in South Meirionnydd want to be reassured that services at Bronglais will continue to be safe,
sustainable, maintained and developed, including the current standard of A&E services at Bronglais — so the
CHC supports Option B.

The CHC is concerned about the recruitment and retention of key staff, and that HDdHB will not be in a
position to develop a strategy until after the consultation period ends. This implies that the main aim of
shifting care to the community cannot be achieved in the near future.

BCCHC is pleased that HDdHB does not plan to change the obstetrics team at Bronglais and that non-
complex pregnancies could continue to go there. There are concerns regarding emergency access to Level 2
and Level 3 units for patients from South Meirionnydd and BCCHC hopes that HDdHB and BCUHB will liaise
closely on these issues.

BCCHC is pleased that Powys Teaching Health Board (PTHB, HDdHB and BCUHB will work together in the
"Mid Wales Planning Board' and that this group will now be included with HDdHB’s implementation
process.

Prince Philip Physicians
The proposal for a nurse-led emergency department is unsafe. (ORS)

For the continued safe provision of emergency medical admissions Prince Philip needs the continuing
support of a fully functioning CCU, ITU, HDU as well as on-site emergency radiology and pathology services;
but in this context the proposal for a nurse-led emergency department is unsafe. The services required to
support a proper emergency department include on-site 24-hour access to: acute medicine, level 2 critical
care, non-interventional CCU, essential laboratory services, diagnostic radiology. In addition, network
access {not necessarily on site} is required to: emergency surgery, trauma and orthopaedics, paediatrics,
obstetrics and gynaecology, mental health, supervised surgery and interventional radiology. All of this, as
well as a 24/7 doctor led A&E, is available at PPH currently — so no change is needed in this department.

Without doctor support 24/7 in the department there is a significant clinical risk for patients with
conditions other than general medical ones. There may be protocols in place for the ambulance service, but
many patients self-present. This is a major clinical governance issue as the general physicians are not

1 1 laW.lWal
adalcri<1Y



4121

4122

4.123

4.124

4.125

4.126

trained in paediatrics, T&O, and O&G. If such patients attend a nurse only minor injuries unit then the only
available doctors will be the medical team, which is unsafe.

There are also training issues as trainees in medical specialities would be seeing non-medical patients. As a
team of physicians, we are not prepared to support a nurse led A&E unit at Prince Philip Hospital as we are
not prepared to work outside our area of clinical competence.

Llanelli Rural Council (including a commissioned report)

The Council urges that Carmarthenshire’s major emergency department with full A&E services should be
based in Llanelli rather than Glangwili, but if this is not possible then Prince Philip should have a doctor-led
emergency department. The Council supports other developments that strengthen Prince Philip but argues
that community care is not a panacea. (ORS)

First and second preferences

The Council’s is to safeguard key services at Prince Philip (PPH). Carmarthenshire’s major emergency
department should be based in Llanelli and full A&E services at PPH should reinstated on the basis of the
population size, and Llanelli area’s infrastructure, demographics, unemployment levels, poor health and its
deprivation. Dyfed Powys Police’s main custody unit has been set up in Llanelli.

However, if this is not possible then the Council’s second preference is for PPH to have a doctor-led
emergency department working alongside emergency nurse practitioners with an emergency medical
admissions unit and with 24-hour access to comprehensive support services at Glangwili or Morriston.
Clinicians at PPH have challenged the health board’s preferred option for PPH, stating the proposal is
unsafe. Recent clarification from HDdHB confirms that the proposed service in PPH will be nurse-delivered
with remote consultant cover and leadership.

Transport is of great concern, particularly if HDdHB’s preferred service model for PPH is adopted and more
patients will be referred elsewhere. There is no overnight provision for family members to stay near
hospitals and at weekends, public, community, social care and non-emergency patient transport is not as
readily available. It is difficult and/or expensive for Llanelli residents to return from Glangwili A&E at night
or during the early hours of the morning and the current problems will worsen if PPH’s A&E service is
downgraded to a nurse led/delivered service.

Management consultants’ report

The Council’s management consultants have been unable to formulate counter proposals because of the
difficulty in obtaining patient data from HDdHB in a timely manner, but the report by Bellis-Jones Hill,
Healthcare Management Solutions forms part of the Council’s submission. The report identifies concerns
with the service model being advocated by HDdHB and identifies gaps in the datasets. The consultants’ risk
assessment for Llanelli residents going to Glangwili identifies significant risk insofar as the ‘golden hour’
cannot be achieved in a significant number of cases. The management consultants propose that a rigorous
and independent risk analysis needs to be undertaken and in the Council’s opinion this should have been
done before going to consultation.

No panacea

The focus on community care is not a panacea for the aging population since as people live longer they
increasingly developing complex long term conditions. By cutting beds there is a danger hospitals in Hywel

1 1 o W I |
gddaictri< 1L



4.127

4128

4.129

4.130

4131

4132

Dda will be seriously under-resourced and unable to cope with future demand to deal with acute and
chronic conditions common to frail and elderly patients.

There are two main concerns with the proposed changes for community care: the robustness of the
existing community infrastructure and the costs of making changes. In any case, there should be no hospital
changes until the infrastructure has been independently tested for robustness and funding is in place to
deliver a safe and sustainable service. Also, the Council feels that even when the system has been
rigorously tested, the old and the new systems should run in parallel, with the old model gradually being
phased out.

Medical Admissions Unit

While the Council does not support HDdHB’s preferred option for PPH, it is pleased that a Emergency
Medical Admission Units (EMAU) will be provided there.
Community hospitals

The Council would like Mynydd Mawr Hospital (MMH) to be retained in service mainly because s patients
greatly value the hospital. Is it feasible to co-locate the planned Community Resource Centre on the
hospital grounds instead of Cross Hands? Could tele-medicine be used, given there are no investigations or
doctors on site 24 hours per day at MMH? The Council understands that perhaps some of the patients
should not be accommodated at MMH, but MMH does an excellent job and closing it will put more
pressure on community care services. Co-locating the planned CRC at MMH will help bring services
together.

Other hospital services

The Council supports the planned new short-stay surgical unit for PPH, provided the reconfiguration of
beds has no detrimental impact on other key services, and also supports locating the planned Orthopaedic
Centre of Excellence at PPH.

Commissioned Report (Bellis-Jones Hill, Healthcare Management Solutions)

This commissioned report, submitted by Llanelli Rural Council in support of its own submission, says that the
current proposals do not downgrade Prince Philip. Regarding emergency services, the Rural Council has
three main options: (i) try to maintain the current status quo; (ii) consider adopting a nurse-led Urgent Care
Centre (UCC) with the option of sending the more serious A&E cases to Morriston; or (iii) accept the HDdHB
proposals subject to an assessment by an independent panel of experts. (ORS)

The management report says that, although PPH services have been cut back in recent years, HDdHB's
plans do not involve a further general downgrading of PPH's capabilities: for example, an orthopaedic
centre of excellence is proposed for Llanelli, with leading edge services for Carmarthenshire,
Pembrokeshire and increasingly other parts of South Wales; and this centre will be co-located with a
leading edge rehabilitation unit.

Regarding the proposals for a nurse-led minor injuries unit, the management report notes that the statistics
appear to show the success of the current regime at PPH and Glangwili. The report suggests that the
Council should request detailed data on routing times to Glangwili for Llanelli patients, but notes that as
around 80% of PPH A&E attendances are minor the impact might not be as large as people expect.
Currently, though 7% of total emergency attendances at minor injuries units within HDdHB's area are
followed up at a full A&E department on the same day — and this is likely to escalate with a nurse-led
service. Under the proposals, demand for GP services is likely to grow — so HDdHB should have considered

1 1 laV.Wa
adaictri< 1<



4.133

4.134

4.135

4.136

4.137

4.138

the impact on GP services and if the load on PPH is sustainable. It is not clear from the information
provided how admissions will be authorised and by whom. It is assumed that senior doctors (at least at
Registrar level) in the specialties will make this decision, but there is a risk that a nurse-led facility may miss
more serious cases requiring admission than if assessed by a more senior doctor. There is a difference
between having a senior doctor (ST4 or above) in charge and having access to senior staff for difficult
decisions; and at night the service will be covered by Enhanced Role A&E GPs — another significant risk
area.

About 22% of emergency cases will take longer than the ‘golden hour’, which is a significant risk, but the
impact may be mitigated by the proximity of Carmarthen and new communication initiatives. In any case,
HDdHB believes its proposals should result in better services being available at better staffed emergency
departments.

HDdHB does not mention of the Regional Trauma Centre 8 miles away from PPH at Morriston, but this begs
the question of whether emergency care for Llanelli should be delivered there rather than at Glangwili. The
Council might wish to explore this as a viable option. In any case, the introduction at PPH of an orthopaedic
centre of excellence and a leading edge rehabilitation unit could well mean that fewer patients would be
routed to Glangwili and more to PPH.

Llanelli Rural Council has three options: (i) try to maintain the current status quo; (ii) consider adopting a
nurse-led Urgent Care Centre (UCC) with the option of sending the more serious A&E cases to Morriston; or
(iii) accept the HDAHB proposals subject to an assessment by an independent panel of experts.

CIHS / SOSPPAN

The submission criticises the proposals for a nurse-led minor injury service at Prince Philip and argues that
implementation plans for community care are inadequate. Above all, it wishes for four DGHs providing full
A&E services. (ORS)

Community Services and Primary Care

HDdHB’s proposals to maximise the contribution of GPs towards the health provision of the local
community depend entirely on the ability and willingness of GPs to fulfil the additional obligations which
will inevitably be placed upon them; but there is evidence that GPs are struggling to meet their current
commitments: the waiting time to see a GP in Llanelli means that patients are forced to self-present at the
A&E department of Prince Philip If additional GPs are to be recruited, where will they be found and where
is the funding to come from to support such an initiative? The proposals are not supported by detailed
costs and methodologies for linking GPs and the private and public sectors.

Hospital services

SOSPPAN welcomes the plan to develop a Paediatric High Dependency Unit and a Level 2 Neonatal Unit, co-
located with a Complex Obstetric Unit. Because these facilities should be as close as possible to the centre
of greatest population with the greatest concentration of young women and the highest level of social
deprivation, Sosppan reluctantly supports the Glangwili option (of those available and whilst wishing to
have such facilities available Llanelli).

SOSPPAN believes that neither Option A nor B provide what is necessary to meet the emergency medical
care that the Llanelli region requires. With the largest, most urban, most industrial and most socially
deprived area within the Hywel Dda catchment, Llanelli should have at least an emergency unit led at all

1 1 la¥.Wal
ddalcri 1o



4.139

4.140

4.141

4.142

4.143

4.144

times by a doctor supported on-site with 24-hour access to acute medicine, level two critical care, non-
interventional coronary care, diagnostic radiology (including X-ray), ultrasound and CT scan, essential
laboratory services (including biochemistry, haematology, blood transfusion, microbiology and infection
control), together with mortuary services. There should be further 24-hour support available, not
necessarily on-site but through a local multi-hospital network, to emergency surgery, trauma and
orthopaedics, paediatrics, obstetrics and gynaecology, mental health, supervised surgery and Interventional
radiology. We understand that all of these requirements are currently met at Prince Philip Hospital. The
current proposal has no credibility as a solution for a town of the size and nature of Llanelli.

The recently published PPH Factsheet on Prince Philip Hospital defines the Emergency Medical Admissions
Unit in terms which are welcomed and which, if combined with an Accident Centre operated as described
above, would meet the needs and aspirations of the community.

Overall, SOSPPAN would like to establish centres of excellence in all of the HDdHB’s hospitals to support
parallel A&E and Urgent Care Centres. An alternative would be to situate fully functional A&E and Urgent
Care Centres in the Bronglais, Withybush and Prince Philip Hospital with a community hub at Glangwili to
cater for minor injuries within the small rural community it serves.

SOSPPAN supports the development of an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence at Prince Philip, with its
proximity to training centres further east providing a ready source of expertise.
Further Comments

Sosppan believes that no changes should be introduced until a thorough and independent risk assessment
has been carried out. The Longley report shows that the evidence for the best configuration of hospital
services is “frustratingly vague, inconclusive, contradictory, or simply non-existent" and does not always
point to a single answer. For example, in maternity and paediatrics Longley finds no evidence of a
consistent relationship between outcomes and size of unit from the published research. In fact, SOSPPAN
believes, the report shows that the stampede towards centralising Hywel Dda services in Glangwili is
unwise, unwarranted, unwanted and unnecessary — since Longley says that, “The location of services —
and therefore travel time — can literally be a matter of life and death" and "[T]he issue with the greatest
impact...is the adequacy of non- emergency transport...for patients and... their visitors".

There are four District General Hospitals in the Hywel Dda area for good reason, because of the obvious
demographics, with an increasing urban population in the east and a steadily decreasing rural population
elsewhere. Nonetheless, a flawed centralisation policy means that Llanelli is getting a reduced service
under the guise of improvements — even though Llanelli and Burry Port have by far the greatest level of
multiple deprivation.

CIHS / SOSPPAN proposals

The creation of centres of excellence is the right way forward, but must be tempered with local provision
for unplanned A&E services. In this context, the submission outlines what it calls the ‘building blocks’ of a
solution, namely:

4 District General Hospitals all providing A&E services

Excellent public, private and third sector transport links 24 hours per day
Clinical centres of excellence

Separate convalescence/rehabilitation units attached to hospitals

1 1 1 A
adaricri— L«



4.145

4.146

4.147

4.148

4.149

4.150

4.151

4.152

Respite and support in the community for carers, vulnerable elderly and the disabled.

Every significant centre of population should have an Acute Medicine and Accident Centre as well as triage
for immediate assessment as to whether the patient needs to be directed to their GP at a community hub,
to the Urgent Care Centre for immediate treatment and discharge, or to the attached A&E department with
supporting acute surgery for urgent intervention and probable admission to the hospital for further
treatment.

Integrated transport systems are essential for a solution where centres of excellence will be distributed
across the three counties. For specialist services patients should be either transported immediately by
ambulance to the relevant hospital or, if necessary, via the nearest A&E for stabilisation prior to transfer by
ambulance.

Local transport services for non-serious cases should be a pooled resource run by a combination of county
council vehicles and drivers and the third sector 24-hours a day, seven days a week 52 weeks a year. Round
the clock bus services/shuttles should be available between all four major hospitals and their town centres
for outpatients, discharged patients who are not vulnerable, staff and members of the public (visitors).

Specialist services need to be placed where they will be most effective, easiest to access and attract the
necessary funding through body mass. Each hospital should have an Acute Beds section (ITU) for patients
recovering from surgery and for observation of patients with serious conditions posing an immediate threat
to life. Elective planned surgery needs to be distributed across the whole of the Health Board with specialist
areas in particular hospitals.

There should be separate buildings linked to each hospital for long term non-acute care, respite care,
routine phlebotomy, podiatry, physiotherapy, dental care, ophthalmics and for convalescence, where
people from all age groups can convalesce and be rehabilitated where necessary. This would enable the
release of patients from acute hospitals.

Rehabilitation areas should be staffed by specialist carers, physiotherapists and other appropriate
practitioners as needed. Rehabilitation facilities should be both in- and out-patient driven, include day
centre facilities and also be supported by local GPs, opticians, podiatrists, district nurses and social services
and social care.

The elderly, if physically and mentally able to cope, should be supported with care packages operated
under the auspices of the county councils either using their "in house" resources and/or with the
involvement of the private sector but with the oversight of the CSSIW inspectorate as with the residential
sector. The care packages should take into account physical changes to people’s properties and on-going
"at home physiotherapy". Support should also include Meals on Wheels, attendance at Luncheon Clubs,
Day Centres and free transport between facilities for the vulnerable including the disabled and the elderly.

The community hub concept should be supported with at-home preventative care and by GPs from their
surgeries and using District Nurses where appropriate. General illness/disability can be supported at home
using the 1950s model (renamed as Virtual Wards) by the GPs and District Nurses. Institutionalism should
be avoided at all costs but residential care should not be shunned.

4153 There will be a need to increase highly experienced staff for Virtual Wards and their management (District

Nurses and GPs) so the balancing of the finances required for the increased movement of care into the
community will be paramount.

1 1 AL
adalcl 1o



4.154

4.155

4.156

4.157

4.158

Residents of Glanymor Ward, Llanelli

The proposals will pressurise GP services and will have a detrimental effect on the health of Llanelli
residents, particularly the proposed changes to A&E at PPH. (ORS)

GPs will be unable to cope with the extra work generated by their proposed involvement in virtual wards,
minor injuries and mental health. Patients already have difficulties getting to see GPs and there will be no
hope without extra funding and staff. Consideration should be given to a midwife-led unit in Llanelli
because the numbers of births warrant this option. Llanelli deserves parity of services with the other three
main hospitals. A&E should be medically- not nurse-led and if it is downgraded then ambulances will by-
pass PPH, leading to even more closures. Who will be responsible for a mis-diagnosis by a nurse?
Ambulances cannot cope with the length of journey to Glangwili without exceeding the golden hour.
Glangwili cannot cope with the demand and standards of care are falling. Patients are discharged too early
to release bed spaces — and then often re-admitted with complications. Overall, the reconfiguration will
have a detrimental effect on the health of Llanelli and especially the elderly.

Clinical Team Leader — General Surgery (Withybush)

This submission welcomes the moves to comply with Royal College requirements, but details a number of
issues particularly affecting Withybush. (ORS)

We support the current Health Board proposal to maintain 24 hour surgical services at the Bronglais,
Withybush and Glangwili and to develop functional surgical networking and compliance with Royal College
Emergency Surgery Guidelines on all sites. However, the removal of services of any sort from a hospital
such as Withybush will inevitable have effects on their long term viability and potential changes need to be
considered in this context.

There are some specific observations to note about the comparison of Withybush and Glangwili sites: there
are gynaecological services (with 24 hour consultant cover) at Withybush; an NCEPOD theatre is available
(though staffing means it is not continuously accessible); sub specialisation is in place at Withybush, with
some posts advertised for appointment; and consultant cover is provided 24 hours a day and 7 days per
week on a ‘1-in-5 surgeon of the week rota’ supported by middle grades.

Inequalities across the Health Board sites affect the weighting scores and other issues. There are five
substantive consultants at Withybush but the number at Glangwili is unclear. The number of middle grades
available for emergency cover on a middle tier rota will relate to the number of consultant posts. Although
there are more emergency admissions at Glangwili the margin over Withybush is disproportionate to the
consultant numbers at each site. HDdHB has delayed appointments for retiring consultant at Withybush
over the past few years (to reflect developing surgical strategy) while delays at other sites and in other
specialities have been less evident. Despite this, Withybush has never had a crisis of consultant surgeon on-
call cover, whereas this has happened at other sites. Other inequalities exist in physician numbers and
especially cardiology services.

Very little discussion has focused on an overall surgical service strategy (rather than emergency services)
and agreements for cross-site working have not been delivered. There seems to be a reluctance to deliver
this at a management level at Glangwili. The future of vascular services needs to be discussed in relation to
all three main sites.




4.159

4.160

4.161

4.162

4.163

4.164

4.165

The relatively new colorectal team seems to be functioning well at a clinical level, but outside this unit
there is a strained and combative relationship between surgeons on different sites, which has caused some
unpleasantness and distorted surgical pathways. This situation does not bode well for networking and the
“one hospital- 4 sites” concept and needs serious attention.

The means by which HDdHB will comply with Royal College requirements on consultant surgical posts in
Bronglais (rotas, working in isolation, maintaining skills and networking) remains theoretical.

Local plans for emergency services include ensuring middle grades lead handover meetings in the evening
when staff change shifts and ultimately for them to be resident at night. We support the concept of rapid
access consultant clinics (hot clinics) and the difficulties with NCEPOD theatre staffing are under review as
the service continues to work towards meeting Royal College Guidelines. We are in process of recruiting a
general surgeon to take a lead role with upper Gl malignancies and liaising with Health Board MDT. It is also
proposed to establish a pelvic floor and functional bowel unit at Withybush. The recent appointment of a
Macmillan Breast Care Nurse has strengthened the breast care service and permanent dedicated clinical
space is shortly to be allocated to the department.

Whilst there are undoubtedly many positive developments, consultation is not happening with all surgeons
within HDdHB.

Save Withybush Action Team (SWAT)

SWAT believes that all of Wales’ current rural secondary care and maternity services should be maintained
and that the whole population should be within one hour of a fully functioning A&E department with
supporting secondary care services (ORS)

Rurality, roads, industry and tourism

The population on the west coast and in mid Wales is small and the road infrastructure is poor, particularly
west of St Clears and in mid Wales generally. When looking at sites for Secondary care facilities with fully
functioning A&E departments and consultant obstetric and paediatric departments it is important to take
account of what alternative facilities are available should a major road become impassable in
Pembrokeshire, Ceredigion, Powys and Gwynedd. Pembrokeshire also has a large industrial base with
several petrochemical plants and a natural gas facility, and there is a maritime presence with three ports
and two ferry terminals. Tourism is important and Pembrokeshire has one of the highest visitor numbers in
Wales.

National case for change

If the Welsh Government is going to make significant changes to secondary health care provision then this
has to be compassionate, fair and equitable. The whole population of Wales deserves to be within one hour
of a fully functioning A&E department with supporting secondary care services and where the road network
is poor two facilities should be available, with one in either direction. Proper maternity services should be
within a 20-minute travel time for safe transfer from midwifery-led units/home births.

Modelling services

Travel time modelling suggests that in the North Wales there would be an option for centralising all
services on Glan Clwyd if it were not that this would compromise the provision of care to the western and
southern parts of Gwynedd and North Powys. Therefore the best option for A&E provision in the north
would be two sites at Bangor and Wrexham, which should link with Aberystwyth, an essential provider for

-
1

(| N4
ddalcri<xL



4.166

4.167

4.168

4.169

4.170

4171

south Gwynedd and mid Powys. However if there are to be two major trauma centres in Wales, one in the
north and one in the south, then Glan Clwyd would be the ideal candidate for a major trauma centre. By
implication, it would need all the other services to back it up, including complex obstetrics, paediatrics and
neonatal care. Using similar assumptions, SWAT makes detailed recommendations for healthcare
reconfiguration in the hospitals in eastern and southern Wales.

SWAT argues that Withybush and Bronglais are both isolated units which provide good cover for the
southern half of the west coast of Wales: therefore, comprehensive DGHs, with complex obstetrics and
paediatrics and fully functioning A&Es, are essential at Withybush and Bronglais because of their isolation
and the strategic cover Bronglais provides to even more isolated areas of Wales. With this approach, it
would be possible to provide full cover for the whole of Wales, with not one member of the population
more than an hour away from a fully functioning A&E with supporting secondary care facilities; midwifery-
led units would likely remain safe and sustainable as long as the numbers of deliveries were maintained;
and GPs having access to diagnostics readily would improve healthcare and reduce travelling.

SWAT believes that all the current rural secondary care and maternity services should be maintained
because a reduction would impact on mortality rates and on the overall quality, safety and choice for
maternity care.

Pembrokeshire Health Concern (PHC)

PHC argues that HDdHB’s proposals downgrade Withybush by removing elective hip and knee replacements
and night time and weekend treatment of trauma and emergency surgery. (ORS)

PHC submitted a statement regarding the consultation documents, a copy of a letter to the Chief Executive
and a ‘consequences’ document.

The Health Board's consultation documents lack clarity, are ambiguous, fail to cite evidence for their
proposals, fail to consider the consequences of centralisation and ignore neighbouring Swansea. Although
there is a commitment to 24/7 emergency services on three sites', there is an intention to develop
Glangwili services at the expense of Withybush. The impacts in the field of orthopaedics, emergency
surgery and trauma would be devastating for Withybush, with the services being rendered unsustainable.
The Health Board should keep hip and knee replacement surgery at Withybush and maintain a full 24-hour
7-day emergency and trauma treatment service in exactly the form that it currently exists, except with
improved staffing for emergency theatre to enable increased operating by daytime.

The submission addresses the consequences of the preferred options for Withybush Hospital, including the
removal of: elective hip and knee replacements, night time and weekend treatment of trauma, and night
time and weekend emergency surgery.

The removal of elective hip and knee replacements would take place as part of the development of a centre
for orthopaedic surgery at Prince Philip Hospital — leaving only day and short stay-surgery (up to two days)
and the management of orthopaedic and soft tissue trauma during the daytime at Withybush. The
consequence would be a problem of staffing and the sustainability of the remaining services at Withybush
would be in doubt. Broken bones in Pembrokeshire would end up having to be treated in Carmarthenshire;
minor orthopaedic surgery would become unsustainable; it would become impossible to obtain urgent
orthopaedic opinions for inpatients admitted under other specialties; and there would be loss of
recognition for training of the medical staff.

1 1 lal.Wa
adalicri-<1o



4172

4173

4.174

4.175

4.176

In reality, the Health Board’s so-called "24/7 full emergency service" would mean that at night and
weekends the service would consist of the management of only minor conditions by middle grade doctors
who would provide a ‘stabilise and transfer’ service to Glangwili Hospital for anything more serious, but
there is no evidence for the superiority of this arrangement at Glangwili, which is not properly described as
a trauma centre.

Nonetheless, the proposals would mean that at night and weekends patients requiring surgery would be
stabilised and transferred to a new ‘centre’ at Glangwili Hospital — with potentially fatal consequences for
some patients because surgical emergencies from the western and northern parts of Pembrokeshire would
no longer have access to treatment within one hour. About a quarter of the population would be over an
hour away. As well as being dangerous, this would downgrade the service to inpatients developing surgical
emergencies and it would be unsafe to deal with conditions such as upper gastro-intestinal haemorrhages,
elective major colorectal surgery, and gastro-intestinal endoscopy. There would be a consequential drastic
reduction in emergency experience for surgical trainees, resulting in loss of recognition for training.

The submission contains three detailed appendices dealing with the: inter-dependency of services; the
interpretation of HDdHB’s proposals for emergency and unplanned care; and a critique of HDdHB's case for
removing emergency surgery out-of-hours.

Ward 9 staff at Withybush hospital

The staff criticise HDdHB’s proposals for community hospitals, paediatric, neonatal and orthopaedic
services. Moving orthopaedic services to Llanelli will disadvantage people west of Carmarthen whereas
moving them to Withybush will give Llanelli residents a choice of either Withybush or Swansea. (ORS)

More community hospitals/minor injury units are needed so that the people living, working and holidaying
in the area can access health care within 30 minutes of their home. Paediatric high dependency care (levels
1-2) should be available within one hour from most people's homes in order to maintain the integrity and
sustainability of all the district general hospitals. Investment should be made to maintain HDUs on all three
sites without the need to transfer sick children. Investment in level 2 neonatal care would benefit a small
number of children, but disadvantage many more. Moving all/most orthopaedic services to Llanelli would
disadvantage people living west of Carmarthen, whereas moving most orthopaedic surgery to Withybush
will disadvantage only those in Llanelli, who will still have the choice of either Withybush or Swansea.
Currently, the travel times to all hospitals within the health board are quoted as car journey times, but this
does not take into account the poor public transport. Money should be spent on staff development and
training rather than on new buildings/departments.

South East Pembrokeshire Community Health Network (SEPCHN)
The SEPCHN argues for the retention of the Tenby Cottage Hospital Minor Injury Unit. (ORS)

The submission objects to the proposals to move minor injuries services from the Tenby and South
Pembrokeshire Hospital to GPs — on the grounds that: GP participation has not been agreed and might not
be achieved; the changes will worsen minor injury services by reducing the opening hours and days; there
has not been an adequate risk assessment in relation to population needs and travel; the use made of the
Tenby Cottage Hospital minor injuries service has not been sufficiently considered; insufficient attention
has been paid to the training and recruitment of nurse practitioners for the new system; discontinuing the

1 1 DA O
ddalcri<1o



4.177

4.178

4.179

4.180

4.181

4.182

4.183

service would waste the modern facilities at Tenby; HDdHB has taken too little notice of public opinion and
been inflexible in its planning; and the new system will not save money.

Pembrokeshire Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Forum (facilitated by Pembrokeshire
Association of Voluntary Services)

The third sector should be an important partner in implementing changes, particularly regarding transport.
There needs to be a balanced approach with respect to Withybush. (ORS)

Any changes should take account of the services currently offered by third sector organisations, for many
could be strengthened to support the Board’s proposals. There are many implications for the third sector,
particularly in transport provision to enable families to travel to Glangwili. Consideration could be given to
providing parental or family accommodation for them to be close to inpatient babies and young children.
The third sector in Pembrokeshire wish services to remain at Withybush, but they also recognise the need
to move services and believe that the best and safest options should be developed.

UNISON

The submission sees some benefits for patients and staff in the proposals, but has some concerns about
implementation. (ORS)

UNISON supports the aim of providing integrated healthcare as close to the patient as possible and its
submission identifies potential benefits for staff, including developing new roles for nurses and other
health professionals. It notes, though, that the plans make few comments about administrative and clerical
staff and that some staff will have concerns about their roles or locations changing. The Health Board will
need to demonstrate and clearly communicate its workforce plan.

Where HDdHB considers commissioning services with the third sector or other providers, UNISON would
expect full consultation on comparable employment terms and appropriate training, experience and
qualifications of staff.

UNISON welcomes the commitment given that the proposed changes to hospital services will not occur
until the new services are in place, but it has concerns about the viability of this commitment in the current
financial climate; and it is unclear how the Health Board will be able to resource the necessary changes.

When the Welsh Government’s health settlement requires Health Board to identify savings year-on-year it
will be hard for staff to envisage how their roles will be developed to take on new duties in new settings.

UNISON believes HDdHB should give a clear commitment to maintaining the direct provision of beds in the
community, including within the new Community Resource Centres and welcomes the proposed
Implementation Board, which should also include representation from UNISON.

aBer Campaign Group

Key services should continue at Bronglais and services recently diminished should be reinstated. The
proposals for community care cannot be implemented successfully without substantial investment and more
time. (ORS)

The aBer group is pleased with that services at Bronglais are secure, but is sorry if this is at the cost of
services at Llanelli. As well as major colorectal surgery continuing at Bronglais, minor laparoscopic surgery

1 1 laVYaVal
adalcri<<£9Y



should continue there as well. Bronglais should also have a consultant-delivered obstetric service and the
paediatric unit should be fully reinstated, with four baby beds rather than the overnight provision currently
offered. The mental health inpatient beds should also be reinstated urgently. Tregaron and Aberacron
hospitals should remain open because the Board has said that no change in service provision will occur
without safe alternatives being provided. The Board's strategy for community care is not deliverable since
GP services are problematic due to retirements and pressure of work (which leads to difficulties getting
appointments). They cannot do minor injuries and pre-operative assessments while providing enhanced
care for patients newly released from hospitals. Where will the funding for buildings, equipment and nurse
education come from? It will take at least five years to create the pan-Hywel Dda service envisaged.

Analysis of Other Submissions

2% ORS has reviewed all of the submissions and categorised them for ease of analysis and to identify key
themes. Based on ORS’ classification, the number of submissions per category is below:

Residents - 123

Staff & GPs - 21

Parish/Community Council - 31
MPs/AMs - 10

Special Interests Groups - 55
Petition - 8

Voluntary / Community Groups — 5

County Councils / Local Health Boards — 12

County Councils and Local Health Boards

County Councils and Local Health Boards

Ceredigion County Councillor Ellen Welcome approach to delivering care closer to home and
Council ap Gwynn, Chair  helping people live independently. Should be developed
Ceredigion Local ~ closely with Social Services.
Service Board Acknowledges challenges of transport in rural areas and

work that has gone into addressing this.

Concern over financial planning and monitoring of the
strategy

Welcomes the innovative Chair of Rural Wellbeing. Joint
working to influence rural health and education and training
is a huge opportunity.

Overall supportive of the direction of change and are
committed to supporting HDdHB.




Pembrokeshire County
Council

Ceredigion County
Council

Carmarthenshire
County Council

County Councillors of
Llanelli & District

Councillor David
Lloyd Notice of
Motion to
Meeting of
Council

TH Lewis,
Councillor

Gwyneth
Thomas
Individual
submission by
an elected
Councillor and
member of the
Health & Social
Care Scrutiny
Committee

Various

Vigorously opposes any closure of key services at Withybush
GH - there is a compelling clinical case for the retention of
all services

Supports majority of consultant at WGH that if services are
centralised they should be based at WGH

Consultation document fails to take account of services
provided by ABM

Any attempt to centralise services anywhere other than
Withybush as a severe and unwarranted diminution of
current services resulting in a reduction of safety, choice and
quality of service for the people of Pembrokeshire

HDdHB should comply with the principle of the provision of
safe services

For expert treatment the outcome is paramount not the
location

New Guild at Cardigan should be a Centre of Excellence in
preventative medicine with the GP encouraged and
proactive in care. The League of Friends have committed
over £100,000 to Cardigan Hospital

Treatment close to home is impossible in a sparse rural
community

Need enhanced ambulance service in order to treat
everyone within the ‘Golden Hour’

Concern about a nurse-led A&E at PPH

People from Llanelli do not want a Rolls Royce service just n
equal service.

Post-code healthcare.

PPH doctors are opposed to the changes

Time-frame is a concern — too fast and is unfeasible
Training nurses to take over would take 2-3 years not 8
months

Why no risk assessment?

Notice of a Vote of NO CONFIDENCE in the consultation
document

A&E should be consultant-led A&E. If A&E is downgraded
this will be detrimental to Llanelli’s patients and Morriston’s
A&E — PPH is already dealing with overflow from Morriston.

Submissions from Politicians and Political Groups

Politicians and Political Groups

4 submissions from
MPs (2 Conservative, 1
Labour and 1 Liberal
Democrat)

3 submissions from
AM/ACs (1 Labour, 1
Plaid Cymru, 1
Conservative)

1 submission from the
Tenby & District

MPs

Simon Hart
Stephen Crabb
Mark Williams
Nia Griffiths

AM/ACs

Keith Davies
Simon Thomas
Paul Davies

Service Changes

Pembroke Dock/Tenby MIU

Closure of the MIU in Tenby requires that GPs will provide
this service instead but the surgeries say that they have not
been consulted. The implications of this move have not been
thought through. Especially given that when the resort is at
it’s busiest, GPs surgeries offer limited availability of
services.

GP participation has not been agreed
Not enough detailed research has been done on the effect
on this rural community

1 1 laVaVal
adaiictr <<



Labour party

Questions
Rebecca Evans,
AM/AC

Largest concentration of rural population will have to travel
the furthest.

High level without their own cars.

Role of the WG Rural Health Plan?

Waste of up-to-date facilities

Lack of detail in the consultation document means
constituent fear insufficient planning has been done.

Withybush SCBU

Strong public opposition

Worries about longer transfer times affecting the care of sick
babies and the logistics of visiting babies is SCBU

If only one Level Two Neonatal is possible in HDdHB then it
should be in Withybush as there were more babies requiring
SCBU care within Pembrokeshire than Carmarthenshire in
2011/12 and also Carmarthenshire residents are able to
travel to Swansea

May have a knock on effect on the Paediatrics and then A&E
not being able to treat children.

Services should be improved and enhanced not downgraded
Mynydd Mawr Hospital

There is a lot to do to upgrade community services before
hospital beds are closed.

Could Mynydd Mawr provide community bed provision
rather than close?

Local residents are strongly opposed to the planned closure.
Concerned at the loss of community beds

If Mynydd Mawr is to close then Paediatrics and Obstetrics
would preferably be at Glangwili than Withybush.

Prince Philip Hospital

What risk assessments have been done about closing the
A&E?

Physicians are not prepared to support a nurse-led A&E and
therefore the plans are UNSAFE

GPs are unable to provide A&E facilities — people would go
to Glangwili or Morriston — what additional resources are in
place to cope with the increase?

People in custody taken ill would have to go to Glangwili
using up additional police time

What about the impact of the additional costs on the
relatively high number of low income families in Llanelli
Changes to Local Accident Unit have not been
communicated clearly — does not accept that provision has
to change - should stay the same

Recognise the distinct needs of urban localities such as
Llanelli

Bronglais Hospital

Need to ensure a full range of services is available otherwise
constituents will have to endure considerably longer
transfer times to their health care requirements

The Minister’s vision is for a centre of excellence, providing
first class care to the population of Mid and West Wales
which is still sadly missing from your proposal. It appears to
be a proposal to disinvest in secondary care in order to
provide resources in primary and community care. In
conjunction with the closure of community care beds is
causing people to stay in hospital far longer than necessary.
A new plan is needed which will boost community
resources.

Should be the Regional District General Hospital with full

1 1 laYa¥al
adalCri<<£o



obstetric, neo-natal, emergency care and that Planned Care
provision be fully resourced.

Call to restore mental health in-patient facility beds which is
currently not addressed and not discussed at the public
meeting

Travel Times and Transport

Journeys to alternative facilities will require expensive and
already stretched ambulance transfer for those people
without cars.

Lack of public transport and travel times make proposals
unacceptable in terms of accessing services, attending
appointments and visiting relatives

Pressure on ambulance service — what calculations have
been done and have the ambulance service been consulted?
Additional pressure on Wales Air Ambulance which is
funded by charitable donations — there seems to be no plans
to provide extra funding.

Any plans that demand more from the community and GP
services are highly questionable

Families, especially on low incomes find it difficult to access
services in Carmarthen

More detail needed on the cost of ambulance transfers.

Trust in Consultation

Given that HDdHB said last year the units would remain
open, and are now proposing closing them again, how can
the public trust HDdHB?

Doubts about if this is a genuine consultation within the
community

The use of out-dated data sources is disappointing and does
not capture the social and economic difficulties v

Llanelli is the largest population centre and services should
be based here. Rural dwellers accept they have to travel
further and have access to private transport more than
some of the urban communities — they would not be able to
attend evening visitor sessions at Glangwili if using public
transport.

The dismissal of the petition and disinterest in meeting
community representatives has a provided little reassurance
to residents.

General Points
Ageing population with many retirees
Popular tourist area

Concerns transport if Orthopaedic Unit is at Prince Philip
Hospital

Concern about lack of out of hours trauma unit at Glangwili

What efforts to train and recruit staff to provide the
proposed new services?

Lack of flexibility in the plans

New plan will mean additional costs not savings
Given the population clusters and locations of other
hospitals Withybush should be preserved rather than
Glangwili

Centralisation of services without giving sufficient detail on
community care services to fill the gap

Effect on Morriston Hospital

Effect on recruitment plans

1 N A
radarcri <<«



Recruitment is difficult in a rural community particularly
with an aging population.

Improve the range of GP services and work more closely
with them to create a greater number of emergency or last
minute appointments

Special Interest Groups

Special Interest Groups

South Wales Cardiac No reference made to cardiology despite making up 40% of
Network acute medical care — no reference to how proposed changes
will affect it

Had to deliver contemporary cardiovascular care across 4
sites given the small population

Lack of consistent management across the HB

No mention of prevention/preventative strategies which is
against WG policy

Investment is needed to provide services closer to home
Consider integrating some services with ABM

Surprisingly no mention of the South Wales plan

Boots Sian Wilton, Boots operates 99 community pharmacies, 16 of which are
Head of Region, in Hywel Dda and have to cope with the large variations in
Wales customer numbers plus opticians and hearing care

Pleased to see recognition of their role

Wording should be changed to recognise the length of travel
time to some pharmacies given the geography of the area
Disappointed that more community pharmacies have not
been commissioned by HDdHB

One Voice Wales Dr Del Morgan, Strongly agree that people should receive care in their own
Development communities
Officer Adequate numbers of NHS beds need to be retained —
capacity needs to be maintained until proposed alternatives
are in place

Concerned about the closure of Afallon mental health ward
at Bronglais and that patients have been transferred to
Glangwili — 24hr emergency mental health care should be
available in Aberystwyth

Strong need to maintain skills and critical mass at Bronglais
including theatre capacity and maternity/paediatric services

Church and Society Concerned about services at Bronglais — no one should be
Committee of the more than 60 minutes away from acute surgical or obstetric
Ceredigion and North care

Pembrokeshire of the

Care which is of high quality and reasonably accessible is
Presbyterian Church of whien ! i y et

essential and a core of well qualified consultants is required

Wales
Concerned at stress to patients of long journeys for
treatment and consultation and the costs to families
Need for Welsh language nursing care
Mynydd Mawr League Ellis Davies, Held a public meeting where grave concern was expressed
of Friends Treasurer over the proposals top close Mynydd Mawr Hospital




Ceredigion 50+ Forum

Portfield Self Advocacy

Group

Carmarthenshire
People First

All Wales Sport

Amman Valley
Hospital League of
Friends

Crohn’s & Colitis UK -

Aberystwyth & District

Group

Gweneira Raw-
Rees

Sarah Philips,
Advisor

Ellis Davies

Dilys Richards,
Hon. Secretary

Mike Hilton, Co-
ordinator

Glangwili hospital is supported as the location for Paediatric
High Dependency unit, also for additional paediatric services
at Bronglais

It is essential that services are kept at Bronglais due to the
large catchment area

Retention of orthopaedic services at Bronglais is supported
but also a centre of excellence at PPH

Operating theatre at Bronglais should be upgraded
immediately

Concern about staffing levels

Concern about suitability of people’s homes, demands on
the voluntary sector and diminishing LA budgets

Cylch Caron seen as crucially important in servicing the large
rural area

No mention of care services for older people

Need assurances that hospitals would not closer until new
services are in place

No physchogeritrician for the elderly mentally ill

Problems around hospital transport and the inconvenient
and insensitive timing of appointments

Better communication is needed between health care
professionals and patients

Picture menus should be used in hospitals

Health passports should be introduced

Language barriers should be addressed possibly though the
use of sign-a-long and widget symbols

NHS would benefit from a learning disability nurse at every
hospital

Like the idea of care closer to where people live but how
would this come about? More details on how this would
work is needed.

Cross department working for people with multiple
problems

More copies of the questionnaire are requested and a
request for an extension to the submission time period.

Why has the possibility for a midwife led unit been omitted
from the plans? The Welsh Maternity Strategy says women
are expected to be given this option

Would only being given the choice between a home birth or
at a complex unit result in more women being given C-
sections?

Would a MLU automatically be set-up as this is not explicit
in the proposals

Full approval of investment in community services

Accept that it is not possible to comply with the standards
given the very rural nature of the area but a planned
pathway of care should be provided for IBD suffers

An IBD nurse should be provided in each hospital

A full study of the patient transfer system needs to take
place

It is important that patients receive visits from family and
friends to boost morale and make recovery quicker

Funding required for the Air Ambulance service

1 1 laYaVal
adalicri—<<£0



Care in the community cannot be done on the back of saving
money

‘the right number of staff in the right place are the right time
with the right training’

Carmarthenshire Liz Harris, Team  Need better mental health services locally
Youth Health Team Manager Need to reduce waiting time for GPs appointments

Mynydd Mawr is too far better at PPH especially for parents
without a car

People need to be able to get there on public transport

Voluntary and Community Groups

Voluntary and Community Groups

Pembrokeshire Brian Pratt, Consultation and Public Events were poorly advertised.
Communities First Chair, Health Out of date data was used (2008 not 2011) which show the
Community area is increasingly deprived — the wealth gap is widening
Action Group more than other counties, this means there will be access
issues.

Want to see a real commitment to close the health gap
which is a result of the wealth gap.
Please consider closer collaboration with Communities First

Fforwm Strata Florida  Wilma Rush, Older people’s healthcare needs are not being taken into
50+ Forum Acting Secretary  consideration.
& Events Proposed community resources will take time to be up and
Organiser running — until they are ready no resources should be

withdrawn or relocated as has happened in the past
(Tregaron Hospital)

Co-ordinated treatment for long-term chronic conditions
and consultant-led psychogeriatric services are virtually non-
existent in the area.

The virtual ward concept may not be suitable for older
people’s homes, place unrealistic expectations on carers and
older people may be unable to cope with the technology.
Full A&E in Bronglais Hospital must be retained.

No plans addressing the infrastructure problems for the four
sites.

HDdHB’s actions have created a huge sense of mistrust in
both the rural and urban communities.

Aberystwyth Requesting another event to be held during term time
University, (NOTE: they did) — should be put in para on consultation
Aberystwyth’s student process
newspaper
- L L nNN—7
radalciri<<7




Staff and GP Submissions Analysis

418 HDAHB classified 21 submissions as Staff Members and Primary Care Contractors. ORS have reclassified
seven of these (one special interest group, one resident, one staff meeting notes, two ineligible and two

key submissions).

418 A total of 15 submissions have been received from Staff and GPs across Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion,
Pembrokeshire and Powys. Six were in relation to Prince Philip Hospital, five to Withybush General
Hospital, and one was in relation to Tenby Cottage Hospital and South Pembrokeshire Hospital. Six made
general comments about the consultation and proposals in additional to specific issues relating to

individual hospitals.

Prince Philip Hospital, Llanelli
Contributors Key Themes and Arguments

6 responses specifically relating to PPH

A&E Services

A&E services at PPH should be at least maintained at their
current level — or, preferably, revert to a full,
doctor/consultant-led service

A service needs to provide stabilisation before transfer, and
overnight medical staff (dealing with overnight admissions of
drug and alcohol misusers)

Concerns about nurses at the proposed new unit. The loss of
doctor support will lead to unsafe outcomes

Having to take full clinical responsibility will limit the
willingness to take up the role of Emergency Nurse
Practitioners

Even in the event of a public awareness campaign concern that
patients will still present with medical emergencies which
requires medical back-up

Concern about the lack of capacity to cope with increased
workloads at impact on the A&E in Morriston and Glangwili
and GPs

SUPPORT FOR/ALTERNATIVES

No change to current services- on the grounds that they are
safe and efficient — training of junior medical trainees best in
Wales (2011-12)

An Emergency Medical Unit alongside the local ‘doctor
supervised’ accident centre

Fully functioning CCU, ITU, HDU and on-site emergency
radiology and pathology services

Merging ABMU with HDdHB — Llanelli patients can go to
Morriston

Other Issues

Welcomes plans for Breast Care Centre of Excellence and an
Advanced Orthopaedic Centre

Withybush General Hospital, Haverfordwest

5 responses specifically relating to WGH

Centralisation of Services for Women and Children

Opposed to Level 2 SCBU in Glangwili

Glangwili close to Swansea. Concerns that proposals will leave
the west of HDdHB without a sustainable service

lllogical to spend money on providing a new unit when only
12-16 babies per year will require this level of care

1 1 NDYO
adalicri-<<£o



Concern that staffing new unit will be unsustainable and
maintaining level of nursing skills/medical staff will be difficult
Concerns with distance to travel:

Emergency transport arrangements should be available 24/7
Well researched that accessing post-delivery services within
the ‘golden hour’ improved outcomes

Impact on parents emotional and psychological well-being and
financial implications

Impact on breastfeeding

SUPPORT FOR/ALTERNATIVES

Invest in current service (provision of more cots), address
current issues (safety and recruitment) and maintain service
level agreement with Singleton Hospital — babies could be
brought back earlier if services were improved

A larger SCBU at Withybush could be accommodated utilising
current medical staffing.

Accident and Emergency

In the event of the closure of the Minor Injuries Unit at TCH
and SPH the HCSW and ENP should completely manage the
minor stream patients which would result in quicker
throughput of patients

Other Issues
Concern that proposals will downgrade Withybush with little
evidence that future planning has been considered

Tenby Cottage Hospital, Tenby and South Pembrokeshire Hospital, Pembroke Dock

Sub Group Key Themes and Arguments
Contributors

1 response specifically relating to TCH Support closure of Minor Injuries Unit at TCH and SPH, in
and SPH favour of the ‘local’ emergency department in Withybush.
BUT

Lack of engagement with primary care. Unaware of any
‘concrete’ agreements with GP’s that confirm they will provide
a minor injuries service

Other Staff Comments

Sub p Key Themes and Arguments

Contributors

6 Staff and GPs made more general Community Services and Primary Care

comments about the Not clear in the document what is meant by ‘assessment in
consultation/proposals in addition to primary care or the additional burden on GPs and primary care
specific issues (as outlined above) staff — little capacity to increase level of workload

Concern that primary care is not in a position to provide many
of the functions of hospital clinics in pre-assessment and pre-
operative care

Support for communication between GPs and assessment
clinics

Concern that a number of commitments have been made
without discussion with or agreement of the Local Medical
Committee

Moving care away from hospitals into the community will be
beneficial to patients in terms of cost and quality of care

Travel and Distance
General concerns about travel times
Transport issues require further consideration

Other Issues




Complaints about the consultation document, meet the health
board events and process

Further consideration is needed on how plans will improve
current financial situation

Further information required about how proposals have
considered changes occurring in other health boards

Concern about loss of beds at Cardigan Hospital and the
closure of Derwen ward

Request for further information about redundancy packages

Town and Community Councils’ Submissions Analysis

418 Submissions were received from 31 Town and Community Councils across Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion,
Pembrokeshire and Powys. Six were in relation to Prince Philip Hospital, five to Withybush General
Hospital, and a further four each for Bronglais General Hospital and Tenby Cottage Hospital. Only one
council commented on Glangwili General Hospital (and specifically about the lack of parking there). The
remaining 11 made general comments about the consultation and proposals.

Withybush General Hospital, Haverfordwest
m Contributors Key Themes and Arguments

5 responses Core Services at WGH

specifically Support for retention of full A&E Service at WGH.

relating to WGH Wish to see key core services maintained at Withybush to
ensure the safety of the people of Pembrokeshire.
Removal of core services will, in time, lead to the downgrading
of WGH to a ‘Cottage Hospital’.

Concerns about the inter-dependency of services and that the
removal of one poses a threat to others.

Centralisation of Services

Services should be centralised at Withybush.

Loss of any orthopaedics could lead to progressive decline in
other services such as trauma.

Parents in Carmarthenshire have easy access to Level 3
Neonatal Services Swansea — SCBU should remain in
Withybush and should be upgraded.

Long journeys along difficult road networks to other hospitals.

Quality and Safety
Choice and quality must be maintained for the people of
Pembrokeshire

HDdHB must ensure safe services with regard to staffing levels
and skills

Other Issues
Pembrokeshire is being marginalised by providing all core
services along M4 corridor between Carmarthen and Swansea.

Prince Philip Hospital, Llanelli

6 responses A&E Services
specifically
relating to PPH

A&E services at PPH should be at least maintained at their
current level — or, preferably, revert to a full, doctor-led
service.

Concern about additional demand on Ambulance Service
(transporting patients from Llanelli to Glangwili).

laVYaVal

(|
adarcti<—ouU



Concerns about nurses at the proposed new unit having access
to doctors via telemedicine video conferencing facilities —
especially in relation to: HDdHB’s capacity to provide sufficient
doctors; doctors’ capability to operate effectively using this
system; whether doctors will consent to deliver services in this
way; and where responsibility for diagnosis will lie.

Bronglais General Hospital, Haverfordwest
m Contributors Key Themes and Arguments

4 responses Core Services at BGH
specifically Support for retention of full A&E Service at WGH.

relating to BGH Wish to see key core services maintained at Bronglais to
ensure the safety of the people of Ceredigion.

Need to maintain core services to attract good quality staff.

Centralisation of Services

Long, costly journeys along difficult road networks to other
hospitals.

Other Issues

Lack of meetings held with residents in Powys.

Positive about increased joint working between Hywel Dda,
Powys and Betsi Cadwaladr Health Boards.

When will Afallon Ward be re-opened?
Safety of operating theatres at BGH.

Tenby Cottage Hospital, Tenby

4 responses Against closure of Minor Injuries Unit at TCH, which is an

specifically ‘essential’ part of the local community.
relating to TCH

Main concerns are:

Travel time (and cost) from Tenby to Withybush — especially by
‘poor’ public transport

Increased number of visitors to Tenby in the summer months

Many retired people, residential homes and schools in the
Tenby area

Increased demand on Withybush and the Ambulance Service

Extra work for GPs and nursing staff — and their willingness to
undertake it.

Council’s Other Comments

11 councils made more Community Services and Primary Care
general comments

Support for community services — providing they are properly

about the- funded and are in place prior to the removal of secondary care
consultation/proposals Sericesy
BUT

Little explanation of how it will work in practice

Aspirational but not feasible or affordable

Much scepticism that funds will be available for community
resources.

Contractual changes and changes to working practices required
(including for GPs), which may not be achievable.




Travel Times

General concerns about travel times (and difficult transport
links) to centralised services and services outside HDdHB.

Health Board trying to impose an urban solution on a rural
area.

Other Issues

Complaints about the consultation document, questionnaire
and process.

HDdHB has not taken into account the resources of AMBUHB
in formulating its proposals.

Need for equitable services (and equal access to them) across
the Health Board area.

Feeling that decisions have already been taken.
Concern about loss of beds at Cardigan Hospital.

Opposition to closure of Mynydd Mawr Hospital on the
grounds that there will be no respite care available for
residents of the area.

Residents’ Submissions Analysis

4187 Of the 123 residents’ submissions these were reviewed in accordance to the hospital they were most
concerned with and are listed below:

Withybush General Hospital 43

Prince Philip Hospital 22
Bronglais General Hospital 19
Glangwili General Hospital 3
Tenby Cottage Hospital 2
General 34

4188 Trends and themes that have been identified by hospital as below.

Withybush General Hospital, Haverfordwest

43 residents’ SCBU
submissions
specifically
relation to WGH

Closure of the SCBU would lead to parents having to travel
either to Glangwili or to Singleton (Swansea), which is too far.
New mothers would not be able to visit their babies frequently
enough, which can affect bonding. Neither would they be able
to visit often enough to breastfeed.

Downgrading of WGH

WGH should not be downgraded due to the long travel times
to alternative hospitals.

Other hospitals are closer to alternatives and therefore
patients are more able to access services at other locations -
for example, people in Llanelli are within easy reach of
Morriston and Singleton Hospitals in Swansea.

1 1 laYaVal
gdalcri-<o<



Poor transport links

The area has poor transport links (both road networks and
public transport), particularly in bad weather and given the
age of many local residents.

Other Issues

Plans fail to take into account the needs of the significant
number of tourists to the area.

The proposals also fail to consider the amount of heavy
industry in the area — and the need for a good quality hospital
in the event of a major accident.

Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence should be in WGH.

Concerns about the future of Cancer and Haematology
Services at WGH.

Concerns about reduced inpatient services at WGH in future.
Concerns about the consultation process.

Prince Philip Hospital, Llanelli
Contributors Key Themes and Arguments

22 responses A&E Services
specifically
relating to PPH

A&E services at PPH should be at least maintained at their
current level — or, preferably, revert to a full, consultant-led
service.

The main reasons given for this were: the need to cater for
Llanelli’s large population; travel times to Carmarthen; and the
additional demand on Glangwili and Morriston Hospitals.

One comment that HDdHB should take Llanelli out of HDdHB
area and give it to Swansea.

Bronglais General Hospital, Aberystwyth

19 responses BGH serves a large area
specifically
relating to BGH

BGH is essential due to its location — and the difficulties
residents have in travelling elsewhere. As such, as many
services as possible should be maintained there.

People of rural Wales being punished by having to travel long
distances to access care.

Mental Health Services

Mental health services are insufficient (Afallon Ward should
be re-opened).

Other issues

Concerns that BGH will be unable to offer modern surgical
procedures in future.

Further downgrading of services will lead to further
recruitment issues.

More use should be made of Telford and Shrewsbury Hospitals
as there are direct train links there (and access is far easier
than to Swansea).

Glangwili General Hospital, Carmarthen

3 responses Support for proposed new Women and Children’s Services at
specifically Glangwili.
relating to GGH

1 1 laVYa¥al
adaicti<oo



Tenby Cottage Hospital, Tenby

2 responses Against closure of Minor Injuries Unit at TCH as will be

specifically detrimental to local area and is a waste of resources.

relating to TCH Main concern is travel time (and cost) from Tenby to
Withybush.

Residents’ Other Comments
m Contributors Key Themes and Arguments

34 residents made Community Services and Primary Care
more general
comments about the
consultation/proposals

Support for community services — providing they are
properly funded and are in place prior to the removal of
secondary care services.

Need for short-stay convalescent facilities to help people
who can be discharged but have no-one to care for them —
which will help with bed blocking.

Lack of emphasis on working with other agencies to get
older people out of hospitals and back into the community.

Poor out-of-hours GP access.

Travel Times

General concerns about travel times (and difficult transport
links) to centralised services and services outside HDdHB.

Other Issues

Concerns about staffing levels and future recruitment.
Concern about loss of beds at Cardigan Hospital.
Ambulance Service must be improved.

Complaints about the consultation document and the
HDdHB website.

No Neuropsychiatric service for children.

3. ORS also received minutes and letters from various staff meetings as below:
Orthopaedic Team at Withybush General Hospital (letter)

HDDHB and Gypsy Travelling Society — Pembrokeshire (minutes)

Roadshow at Bronglais Hospital, Aberystwyth (minutes)

All Heads of Department, Withybush General Hospital (minutes)

Medical staff, GP meeting, Glangwili Hospital, Carmarthenshire (minutes)
Medical staff, GP meeting, Prince Philip Hospital, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Speech and Language Therapy Locality Staff meeting, Glangwili General Hospital, Carmarthenshire
(minutes)

GP Forum, Pembrokeshire
Mental Health Planning and Implementation Group, Pembrokeshire (minutes)

Speech and Language Therapy Locality Staff meeting, Cardigan Hospital, Ceredigion (minutes)

NN A

e o
I

(|
adalCri<o~



Speech and Language Therapy Staff meeting, Withybush General Hospital (minutes)
Maternity Services Liaison Committee meeting, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Dyfed Powys Local Medical Committee, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Roadshow of Withybush General Hospital (minutes)

Roadshow at Prince Philip Hospital (minutes)

Finance Department meeting, Glangwili Hospital (minutes)

Community Health & Social Services staff meeting, Pembrokeshire (minutes)
Stakeholder Reference Group, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Saundersfoot Medical Centre, Pembrokeshire (minutes)

Argyle Medical Centre, Pembrokeshire (minutes)
Tenby Surgery, Pembrokeshire (minutes)
Area and Local Authority Service Leaders, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Roadshow at Glangwili Hospital, Carmarthenshire (minutes)

Questions from Clinical Services Strategy Staff meeting in Mynydd Mawr Hospital (notes)
Questions from Clinical Services Strategy Staff meeting in Amman Valley Hospital (notes)
Questions from Clinical Services Strategy Staff meeting in Llandovery Hospital (notes)
Presentation and Q&A with Clinical Services Strategy, Pembrokeshire (minutes)

Public event at Aberystwyth with Community Health Council and League of Friends (notes)
Student event at Aberystwyth University (notes)

Meeting with Phoenix Wellbeing Society




Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board

December 2012

Organisations’ Open Consultation Questionnaires

418 Of the 4,422 open consultation questionnaires received, a total of 164 responses were from organisations.

Of course, they have been ‘counted’ in the quantitative analysis reported earlier; but it is also appropriate

to consider the 164 responses as a group in this chapter also, since it deals with the views of organisations.

Consultation questionnaires were received from the

Town and Community Councils
Aberaeron Town Council
Aberystwyth Town Council
Blaenrheidol Community Council
Beulah Community Council

Cenarth Community Council

Cilgwyn Community Council

Ciliau Aeron Community Council
Abergwili Community Council

Carew Community Council
Ceulanamaesmawr Community Council
East Williamston Community Council
Lampeter Town Council

Llanelli Rural Council

Llanelli Town Council

Llannon Community Council

Llanarth Community Council
Llanarthne Community Council
Llanddewi Velfrey Community Council

Llanrhystud Community Council

Other Organisations

Adam’s Bucketful of Hope Appeal (cancer charity)
Age Cymru, Ceredigion

Betsi Independent Church, Tumble

Bliss Charity (for premature and sick babies)
Brooklands Care Home, Pembrokeshire

Cardigan Hospital and Community League of Friends
Carmarthen West and South Pembrokeshire Labour Party
Carmarthenshire Citizens’ Panel

Ceredigion Citizens’ Panel

Ceredigion County Council

Ceredigion Regional Women's Committee
Charnwait Management Ltd, Pembrokeshire

Club Gwawr, Llanllwni

Cooperative Women's Guild

Councillor Bill Thomas, representing Swiss Valley Ward,
Llanelli

County Councillor Elizabeth Evans (Aberaeron Ward)

County Councillor, responding on behalf of Bynea Ward,
Carmarthenshire

following organisations:

Llanwenog Community Council

Marloes and St. Brides Community Council
Merlins Bridge Community Council
Milford Haven Town Council

Myddfai Community Council

Nevern Community Council

Newton and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council
Pembroke Town Council

Penally Community Council

Pontyberem Community Council

St David's City Council

St Mary-Out-Liberty Community Council
Tenby Town Council

Trefeglwys Community Council

Tregaron Town Council

Tregynon Community Council

Ysbyty Ystwyth Community Council

Ystrad Fflur Community Council

Crohn's and Colitis UK, Aberystwyth and District Group
Cross Hands and Tumble Medical Partnership

Cylch Caron Project Stakeholder Board

Department for Work and Pensions

Diverse Cymru (Welsh sector organisation promoting
equality)

Glanymor Ward, Llanelli

Gorslas and Cross Hands Men's Society

Green Hill School, Pembrokeshire

Gwynedd Council

Haverfordwest and Johnston Branch Labour Party
Haverfordwest General Hospital, Paediatric Services
Hubbardton Dance Club

Institute, City Branch

International Reiki Federation

Labour Party, Tenby District

Llanelli Disabled Drivers Association

Llanelli and District League of Hospital Friends

Llechryd Coffee Morning Groups

ol (| 1
rudqiicili

236

162



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Liwynhendy and Pemberton Community, Llanelli South Wales Cardiac Network

(involved door knocking/surveys) Special Care Baby Unit, Withybush Hospital,
Local Minister of Religion, responding on behalf of Pembrokeshire

many elderly church members St Mary’s Church, Mothers Union Branch
Merched Y Wawr (Aberporth, Carreg Wen, St Teilo's School, Tenby

Felinfach and district, Melindwr, M hllogdd .
elinfach and district, Melindwr, Mynachllogddu) Strata Florida 50+ Forum (represents the Tregaron and

Merched y Wawr (Bangor and Carreg Wen branch) Uplands Communities)

Merched y Wawr (Melindwr branch) SWAT (Save Withybush Action Team)

Merched y Wawr (Y Dderi) Tenby Chamber of Trade & Tourism

Mynydd Mawr Hospital League of Friends Tenby Townswomen's Guild

NHS Retirement Fellowship, Pembrokeshire The Health Centre, Fishguard

Padarn Surgery, Aberystwyth The People of Pembrokeshire

Paddy's Place Puddleducks Day Nursery, Tenby Tywyn and District Health Care Action Group

Park House Court Nursing Home, Tenby Wales Abdominal Aortic Aneurysm Screening Programme
Pembrokeshire Citizens’ Panel (Screening Division Public Health Wales NHS Trust)
Pembrokeshire Health Concern Ward 9 staff at Withybush hospital

Pembrokeshire Health, Social Care and Wellbeing Welsh Heritage Quilters, based in Llanidloes, Powys
Forum (facilitated by third sector facilitator PAVS - Welsh Women'’s Group, Beca (Efailwen), Lampeter,
Pembrokeshire Association of Voluntary Services) Llanybydder, Talgarreg and Tegryn branches

Prince’s Trust Welsh Women’s National Group, Aberystwyth

Ron Pullen’s Group Withybush Hospital

Sanctuary Chapel, Pontyates Withybush Hospital Surgical Directorate, representing staff
Sir Gar Federation of Women's Trust at the hospital

Skanda Vale Hospice Women'’s Institute, Penllwyn and Brynian branches

SOSPPAN Llanelli South East Pembrokeshire
Community Health Network

419 Whilst responses from groups were included within the overall analysis of the consultation questionnaire
feedback, their responses are now shown below in graphical format.

Community Hospitals — Mynydd Mawr

Figure 35: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Mynydd Mawr Hospital

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to close Mynydd Mawr Hospital in
Tumble (near Llanelli) and provide the services currently delivered from there in other ways?

Strongly agree
3% Tend to agree
12%

Neither agree nor disagree
’ 13%

Strongly disagree
60%

Tend to disagree
12%

Base: Those who responded on behalf of an organisation (75)
45% of respondents answered the question

b 1 1 n3—l
IF'uuQuivlil o 1

163



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Minor Injuries Services

Figure 36: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Minor Injury Services

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposals to transfer the minor injuries service at
Tenby/South Pembrokeshire Hospital to local GP surgeries and redeploy the Nurse Practitioners that
currently work there?

Tenby Hospital South Pembrokeshire Hospital
Strongly agree Strongly agree

1% Tend to agree 1% Tend to agree

| 13% ! 16%

Neither agree nor disagree
3%

/

Neither agree nor disagree
4%

-

Strongly disagree |
_Tend to disagree 55%
25%

Strongly disagree’
58%

“Tend to disagree
24%

Base: Those who responded on behalf of an organisation (97) Base: Those who responded on behalf of an organisation (96)
59% of respondents answered the question 58% of respondents answered the question

Community Services and Primary Care: Further Comments

4191 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the community
services and primary care proposals. Around half (48%) of organisations made any further comments.

4192 The table below shows the top main comments that were made by those who responded on behalf of an
organisation.

Figure 37: Are there any further comments you would like to make about Hywel Dda health Board’s proposals for Community
Services and Primary care? Further comments made by both household survey and open questionnaire residents/respondents.
Base: Number of respondents who made a further comment in brackets)

_ Number of Responses
Main further comments

Open Questionnaire (79)

Closing services and redirecting to a GP would mean GPs won't be able to 13
cope with the increased demand

Changes should not be made without consultation with medical staff/GPS 13
Against closing Mynydd Mawr 12
Against closing Tenby Hospital (MIU) 11
Against closing all community hospitals 7

o 1 1 n%
ruyudalicvlil o

164



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

Women and Children Services

Figure 38: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for the location of a Paediatric High Dependency Unit, Level 2
Neonatal Unit and Complex Obstetric Unit

Hywel Dda Health Board proposes to develop a Paediatric High Dependency Unit and a Level 2
Neonatal Unit (a unit that offers specialist care to sick babies) to provide a comprehensive higher
level sick children’s service for the first time within the Health Board.

For pregnancies where a risk has been identified for either mother or baby, we are proposing that
care will be consultant-led in a new Complex Obstetric Unit, which would be co-located with the
Level 2 Neonatal Unit.

There are two options for this — either Glangwili Hospital or Withybush Hospital.
Hywel Dda Health Board is proposing GLANGWILI HOSPITAL.

Please indicate where you would prefer the Paediatric High Dependency Unit, Level 2 Neonatal Unit
and Complex Obstetric Unit to be located.

WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL

Haverfordwest
41%
GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
Carmarthen
59%

Base: Those who responded on behalf of an organisation (123)

75% of respondents answered the question

Figure 39: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for the location of a single hospital providing inpatient paediatric
services in the south

There is a possibility that we may not be able to recruit sufficient Doctors to the service even if one
of the above options was adopted. This would affect our ability to deliver inpatient paediatric
services across the three sites.

If this was the case, we might need to consider an alternative option where inpatient paediatric
services are delivered on two sites only — Bronglais Hospital in the north and either Glangwili
Hospital or Withybush Hospital in the south. This option would be a very last resort if emergency
transport solutions were in place and our clinicians were satisfied it was safe to implement.

In such circumstances, Hywel Dda Health Board would propose GLANGWILI HOSPITAL.

If it was only possible to provide inpatient paediatric services at Bronglais Hospital in the north and
one hospital in the south, please indicate the hospital where you would prefer services to be
provided in the south.

b 1 1 ASI\
IF'uuQuivlil o 7/

165



WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL

Haverfordwest
43%
GLANGWILI HOSPITAL
Carmarthen
57%

418 Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the women and
children services proposals. Less than half (42%) of those who responded on behalf of an organisation
made any further comments.

419 The table below shows the top main comments that were made.

. Number of Responses
Main further comments

Open Questionnaire (70)

Distance to travel/cost/stress - service needs to be local 14

Not beneficial to locate neonatal unit in Glangwili because they are close to 10
Swansea/Cardiff

Re open Neo natal unit/ maternity ward at Prince Philip 8
Have SCBU in Bronglais 7
Keep services at both Withybush and Glangwili/status quo 7
- L L AN
Hadalici <249



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board

December 2012

Emergency Care

Figure 41: Consultation Questionnaire responses to proposals for Emergency Care

Option A

Option B

Emergency services centralised at Glangwili  Prince Philip Hospital (Llanelli) to only

Hospital (Carmarthen) with more limited
emergency services provided at Bronglais
Hospital (Aberystwyth) and Withybush
Hospital (Haverfordwest)

NO CHANGE to the existing emergency
services provided at Bronglais Hospital
(Aberystwyth), Glangwili Hospital
(Carmarthen) and Withybush Hospital
(Haverfordwest)

Addition of Clinical Decisions Units at
Bronglais Hospital and Glangwili Hospital
once construction work has been
completed

Please indicate your preference for Emergency Services: First Choice

Another alternative
11%

\

e

provide a nurse-led Local Accident Centre
for minor accidents

Prince Philip Hospital (Llanelli) to have an
emergency medical admission unit and also
provide a nurse-led Local Accident Centre
for minor accidents

Option A
4%

i

\
Option B
85%

Base: Those who responded on behalf of an organisation (142)

86% of respondents answered the question

o 1 1

A4

I'uuQlivlil 2= 4

167



419 Respondents were also asked to give reasons for their preference(s), the main of which are summarised in

the table below.

4% support OPTION A 85% support OPTION B 11% support another option

66% gave a reason

Concern with distance to
travel — emergency
services should be kept
local

Concern with distance to
travel - lead to deaths

Support centralising at
Glangwili/centralisation
better than spreading out

Planned Care

69% gave a reason

Concern with distance to
travel — emergency
services should be kept
local

Keep status quo at
Withybush

Keep status quo at
Bronglais

The option covers a wider
geographic area and
serves more population
centres

87% gave a reason

The service at Prince Philip
has been doctor
led/residents will feel
unsafe if it is nurse led

Emergency services in
Llanelli should reflect the
large population and high
risk heavy industry

Prince Philip should have
full A&E services restored

Hywel Dda Health Board proposes to develop an Orthopaedic Centre of Excellence for

patients living in Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire in either Prince Philip Hospital or
Withybush Hospital in the south.

Hywel Dda Health Board is proposing PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL.

Please indicate where you would prefer the Orthopaedic Centre to be located in the south.

WITHYBUSH HOSPITAL
Haverfordwest -
50%

N AD

PRINCE PHILIP HOSPITAL

Llanelli
50%

Q

adaicrr a4



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

41% Respondents were given the opportunity to make further comments with regards to the proposals for
planned care. Around half (49%) of organisations made any further comments.

4197 The table below shows the top main comments that were made by those who responded on behalf of an
organisation.

Figure 44: Are there any further comments you would like to make about Hywel Dda health Board’s proposals for Planned Care?
Further comments made by both household survey and open questionnaire residents/respondents. Base: Number of
respondents who made a further comment in brackets

Number of Responses

Main further comments

Open Questionnaire (80)

Excellent service/facilities already provided in Withybush/keep/improve
current level of service 11

Centralise unit in Bronglais/have centre of excellence in Bronglais 8

Distance to travel -transport issues/public transport/road

networks/including visitors 8
The distance to travel from Pembrokeshire too far if the service is located in 7
Prince Philip Hospital

People in Llanelli can travel to Swansea to access care 6

b 1 1 A
I'uudluo il =

169




5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5. Petitions

Introduction

Several petitions were organised during the consultation, to object to important proposals. The biggest was
submitted to the Welsh Government about Withybush services, but there were also other important
petitions about Withybush, its Special Care Baby Unit, and the Tenby Minor Injuries Unit.

Withybush Hospital Services

The Save Withybush Action Team (SWAT) submitted a petition to the Welsh Government with about
14,000 signatures saying:

On behalf of SWAT, | call the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to ensure
that the plans for Secondary Healthcare provision currently being consulted on in the Hywel Dda
Health Board area will maintain the present level of services available at Withybush Hospital. The
14,000 signatures on the petitions delivered to your office by SWAT do not agree with the
preferred option of the Hywel Dda health Board to centralise most inpatient services on the
Glangwili site. It is quite clear to the people of Pembrokeshire and elsewhere who have signed
these petitions that, if centralisation of services is required, then Withybush should be the
preferred site. This would provide an equitable, accessible, safe and sustainable Secondary
Healthcare service for the whole of the Hywel Dda Health Board area whereas centralising services
on the Glangwili site would seriously disadvantage the people of Pembrokeshire.

Another petition about Withybush services was submitted to HDdHB by residents. It attracted 84 signatures
and was worded:

We the undersigned reject the Hywel Dda Health Board’s Preferred Options in their 6™ August
Public Consultation. We demand that all Hywel Dda Services be centralised at Withybush
Hospital. Swansea Hospital services have been deliberately left out of the equation and when
they are taken into consideration the Hywel Dda Health Board’s preferred options become
nonsensical. The signatures on this Petition are being collected during the Hywel Dda Health
Board’s Public Consultation of 6" August to 28" October 2012.

Withybush Special Care Baby Unit (SCBU)

A petition with 1,264 signatures was submitted by Stephen Crabb, MP for Preseli, Pembrokeshire, with the
following wording:

N AA

(|
adarctri——4a<«



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

KEEP THE SPECIAL CARE BABY
UNIT AT WITHYBUSH

I/We the undersigned, express our opposition to Hywel Dda Health Board Plans to ‘
remove baby care services at Withybush; and emphatically want to see the

Paediatric High Dependency Unit, Level 2 Neonatal Unit (Special Care Baby

[Init) and Comnlex Obstetric Unit located at Withvbush Hospital.

(A few signatures (included in the total above) were submitted under the heading SAVE WITHYBUSH
S.CB.U.)

Tenby Minor Injuries Unit

A petition about Tenby was submitted to the Welsh Government with 157 signatures on the primary
petition, but with a further 480 on associated versions - yielding a total of 637 signatures. The petition said:

We the undersigned strongly object to the proposals in the Hywel Dda Health Board document
Your Health/Your Future, referring to closure of the Minor Injuries Unit in Tenby. We call on the
National Assembly of Wales to ensure the proposals set out in the Hywel Dda Health Board
Document are not carried out and that the MIU in Tenby remains open.

Need for Interpretation

The petitions summarised above are clearly important in indicating public anxiety about important aspects
of the clinical services review — and the authority will wish to treat them seriously. Nonetheless, the HDdHB
should also note that petitions can exaggerate general public sentiments if organised by motivated
opponents; and in this case there has been considerable campaigning about Withybush services and the
Minor Injuries Unit at Tenby. Petitions should never be disregarded, for they show local feelings; but they
should be interpreted in context.

In particular, the Health Board needs to consider whether the petitioners have properly taken into account
the needs of the whole Hywel Dda area. For example, the smaller of the two petitions about the
centralisation of services within Carmarthenshire effectively proposes that many of the county’s residents
(to the east of Withybush) should access key inpatient services at Swansea hospital, apparently
disregarding the distance and travel-time issues that have been shown to preoccupy many respondents in
the consultation. The petition even says (with emphasis added) that:

We demand that all Hywel Dda Services be centralised at Withybush Hospital.
Similarly, the 14,000 signature petition implies that wherever centralised services are required (in the
south) then they should be at Withybush:

If centralisation of services is required, then Withybush should be the preferred site.
While there is no doubt about the opposition to the Withybush SCBU proposals, it should be noted that the

SCBU petition was a Conservative campaign document in which those signing were consenting to be
contacted in future by the party unless they opted out.

AL

e o
I

(|
gddalclri<49



Opinion Research Services Hywel Dda Health Board December 2012

511 These observations do not discredit the petitions, but provides a context within which they should be
interpreted.

o 1 1 A

rnadalcri =
172



6.1

6.2

6. List of HDdHB Public Engagement
Activities
Hywel Dda Health Board undertook a series of events across the area. They took place as below:

Public Meetings

Hywel DdA Health Board organised a number of public meetings during September 2012, these took place
in Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire.

Meet the Health Board Public Events

Hywel Dda Health Board ran a series of public events called ‘Meet the Health Board'. The original
programme of events included events in the following areas throughout October 2012; Llanelli, South
Ceredigion, Amman Gwendraeth, Taf Myrddin, Teifi, Tywi, North Pembrokeshire, North Ceredigion, South
Pembrokeshire. In response to public demand two additional events in South Gwynedd and North Powys.

In addition to these events the following information was made available:
A short summary booklet

Technical documents containing all the evidence HDdHB have collated and the options that have
been considered

An online resource area
Facebook and Twitter pages

Regular updates on how the consultation is progressing




Focus Groups

63 QOpinion Research Services also conducted a series of smaller focus group with randomly selected local
residents. These took place in the areas below:

Lampeter 29/08/2012
Newport, Pembrokeshire 29/08/2012
Llandeilo 30/08/2012
Tumble 05/09/2012
Llanelli 05/09/2012
Pembroke Dock 06/09/2012
Aberystwyth 06/09/2012

(|
adarictr<40



Eich lechyd; Eich Dyfodol - Ymgynghoriad Ymgysylltu a'n Cymunedau -
Adroddiad Sicrwydd

http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/862/opendoc/204513&5E5CI9D7E-F71C-

3EE6-3F3CI9C320A0849A9

Eich lechyd; Eich Dyfodol - Argymhellion Terfynol yr Ymgynghoriad
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/862/opendoc/204521&5E5CID7E-F71C-

3EE6-3F3C9C320A0849A9

Tudalen 249



Eitem 3.19

P-04-400 Safon Ansawdd NICE ym Maes lechyd Meddwl

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn annog Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru i
fabwysiadu a gweithredu safon ansawdd y Sefydliad Cenedlaethol dros
lechyd a Rhagoriaeth Glinigol (NICE) ynghylch profiad defnyddwyr
gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl i oedolion yn ei chyfanrwydd.

Gyda’r ddeiseb hon, gobeithiwn roi dyngarwch y person yn ganolbwynt i
iechyd meddwl. Mae angen newid yn y gwasanaethau, y driniaeth a’r
ymyraethau a ddefnyddir yng Nghymru ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer hyn. Yn dilyn
dwy sesiwn hyfforddi a drefnwyd gan Sefyll yn y Senedd er mwyn rhoi
gwybod i ddefnyddwyr gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl am gwmpas a phwerau
Cynulliad a Llywodraeth Cymru, bu grvp ohonom mewn cyfarfod arall gyda’r
Clerc Deisebau i eirio’r ddeiseb hon. Gan fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn adolygu
CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU IECHYD MEDDWL OEDOLION AR GYFER CYMRU ar hyn
o bryd, mae hwn yn gyfle i wneud gwahaniaeth drwy ddylanwadu ar
Aelodau’r Cynulliad a Gweinidogion a chodi ymwybyddiaeth o faterion yn
ymwneud ag iechyd meddwl. Cafodd Safonau NICE (2011-2013)
www.nice.org.uk/guidance eu datblygu ar gyfer y GIG a’r sectorau gofal
cymdeithasol yn Lloegr - nid ydynt yn berthnasol i Gymru - ond maent yn
darlunio’r arfer gorau: Rhoi profiad y defnyddiwr gwasanaeth yn ganolbwynt
i bob triniaeth ac ymyrraeth. Gwneud staff gwasanaethau iechyd meddwl yn
gyfrifol am eu gweithredoedd. Mae canllawiau NICE eisoes ar waith yn
Lloegr. Mae cyfanswm o 15 Datganiad Ansawdd. Mae’r ddau ganlynol yn
darlunio’r ethos a’r agwedd gyffredinol: “People using mental health
services, and their families and carers feel they ar treated with empathy,
dignity and respect”. Datganiad Ansawdd 2 “People in hospital for mental
health care, including service users formally detained under the Mental
Health Act, are routinely involved in shared decision making”. Datganiad
Ansawdd 11 Yn ychwanegol at yr e-ddeiseb hon, mae fersiwn bapur ar gael
os gwneir cais. Cysylltwch a ni ar y cyfeiriad e-bost canlynol:
MHPetition2012@gmail.com. Os gallwch helpu mewn unrhyw ffordd gyda’r
ymgyrch hon, cysylltwch a ni ar y cyfeiriad e-bost uchod. | weld y 15 safon
ansawdd ewch i: http://publications.nice.org.uk/service-user-experience-
in-—adult-mental-health-improving-the-experience-of-care-for-people-
using-cg136/quality-statements.

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Action for Mental Health

Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 19 Mehefin 2012

Tudalen 250



Nifer y llofnodion: tua 200

Tudalen 251



Lesley Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-400
Ein cyf/Our ref LG/00304/13

William Powell AM
Chair
Petitions Committee

committeebusiness@\Wales.gsi.gov.uk

N
) February 2013

-~

]l\‘f Vi 1} \ J

LS DN "

Thank you for your letter of 23 January regarding an update on the work my officials are
undertaking with NICE to enable to adoption of the NICE standard in Wales.

| anticipate the new Service Level Agreement with NICE will be formally signed in April,
which will coincide with NICE being re-established as an Arms Length Non Departmental
Public Body. | expect the NHS in Wales to take full account of all clinical guidance
published by NICE when commissioning and delivering services, as it is based on the best
available evidence. Doing Well, Doing Better — Standards for Health Services in Wales’
also requires organisations to take account of NICE’s clinical guidance.

NICE's Quality Standards, including those for Mental Health, reinforce recommendations
made in previous NICE guidance and the NHS should already be taking account of them in
the routine delivery of services to their patients.

In my previous letter | described the steps being taken to ensure that service users have
effective care plans. The statutory requirement for all service users receiving secondary
mental health care to have a Care and Treatment plan continues to be robustly monitored.
Local Health Boards are required to provide regular updates on their compliance with the
requirements of both the Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010 (the Measure) and the
associated Code of Practice. The University of Lincoln has provided additional training and
produced web based resources in outcome and recovery focussed care planning to support
this process.

There is a legal duty to review sections of the Measure and as part of this duty, | am
commissioning independent research to consider, service user, carer and practitioner
experience of all parts of the Measure including Care and Treatment Planning. Hafal, one
of our third sector partners, are providing training directly to service users. Detailed work is
also being undertaken with service users and the third sector to develop outcome measures
through a service users lens and this will have the service users experience at its heart.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line: 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. lesley. Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i i ai Gl ] 0
edi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ail-_i-yl{j:&é(lg)f]f/ 252 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Part 4 of the Measure expands the provision of Independent Mental Health Advocates
(IMHA) in Wales and we have invested £2 million in this service. As your petitioner states,
this includes patients receiving treatment for their mental disorder in any hospital setting. It
also includes those subject to the 1983 Mental Health Act who are living in the community,
for example those subject to Community Treatment Orders. The IMHA service is also being
monitored as part of the duty to review process.

The Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan (2012-16) sets out evidence-based outcomes
and measurements and the responsibilities of statutory bodies to improve the service
experience and prioritise safe, dignified, evidence-based interventions. As stated in my
previous letter, the National Programme Board will keep me informed of developments and
progress.

The improvement of mental health services remains a priority, and this continues to be
demonstrated by commitments around mental health in our Programme for Government.
Mental health accounts for the largest single area of health expenditure in Wales at
approximately 12% of the NHS budget. Our continued commitment to mental health is
demonstrated by ring-fenced funding (the minimum LHBs should spend on mental health
services) which has increased year-on-year from £387.5 million in 2008-09 to £577 million
in 2012-13.

| hope this information will be useful to the Committee.

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM/
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Tudalen 253



aa GOfQl

B Thinking Differently for befrer menfal health

o bloid guwel igchyd medduwl

stmru

William Powell AM
Chair, Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay
CF99 1NA
21% February 2013

Dear William Powell AM,
RE: NICE Quality Standard for Service User Experience in Adult Mental Health

Thank you for your letter dated 23 January 2012. After discussions within and
between our organisations, we felt that it would be sensible to send a joint response
from both Gofal and Mind Cymru.

Firstly, we support the petitioners’ aims of urging the Welsh Government to adopt the
NICE quality standard for service user experience in adult mental health. However,
we are strongly of the view that these quality statements should be regarded as a
minimum standard and that the NHS in Wales should always aspire to go above and
beyond the values, principles and actions outlined in the statements.

Having examined the correspondence that accompanied your letter, there appears to
be some uncertainty about whether the Welsh Government is going adopt the current
quality standard and when they will do so. As a result, we contacted Dr Sarah
Watkins (Head of Mental Health and Vulnerable Groups Division within Welsh
Government) and asked for clarification on this particular issue. We received the
following response, which should reassure the petitioners and alleviate some of their
concerns:

“l am pleased to confirm the plan is and always has been, that we are going to
adopt the quality standards including those for service user experience...”

“It is anticipated that the new Service Level Agreement with NICE will be formally
signed in April, which will coincide with NICE being re-established as an Arms
Length Non Departmental Public Body. We expect the NHS in Wales to take full
account of all clinical guidance published by NICE when commissioning and
delivering services, as it is based on the best available evidence. Doing Well,
Doing Better — Standards for Health Services in Wales also requires organisations
to take account of NICE's clinical guidance.”

Tudalen 254



aa GOfQl

B Thinking Differently for befrer menfal health

o bloid guwel igchyd medduwl

stmru

We recognise and support the Welsh Government’s claims that that parts of the
Mental Health (Wales) Measure go above and beyond the NICE Quality Standard
and that elements of Together for Mental Health reflect many of the values outlined in
the Standard. However, it is important that implementation of the Mental Health
(Wales) Measure, delivery of Together for Mental Health and compliance with the
NICE Quality Standard for Service User Experience are all monitored and that local
health boards, local authorities and the Welsh Government are held to account.

It may be helpful for Petitions Committee members to be aware of the following
mechanisms that are being developed to support this:

e Research to assess and review implementation of the Measure. A research
contract to fulfil the legal duty to review the Mental Health (Wales) Measure is
currently out for tender. The primary aim of the contract is to provide evidence
on the views of service users, carers and practitioners with regards to the
implementation of the Measure.

e Service user and carer involvement in Together for Mental Health National
Partnership Board and Local Partnership Boards. Service users and carers
will be represented on both the local and national partnership boards. There are
four places on the National Partnership Board for service users and carers. A
mechanism to support this representation is currently being developed.

¢ Minimum data set. The Welsh Government is currently developing a minimum
data set in order to record and monitor the performance of mental health
services in a consistent way across Wales and to support the delivery of
Together for Mental Health.

In addition to the points made above, we agree with and support the petitioners’
concerns that Part 2 of the Mental Health (Wales) Measure only requires care
coordinators to address a minimum of one of the eight ‘life areas’ in care and
treatment plans. We, along with other organisations, continue to advocate that all
eight areas of life should be considered within care and treatment plans, and that any
review of the Measure should take account of this.

Finally, we would also wish to see Welsh involvement and influence in future
development of NICE Quality Standards. Devolution means that divergence in policy
and legislation is an important consideration, evidenced in this case with the
introduction and implementation of the Mental Health (Wales) Measure and Together
for Mental Health. Although two of the three existing NICE Quality Standards
Advisory Committees appear to have one or two members from Wales, the absence

Tudalen 255



aa GOfQl

B Thinking Differently for befrer menfal health

o bloid guwel igchyd medduwl

C,Lsmru

of a member from Wales on the remaining committee indicates that there is no formal
guarantee of Welsh representation. As the Welsh Government is planning to adopt
current and future quality standards, we would certainly support any move to secure
Welsh representation on each of these committees.

We hope that our response has been useful. Please do not hesitate to get in touch if
we can be of any further assistance.

Yours sincerely,

Ewan Hilton Lindsay Foyster

(Executive Director, Gofal) (Director, Mind Cymru)

Katie Dalton Ruth Coombs

(Public Affairs Manager, Gofal) (Manager for Influence and Change, Mind
Cymru)

cc. Naomi Stocks (Petitions Committee Clerk)

Tudalen 256



hata)

William Powell AC / AM
Chair, Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales 28 February 2013

Dear Mr Powell,
Petitions Committee consideration of Petition from Action for Mental Health

We welcome the opportunity to give our view on the above petition that urges the ‘National
Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to adopt and implement the NICE quality
Standard for service user experience in adult mental health in its entirety’.

We fully agree with and support the principles within the NICE Quality Standard which is a
useful tool in helping to improve the experience of care for people using mental health services.
The accompanying NICE clinical guideline makes it clear that NICE quality standards set out
‘aspirational, but achievable, markers of high-quality, cost-effective care’.

However, we believe the main drivers for both ensuring improved service user experience in
mental health services, and indeed for ensuring a greater voice for people who use services in
Wales is firstly the Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010 and then the new strategy for Mental
Health and Wellbeing in Wales, ‘Together for Mental Health’ and its related Delivery Plan.

The Mental Health Measure is neither aspirational nor merely another policy. It is a piece of
primary legislation that Health Boards and Local Authorities are duty bound to implement. There
is a legal requirement to ensure that peoples’ care, support and treatment is comprehensive,
holistic and person-focused, and the legislation makes it clear that mental health professionals
need to engage with patients/service users to identify and plan the delivery of a wide range of
services to meet their needs.

We believe the focus in Wales must be on implementing the legislation, policies and strategies
that have been developed in Wales in collaboration with service users and carers and third
sector organisations. The NICE Quality Standard is an important tool to help and assist with
that, but it is the Mental Health Measure and associated Strategy and Deliver Plan that are the
primary drivers.

Please let me know if you would like any further information or views.
Yours sincerely
Peter Martin

Hafal
petermartin@hafal.org

www.mentalhealthwales.net

Chief Executive: £

:“:/o K T,d;a‘: en 2 A o ’ f i W Nu ,, 45044

(:AUA;*

Y% . oo™ “san



Eitem 3.20

P-04-440 : Dywedwch ‘Na’ i werthu asedau Ysbyty Bronllys

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i wrthod unrhyw ymgais gan Fwrdd Addysgu lechyd Powys i dynnu asedau
oddi ar Ysbyty Cymunedol Bronllys drwy gau neu symud ei Uned Stroc, na
thrwy roi gwasanaethau newydd neu gyfleusterau gwasanaeth y rhanbarth
mewn man arall. Yn hytrach dylai roi cyfarwyddiadau i’r Bwrdd lechyd
ddyfeisio strategaeth i adeiladu neu ailadeiladu, gwella a/neu ymestyn
cyfleusterau’r Ysbyty GIG hwn, a’r gwasanaethau a’r arbenigedd adnoddau;
ac i gadw ac ailadeiladu’r ased cymunedol gwerthfawr hwn fel canolfan
ragoriaeth.

Rydym yn galw ymhellach ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog
Llywodraeth Cymru i roi cyfarwyddiadau i’r Bwrdd lechyd roi Ysbyty Bronllys
yng nghanol ei strategaeth ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau iechyd oedolion a
phobl hyn yn Ne-ddwyrain Powys am yr 50 mlynedd nesaf, ac i ryddhau’r
adnoddau angenrheidiol i wireddu hynny.

Prif ddeisebydd: Michael Eccles
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 4 Rhagfyr 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 2,200

Tudalen 258



e

v Bwrdd lechyd
’JB Mel Evans, Chairman Cadeirydd d &0 G,Ig Addyson Poywys
\@ Andrew Cottom, Chief Executive Y Prif Weithredwr ~°' N H S

Powys Teaching

Phone: 01874 712643 Ffon: 01874 712643 WALES | Health Board

Fax: 01874 712554 Ffacs: 01874 712554
E-bost/Email : mel.evans2@wales.nhs.uk
andrew.cottom@wales.nhs.uk

Our ref: AC/BW/NT 30" January 2013

Mr William Powell AC/AM
Chair

Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

CARDIFF CF99 1NA

Dear William

Thank you for your letter of 14 December 2014 in respect of the petition the
Committee have received with regard to Bronllys Community Hospital.

As you will be aware, formal consultation on service change in the NHS is
governed by guidance issued by Welsh Government in March 2011 titled
‘Guidance for Engagement and Consultation on Changes to Health Services'.
The tHB is committed to close engagement and consultation with local
communities on service change in line with guidance.

The Health Board has been utilising this guidance to both engage the
residents of South East Powys on plans for services in the area, and to
specifically and formally consult on the future of stroke rehabilitation services.

You will also be aware of the linked engagement that the Health Board
undertook in early 2011 in respect of the Bronllys Hospital site, and its future,
that was facilitated by the Prince’s Foundation for the Built Environment.
These events culminated in a Local Development Plan submission for the site
as a candidate site, and this application is still going through the LDP process.

A number of engagement events have been held with stakeholders in the
area since late 2009, and in addition open engagement meetings have been
held to discuss the the tHBs Vision for Services in South East Powys.

This has been followed by the Health Board issuing its formal Consultation
Document ‘New Directions, Improving Healthcare Services for South East
Powys’ in September 2012, in line with the guidance. The consultation
process was delivered as a joint exercise with the Brecon and Radnorshire
Community Health Council, also in line with the guidance. The tHB has held
public meetings in each of the affected communities, placed material in local
newspapers and made the consultation information available on our website.
Pencadlys y Bwrdd lechyd Health Board Headquarters

Y Plasty, Bronllys, Aberhonddu, Powys LD3 OLS a‘l{:;%ﬁ?:mm'g; Mansion House, Bronllys, Brecon, Powys LD3 OLS
Ffon: 01874 711661 Ffacs: 01874 711601 Tel: 01874 711661 Fax: 01874 711601

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth Gymraeg a0 Yy, SHMo,, We welcome correspondence in Welsh
A oo/ :
Bwrdd lechyd Addysgu Powys yw enw gweithredd Bwrdd lechyd Lleol iM ? Jt? Powys Teaching Health Board is the operational name of

Addysgu Powys a_rﬁ d aI e r'{,,z% 9 Powys Teaching Local Health Board



We have also used twitter and facebook to promote the consultation. | have
also personally spoken to a number of local groups including the Bronllys
Hospital Friends. The public have also been encouraged to provide their
views through a questionnaire

The CHC agreed to an extension of the consultation period following a
request from community representatives and this was accommodated with our
support. A further drop-in session was held during this extended period to
hear people’s views. The Health Board is anticipating a formal response from
the Community Health Council to our proposals and the tHB will be
considering the issues that have been raised with us as a consequence of the
consultation, including the petition that has been copied to us, at its 20
February Board meeting when the final decision on the proposals will be
made.

You will be aware that, under the guidance, if the tHB and Community Health
Council are not able to agree a way forward, and the tHB wishes to proceed
with its proposed changes then the CHC is able to refer the matter to Welsh
Ministers for consideration.

I am not therefore in a position to state the Health Board’s full position in
respect of the petition until such time as the proscribed process has been
completed. | would appreciate it if the Petitions Committee were able to take
this into account at this stage as | cannot pre-empt the outcome of the
consultation process, the CHC response or the Board’s position.

| can, however, at this stage make the following observations in respect of the
petition that you have received that may assist in your consideration of it.

The tHB’s specific proposal is our preferred option to transfer the stroke
rehabilitation service from Bronllys Hospital to Brecon Hospital. We wish to
do this as it will provide improved outcomes and an improved environment for
people who have experienced a stroke. This proposal has been presented in
the context of our broader plans to provide more NHS care in Powys for
Powys residents to reduce the requirements for out of county travel.

The consultation document also describes a health system that currently
involves two hospitals in close proximity i.e. Bronllys and Brecon Hospitals,
and a wide range of community services that are not dependent on either
hospital for their delivery. All of these services serve the same local
population. Bronllys also provides an important administrative centre for the
Health Board for the whole of Powys. There is a need to provide a balance of
services locally across the area, and we have a stated direction of travel to
provide more care in Powys, something we are incrementally achieving
through investment in local services. It is a requirement that we use all of our
assets to the benefit of patients, and this may involve moving services
between sites. Whilst this may be perceived as ‘asset stripping’ a specific site
by the community | would suggest this is taken on balance with the investment
in services we have also made across the area.

Tudalen 260



Lastly, as | indicated above Powys tHB has, for some time, been engaged in
the Local Development Plan process in respect of an application submitted to
Powys County Council for the Bronllys site. The Bronllys site is a large site,
originally built as a Tuberculosis hospital that served a large geographical
area. Consequently the site is far larger than will be required for future local
NHS use. Our LDP submission, which followed extensive community
engagement with the Talgarth and Bronllys communities seeks to provide for
a mixed future use of this extensive site, including the opportunity to re-
provide facilities for the delivery of health and social care services. This
application remains extant and the tHB remains committed to pursuing this
future for the site. The outcome of the formal consultation will be an important
source of information and local views in taking forward these plans.

| have enclosed a copy of the consultation document for your Committee’s
reference and | and my officers would be more than happy to be invited to
Committee if this is required and appropriate.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Cottom
Chief Executive

Cc Minister for Health & Social Services
Mark Drakeford AM, Chair of Health & Social Care Committee

Enc

Tudalen 261



New Directions

Bwrdd lechyd
Addysgu Powys

Powys Teaching
Health Board

Improving Healthcare Services for South East Powys

Public Cons
September 2012

Ystradgynlais
. @

Welshpgol
(]

Knjghton

Llandrindod
.Wells

‘Bmlth Wells

Hay-On-Wye

Bronllys
Brecon

)
South East Powys

Crickhowell

O 4




This consultation document relates to
adult and older people’s health services in
South East Powys. For the purpose of this
document South East Powys covers the

areas served by the Haygarth, Brecon and
Crickhowell medical practices.

September 2012

Tudalen 263

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




\,

Contents

5 Introduction from the Chairman and Chief Executive

9 Background To Our Plans

9 Current Services

12 Why the need for change

13 How we developed our proposals

15 Vision For Future Health Care Services

15  The future changes we have been discussing
Our plans for:

15  GP supported care

16  Diagnostic and Treatment Centre

17  Outpatients

17 Day Surgery

18  Stroke Services

22 Access and Transport

23 Workforce, financial and other implications

23 Workforce

23 Finance

24 Equality

25 Timescales for change

27 Appendix 1: Frequently Asked Questions

30 Appendix 2: A Vision for NHS Wales

30 Appendix 3: Stakeholder Involvement

31 Appendix 4: Appraisal of Options for the Overall
Service Model

33 Appendix 5: Glossary of Terms

Tudalen 264

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




Tudalen 265

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 J




\,

Message from the Chairman and

Chief Executive

Powys teaching Health Board (tHB) was established in 2009 to set
a new direction for the delivery of health care services for people
living in Powys. In February 2010, we started conversations in
South East Powys about the future of adult and older people’s
health services.

You have told us that:

e delivery of services locally is very important, demonstrated by
the request that both Breconshire War Memorial Hospital and
Bronllys hospitals should be retained.

e you would like to see services delivered in all communities;
e you recognise the financial challenges the health service faces.

We have listened to you, and as a result we are committed to
building on and developing the services that are currently available
and where possible extending those services. As with all services
they will need to change and develop as the communities needs
change. In the future they may need to be provided differently
and the location of services within South East Powys may need to
change but our overall goal is to provide more care within South
East Powys.

In October 2011, we outlined our vision on future health care
services in a discussion document ‘New Directions for Healthcare
Services for South East Powys’. This work was led by your local
GPs and explained our joint vision to strengthen our community
services, increase elective day case surgery and the number of
outpatient clinics provided locally and finally to look at how we
locate services across South East Powys.

Welsh Government guidance on Consultation and Engagement
on Health Service Changes requires Powys teaching Health Board
to continually engage its population on service change. Powys
teaching Health Board has a duty to work with the Community
Health Council (CHC) to agree if any of its future plans require a
process of formal consultation and we have agreed that we need
to seek your views on these plans.

Overall our plans demonstrate our commitment to do more in
Powys for Powys residents. We have already done much work to
achieve this for example the delivery of end of life care through a
‘hospice at home’ service. Other examples are listed later in this
document.

In reading this document you will see that it is clear that we

plan to extend the range of hospital services that we provide in
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital and make the best use of the
facilities we have there. Our preferred option for stroke services is
to transfer the stroke unit currently provided at Bronllys Hospital
to Breconshire War Memorial Hospital to enable us to provide the
very best of stroke care. We are specifically required to consult

Tudalen 266 5

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 y




you on this proposed transfer, and we urge you to look closely at
these plans and give us your views.

We are also proposing that, in time, the provision of GP care in
communities will move to an integrated model with GP care being
provided alongside social care both at home and within care
homes. We are already moving towards this in Builth Wells and
will be able to use the experience we gain there to move forward
in South East Powys. The precise location of how this will be
delivered in South East Powys is not yet clear. We therefore want
to continue to hear your views on this plan.

It will also be clear to you that these changes have implications
for the future of Bronllys Hospital. The hospital buildings have a
limited life and we need to plan a future for the services, site and
buildings. There are however a number of commitments that
we have, and will continue to make, in respect of the future of
Bronllys hospital:

e the Bronllys site remains an important administrative centre
for the Health Board and an important source of local
employment that we wish to retain

e the outpatient services provided on the site will remain but will
in time require new accommodation — this could be on the site
or as part of other developments within the Hay and Talgarth
area

e there are a number of options for the development of care
homes both on the Bronllys site and other sites in the Hay
and Talgarth area and we will need to continue to look at our
options as these progress

e the child and adolescent mental health services currently
provided at Bronllys require upgraded accommodation and we
will come forward with plans to achieve improvements for this
service

e similarly the nature of mental health services are changing,
and we will come forward with our plans for these services
early next year.

Some of the choices and decisions that need to be taken will

be difficult. We will be challenging people to look to the future
to ensure that services in South East Powys can continue to

be delivered for future generations. We have considered your
comments and revisited our plans. We would now like to consult
with you on our proposals to finally help shape how we deliver
our proposals.

Mel Evans Andrew Cottom

Chairman Chief Executive

Tudalen 267




\

Having your say

In setting out our plans for service change we want as many people as possible to
comment on our proposals. You can have your say in a number of different ways:

e Attend one of our consultation events advertised locally and on our website.
e e-mail at: Powys.Geninfo@wales.nhs.uk
e Write to us at: South East Powys Consultation Document

C/0 Planning Department

Powys teaching Health Board

Mansion House

Bronllys

LD3 OLS

e Social media: Powys teaching Health Board now has a presence on both
Twitter and Facebook and we encourage people to discuss this document
through these. Follow us on

Twitter: @PowystHB or www.facebook.com/PowystHB.

Alternatively, you are invited to send your comments to Brecknock & Radnor
Community Health Council (CHC). The CHC is an independent body that:

e scrutinises and keeps under review the delivery and planning of local health
services;

e represents the interest of patients and the public in the NHS;
e inspects and monitors service provision and the patient environment;
e provides an enquiries and complaints advocacy service;
e email CHCat: breconchc@breconchc.org.uk
e write to CHC:  Brecknock and Radnor CHC
1st Floor, Neuadd Bryncheiniog
Cambrian Way
Brecon
LD3 7HR

A series of questions are included as a pull out section of this document to assist you
in making your response to us.

An easy to read version of the document is available on request.
Closing date for replies: Friday 30 November 2012

What happens next?

All the feedback will be collated and analysed at the end of the consultation.
Powys teaching Health Board will then consider what you have said, how this has
influenced our proposals and the changes we plan to make, taking account of the
results of the consultation. The final decision will be made in public by the Board
once they have had time to consider the consultation feedback and responses.

Tudalen 268

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




Tudalen 269

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 J




\,

Background

In 2011, Powys teaching Health Board published its New
Directions for Powys discussion document and began a dialogue
with people throughout Powys. New Directions for Powys sets
out a framework on how services across Powys will be delivered
for future generations.

The document explains that we want to do more in Powys, not less.
We know that public services in Powys, as is the case across the UK,
are facing unprecedented challenges. Health services are required
to constantly change and develop to reflect changes in clinical
practice. After many years of growth in NHS funding, we must now
all face the challenge of doing more with less. For Powys we believe
that the solution to improving health care and protecting front line
services is to provide more care in Powys, reduce the need to travel
out of County for care, but also ensure that high quality specialist
services are available to Powys residents when they need them. We
also believe we can do more by bringing together health and social
care in local communities. To deliver these improvements we also
need to plan for improvements in the buildings from which services
are provided. Our main aim is to deliver an integrated service at the
point of delivery that is patient focused, safe and effective.

Current Services

People in South East Powys receive their healthcare from one or
more places which can be described as:

1. primary care services
2. community and community hospital services
3. specialised services (mostly provided out of county)

Primary care services are delivered by:

e three GP partnerships across seven sites
e seven dental practices

e five community pharmacies

e five local opticians

There are a wide range of community services provided across
South East Powys by district nursing, community therapy and

specialist nursing services. Since 2009 we have extended the

range of community services that we provide to include:

e community nursing service extended into the early evening
e an expanded role for community nurses
e a 'hospice at home’ service

e support in the home from reablement teams, jointly with
Powys County Council; the team helps people to adapt to
living their lives following periods of illness

Tudalen 270

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




10

\,

cardiac/heart failure nurses and specialist nurses in urinary tract
disorders

education programmes for people living with long term
conditions such as diabetes and heart disease

Care Transfer Coordinators who help to identify and transfer
patients sooner from out of county hospitals back to Powys
services

a Care Coordination Centre which helps GPs to identify the
right service for patients

Breconshire War Memorial Hospital and Bronllys Hospital are the
two sites from which services are delivered. Most of our services
are provided at one of these hospitals, with some provided in both.

Breconshire War Memorial provides the following
services

GP led medical inpatient care supported by nursing and
therapy teams

Consultant led rehabilitation unit supported by nursing and
therapy teams

end of life care

24 hour, 7 day a week minor injury service

out of hours GP service

day case surgery provided by visiting consultants for example
orthopaedics, general surgery and diagnostic endoscopy

day hospital

outpatient clinics provided by visiting consultants including

General Surgery

Urology

Haematology

Orthopaedic

Ears Nose and Throat (ENT)
Orthodontics and Oral Surgery
Gynaecology including colposcopy
Rheumatology
Ophthalmology

Cardiology

Age Care Medicine

General Medicine;

nurse-led outpatients are provided for

Gynaecology
Urology

Tudalen 271

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

e General Surgery

e Cardiac rehabilitation

e Diabetes

® pre-operative assessment

e PSA (type of blood test)

e Lymphoedema

e Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
e visual fields and biometrics

e Diabetic Retinopathy Screening

outpatient therapies including physiotherapy, speech and

language therapy, podiatry, dietetics, occupational therapy and

audiology

community dental services

x-ray with digital links to Nevill Hall Hospital
ultrasound and endoscopy services

a range of services for children within the children’s centre,
older people’s mental health services and the midwife led
birthing centre are also provided from the site

Bronllys Hospital provides the following services:

shared GP & consultant medical inpatient care supported by
nursing and therapy teams

consultant led inpatient stroke rehabilitation supported by
nursing and therapy teams

end of life care
day hospital

consultant led outpatient clinic for age care medicine,
movement disorders and early memory impairment disorders

nurse led clinics are provided for

e Parkinson’s Disease

e Urology

outreach chemotherapy from Velindre Cancer Centre
Diabetic Retinopathy Screening Service

outpatient therapy services including physiotherapy, podiatry,
dietetics and occupational therapy and a physiotherapy led
falls programme.

pain management, mental health services, older peoples
mental health services and child and adolescent mental health
services are also provided from the site.

Tudalen 272

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

1"




The Bronllys site is also the base for approximately 200 staff
providing headquarters and other support functions for Powys
teaching Health Board, and some support services hosted on
behalf of the NHS in Wales.

Why the need for change?

As a Health Board we have a duty to ensure that we safely provide
the best possible care for our population within the resources we
have.

In 2011, the Welsh Government published its five year vision for
health. This sees an NHS based around community services with
patients at the centre and prevention, quality and transparency at
its heart.

There are many new challenges we need to meet, but also many
opportunities to provide healthcare in new and better ways:

e we are living longer and our health needs are
changing resulting in an ever rising demand for

health care; Population of Powys
e many patients with long term conditions including e Powys has an estimated
heart disease, stroke, diabetes and asthma can population of 133,000 (census
be treated safely in the community, preventing 2011); the proportion of people
unnecessary trips to hospital if the right services aged 75 and over has increased
are on hand; from 9.7% in 2001 to 10.5% in
® Powys is not able to provide specialised inpatient AU
services such as those required for cancer, acute e 23% of the population in South
stroke and heart disease. We can however safely East Powys are aged 65 and
provide elements of these services locally such over

as day surgery, chemotherapy and rehabilitation,
building on what Powys services do well and
exploiting the opportunities afforded by new technologies;

e developments in diagnostics and treatment mean that we
can do far more to look after patients at home and in the
community. This reflects what people have said they want,
and provides better outcomes;

e advances in technology mean that when people go into
hospital, it is usually for a far shorter period of time than
would have been the case in the past;

e promotion of good health as well as treating illness, helps to
keep people out of hospital which means doing more around
advice and education;

® we are expecting to continue to experience a difficult financial
and economic climate for some time to come which means we
need to continue to focus on efficiency and effective services.

Against this background, continuing to run two hospital sites in
South East Powys will become increasingly challenging for quality,
safety, staffing and efficiency reasons. The condition and layout
of Bronllys Hospital in particular means that the buildings currently
used for health care have a limited working life. Considerable

12 Tudalen 273

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 J




\,

investment will be required to maintain both hospital buildings,
and running two sites has become increasingly expensive. The
Health Board needs to have a clear plan for how the buildings

will support service delivery in the long term. Health care should
not be about bricks and mortar but about services. We must not
judge the quality of care by the number of buildings that we have.
We know from the work that we have carried out that there is
capacity within Breconshire War Memorial hospital to provide
more services than at present.

Many of the factors which have led to this plan for local health
services are similar to those faced elsewhere in the country. By
not dealing with these challenges, we will be putting the future
sustainability of services at risk. We need to respond to these
challenges in a planned way, to get the best outcomes for our
patients.

How we developed our proposals?

In February 2010, Powys teaching Health Board began a dialogue
with local community representatives, staff, and interested
organisations from the South East Powys area. Through a series
of workshops, Powys teaching Health Board worked with these
stakeholders to consider the future model of health care services
for the population of South East Powys.

During 2011 we also held a series of drop-in sessions across South
East Powys to discuss the New Directions Plan. In 2012 we again
held drop-in sessions in South East Powys to engage local people
in dialogue around the plans for local services developed by GPs
with the Health Board.

This is what you told us you need:

e where appropriate, people should be cared for in their own
home with appropriate care and support, or as close to their
home as possible;

e timely and speedy access to diagnostics and treatment;

e improved management of long-term health conditions, such
as asthma and diabetes, and more services to prevent ill health
including supportive technology that helps people to be cared
for at home;

e Dbetter discharge processes in place;

e closer working between those providing health and social care
to avoid duplication;

e improvements to make access to services as easy as possible;

e education and information to empower service users and their
carers to be able to manage their care themselves;

e |ocal access to these services, rather than all services provided
from a single site.

Tudalen 274 13

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




14

Options for location of services in South East Powys

Local community representatives and Powys teaching Health Board
developed a list of options (Appendix 4) to describe how we could
locate services in South East Powys. The main options from this that
were considered were to:

Option 1: Continue to provide services in current facilities

This option would see services continue to be provided
within the existing facilities at Bronllys Hospital and
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital.

Option 2: Develop a combination of a “Rural Hospital” and a
“Health and Social Care Centre”

This option would provide a community hospital facility
that would provide an enhanced range of hospital based
services for example minor injuries, consultant outpatients,
diagnostics, day surgery, stroke rehabilitation services,
community dentists. The option includes provision of GP
managed care for example short stay care, palliative care,
respite care provided alongside residential and nursing
care within a separate health and social care centre.

Option 3: A combination of a “Rural Hospital” and an
“Enhanced Health and Social Care Centre”

This option would be similar to the option above, with the
health and social care centre providing additional services
for example nurse and therapy led outpatient clinics
diagnostic support, day services and health and well-being
activities.

Option 4: A single facility providing all services
This option would provide all health services on one site.

The plans in this document are based around delivering option 3. From
the engagement exercise it is clear that local people wish to see services
continue to be provided across South East Powys and this option is most
able to do this.

Tudalen 275

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

V.




\,

Vision for Healthcare Services in
South East Powys

The "Vision for Healthcare Services in South East Powys’ aims to:-

e strengthen the services we provide in the community by
bringing together a range of health care workers and others to
help people remain in their own homes for as long as possible;

e reduce the number of occasions people need to travel outside
of Powys, by providing a greater range of outpatient, day
surgery and diagnostic services in Powys;

e distribute services in the South East Powys area to ensure
people have access to services close to where they live.

To achieve this we plan to:

e continue to extend the range of services provided in the
community and at home

e develop Breconshire War Memorial Hospital as the Rural
Hospital and make best use of the facilities and services
already available at this hospital

e transfer the stroke rehabilitation service currently provided
at Bronllys Hospital to Breconshire War Memorial Hospital to
enable continued improvement and development of a more
integrated service

e continue to provide the services at Bronllys Hospital while
seeking an alternative facility within the Hay and Talgarth area
from which to provide these services

The future changes that we have been
discussing

Our plans to retain GP supported care

GPs support patients in the patient’s home, within the local
community hospitals in Bronllys and Brecon and in residential and
nursing homes.

We intend to continue providing GP supported care in Powys but
to be able to do this we need to work with social care to deliver
healthcare together with social care in the future.

Continued development and investment in community services
will mean a continued move away from a reliance on hospital
based care. The shift to care available in the community does not
mean that we will stop providing inpatient care in the future.

We propose that in the future access to short stay GP supported
care for people who are not ready to be cared for at home will
be provided alongside residential and nursing home care. By
bringing together health and social care together in this way, we

Tudalen 276 15

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




will be able to provide a service that will respond to individual
needs more quickly and flexibly.

We propose that access to short stay GP supported care currently
provided at Bronllys Hospital will be provided differently in the
future. The options we are looking at include:

® new nursing homes are proposed in both the Hay-on-Wye
and Talgarth areas: as these plans develop we will look to see
if they provide the right environment for the new service we
wish to deliver

e we will explore the possibilities of developing a care home
facility on the Bronllys hospital site

e we will look at the feasibility of developing our plans within
the existing care home facility in Hay-on-Wye

For the rest of South East Powys:

e we will look at options to provide GP supported care in
Crickhowell and its surrounding areas.

e short stay GP supported care will continue to be available from
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital.

Our Plans to Extend Diagnostic and Treatment
Services at Brecon Hospital

Patients in South East Powys already access a range of diagnostic
services at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital for example,

routine x-rays and ultrasound scans. In addition, a 24/7 Minor
Injury Unit is available at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital.

We plan to enhance the existing range of diagnostic and treatment

we currently provide in Brecon to enable GPs to assess and manage a
greater number of medical patients in Powys, rather than transfer them
to Nevill Hall or Hereford for assessment. In doing this, we intend to:-

e improve access to diagnostic services for all residents of South
East Powys, reducing the amount of travel required for many
people;

e provide quicker results which aids a quicker diagnosis and
improves clinical decision making;

e provide safer new opportunities to care for people where
appropriate closer to their home;

e reduce the number of journeys out of Powys for diagnostic
tests which can be provided locally for example

e routine and urgent x-rays
e routine and urgent scanning
e diagnostic assessments such as endoscopy

® screening services

16 Tudalen 277

\ Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

e other opportunities to extend diagnostics services; an
example of this is ‘near patient testing’ which is a
procedure that is carried out to analyse blood results locally.

In the future we will refer to this as a Diagnostic and Treatment
Centre which will be led by local GPs.

We have already enhanced the minor injuries service currently
based at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital by working with
Aneurin Bevan Health Board to support the team at Brecon. We
are also investing in further training for staff to help continually
improve the service into the future.

Our plans to increase outpatients

We plan to increase the number of patients who have their
outpatient appointments locally. Currently we are looking at
dermatology, ophthalmology and orthopaedics and we will
continually explore opportunities to reduce travel for patients. We
are also investing in internet technology to enable appointments
with out of county services to be undertaken within Powys.

We plan that all specialist Consultant outpatient clinics will
continue to be provided from Breconshire War Memorial Hospital
to ensure access to the x-ray and diagnostic facilities at this
hospital that is required for many of these clinics.

Other therapy and nurse-led clinics will be provided in suites
designed to deliver flexible services to rural communities. These
will be in GP Practices at Haygarth, Crickhowell and Brecon, at
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital and other locations such

as the health and social care centre. In the meantime we will
continue to provide these services from their current location in
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital and Bronllys Hospital.

Our Plans to Increase Day Surgery

We already have a very successful day theatre operating from
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital that has capacity to do much
more.

We plan to increase the number of people who have their day
surgery at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital. By achieving this
we will reduce the number of journeys people need to make
outside of Powys. We have already introduced a new podiatric
surgery service. In addition, we will work in partnership with our
neighbouring health organisations to increase other specialities
taking place in South East Powys including:-

e more cataract operations;

e more daycase orthopaedic procedures such as arthroscopies.

Work to replace the current ventilation system at Breconshire War
Memorial Hospital at a cost of £0.5 million is due to commence
during the Autumn of 2012 to help achieve this.

Tudalen 278 17

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




\,

r
Our Plans to Improve Stroke Services
When people first suffer a stroke, evidence shows that they do
better if they are taken to a specialist centre which
provides clot-busting drug therapy (thrombolysis)
within the first three hours. For Powys residents this Stroke services
mUSt be prOV|ded |n a maJOl’ hOSpIta| YOU have t0|d Stroke is one of the top three causes of
us that you are happy to travel to specialised units death in Wales. An estimated 10,000 to
out of County as they provide the best outcome, 11,000 people in Wales suffer a stroke
but would want to come back to Powys as soon each year. We know that the effects of
ible for your rehabilitation and after care stroke can have a devastating and lasting
as possl y impact on the lives of people and their
support. families. A third of people who have a
; " ; stroke are left with long-term disability.
Fo||0V\./|.ng .a stroke, and gfter an Ir‘1|t|a| period of The effects can include physical disability,
reha_blllt.atlon, a .pr.op.ortlorlw of patlen.tls may need. loss of cognitive and communication
continuing specialist inpatient rehabilitation. Guidance skills, depression and other mental health
for stroke care recommends that this should: problems.
e be provided in a discrete area in a hospital;
e Dbe staffed by a specialist stroke multidisciplinary team;
e enable access to equipment for monitoring and rehabilitating
patients;
e have regular multidisciplinary meetings;
Consultant led stroke rehabilitation care is currently provided
within the general medical ward in Bronllys Hospital. The service
serves patients from South East Powys and Mid Powys. Patients
who have completed their stroke programme in the unit will be
discharged home or to a more local community hospital.
Between April 2010 and March 2012, 91 people received care in
the unit and the diagram below shows the numbers registered
with each GP practice in the area.
® Brecon
1
3 B Knighton
¥ Builth Wells
B Llandrindod Wells
B Crickhowell
¥ Hay/Talgarth
Presteigne
“ Ystradgynlais
Weobley
Figure 1. Numbers of stroke patients by GP practice using the
Bronllys stroke unit between April 2010 and March 2012.
18 Tudalen 279

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




Q G IG Bwrdd lechyd

'\ Addysgu Powys
d"o NHS [ Powys Teaching
b Health Board

New Directions

Improving Healthcare Services for South
East Powys

Consultation Document Feedback Form
This is a pull out section.

If you wish to submit comments on this document, please complete this
section, pull-out and return to Powys teaching Health Board (address on
back).

We are looking for your views on these plans and the following questions are
designed to help you with make your views known to us. If you would like
more details on the proposals join us at one of our consultation events:

Tudalen 280



1. What do you think about our overall proposals for services in South East Powys?

A Strongly support d Support U Neutral U Against  Strongly against

Is there anything in our proposals that you think we need to consider further or
differently?

\_ J

2. What do you think about our preferred option of transferring stroke rehabilitation
services to Breconshire War Memorial Hospital?

A Strongly support d Support U Neutral U Against A Strongly against

What if anything are your concerns about our proposals to transfer stroke rehabilitation
services to Breconshire War Memorial Hospital?

3. What do you think about our plans to strengthen community services in South East
Powys?

A Strongly support 4 Support O Neutral U Against  Strongly against

Tudalen 281



Is there anything in our proposals for community services that you think we need to
consider further or differently?

\_ J

4. What do you think about our plans to explore alternative ways to deliver GP
supported care?

4 Strongly support 4 Support U Neutral  Against A Strongly against

. . . )
What are your views on the options that we are exploring?

\_ J

5. What do you think about our plans to increase outpatients and day case surgery at
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital?

A Strongly support 4 Support U Neutral A Against A Strongly against

Is there anything in our proposals for outpatients and day case surgery that you think we
need to consider further or differently?

lTudalen Z2oZ



Name:

Address:

Post code:

Email:

Powys teaching Health Board intends to publish a summary of the responses to this document.
Normally, the name and address (or part of the address) of its author are published along with the
response, as this gives credibility to the consultation exercise. If you do not wish to be identified as

the author of your response, please tick here. 4

Please return this questionnaire to:
Planning Department

Powys teaching Health Board
Mansion House

Bronllys Hospital

Bronllys

Powys

LD3 OLS

Tudalen 283



\,

Options for stroke services

In considering future provision of intensive stroke rehabilitation care for the
population of South East and Mid Powys, the following options were considered:
Option 1 Do nothing, stroke rehabilitation services remain on existing site

Option 2 Relocate stroke rehabilitation services to Breconshire War Memorial
Hospital

Option 3 Relocate stroke rehabilitation services to the new Health and Social Care
Centre currently under construction at Builth Wells

Option 4 All services are provided Out of County - no intensive stroke
rehabilitation is provided in South East Powys. Patients receive both
acute and rehabilitation phases of their stroke care in a neighbouring
District General Hospital

Option 5 A new build to accommodate stroke rehabilitation services in South East
Powys

Option 6 All stroke rehabilitation is provided in the community - no inpatient
stroke rehabilitation care is provided in South East Powys

Option 7 Stroke rehabilitation services are provided on more than one site: this
could also include Ystradgynlais or Llandrindod Wells

We have considered each of these options by testing them against the criteria set
out in the table over the page.

Tudalen 284

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

19




20

Criteria

Sub Criteria

Delivers against national and local
strategy and guidance

Compliance with national standards for stroke care
provision

Consistent with Powys tHB Strategic Direction /South
East Powys future Vision

Quality & Safety

Continuous improvements in:
Clinical efficiency /Best use of clinical resources
Clinical outcomes & patient experience

Rehabilitating patients in an appropriate environment
(*in line with national guidance)

Compliance with latest clinical standards
Clinical pathways/timely transfer of care
Quality and safety

Appropriate intensity/sustainability/consistency to
provide intensity of rehabilitation

Equity of access

Reasonable access for rural populations (public
transport/parking/disabled access)

Functional suitability

Provides environments suitable for delivery of care;
clinical adjacencies with other relevant services

Acceptability

Acceptable to service users, carers, relatives and other
significant partners

Ease of implementation

Least disruptive to patients, clinicians, staff

Workforce

Provides an environment which supports the
recruitment/retention of staff; supports appropriate
clinical staffing arrangements (e.g. on-call, reduced
travel etc)

Tudalen 285

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

We rejected Options 3, 5 & 6 at the initial stage of consideration,
as they:

do not meet the needs of the local population, and do not
have support of the clinical staff in the health board

do not offer high quality safe and sustainable patient services;
restrict accessibility to some parts of the population;

are not achievable within current financial climate.

Our preferred option for the future of stroke services is
option 2; to transfer them to Breconshire War Memorial
Hospital. They key reasons for this are that the hospital is more
able to meet the required clinical standards and:

Specialist stroke teams

The transfer of stroke
rehabilitation services to
Breconshire War Memorial
Hospital would improve access
to additional support on site

will improve patient safety and quality; maintaining and
building on national standards;

will provide care in newly refurbished single occupancy
accommodation with en-suite facilities; providing improved
physical space around the bed which will result in improving
dignity for patients and is conducive to intensive rehabilitation.

provides access to a wider range of professional advice and
services that will enhance the integrated stroke rehabilitation
service,;

will help to retain and recruit staff and develop clinical
expertise;

is affordable now and will continue to be so in future years
has better transport links;
will improve disabled access;

it was acknowledged that some patients and relatives would
need to travel further than currently, however this was
outweighed by the clinical benefits the hospital is able to offer

We want to hear your views on our preferred
option to transfer this service to Breconshire
War Memorial Hospital.

including the Minor Injuries Unit
nurses, the GP out of hours base,

barium swallow and X-ray

The move would also improve
access to visiting consultants if
required.

Tudalen 286

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




Our Plans to Improve Access and Transport

You have told us that transport to enable access to services is a
key concern. People accept that quality and results are the most
important considerations for them, and that they are willing to
travel if required for specialist care. However they have made

it clear that there need to be arrangements in place to improve
access and transport.

At the heart of these proposals is the need to ensure the best
possible access to services. Our aim is for care to be provided

in patients” homes, or close to their home through community
clinics, or through their GPs in their surgery or other community
setting. We also aim to bring more services back to Powys.

We therefore recognise the need to develop a local transport plan
which will include:

e areview of our community transport and non emergency
transport arrangements;

e working with our County Council colleagues to improve
integration of planning for local bus services with health
service delivery

e parking arrangements for all of our facilities, with a specific
parking plan introduced to address parking for patients at
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital

* rapid access to acute services in an emergency

We will continue to work with the voluntary sector, public
transport providers, Powys Council and the Welsh Ambulance
Service NHS Trust to consider how we best improve access to
services through improved transport.

22 Tudalen 287

\ Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

Workforce, Financial And Other
Implications

Workforce

Clinical staff working in Powys have been actively involved in the
development of these proposals. They believe that the proposals
outlined in this consultation document represent not only a new
direction but also a new beginning for the provision of robust,
sustainable and local health service provision.

The workforce within Powys is our biggest asset, and we
will continue to need a flexible and motivated workforce
that are able to take on the challenges of providing more
care in Powys. These plans therefore provide a number of
opportunities for staff across clinical and support roles as
we will need them to develop and adapt to meeting the
requirements of doing more in Powys.

We are actively planning our clinical workforce within Powys to
enable them to support and deliver service change in the future.
Similarly our support staff based at Bronllys will continue to be
needed to be ever more flexible to support the safe and efficient
delivery of services.

Finance

Rising demands, pressures from an increased ageing
population, new treatments and the current economic

climate will continue to put pressure on our services and the
associated costs of those services. In the present economic
climate we do not anticipate that the health board will receive
any significant growth in funding for the foreseeable future.

As a result, we must develop new ways of delivering

better results and a high quality of care within our existing
resources. The proposals that we have set out are designed
to better use the available money for patient care, providing
more care locally in the most cost-effective way.

In 2012-13 the budget for adult services in South Powys
(including Ystradgynlais) was a total of £53.1 million.

The diagram on the next page shows how this money is
currently spent, split between the funding that goes to
primary care services, GP prescribing, services provided
directly by Powys tHB and services paid for out of county.
Our plans will enable us to maintain our overall spend for the
locality at current levels but to shift the proportion of that
funding that is spent on services directly in Powys.

We are already taking steps by making sure that as much
money as possible is re-invested into community services

and improving productivity and efficiency in some services.
However this will not be enough for the future. As a Health
Board, we need to make significant savings each year to cover

Tudalen 288 23

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




the increasing costs of providing services. The proposals set
out in this document will help to improve and modernise care
and help to achieve this requirement.

South Powys 2012/13 Budget

Continuing
Mursing Care
Prescribed 2%, .
medicines Etenrlces
11% provided out of
county
32%
Primary Care
(GPs; dentists;
pharmacists)
23%
Services
provided in
Income Powys
~3% 29%

Equality Impact Assessment

As part of our process we have carried out an initial impact
assessment to determine if the overarching vision for improving
healthcare in South East Powys and proposals to provide stroke
rehabilitation care at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital would
have an impact on any of the target groups who are protected
under the Equality Act 2010.

We will continue to gather and update the assessment as a clearer
picture of any specific impact on particular individuals or groups
and staff emerges during the formal public consultation process
and adjust our plans accordingly.

24 Tudalen 289

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

What is the timetable for change?

The change process will be implemented in a phased approach.
We anticipate that the timescales to achieve all proposals set out
in this document will span over three years to five years.

Some areas of the proposals can be achieved more quickly:

e the strengthening of primary and community services has
already commenced as has the increase in day surgery and
outpatients.

e plans to implement improved access to diagnostics for GPs are
currently being developed

e the transfer of stroke rehabilitation services to Breconshire War
Memorial Hospital, if supported by the community and CHC
can be implemented within six months

e improved parking at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital

e enhancements to clinical environments at Bronllys hospital

Some areas of the proposals will take longer to implement e.qg.:
e |ocal access to more specialised diagnostics
e implementation of transport plans

e Some areas of the proposals will depend upon other options
of care becoming available locally for example commissioning
of short stay GP supported care

We will continue the dialogue with local residents as delivery
of these plans progresses to make sure we get them right for
patients, and so that you are able to see the progress we are
making.

Tudalen 290 25

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 y




26

Tudalen 291

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

Appendix 1: FREQUENTLY ASKED
QUESTIONS

Q: What has happened to the plans for a new hospital in
South Powys?

A: A new hospital in South Powys would have meant bringing
together all services currently provided at Bronllys and Brecon
onto a single site. You told us you want access to services across
the area, and this is our plan. We will continue to develop
Breconshire War Memorial Hospital as a centre for healthcare
and services. We will also continue to provide services in the Hay
and Talgarth area. We also know from the work that we have
carried out that we can provide many of the planned service
developments within the existing facilities.

Q: Will staff be losing their jobs?

A: At the moment we do not believe that anyone will lose their
job, although some staff may need to change what they do. We
know that we cannot provide services unless we have the right
staff, with the right skills in the right place. Doing more in Powys
means our keeping and developing our staff is more important
than ever. Discussion will be held with staff within the Health
Board as to how best to utilise our existing staff to deliver the
services in the future.

Q: Is this all about saving money?

A: No but it is is about using the resources we have available as

a health community more effectively. Investing in and providing
more services in the local area, helps us to reduce the money we
spend out of county, and also improves the patient experience. It
is also about adopting the latest practices in health care delivery
and making services more able to respond to changing needs.

Q: Is this affordable?

A: Best care is also more cost effective care. By extending
community services we reduce the need for hospital admissions
and long term care which will make our plans more affordable.

Q: What will happen to Breconshire War Memorial Hospital?

A: We see the hospital as central to our plans for the future,
maximising the use of the excellent facilities available to the whole
of Breconshire.

Q: What will happen to Bronllys Hospital?

A: The Bronllys site is far larger than the NHS can practically use in
the future. W wever intend to continue offering services
Tiads 292 9

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

27

J




from the site, and to seek alternatives for some services in new
accommodation. The Bronllys site remains one of the options
for these new facilities. We have embarked on a plan to work
with the local community to extend the range of organisations
that are able to use the site. We believe the site can be a focus
of wider employment and local regeneration for this area. This
work was undertaken with the Prince’s Foundation for the Built
Environment, and a separate report on these proposals can be
found on our web-site.

Q: Is it safe to be cared for in the community?

A: As recent publicity has shown, patients in hospital can acquire
infections that impact on their recovery. In addition, there is also
the risk, particularly for older people, of becoming increasingly
dependent on hospital care. This can lead to premature
admission to permanent residential care. Being cared for in the
community is about supporting people to help them to maintain
their independence as long as possible, keeping them well and
avoiding an unnecessary hospital stay

Q: Why can’t we have a District General Hospital in Powys?

A: A District General Hospital requires a population of at least
250,000 people to provide the frequency of treatment that
enables doctors and nurses to maintain their skills. Powys has
a population of around 132,000 and is very sparsely populated.
A large hospital would therefore not be safe to be provided in
Powys. We do however believe we can increase the amount
of services that visit Powys, such as surgeons undertaking day
operations at Breconshire War Memorial Hospital.

Q: Are there any changes planned for Childrens Services?

A: We are currently working with social services and education
colleagues on how to enhance integrated children’s services
within South East Powys in the future. We will publish separate
proposals on services for children in due course.

Q: If stroke services move, are the remaining these services
at Bronllys Hospital viable on a stand-alone basis?

A: Yes, Powys tHB has a number of areas across Powys that
operate satisfactorily with around12 beds.

Q: How do the proposals benefit patients?

A: We believe that by improving health care provision in South
East Powys we will bring the following benefits to local people
and staff:

28 Tudalen 293

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1 J




\,

e modern health services delivered locally, designed to meet the
changing needs of the population;

e Detter health and well-being for the population;

e more services provided through primary care and based in the
community;

e support for people with long-term conditions and helping
them get the most out of life;

e fewer unnecessary hospital admissions and journeys out of
county

e Dbetter access to key diagnostic tests;

e greater involvement in the planning and delivery of health
services.

Q: Are there any changes planned for Mental Health
Services?

A: We are currently working with Aneurin Bevan Health Board
on how we can improve mental health services in South East
Powys in the future. This work is particularly focused on the
modernisation of mental health care in the community and for
people in crisis.  We will publish separate proposals on services
for mental health in due course.

Q: What is Powys tHB’s involvement in the proposals
around the Hay-on-Wye Supermarket development?

A: The Health Board has not made a formal commitment to any
care home including the one proposed for Hay-on-Wye. Powys
tHB has maintained contact with the developer and Powys
Council to ensure it is aware of this and other potential options
for care in the local area.

Tudalen 294

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

29




Appendix 2: A Vision for NHS Wales

In developing these plans to improve healthcare services in South
East Powys, there are many Welsh Government health and social
care policies and Measures we need to consider.

These include: Fulfilled Lives, Supportive Communities (2007); the
Rural Health Plan — Improving Integrated Service Delivery Across
Wales (2009); Our Healthy Future (2009); Setting the Direction:
Primary and Community Services Strategic Delivery Programme
(2010); Programme for Government (2011); Sustainable Social
Services for Wales: A Framework for Action (2011); Together for
Health: A Five Year Vision for the NHS in Wales (2011); Fairer
Health Outcomes for All: Reducing Inequities in Health Strategic
Action Plan (2011), Working Differently — Working Together — a
Workforce and Organisational Development framework (2012)

Appendix 3: Stakeholder
Representation

We would like to thank the following Community Stakeholders
for offering their time and input into the workshops which were
held to develop new ways of providing future health and social
care services in South East Powys.

Local County Councillors

Local Town Councillors

Local Community Councillors

Brecon League of Friends

Bronllys League of Friends

PAVO

Powys tHB Staff

Powys Age Concern

Hay & District Community Support

Keep the Heart in the Community Group
Brecknock and Radnor Community Health Council
Powys Staff Partnership Forum

Powys County Council

Crossroads

We would also like to thank members of the local community
for taking the time to share your views and comments on Powys
tHB's Vision for Future Health Care Services in South East Powys
discussion document.

30

Tudalen 295

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

Appendix 4: Option Appraisal for
the Overall Service Model

How options were developed?

As a part of the stakeholder engagement events, a long list of
options on how future health care service could be provided was
developed. The options considered included:

Option 1a: Do nothing

This option would mean all services remain as they currently stand
with no service improvement or any improvements to existing
buildings (This option was discounted as it is not sustainable)

Option 1b: Do minimum

This option would mean all services remain as they currently stand
with very minimal improvement. Maintenance of buildings will
only be undertaken to meet minimum standards (This option
provides limited ability to improve or integrate health care services
and provides limited financial gains — the option was left in as a
possible alternative option for comparative purposes only)

Option 2: A combination of a “Rural
Hospital” and a range of “Health and Social
Care Centres”

This option would provide an enhanced community hospital type
facility within the area. The facility would providing an enhanced
range of community hospital based services for example minor
injuries, consultant outpatients, diagnostics, day surgery, stroke
rehabilitation services, community dentists. The option also
includes provision of GP managed care for example short stay
care, palliative care, respite care provided alongside residential
and nursing care. (This option provides greater local access for
patients however does not fully achieve Powys tHBs vision to
provide a greater range of community services more locally — the
option was left in as a viable option)

Option 3: A combination of a “Rural
Hospital” and Enhanced Health and Social
Care Centre”

This option would provide an enhanced community hospital type
facility within the area. The facility would provide an enhanced
range of community hospital based services for example minor
injuries, consultant outpatients, diagnostics, day surgery, stroke
rehabilitation services, community dentists. The option also
includes provision of GP managed care as shown in Option 3

for example short stay care, palliative care, respite care provided
alongside residential and nursing care. The enhanced health and
social care centre mzéy also include a range of additional services

Tudalen 29

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

31




for example outpatient clinics that do not require diagnostic
support, day services, health and well-being activities, therapy led
clinics and specialist nurse led clinics (This option provides the best
access for patients locally and fully meets Powys tHBs vision for
future health services and therefore is has been taken forward as
the preferred option)

Option 4: Single facility providing all services

This option would provide all health services as listed above on
one single site. (This option does not meet Powys tHB’s strategic
direction and therefore was discounted)

32 Tudalen 297

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

Appendix 5 Glossary of Terms

Acute care: medical and surgical treatment usually provided by a
large hospital.

Acute hospitals: the hospitals people go to for major surgery
and the treatment of very serious conditions.

Clinician: a general term for hospital doctors, GPs, nurses,
therapists and other healthcare professionals.

Community services: health services provided outside of a
hospital. Community health staff include district nurses, health
visitors, community age care consultants. Many community staff
are attached to GP practices.

Community Health Council (CHC): The CHC is an independent
body that scrutinises and keeps under review the delivery and
planning of local health services, represents the interests of
patients and the public in the NHS, inspects and monitors service
provision and the patient environment, provides an enquiries and
complaints advocacy service.

The CHC is the public’s independent “watchdog” in the NHS.

Daycase or day surgery: a patient who has an investigation,
treatment or operation and is admitted and discharged on the
same day.

Equality impact assessment: is a process designed to ensure
that a policy, project or scheme does not discriminate against
people who have been categorised as being disadvantaged or
vulnerable people, these include age, disability, sex, race, religion
or belief (including lack of belief), gender reassignment and sexual
orientation

GP: general practitioners are doctors who work from a local
surgery providing primary care for their patients who have
registered on their list, and except for emergencies act as the
gateway to acute and other care.

Inpatient: an inpatient is a patient who has been admitted to a
hospital and is occupying a bed.

Integrated services: services which are provided across
professions and organisations according to people’s need.

Long term conditions: conditions such as diabetes, or a heart or
respiratory problem that cannot be cured.

Outpatients: attend for a consultation, advice and/or treatment
but do not stay in a hospital.

Primary Care: the first port of call for many people when they
develop a health problem is their local doctor, also known as a
general practitioner (GP).

Provider: is a name used to describe any organisation that
provides a service to the NHS.

Tudalen 298 33

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1




Rehabilitation: is a treatment or treatments designed to facilitate
the process of recovery from injury, illness, or disease to as normal
a condition as possible

Secondary care: this means the same as acute care (see acute
care)

Social care: non medical care which is aimed at providing
vulnerable people (such as the unwell, frail and elderly) with care
and support to enable them to live their lives as fully as possible.
This is provided by Powys County Council for Powys residents.

Specialised services: these are services for which demand

is relatively small but which require very specialised staff and
equipment. All Powys residents requiring specialised services will
travel out of county for the acute part of their care.

Stakeholder: an individual or organisation with an interest in
health and health initiatives; can be organisations such as local
authorities or individuals such as residents.

Telecare: technology used to monitor and communicate with
patients in their homes, often helping elderly people to remain in
their own homes rather than moving into residential care.

Telehealth or Telemedicine: is a broader term referring to
healthcare supported through use of telecommunications. An
example woud include a consultant in a district general hospital
assessing a patient using a video link to avoid the patient having
to travel.

Third Sector: also referred to as the voluntary sector or
community sector

Workforce: the term generally used within the NHS to refer to
staff

34 Tudalen 299

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




\,

Tudalen 300

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

35




36

Please complete the pull-
out feedback sheet at the
centre of this document
and return to:

Planning Department

Powys teaching Health Board
Mansion House

Bronllys Hospital

LD3 OLS

by email at
powys.geninfo@wales.nhs.uk

or through Twitter
@PowystHB

or Facebook
facebook.com/PowystHB

Further details will be
published at

powysthb.wales.nhs.uk

Public meetings and events

Powys teaching Health Board
will be holding a series of
consultation events across the
area to allow you to discuss the
details of this document and
ask any questions that you may
have.

Details of these will be
published on the website
powysthb.wales.nhs.uk and
public notices will also be
displayed and distributed.

Tudalen 301

Powys teaching Health Board New Directions Consultation V1

J




COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 1 of 6

COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT

Page 1 ... The South East Powys Community has no confidence in it’s CHC.

Page 1 ... The South East Powys Community has no confidence in the Health Board.

Page 3 ... The Politicians! How they can help.

Page 4 ... So let us take a look at the Frances Report.

Page 5 ... Conclusion

Page 6 ... Copy of the Petition - 3,144 signatures:

Tudalen 302



COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 2 of 6

The South East Powys Community has no confidence in it’s CHC.

The CHC claim that they have ticked every box in regard to the consultation process.
Technically this is not the case as they created a consultation process which was all
smoke and mirrors - and manipulated what they claimed to be ‘public opinion’ to
support their case. Realising that they had the equivalent of a riot on their hands, they
backtracked and redefined the consultation. However, by that time the waters had been
muddied; the consultation process was three-quarters over; the public were totally
confused; and in what can best be described as a Machiavellian process, the CHC

attempted to ‘correct their process’ to ensure that they did not have egg all over their
faces for their incompetence.

We believe that the way the CHC has behaved highlights that the CHC membership has
lost its ability to be objective and present public opinion fairly. The citizens of South
East Powys are left with the only option of ensuring the CHC will become be the subject
of a proposed vote of no-confidence as a result of their disgraceful handling of this
consultation.

The South East Powys Community has no confidence in the Health Board.

The Health Board claim that they have followed procedure and that their initial plans to
close the Bronllys Stroke Unit should go ahead on the grounds that Stroke Services would
be delivered cost effectively and safer at Brecon. The implication is that the Stroke Unit
has been providing an ‘unsafe’ service for years at Bronllys. If this is the case, this is
entirely contrary to other Health Board claims, and would be cause for serious alarm. It
is a ridiculous argument.

There is also no evidence given that the move will be cost effective. To prove this, the
Health Board would need to provide the public with the financial figures on which this
vague statement is made. Where is the Strategic plan for Health Care Services in South
East Powys? Where are the figures supporting it? To cap it off, in their public
presentations, the Health Board have shown their incompetence in that they do not
understand what a Vision or a Strategic Plan is, nor how to develop one.

Furthermore, a report by the Assembly's Public Accounts Committee dated only Tuesday
19th February 2013 has criticized Welsh health boards for failing to plan their budgets
properly, claiming many were guilty of "unrealistic and over-ambitious" forecasts.

However, the Powys Health Board have also now said that the only grounds upon which
the closure of the Stroke Unit could be stopped by this specific consultation is if the
Stroke Unit closure and move to Brecon could be proven to be ‘unsafe’. We contend that

Tudalen 303



COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 3 of 6

proving that a proposal by a Health Board to be ‘unsafe’ would be impossible by the lay
public, and as a criteria it is outrageous.

So what was the point of the consultation? The only conclusion is that it has been a
box-ticking exercise - an inconvenient hoop that our politicians have engineered, in the
name of democracy, for the Health Board to jump through. Or, to put it another way, a
massive waste of public money and a blatant waste of citizens’ time and resources.

The Politicians!

Privately our politicians have voiced their opinion that they are powerless to intervene.
The controlling political party hold all the cards. The Health Minister has directed the
Health Boards to cut costs and re-vamp the entire system. The Health Minister and the
Welsh Government can then hide behind the Welsh Health Boards who have free reign to
implement piecemeal, unthought-through unpopular policies - nhamely stripping away the
Health Services’ ability to proved adequate health care to the Welsh public.

However what the politicians have missed is that the public are mindful to fully support
a leadership role where it feels there is competence in policy proposals. The public
generally are not just ‘for motherhood and against sin’, there maybe limited resources,
but at present the people who are in charge of these resources do not appear to be
competent. At present it appears to the public that the current batch of Health Board
officials could not organise a proverbial piss-up in a brewery - worse still, they have no
idea what demand there is for which drinks in any of their public houses, nor what the
party will cost them. Only six days ago, the National Assembly's Public Accounts
Committee announced that some health boards in Wales start each financial year
without even a plan to break even! What more evidence is needed to conclude that
these people are incompetent?

The question remains, do we have amongst our politicians the political will to sort out
what appears to the public to be an unmitigated incompetent mess?

What happens when the Public warn and their warnings are ignored?

At the meeting of the Powys Health Board at Talgarth Town Hall on Wednesday 20
February, the Chair, Mel Evans, said that there were lessons to be learnt from the
Francis Report into the recent Mid-Staffordshire health tragedies. And, at that same
meeting, our Health Board decided to ignore the overwhelming response of the Public in
their recent consultation process. Against all Public advice and wishes, and despite

Tudalen 304



COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 4 of 6

everything, they agreed to go ahead and remove the Stroke and Rehabilitation Service
from Bronllys Community Hospital to Brecon Hospital in the Autumn of this year,
regardless.

So let us take a look at the Frances Report.

1 Perhaps the most important point Mr Robert Francis QC stressed was that the
voices of Patients and the Public had not been listened to by the authorities.

So what have we here?

e Over 3,144 people said No to removal of services from Bronllys and Yes to it being
rebuilt to meet South East Powys's growing elder health needs. That works out at
nearly 30% of the community affected by the service. (We were unable to ask the
other 70% in the time available.)

o Afurther 87 people took the trouble to write in letters saying No to the move.

e Of the 115 questionnaires returned and 20 further representations - ALL stated
that in their opinion the Consultation Process itself was flawed.

e 100% of our Town and Local Community Councils also expressed their opposition
to the Health Board proposal.

2 Mr Francis goes on to say that the bodies who are there to protect the interests
of the public were not able to challenge the authorities. These organisations
were poorly equipped to take them on and challenge their actions. And, when
they did raise concerns, they again were not listened to.

« The Community Health Council - our Patient ‘watch dog’ - against all of the
evidence and opinion submitted to it by the Public and the Bronllys League of
Friends - chose to throw it’s towel in with the Health Board and against the
Community. Is it not unexpected then that the furious Community are now
proposing to have the CHC answer to a charge of ‘no confidence’?

3 Mr Francis said that the Clinical managers had lost contact with their patients
putting their priorities above those of quality medical care. They had not
considered the implications of their decisions in the long run on their patients.

e Clinical concerns raised by the Public who have up to date knowledge asking for
evidence from the Health Board have not been responded to.

e Our own AM, William Powell, had to ask for reassurances from the Welsh
government that the views of all staff involved could be given freely without fear
of Health Board sanction.

Tudalen 305



COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 5 of 6

« The issues of the extra pressure that will be put on Brecon Hospitals’ existing
services and it's lack of capacity to expand to meet future need has not been
addressed properly.

« Any pretence that alternative services such as ‘Hospice at Home’ or ‘Wards in the
Community’ can sustainably plug the gaps by asset stripping and then closing
community Hospitals, are betraying our local communities and their carers.

«  Expecting Private Nursing Homes to replace our NHS Community Hospital is not
the answer. It has been shown that Private Homes actually generate increased
need for NHS beds and it's not really in their financial interests to patch you up
and send you home. Firstly they like to have your fees and then your very home in
their coffers.

Conclusion

We are not concerned with ‘process’ in this political issue, don’t lets get stuck on it. We
are concerned that decisions are being made piece-meal by incompetent civil servants
who have been given no political leadership. The consultation process has failed the
people and been shown to be irrelevant and frankly a waste of public money.

We wish to see a compelling political movement in place to develop a sensible Health
care strategy for the existing and future healthcare needs of our local community.
Bronllys has provided such a sensible service to our community for decades. As we get
older, we rely on Bronllys to provide palliative care - fix us up and send us back into the
community, and then to look after us in our final few days. Bit by bit our CHC and Health
Board have chipped away at the viability of our hospital to provide this service and this
because they have no leadership or vision.

Our only hope is you, our politicians - and only if you have the courage to lead a
movement with a vision and passion equal to that of Aneurin Beavan’s. Or do you wish to
be the politicians who allowed Mid-Wales to become the rural equivalent of Mid-
Staffordshire?

Michael Eccles
25 February 2013

Tudalen 306



COMMENTS OF PETITIONER RE CLOSURE OF BRONLLYS HOSPITAL STROKE UNIT Page 6 of 6

Petition - 3,144 signatures:

“We call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to reject
any attempt by the Powys Teaching Health Board to asset-strip the Bronllys Community
hospital by closing or moving its Stroke Unit, nor by placing new services or service
facilities for the region elsewhere and rather to instruct the Health Board to devise a
strategy to build or re-build, improve and/or extend this NHS Hospital’s facilities, and
services and resource expertise; and to retain and re-build this valuable community
asset as a centre of excellence.

We further call upon the National Assembly for Wales to urge the Welsh Government to

instruct the Health Board to place Bronllys Hospital at the centre of its strategy for the
provision of adult and older people’s health services in South East Powys for the next 50
years, and to release the necessary resources to make this happen.”

Tudalen 307



Eitem 3.21

P-04-451 : Achub Gwasanaethau Ysbyty Brenhinol
Morgannwg

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i achub ein gwasanaethau iechyd yn Ysbyty Brenhinol Morgannwg

Mae penderfyniad yn cael ei wneud a fydd, os caiff ei roi ar waith, yn arwain
at golli rhai agweddau ar ofal pediatrig, obstetreg, newydd-anedig a
damweiniau ac achosion brys. Yn syml, os oes angen gofal dwys arnoch, os
oes gennych blentyn sal neu os ydych yn debygol o gael beichiogrwydd a
allai fod yn gymhleth, bydd rhaid i chi deithio i Gaerdydd, Merthyr neu Ben-
y-bont ar Ogwr. | breswylwyr Rhondda Cynon Taf sy’n dibynnu ar
drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, gallai hyn olygu teithio am dros ddwy awr i fynd i
apwyntiadau hanfodol. Mae preswylwyr Rhondda Cynon Taf sydd wedi
llofnodi isod yn cefnogi’n gryf opsiwn 5.2 o dan y cynigion a amlinellwyd yn
y ddogfen ymgynghori ar gyfer ad-drefnu gwasanaethau iechyd, “Gwneud
Cystal a Goreuon y Byd — yr Heriau sy’n Wynebu Gwasanaethau Ysbyty yn Ne
Cymru”. Rydym hefyd yn cefnogi’r galw i gadw a datblygu cyfleusterau a
gwasanaethau Ysbyty Brenhinol Morgannwg i sicrhau bod pobl Rhondda
Cynon Taf yn gallu derbyn a chael gafael ar y gwasanaethau y maent yn eu
haeddu o fewn ffiniau’r sir.

Prif ddeisebydd: Cyng. Mark Adams
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 29 lonawr 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 1077

Tudalen 308



T/

Y f/eich
Q G IG Bwrdd lechyd csflir e

@N;Q | cwm Taf Our ref/ein AW/KB

@ N HS Health Board cyf:

Date/Dyddiad: 14 February 2013

Tel/ffon: 01443 744803

Fax/ffacs: 01443 744889

Email/ebost: Allison.Williams4@wales.nhs.uk
Dept/adran: Chair & Chief Executive

Mr William Powell AM

Chair

Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Mr Powell,
Petition — Royal Glamorgan Hospital
I refer to your letter dated 6 February regarding the above.

This petition relates to the South Wales Programme process, in which
Cwm Taf Health Board is working with the other health boards in South
Wales - Abertawe Bro Morgannwg, Aneurin Bevan, Cardiff and Vale and
Powys - to look at the future of four specialist hospital services,
consultant-led emergency care, inpatient paediatrics, obstetrics and level
two and three neonatal care.

The South Wales Programme has been clinically-led. In a series of
discussions last year, more than 300 clinicians considered the issues
facing these four service, in particular ensuring patients receive the same
high quality care around the clock and meeting the challenges in medical
recruitment. They concluded these services should be concentrated on
four or five hospital sites across South Wales.

The five health boards engaged extensively between September and
December on the ideas put forward by our clinicians and on the possible
location of these hospital services.

The potential for changes to these four specialist services at the Royal
Glamorgan Hospntal was part of this extensive engagement exercise that
concluded on 19™ December 2012. I attach a copy of the summary of the
engagement process for your information together with a leaflet that was
used as part of the process.

Return Address:
Ynysmeurig House, Navigation Park, Abercynon, CF45 4SN

Chair/Cadeirydd: Dr C D V Jones, CBE TUdaIen %QQ Executive/Prif Weithredydd: Mrs Allison Williams

Cwm Taf Health Board is the operational name of Cwm Taf Local Health Board/Bwrdd Iechyd Cwm Taf yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Cwm Taf



Y ref/eich
" Q A Y GICI Bwrdd lechyd c\,(/);:r |

«i?@ CY MBI Cwm Taf Our ref/ein AW/KB

N HS Health Board cyf:

rd WALES Date/Dyddiad: 14 February 2013

Tel/ffon: 01443 744803

Fax/ffacs: 01443 744889

Email/ebost: Allison.Williams4@wales.nhs.uk
Dept/adran: Chair & Chief Executive

All the engagement responses have been published by the health boards
and are available in full on our website
www.cwmtafhb.wales.nhs.uk/southwales. Hopefully this will assure you
that the engagement has been comprehensive and that there are options
being considered that could result in the enhancement of services at the
Royal Glamorgan Hospital.

I am somewhat disappointed that this petition has been lodged as we are
in the middle of a very open dialogue about what the future might hold.
Whatever the outcome, we are very clear that there is a positive future for
this hospital serving its community. That said, we also understand that
change is difficult and the issues are complex.

The output of the engagement process will inform the development of
proposals for consultation - this process will again be led by our clinicians
and will take into account the results from the engagement process. There
will be a formal public consultation commencing later in the spring with a
final decision late summer.

Please be assured that we will continue our discussions with the
community and provide what reassurances we can.

Yours sincerely

3 N{WM )‘
’\SW JUM AL
‘\,‘__"
Mrs Allison Williams

Chief Executive/Prif Weithredydd

Cwm Taf Health Board/ Bwrdd Iechyd Cwm Taf

Return Address:

Ynysmeurig House, Navigation Park, Abercynon, CF45 4SN

Chair/Cadeirydd: Dr C D V Jones, CBE TUdaIen 310 Chief Executive/Prif Weithredydd: Mrs Allison Williams

Cwm Taf Health Board is the operational name of Cwm Taf Local Health Board/Bwrdd Iechyd Cwm Taf yw enw gweithredol Bwrdd lechyd Lleol Cwm Taf



(j IG Together for Health:

CYMRU South Wales Programmej
Law yn Llaw at Iechyd: @&
Rhaglen De Cymru

South Wales Programme—an update

The five health boards in South Wales—Abertawe Bro Morgannwg, Aneurin Bevan, Cardiff and
Vale, Cwm Taf and Powys—have been talking to NHS staff, the public and stakeholders about a
series of ideas put forward by our clinicians about the future of a range of specialist hospital
services: consultant-led inpatient paediatrics, neonatal care,

obstetrics and A&E care.

These ideas have been put forward in response to the challenges facing these services, includ-
ing ensuring we have the highly-skilled and trained clinicians we need to provide care to the
sickest and most seriously-injured patients at all times. This will ensure that the small number
of patients who need this specialist care are able to receive it, wherever they live, when they

need it.

The ideas put forward by our clinicians include concentrating this expertise on fewer hospital
sites—four or five—across South Wales. The 12-week engagement to debate these ideas

finished on December 19.

Each of the health boards held an extensive range of events to discuss the South Wales
Programme with NHS staff and the public and received a wide range of responses, the majority
of which supported the need for change.

The formal written responses included:
. Hundreds of letters and emails

o A number of petitions in support of N—

retaining services at certain hospitals, il

signed by thousands of people il e

. . 6, Si H
«  More than 1,220 questionnaire responses ~ ~ e ‘
. 8. Princess of Wales Hospital ,
recelVEd by ORS. 9. Rayal Glamorgan Hospital o %
10, University Hospital of Wales

11. Royal Gwent MHospital
12, Spectalist and Critical Care Centre

14, Prlncé Charles Hospital

All these responses have been analysed,

together with verbal feedback and comments et e LR
in engagement events, and will help the health {7 fo Sy Heni
boards prepare for a formal public consultation 3o Ve wead
later this year. The responses, which have been s i ¢
published online, have also been discussed by
clinicians across South Wales, at a conference

on February 1.

You can view the engagement responses and
emerging themes on your health board’s Tudalen 311

website.




Together for Health:

QG

Rhaglen De Cymru

South Wales Programme
Law yn Llaw at Iechyd:

A number of prominent and common themes have emerged from both the engagement events
and the written responses the five health boards received between September and December.

These include:

. Access, ambulance and public transport — Concerns about accessibility, travel times and the
ability of the ambulances to respond to patients in an emergency; the need to ensure timely
emergency and non-emergency transport; a widespread feeling ambulance and public

transport services need to improve;

. Deprivation—will the impact of service changes be greatest on people living in deprived com-

munities?

o Medical staffing and training — Are there other options, which could be explored to

overcome the current and predicted difficulties?

0 The importance of primary and community-based care
«  Sustainability—will the new model for specialist hospital services be sustainable in the long

term?
. When will change happen?

More than 1,200 ORS questionnaires were returned during the 12-week engagement period. The
results show a majority - 55% - of respondents either strongly agreed or tended to agree with the
ideas for the future pattern of the specialist hospital services put forward by the South Wales
Programme; 16% said they tended to disagree and 18% said they strongly disagreed.

A lot of detailed and intense work is now being
undertaken by the health boards as part of the
South Wales Programme to prepare for a formal
public consultation, which is likely to be held
later in the Spring.

This includes work underway by the South Wales
Programme team, which involves the Welsh
Ambulance Service, to develop the clinical service
models further for the specialist services—
obstetrics, paediatrics, A&E and neonatal care.
The health boards are also working on what
services could be available from those hospitals
which may not be specialist centres in the future.

Clinical reference groups, made up of experts in
each of the specialist services under consideration
have also been set up to help with this detailed
service planning work collaboratively across the
five health boards.

1. Bronglais Hospital
2. Withybush Hospital
3, Glargwili General Hospital
4. Prince Philip Hospital
5. Morriston Hospital
6, Singleton Hospital
7 NeathPort

8, Princess of Wales Hospital

9. Royal Glarnorgan Hospital

10, University Hospital of Wales

11, Royal Gwent Hospital

L2 dpecialist and Critical Care Centre
1B ety Ysuad Pawr

14, Prince Charles Hospital

15. Nevill Hall Hospital

16, Hereford County Hospital
17, Rewal Shrewsbury Hospital
18, Princess Royal Hospital

19. Wrexham Maelor Hospital
20, Ysbyty Glan Clwy filer
21, Ysbyty Gwyned

i

Tudalen 312

The health boards will continue to update the public and NHS staff as more work is completed.



€1E uarepnlL

Emerging themes from South
Wales F

, rogramme engagement
events September-December
2012

A summary of the main themes from South Wales Programme engagement
events and written responses to Abertawe Bro Morgannwg, Aneurin Bevan,
Cardiff and Vale, Cwm Taf and Powys health boards




1€ usfepnl

Emerging themes from South Wales Programme engagement events September-December 2012

January 2013

EMERGING THEME

IDENTIFIED IN EVENTS RUN BY:

TRANSPORT

Concern the public transport infrastructure is not sufficient for the proposed new service

model (for example, will road networks be upgraded to allow faster travel to specialist
centres?)

Travel costs
Concerns about impact of adverse weather on some main routes
Role for a Park and Ride scheme between hospital sites?

Concerns about longer distances/travel times to access specialist services and to visit
relatives/loved ones

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board

AMBULANCE SERVICE

Emergency transport is critical to success of plans but widespread concerns about current
ambulance response times and ability to cope in the future (many personal experiences of
long waiting times were raised in engagement events)

WAST must be an equal partner in the plans

Will additional investment in the ambulance service be required to cope with these service
changes?

Importance of skilled staff for emergency transport

Air Ambulance — should central funding be made available for a properly-resourced and
coordinated helicopter retrieval system across Wales?

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board

ACCESS TO SERVICES

Need to explain what services will be available on which hospital sites in the future

Concerns about the impact on UHW and access to possibly displaced local services for Cardiff
and Vale of Glamorgan populations

Changing demographics and housing plans need to be taken into account

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board




GT€ usfepnlL

Emerging themes from South Wales Programme engagement events September-December 2012

January 2013

EMERGING THEME

IDENTIFIED IN EVENTS RUN BY:

ACCESS TO SERVICES continued
® Are there patient safety issues as a result of travelling further?

e Concerns in ABMU events about impact on A&E at Morriston Hospital and access to trauma
services

e Concerns raised in ABM events about access to key services if Princess of Wales Hospital,
Bridgend is not a specialist centre

e Residential and other support required for families who have to travel further to see
relatives receiving specialist care, especially paediatrics/neonates

® Need to improve parking at hospitals, including more blue badge parking

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board

DEPRIVATION

e Will the impact of service change be greatest on people living in deprived communities?
e Health needs are greater in areas of deprivation and the ongoing economic crisis, coupled
with coming welfare reforms are likely to increase dependency on health services

Cardiff and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health
Board

CONFIGURATION OF SERVICES

e Preferences for particular hospital configurations have been expressed: Cwm Taf residents
prefer a model including Prince Charles Hospital and Royal Glamorgan Hospital; Powys
residents said Prince Charles Hospital needs to be one of the specialist centres; ABMU events
highlighted preference for a model including Princess of Wales Hospital and Prince Charles
Hospital.

e Feedback from Aneurin Bevan events supports a three-centre model for neonatal intensive
care.

e Concern the proposed Specialist and Critical Care Centre will not be commissioned until 2018
(subject to Welsh Government approval and support) — what will happen to fragile services
in the interim; can current service models be sustained, and if not will interim solutions be
acceptable to the population. What plans are in place, should the SCCC fail to materialise?

Cwm Taf Health Board; Powys Teaching
Health Board; Abertawe Bro
Morgannwg UHB; Aneurin Bevan Health
Board




9T€ usfepnlL

Emerging themes from South Wales Programme engagement events September-December 2012

January 2013

EMERGING THEME

IDENTIFIED IN EVENTS RUN BY

WORKFORCE ISSUES (inc TRAINING)
e Will these changes to services resolve training/staffing issues?
e Why not attract/train more medical staff rather than reconfiguring services?
® lIsit realistic to assume that staff will be willing to move with services?
e Will these changes affect recruitment to non-specialist hospitals?
* More doctors need to be available at night, including home visits
® Medical and specialist training needs to improve
e Why aren’t doctors required to work where they are trained?
e Shortages of GPs and community-based staff, not just hospital-based ones
e Other staff groups in NHS are experiencing shortages, not just doctors

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board

PRIMARY & COMMUNITY CARE
e Will the proposed changes only work if primary and community care infrastructure is in
place?
e More services should be provided locally or elements of service eg pre and post-operative
assessments to prevent the need to travel (particular concern in Powys)
e Concerns about access to GP services at present and knock-on effect on A&E
¢ Need to invest in community, primary care and voluntary sector services

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board;
Powys Teaching Health Board

REPATRIATION

e Patient repatriation pathways need to be strengthened to ensure patients treated in
hospitals outside their area can return home or to a hospital closer to home as quickly as
clinically appropriate

Aneurin Bevan Health Board; Abertawe
Bro Morgannwg UHB; Cardiff and Vale
UHB; Powys Teaching Health Board

FINANCE

® Are these plans being driven by the need to make savings?
e If proposed service model costs more, where will that money come from?

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board




1€ usfepnyL

Emerging themes from South Wales Programme engagement events September-December 2012

January 2013

EMERGING THEME

IDENTIFIED IN EVENTS RUN BY:

SUSTAINABILITY
e Is the proposed service model sustainable?
® How sustainable are the non-specialist sites?

Cardiff and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health
Board

TIMESCALE
e When will change take place/what’s the timescale?
® What's the point of engaging — a decision has already been made

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB; Cardiff
and Vale UHB; Cwm Taf Health Board

MATERNITY SERVICES

* Women must continue to have choice about where to give birth, including midwife-led units
and home births

® Strong support for a specialist centre for medically assisted deliveries

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB;
Aneurin Bevan Health Board




Bwrdd lechyd
Cwm Taf
Health Board

Matching the Best in the World—Challenges Facing Hospital Services
in South Wales

Patients in South Wales deserve to have access to the best healthcare. But the way some specialist hospital
services are currently organised means patients are not always getting the best possible or highest quality
care or enjoying the best results.

This means we can no longer carry on as we are—we have to change the way some specialist hospital ser-
vices are provided if patients are to get the best care all of the time.

Most hospital care is provided during the working day, Monday to Friday, and, generally speaking, out-
comes are very good. But there is some evidence to suggest quality of care and outcomes can vary at night
and at weekends.

We want patients to have access to the same standard of quality care wherever they live and whatever day
of the week it is—we want you to have access to consultant-led care around the clock and the best possible
outcomes all of the time.

Wales, like the rest of the UK, is struggling with a shortage of doctors in some key services. Some of these

problems are longstanding and are difficult to
-solve because of the way our hospital services are
organised.

!

Changes in the way doctors and other healthcare
professionals are trained have also had an impact
on the availability of key staff and on patient out-
comes.

We are now facing the prospect that there may

not be enough doctors with the right specialist
skills available to treat patients. We cannot allow
such a situation to develop.

1. Bronglais Hospital
2. Withybush Hospital
3. Glangwill General Hospital
4. Prince Philip Hospital
5. Morriston Hospital
6. Singeton Hospital
7 Port Tal
8. Princess of Wales Hospital

9. Royal Glamorgan Hospital

10. University Hospital of Wales

11. Royal Gwent Hospital

12 Specialist and Critical Care Centre
1 v Yatrad Fawr

14, Prince Charles Hospital
15, Nevill Hall Hospital

16, Hereford County Hospital
17. Royal Shrewsbury Hospital
18. Princess Royal Hospital
19. Wrexham Maelor Hospital
20, Yshyty Glan Clwyd :
21, Ysbyty Gwyneddd

The NHS has already had to take emergency action
to make urgent changes to services because of a
shortage of medical and clinical staff—in the most
recent case, emergency medical care has been
stopped at Neath Port Talbot Hospital.

We want to create stable, safe and sustainable
health services, which care for patients today,
train tomorrow’s healthcare staff, including doc-
tors, and meet the future needs of people living in
South Wales.

www.cwr;l;tlélg%l.?vgIe‘?'s:!'r%s.uk/southwales




G IG Bwrdd lechyd

YMRU N cywm Taf

N HS Health Board

Q
'b

What can we do to make services stable, safe and sustainable?

Our doctors, nurses, midwives, therapists and managers have been discussing how the NHS responds to
these recruitment and financial problems at the same time as improving the quality and standard of care
across South Wales.

More than 300 clinicians have met regularly at a series of clinical summits and conferences since the start of
2012. They believe some specialist hospital services need to be concentrated on fewer sites if we are to en-
sure everyone has the best care and the best possible outcomes, whatever time of day or day of the year.

They believe access to 24/7 consultant-led accident and emergency care, paediatric and neonatal and ob-
stetric services is critical to ensure patients get the best quality care. They also believe these services should
be concentrated on either four or five hospital sites in South Wales.

We have further work to do to test whether the same range of services would be available on both the four
and five-hospital site models. Any changes to these specialist hospital services will only affect a small pro-
portion of patients — the sickest and most seriously injured — the majority of people will continue to re-
ceive care in their local hospital.

What could this look like?

The possible scenarios for concentrating 24/7 consultant-led paediatrics, obstetrics, neonatal and A&E care

on four or five hospital sites are:

":"}$cenar|o 4, 1

UHW/Umversnty Hospltal Llandough

Scenarlo 4, 2

UHW/UmverSIty Hospital LIandough

Scenaruo 4 3

UHW/UnlverSIty Hospltal LIandough

SCCC *

SCCC*

SCCC*

Morriston Hospital

Morriston Hospital

Morriston Hospital

Prince Charles Hospital

Princess of Wales Hospital

Royal Glamorgan Hospital

Scenano 5.2

Scenarno 53

UHW/UnlverS|ty Hospltal Llandough

UHW/UnlverS|ty Hospital LIandough

UHW/Umversuty Hospital Llandough

SCCC*

SCCC*

SCCC*

Morriston Hospital

Morriston Hospital

Morriston Hospital

Prince Charles Hospital

Prince Charles Hospital

Princess of Wales Hospital

Princess of Wales Hospital

Royal Glamorgan Hospital

Royal Glamorgan Hospital

*The Specialist and Critical Care Centre (SCCC) is planned near Cwmbran to replace specialist services at Royal Gwent and Nevill Hall hospitals

No decisions have yet been made. We want to know what you think about the issues facing the NHS and
the possible scenarios for concentrating 24/7 consultant-led care in South Wales.

E South Wales Programme, Cwm Taf Health Board, Ynysmeurig House, Abercynon, CF45 4SN

@ swpfeedback@wales.nhs.uk

Tudalen 319

www.cwmtafhb.wales.nhs.uk/southwales




Eitem 3.22

P-03-263 Rhestru Parc y Strade

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog y Gweinidog dros
Dreftadaeth i roi statws rhestredig i Barc y Strade, er mwyn diogelu
treftadaeth y maes rygbi byd enwog a’r eicon diwylliannol hwn i bobl Cymru.

Cynigwyd gan: Mr V Jones
Y dyddiad yr ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: Tachwedd 2009
Nifer y llofnodion: 4,383

Deiseb i restru Parc y Strade

Cafodd y ddeiseb i restru Parc y Strade ei hysbrydoli gan alwadau “i wneud
rhywbeth” i ddiogelu treftadaeth y lleoliad enwog hwn. Mae’n arwyddocaol
bod y galwadau hyn wedi parhau wedi i’r Scarlets symud ar draws Llanelli i’w
stadiwm newydd. Mae’n amlwg bod Parc y Strade yn fwy na dim ond stadiwm
lle byddai pobl yn gwylio rygbi - mae’n rhan o ddiwylliant lleol ac o
dreftadaeth genedlaethol.

Gellir diffinio eicon diwylliannol fel unrhyw beth sy’n hawdd ei adnabod ac,
yn gyffredinol, mae’n cynrychioli gwrthrych neu gysyniad sydd a chryn
arwyddocad diwylliannol i griwp diwylliannol eang. Ymhen amser, gall fod a
statws arbennig fel rhywbeth sy’n cynrychioli grp arbennig o bobl neu
gyfnod arbennig mewn hanes.

Mae Parc y Strade yn symbol o gefnogaeth cymuned Gymreig i’'w chlwb rygbi
yn yr ugeinfed ganrif - y mae, heb amheuaeth, yn eicon diwylliannol.

Mae Parc y Strade yn adnabyddus drwy’r byd i gyd, nid yn unig oherwydd
gorchestion y rhai a fu’'n chwarae ar y cae enwog, ond hefyd oherwydd
cefnogaeth angerddol y rhai a fyddai’n heidio i’r eisteddle a’r teras yn ystod
y gemau, ac yn heidio ar y cae ei hun yn ystod hanner amser ac ar 6l y
chwiban olaf.

Daeth y gefnogaeth honno’n enwog drwy’r byd fel cefnogaeth nodweddiadol
Gymreig, a chryfhawyd y ddelwedd gan ganeuon yn dathlu buddugoliaethau
enwog ym Mharc y Strade, fel can “9-3” Max Boyce am fuddugoliaeth 1972
dros y Crysau Duon - y tro diwethaf i unrhyw dim clwb eu trechu. Mae’r
geiriau “All roads led to Stradey Park”, “The day the pubs ran dry” ac “l was
there” i gyd yn ein hatgoffa o’r diwrnod hwnnw ym Mharc y Strade pan
gafodd y capten, Delme Thomas, ei gario oddi ar y cae gan ei gyd
chwaraewyr, drwy ganol miloedd o gefnogwyr.

Pan sonnir am Barc y Strade, y darlun a ddaw i’r meddw! yw gweithwyr yn
gorffen eu sifft yn y gweithfeydd tunplat, y dociau neu’r pyllau glo cyn

Tudalen 320



chwarae gém o flaen miloedd o’u cydweithwyr o Tinopolis. Gosodwyd y
sosbenni enwog ar byst y Strade i gyfeirio’n uniongyrchol at y prif gynnyrch
a allforiwyd o Lanelli - tunplat - ac yn enwedig y gwaith “stampio” lai na
milltir o Barc y Strade lle byddai sosbenni’n cael eu cynhyrchu a’u hallforio i
bob cwr o’r byd.

Roedd Parc y Strade yn cael ei ystyried bob amser fel cae ‘mwyaf Cymreig’
Cymru, gyda’r sgorfwrdd Cymraeg a’r caneuon Cymraeg y byddai’r dorf yn
eu canu. Daeth ‘Sosban Fach’ yn adnabyddus drwy’r byd i gyd wedi i’r
cefnogwyr ei mabwysiadu a’i chanu oherwydd y ‘sosbenni’ ar y pyst.
Cynhaliwyd cymanfa ganu cyn y gém yn erbyn y Crysau Duon ym 1972.

Fel cae rygbi a oedd yn galon i’r gymuned, cynhaliwyd nifer o ddigwyddiadau
ar wahan i rygbi ym Mharc y Strade, gan gynnwys nifer o chwaraeon eraill, a
byddai noson Guto Ffowc a than gwyllt yn cael ei chynnal yno bob blwyddyn.

Ar 15 Tachwedd 2007, cynhaliwyd angladd Ray Gravell ar gael Parc y Strade.
Roedd hwn yn ddigwyddiad unigryw yn hanes Cymru ac fe’i disgrifiwyd yn y
wasg fel ‘angladd gwladol Cymreig’. Daeth 6000 o bobl i’r stadiwm i alaru,
gan gynnwys pobl flaenllaw o’r byd gwleidyddol, y byd diwylliannol a’r byd
chwaraeon yng Nghymru ac roedd miloedd eto’n llenwi’r strydoedd y tu
allan. Cafodd lluniau o’r arch ar y cae, a Cheidwad y Cledd wrth ei hochr,
ynghyd a’r holl bobl a fu’n talu teyrnged iddo, eu darlledu’n fyw ar S4C.

Heb amheuaeth, mae arwyddocad hanesyddol a diwylliannol pwysig i Barc y
Strade o safbwynt Cymru. Gwelwyd sawl brwydr ar y cae, ac roedd yn
symbol penodol o angerdd y Cymry dros rygbi yn yr ugeinfed ganrif.
Liwyddwyd i gasglu dros 3500 o lofnodion ac mae’r ffaith bod hon yn
ddeiseb sy’n ymwneud a threftadaeth yn hytrach na rygbi yn ychwanegu at
arwyddocad hynny. Casglwyd y ddeiseb ar gownteri siopau drwy sir
Gaerfyrddin a, heb fawr ddim cyhoeddusrwydd, cafwyd cefnogaeth gref gan
fod pobl yn credu y dylid achub cae Parc y Strade i nodi’i leoliad a’i
dreftadaeth.

Er mai teitl y ddeiseb yw ‘Rhestru Parc y Strade’, a byddai llawer yn hoffi
gweld y stadiwm gyfan yn cael ei hachub, derbynnir yn gyffredinol y byddai
rhestru Parc y Strade yn golygu rhestru’r cae a’i gadw fel man agored fel
rhan o unrhyw ddatblygiad. Mae’r cae hwn, lle gwelwyd sawl brwydr yn yr
oes fodern, mor unigryw oherwydd y cyfan sydd wedi digwydd arno;
buddugoliaethau’r tim rygbi wrth gwrs ac ‘angladd gwladol’ bythgofiadwy
Ray Gravell, ond hefyd yr atgofion am yr holl gefnogwyr a fyddai’n heidio ar
y cae yn ystod hanner amser ac ar 6l y chwiban olaf i chwarae yn yr union fan
lle’r oedd eu harwyr newydd fod yn sefyll.

| restru cae chwarae, mae’n debyg y bydd angen creu categori rhestru
newydd neu newid un o’r categoriau presennol. Wrth i bwysigrwydd y
diwydiant ymwelwyr gynyddu o hyd yng Nghymru, mae angen diogelu
lleoliadau sy’n bwysig i dreftadaeth fodern Cymru, fel Parc y Strade, felly mae

Tudalen 321



angen i’r Cynulliad Cenedlaethol roi cyfarwyddyd i Cadw i greu neu i newid
categori rhestru ar gyfer meysydd chwarae.

Cyn gynted ag y caiff safle fel Parc y Strade ei golli fel rhan o gynllun
datblygu, mae’n mynd yn gwbl ddiwerth. Hwyrach y bydd ambell ymwelydd
yn cael ei ddenu i ddarllen panel gwybodaeth neu blac glas ger y safle, ond
go brin y byddai hynny o unrhyw fudd i’r economi leol. Mae angen gwarchod
lleoedd fel Parc y Strade i ganiatau iddynt gael eu marchnata fel safleoedd
treftadaeth Cymru fodern ar gyfer yr unfed ganrif ar hugain. Mae ymwelwyr
am fedru troedio’r cae, nid dim ond darllen amdano.

Yn ogystal a’r 3500+ o lofnodion, mae grwp Facebook, sydd a dros 520 o
aelodau, nifer o gyrff lleol, gan gynnwys Cyngor Tref Llanelli a Chyngor
Gwledig Llanelli, yn cefnogi amcanion y ddeiseb, sef gwarchod cae Parc y
Strade. Nid oes gan yr un o’r cyrff hyn, fodd bynnag, y pwer i wneud hynny.

Cafwyd cefnogaeth ryngwladol i’'r ddeiseb, yn ogystal a chefnogaeth o
rannau eraill o Gymru a’r DU, gan ddangos yn glir fod pwysigrwydd
cenedlaethol ynghlwm wrth Barc y Strade. Yn lleol, mae’r ddeiseb hefyd wedi
cael cefnogaeth cyn fawrion timau Llanelli, Cymru a’r Llewod fel Delme
Thomas a Phil Bennett.

Mae gwefan yn cefnogi’r ddeiseb i'w gweld os ewch i
www.stradeyparkpetition.co.uk. Mae rhagor o wybodaeth ar gael hefyd, o
hanes Ystad Stradey yn rhoi darn o dir o fewn ei waliau terfyn i greu’r cae ym
1879 hyd at gau’r stadiwm ym mis Hydref 2008.

Tudalen 322



Huw Lewis AC / AM i?‘(g??

Y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth e
Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage = ——-}A\A

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-263 Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref HL/06342/12

William Powell AM
Chair, Petitions Committee

c/o Clerk of theCommittee
Naomi.stocks@wales.gsi.gov.uk 18 February 2013

Dear William,

In my letter to you of 22 October about the petition to list Stradey Park | undertook to send
you a copy of Cadw’s report scoping the options for protecting our sporting heritage and a
copy is attached.

Last year, Cadw undertook a wide-ranging engagement exercise with heritage specialists,
stakeholders and the general public to inform the development of my Historic Environment
Strategy and the Heritage Bill. The improved protection of sporting heritage was not
highlighted as a particular issue during this process but | have asked my officials to consider
the scoping report as part of the work that they are undertaking on the Heritage Bill and
associated policy and guidance.

You will have seen in the headline action plan that accompanies my Historic Environment
Strategy that | am committed to developing selection guidance for the designation of historic
building types and parks and gardens. Our sporting heritage will feature in this work and
Cadw will also be reviewing the additional guidance that local authorities may require to
accompany the Heritage Bill.

| will keep Assembly Members informed of progress with the development of the Heritage
Bill and | intend to launch the White Paper consultation in the late spring of 2013.

Yours sincerely

Huw Lewis AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth
Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.huw.lewis@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi'i ailgylchu (10Pfgdalen 323 Printed on 100% recycled paper



The Protection of Sports
Heritage in Wales:

A Review

Tudalen 324



The Protection of Sports Heritage in Wales: A Review

Introduction

Cadw recognises that sport is an important and integral part of the heritage of
Wales, which should be valued and appreciated for its special contribution to
the distinctive culture of the country. Cadw is therefore reviewing the protection
of sports heritage, to establish whether existing frameworks for the identification
of historic interest are sufficient to capture our sporting heritage, or whether
additional measures are needed. This review has been prompted by recent
concern over the loss of some historic sports grounds, notably Stradey Park,
Llanelli.

The systems for the protection and management of the historic environment
that are currently operated by Cadw include the identification and designation or
registration of historic assets of national importance through scheduling and
listing, or through inclusion on the register of historic parks and gardens. All of
these systems are focussed on physical, spatial sites which are capable of
protection and management. Designation and registration are intended to
support the protection of these assets and to ensure that change is managed
appropriately. There are consent regimes in place for both scheduled ancient
monuments and listed buildings. There is no consents regime for parks and
gardens, but inclusion on the register is a material consideration in the planning
process. Cadw provides advice to local planning authorities on planning
applications affecting registered sites, with the aim of preventing damage to
significant elements and features.

For the purposes of this review, a sports site is defined as an area or building
specifically designed and used for sporting purposes. A site may include open
space, buildings and other structural elements. Where criteria for special
historic interest are met, the built elements of a site may be eligible for
protection through listing; sites that comprise open spaces and/or buildings
could be included within the register of parks and gardens. In some
circumstances, sports sites may be included as elements of scheduled ancient
monuments.

Tudalen 325



Pontypool Park

Sports Heritage and the Register of Parks and Gardens

The Register of Parks and Gardens already offers some protection to a
significant numbers of sports sites. Some sixty sports venues are included
within parks and gardens on the Register. These venues range from archery
lawns and tennis courts in privately owned gardens, to sports pitches and
facilities in public parks, as well as substantial developments such as the
Glamorgan County cricket ground and the Pontypool Rugby club. However
these sites are generally not the principal reason for inclusion on the Register,
and their specific interest and significance may not have been fully evaluated.

There are currently no sporting venues included on the Register for their own
intrinsic merit, but as the scope of the Register includes ‘... designed grounds...
and places of recreation’, sporting venues would be eligible for consideration in
their own right. The selection criteria allow a consideration of sites that illustrate
some particular aspect of the history of designed grounds and places of
recreation, have historical associations, or group value. These criteria would
readily enable sites of special interest for sports heritage to be identified.

Tudalen 326



Handball Court, Nelson

Sports Heritage and Listed Buildings

Listing has already picked up a broad range of sports sites, though often not
with large numbers in each category. The criteria for listing emphasize
architectural or historic interest, historical association and group value. External
appearance is a key consideration in assessing the merits of buildings for
listing, but it is recognised that the special interest of a building will not always
be reflected in obvious visual quality. Popular sports and public provision
(municipal facilities, workmen'’s institutes) as well as elite pursuits are reflected
in the stock of listed buildings. This range suggests that existing listing criteria
are responsive to the diverse characteristics of sports buildings, though the
relatively low numbers of such sites suggest that there may be scope for
additional designation activity.

Tudalen 327



Roman amphitheatre, Caerleon

Sports Heritage and Scheduling

A small number of sporting venues are protected through scheduling, either
because of their intrinsic special interest (such as the Roman amphitheatres at
Caerleon and Carmarthen), or by default because of their inclusion within areas
scheduled for other reasons (such as Richmond Park Football ground, the
home of Carmarthen Town FC that sits within a scheduled area of the Roman
Town of Carmarthen, the bowling green at Welshpool motte and bailey castle,
or the golf course at Llanymynech hillfort, Powys). In reality of course, their
default status as scheduled monuments is seen as a significant constraint by
active sports clubs wishing to expand or alter their facilities. There has been no
systematic inventory of these sites.

Tudalen 328



Local Protection

Where buildings do not meet the criteria for statutory listing, it is open to local
authorities to consider their inclusion on a local list. At present, few local
authorities in Wales maintain a local list, but this is under review as part of the
provisions of the Heritage Bill. Some sporting venues may be included within
conservation areas — areas whose character it is desirable to preserve or
enhance. Where their significance to the local area is fully recognised, this
offers some scope for protection as a local designation.

The limitations of Protection

A review of the kinds of sporting venue that are recognised either directly or
indirectly as historic assets suggests that collectively these sites provide good
evidence for the history and traditions of recreation in Wales. However, there
are some types of sports heritage that are under-represented — especially
facilities associated with sports that attract large numbers of spectators (such as
rugby, football or cricket grounds), and informal recreation grounds. There are
usually good reasons for this — in the case of the former, high levels of
alterations that have taken place at grounds associated with commercial sport;
in the latter, insufficient tangible qualities to qualify for protection under existing
criteria. Some of the values associated with sports heritage are more
associative or communal rather than evidential and physical. Although Cadw’s
published Conservation Principles allow such values to be considered when
assessing significance, physical protection might not always be the most
appropriate response. Although there is no formal sign-posting to other heritage
management options, support may sometimes be available for interpretation
and recording activities etc. and there is clearly scope for developing such
options.

Tudalen 329



Issues

The key factors to take into account in ensuring appropriate protection for sports
heritage sites are as follows:

In many instances, sports venues are composite sites comprising an
open space element as well as buildings. Statutory protection through
listing only protects the built element, but where special interest criteria
are met, is clearly appropriate for indoor sports, and some elements of
outdoor sport.

The Register of Parks and Gardens encompasses open space as well as
buildings and structures, and is therefore able to address a fuller range of
sports venues. The Register of Parks and Gardens is currently non-
statutory, and inclusion on the Register does not bring with it the same
level of control that applies in the case of listing. However, the Register
exists to promote informed conservation, and consultation arrangements
are in place aimed at limiting damage to significant features.

Listing already identifies sports venues that are of intrinsic merit, but
relatively low numbers suggest there may be scope for further
designation under existing criteria. No sports sites have been included
on the register of parks and gardens in their own right, although many
sites are included by default. The value of these sites may not have
been evaluated. This may also be the case for the smaller number of
sites included within scheduled ancient monuments.

Some types of sporting venue do not lend themselves to formal
protection either because of the level of change they have already
undergone or routinely require, or because of an absence of tangible
physical qualities. Intangible aspects of sports heritage cannot easily be
addressed through a protection regime that emphasises physical
survival. There is no systematic framework for addressing the overall
significance of sports heritage and identifying the most appropriate
response to its different dimensions.

Options

1.

Do nothing.

The existing system includes a reasonable cross-section of types of sports
site, and applies management measures which seem broadly appropriate
and effective. However, it has some omissions, and many sites are
protected only by default, so that their real significance has not been
evaluated. There is no coherent framework setting out the value of sports
heritage to Wales, and some of the values associated with the heritage of
sport fall outside the scope of the current protection regime.

Tudalen 330



2. Use existing systems to develop a more coherent approach to sports
heritage:-

- carry out an evaluation of the sports heritage already included within
registered parks and gardens to ensure that its specific value is recognised,
and to promote informed conservation where appropriate.

- encourage greater protection for sports heritage using existing
mechanisms, including some targeted thematic work. There is a risk that
greater protection would impede the continuing viability of some existing
facilities. However, whilst both listing and registration presume in favour of
retention, both are essentially markers in the planning system, allowing for
managed change. This need not be a major issue.

3. Introduce a special designation for sports heritage.

It might be possible to consider new heritage designation for sports heritage
sites, with specific assessment criteria for inclusion. However, the criteria
for the Register of Parks and Gardens already specifically allow for the
inclusion of places of recreation, and sports structures are already identified
through listing, so it is difficult to see what value would be added by a
separate designation.

4. Promote alternative approaches that would complement registration or
listing, including local listing, and the use of conservation area designation.

Local listing is not currently widely used in Wales, but it is open to local
authorities to establish local lists, which, when supported by policies within
their LDPs, extends a certain amount of protection to buildings that are
included. Most existing local lists mirror the statutory lists in the criteria they
apply, but apply a local interest criterion, rather than national interest. Local
listing might be appropriate for sports buildings that do not meet the criteria
for statutory listing. Outdoor sports facilities could also be included in the
scope of conservation areas, where local policies for the preservation and
enhancement of the character of these areas would provide a measure of
protection. It would also be possible to extend the concept of local listing to
include a specific category for historic areas; however, this may be seen as
duplicating conservation area status rather than adding another useful tool
for the management and protection of sports heritage.

5. Consider other responses to heritage interest — blue plaques, a recording
strategy, etc

Recognition of historic sporting venues could also be achieved outside the
planning system for example through the use of blue plaques or other
interpretive material on or off-site, including publication. The latter is the
route largely taken by English Heritage, which has published a series of
booklets on sporting heritage. These initiatives help to raise awareness of
sporting heritage, and also avoid the potential challenges to physical
protection posed by redevelopment pressures. Whilst there is a role for
these measures, they would not be an adequate substitute for protection in
all cases.

Tudalen 331



Recommendations

It is recommended that a framework for protecting sports heritage in Wales is
developed. In order to respond fully to the historic and cultural significance of
sport in Wales, this framework should include a developed role for protection,
using existing national and local tools. It should also foster other initiatives
complementing protection, such as interpretive and recording strategies. The
existing protection framework seems adequate, but could be better targeted to
take sports heritage into account.

In the first instance, Cadw should undertake a full audit of the extent of
existing protection, beginning with an evaluation of all sporting venues
that are currently included by default within registered parks and gardens
and scheduled ancient monuments to establish their significance. Cadw
should also systematically extract the records of listed buildings
associated with sports heritage, so as to draw attention to the value of
what is already protected.

Cadw should use this audit to promote the protection of sports heritage,
support guidance relating to the management of these existing assets,
and encourage a sharper focus on sports heritage in future designation
and registration activity. This should include the option of a thematic
exercise focussed on the registration of historic sporting venues, as well
as inviting consideration of specific sports sites for assessment against
existing criteria for both registration and listing.

Where sites are under immediate threat of redevelopment, or where the
dominant heritage values are intangible, support should be given for the

establishment of local partnerships able to implement a heritage strategy
focussed on recording and interpretation.

Local authorities could be encouraged to consider sports heritage in local
planning designations.

Next Steps

An assessment of the significance of sports sites that are already
included by default within registered parks and gardens and scheduled
areas could be carried out in 2013. In parallel with this, information on
listed sports structures could be extracted from the data-base of listed
buildings, providing us with a full audit of protected sports heritage sites.
A summary of this audit, drawing attention to the sports heritage that is
already protected, and showing what can be done with the existing
framework for protection, could be prepared by the end of 2013.

Building on this audit, further focussed designation and registration
activity, as well as the development of guidance relating to protecting and
caring for sports heritage may be best taken forward as part of the
package of measures developed in connection with the Heritage Bill, but

Tudalen 332



it should be clear that both spot-listing and ‘spot-registration’ are options
for more immediate action where it is needed.

Judith Alfrey
Head of Regeneration and Conservation
February 2013

Tudalen 333



Eitem 3.23

P-04-322 Galw am ryddhau gafael Cadw ar eglwysi yng Nghymru
Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i bwyso ar Lywodraeth
Cymru i ymchwilio i mewn i ran Cadw yn y broses o roi caniatad cynllunio i
adeiladau rhestredig er mwyn gwneud gwaith addasu i eglwysi. Mae hyn yn
rhwystro cynulleidfaoedd gweithgar a hyfyw rhag defnyddio adeiladau
rhestredig yng Nghymru a, thrwy hynny, cant eu cadw mewn cyflwr o inertia
pensaerniol: nid ydynt yn gallu elwa ar ddatblygiadau modern mewn
deunyddiau adeiladu, ac mae’n anodd i eglwysi wneud y newidiadau sy’n
angenrheidiol er mwyn iddynt wasanaethau’r genhedlaeth nesaf a’r gymuned
leol.

Cynigwyd gan: Graham John
Nifer y llofnodion: 147

Ystyriwyd am y tro cyntaf: Mehefin 2011

Tudalen 334



Huw Lewis AC / AM "\/ (\f

Y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth i
Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage J}

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref HL/00152/13

William Powell AM
Chair

Petitions Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

18 February 2013

Dear William,

Thank you for your letter of 6 February regarding the ongoing petition P — 04 — 322 and the
ecclesiastical exemption Task and Finish Group.

You have asked me to ensure that independent churches are involved in the Task and
Finish Group. The primary focus of the group is to consider the future of ecclesiastical
exemption in Wales. The basis for ecclesiastical exemption is that each of the six approved
denominations in Wales has in place internal processes which provide a measure of
scrutiny over proposed works to listed buildings at least as good as the equivalent secular
controls operated through local planning authorities. Independent churches, by their very
nature, are not able to fulfil this requirement and are therefore not subject to ecclesiastical
exemption. However, as discussions progress beyond ecclesiastical exemption to consider
wider issues related to the decline in listed places of worship in active use, my officials will
contact the Evangelical Church organisations the petitioner has suggested.

The Task and Finish Group was due to meet in January but the meeting had to be
postponed due to the severe weather conditions. It has now been rearranged for early
March. At this early stage it is not possible to give an indication of timescales for the work of
the group, however, | will keep the Committee informed as the discussions progress.

Yours sincerely

P s

A A ( "*\_/{'//L_/’,»

Huw Lewis AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth
Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400

I N Correspondence.huw.lewis@wales.gsi.gov.uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu%g% en 335 Printed on 100% recycled paper



Eitem 3.24

P-04-365 Diogelu adeiladau nodedig ar safle hen Ysbyty
Canolbarth Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:
Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru

i restru, neu i ddiogelu mewn ffordd arall, yr adeiladau nodedig ar safle hen
Ysbyty Canolbarth Cymru. A hwythau heb eu rhestru, ond wedi’u lleoli yn yr
Ardal Gadwraeth, maent yn rhan werthfawr o dreftadaeth bensaerniol a
chymdeithasol Talgarth.

Prif ddeisebydd: John Tushingham
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 28 Chwefror 2012

Nifer y deisebwyr: 206

Gwybodaeth ategol: Cafodd Ysbyty Aberhonddu a Sir Faesyfed achlysur
agor mawreddog ym 1903. Mae r coflyfr yn disgrifio r miloedd o bobl oedd
yn bresennol a bod pob twll a chornel o r adeilad anferthol yn cael ei
archwilio. Ar y cyfan, roedd y sefydliad yn rhyfeddod o i oes. Mae bellach
mewn cyflwr truenus, ond mae r enghraifft bwysig hon o noddfa
Edwardaidd cynnar ar ffurf esielon neu saeth, a gynlluniwyd gan Giles,
Gough a Trollope, a nodwyd gan Pevsner ac sydd ar gofrestr Adeiladau
mewn Perygl SAVE Britain s Heritage, yn gwbl deilwng o i chadw. Wedi i
lleoli tua hanner milltir o Dalgarth mewn ardal eithriadol o hardd o gefn
gwlad ym Mharc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog ac Ardal Gadwraeth
Talgarth, mae ganddi berthynas arbennig a Thalgarth. Byddai colli unrhyw
ran o’r adeiladau gwreiddiol/nodedig yn golled annerbyniol i asedau
treftadaeth Talgarth.

Tudalen 336



%
”
&

o

( CINEDLAE,,
Viaorua

&
QY'
)

BRECON BEACONS
NATIONAL PARK

Llei enaid gael llonydd
One of Britain’s breathing spaces

Mr William Powell AM
Chair, Petitions Committee,
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 INA

4% March 2013,

Dear Mr Powell
Former Mid Wales Hospital, Talgarth
| refer to your e-mail regarding the above sent on 28" January 2013 and 27% February 2013 respectively.

In terms of the status of the site, the Former Mid Wales Hospital is within the Talgarth Conservation Area,
the buildings are not listed and the site is privately owned. | can confirm that the Authority refused
planning permission for a mixed use development on the site in October 2012. We are not aware at
present whether the applicant has lodged an appeal against the decision with the planning inspectorate or

whether he intends to do so.

For your information the land owner has been promoting the site through the Brecon Beacons National
Park Authority’s LDP Examination process. There are 2 remaining hearing sessions and when they are
complete the Inspector will inform the Authority when it can expect her Report.

With regard to the Local List, members will be asked to approve the draft local lists for Brecon and
Talgarth for public consultation at the National Park Authority meeting on 22" March 2013. The public
consultation process will involve requesting comments on the draft local lists and providing an opportunity
for nominations for other buildings to be included. In line with committee protocol the Committee
Report will be publically available 5 working days prior to the meeting. The Senior Heritage Officer

EXL W 'd 3% Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

g§%§ Y o Plas y Ffynnon, Ffordd Cambrian, Aberhonddu, Powys, LD3 7HP  Plas y Ffynnon, Cambrian VWay, Brecon, Powys, LD3 7HP
COFREMNED fran: (01874) 624437 Facs: (01874) 622574 Telephone: (01874) 624437 Fax: (01874) 622574

EUROPARC E-bost: ymholiadau@bannaubrycheiniog.org E-mail: enquiries@breconbeacons.org

R 4 4 ) Safle ar y we: www.bannaubrycheiniog.org Website: www.breconbeacons.org

EUROPEAN CHARTER

::;:sucﬁ?:::fswmm " Mae'r Awdurded yn croesawu gohebﬁaedﬂﬁ wa}etmhgwg? The Authority welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English



\"
S\o ‘ %,%
3 :
=]

2 g
) g
9 5
", i

BRECON BEACONS
NATIONAL PARK

Llei enaid gael llonydd
One of Britain’s breathing spaces

met with Talgarth Town Council recently to explain the process and invited their comments in advance of

the full public consultation process.

| hope this clarifies the position.

Yours sincerely

Aptlle

Tracy Nettleton

Head of Strategy, Policy and Heritage

Yy
e ()
™ & i
A p$‘§9

. BUDDSODDWYR MEWN POBL

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

EUROPARC

FEDERALION

EUROPEAN CHARTER
FOR SUSTAINABLE TOURISM IN

PROTECTED AREAS

Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog

Plas y Ffynnon, Ffordd Cambrian, Aberhonddu, Powys, LD3 7HP
Ffén: (01874) 624437 Facs: (01874) 622574

E-bost: ymholiadau@bannaubrycheiniog.org

Safle ar y we: www.bannaubrycheiniog.org

Mae'r Awdurdod yn croesmw@ammG@%u'r Saesneg

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

Plas y Ffynnon, Cambrian Way, Brecon, Powys, LD3 7HP
Telephone: (01874) 624437 Fax: (01874) 622574
E-mail: enquiries@breconbeacons.org

Website: www.breconbeacons.org

The Authority welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English



Eitem 3.25

P-04-381 Adfer Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i asesu treftadaeth bensaerniol Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru ac i sicrhau bod y
clwydfannau ystlumod sydd yno yn cael eu gwarchod. Ein dymuniad yw bod
yr adeilad gwirioneddol unigryw hwn yn cael ei gadw a’i adfer ar gyfery
genedl.

Gwybodaeth ategol:

Gwybodaeth ategol: Mae Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru yn enghraifft dda o loches
Fictorianaidd a gynlluniwyd gan y pensaer Thomas Full James. Agorodd ym
1848 a chaeodd ei ddrysau ym 1995. Gyda 160 mlynedd o hanes o fewn ei
furiau, mae’r bygythiad i’r adeilad yn un real, ond dylai Ysbyty Gogledd
Cymru gynt rannu ei stori drist, gyda’r nod o gadw’r safle 126 acer hwn, i
warchod y cyd-destun hanesyddol ar gyfer y cenedlaethau sydd i ddod. Yn
ystod y cyfnod ar 61 gwaredu’r ysbyty, cafwyd dilyniant o berchnogion, ac
mae rhai ohonynt wedi cyfrannu tuag at ddirywiad yr adeiladau, gan gymryd
asedau oddi yno a dymchwel adeiladau rhestredig yn groes i Ddeddf
Cynllunio (Adeiladau Rhestredig ac Ardaloedd Cadwraeth) 1990. Bu tarfu ar
glwydfannau ystlumod, ac mae hynny’n groes i Ddeddf Bywyd Gwyllt a Chefn
Gwlad 1981.

Cafwyd problemau niferus o ran gwaredu ac ail-ddatblygu’r ysbyty
Fictorianaidd hwn a’r adeiladau sy’n gysylltiedig ag ef, ers dros 15 mlynedd.
Disgrifiwyd yr adeilad unwaith gan asiantaeth amgylchedd hanesyddol
Cymru, Cadw, fel yr ysbyty pwrpasol mwyaf gwych i gael ei godi yng
Nghymru erioed. Fodd bynnag, gallai’r awdurdod lleol gael ei roi mewn
perygl ariannol dirfawr pe bai’n cael y safle tra bo cyflwr yr adeiladau yn dal i
ddirywio, oni bai ei fod wedi cytuno ar amrywiaeth hyfyw o ddefnyddiau
newydd a bod ganddynt bartner datblygu i ddarparu’r cynllun. Byddai o
werth archwilio hanes y broses waredu hyd yma, gan fod yr hanes hwnnw’n
tynnu sylw at nifer o wersi defnyddiol iawn i’'w dysgu, sy’n berthnasol yn
ehangach.

Cyflwynwyd gan: Paul Sharrock, restoration4nwh
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 27 Mawrth 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 29

Tudalen 339



P-04-381: Restore North Wales Hospital
Denbighshire County Council to Deputy Clerk
Dear Kayleigh,

Thanks for your email.

I've attached my last email to the petitioners which was shortly after the site
visit by your Committee. You will note that | refer to previous
correspondence with them but despite this they felt it necessary to submit a
petition. Whenever they have contacted us we have responded quickly and as
openly as possible. | have met them in a local pub with the local councillor to
explain our strategy and future plans but despite all this they seem to
misunderstand our intentions.

Since the visit to the site by the Committee we have updated our own
Cabinet, the local Members Area Group which comprises the County
Councillors for the area and we have updated the Town Council in an open
forum. We have commissioned a DVD which we use to inform members of
the public. It was on a loop in the town library over the Open Heritage
Weekend in September last year. We have now informed the owner of the
hospital that it is our intention to serve a Repairs Notice and if not complied
with we will begin compulsory purchase proceedings. The Urgent Works
which were ongoing at the time of the Committee's visit are now completed.
The total cost of these works were £930k.

We are continuing with our efforts to save the building despite all the
difficulties we face.

Regards,

Phil.

Phil Ebbrell

Pensaer Cadwraeth / Conservation Architect

Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd /Planning and Public
Protection

Dear Mr Morales,
Thank you for you email.
As | have been away for two weeks the visit by the Welsh Government

Petitions Committee has taken place. Needless to say we are disappointed
that you found it necessary to submit a petition after lengthy exchanges of

Tudalen 340



emails with this authority and with Welsh Government.

| have previously advised you by email and in person of the actions this
authority is pursuing in an attempt to save this important listed building but
it seems you are not prepared to accept our advice. In my absence my
colleagues met the Committee and explained our strategy and the work that
is progressing. We are awaiting the outcome of their visit.

With regards your specific questions | respond as follows.

The contractor has the experience of dealing with listed buildings and in the
selective removal of certain parts of buildings without endangering the
structure as a whole. He has also worked on another mental hospital near
Abergavenny which was designed by the same architect as the one in
Denbigh. In this case the entire timber structure (floors, roof and lintels)
were badly contaminated with dry rot. This has resulted in uncontrolled
collapse in places which has resulted in the loss of masonry walls.
Consequently it has been necessary to remove nearly all the timber from the
most important part of the main building (phase 1). As a result the roof has
been removed and a temporary roof put in its place. This work has proved to
be far more difficult than anticipated due to the fragility of the building. It
has also been complicated by the presence of asbestos which our contractor
is licensed to remove.

The work has been fully specified and recorded with a full photographic
history of progress. A further photographic survey will be carried out on
completion.

We are restoring nothing at the moment, we are only carrying out "urgent
works" as defined by the listed building legislation. This is intended to arrest
the deterioration of the building. We do not intend carrying out any work on
other buildings on site as they are mostly in better condition. We have
boarded up entry points into these building however and erected 70 warning
signs around the site in order to deter trespassers into what are dangerous
buildings.

We have agreed a long term strategy with Welsh Government with regards
the bats on the site. We were not able to survey the building for the presence
of bats because the building was too dangerous and therefore we were
unable to apply for a licence hence the need to have a bat expert (as agreed
with Welsh Government) to enter the building and survey it as our contractor
made areas safe. Where bats have been found we have carried out measures
to ensure they have continued access into secured areas. Welsh Government
have been kept fully informed.

The temporary roof will be completed shortly. We not know how long the

temporary roof will be needed, it depends on whether the owner cooperates
with us or not.

Tudalen 341



I'm not sure what licences you refer to in your final paragraph. It has not
been possible to follow normal procedures with this work because of the
health and safety issues but we have dealt closely with Welsh Government
with regards the listed building issues and the protected species. We have
also liaised closely with CCW. Throughout the work H&S has been paramount
and the Health and Safety Executive have been fully involved.

Yours sincerely,

Phil Ebbrell

Pensaer Cadwraeth / Conservation Architect

Gwasanaethau Cynllunio, Adfywio a Rheoleiddio/Planning, Regeneration &
Regulatory Services

Dear Mr Ebbrell,

Apologies if the Assembly petitions committee officer, Abigail Philips, has
already contacted you regarding a visit to the site on the 1st of July?

Would formal access be granted so our petition can be taken to the next
level?

Abigail has also asked whether we can ask questions that we feel are
relevant to the petition. These questions are as follows:

In a supposedly sensitive listed restoration work process why has it been
deemed necessary to contract a demolition company?

How is the work being recorded on site, is there an audit trail that can be
followed?

How much of the site is being 'restored' and what will be done to safeguard
further decay of other listed buildings/parts of the NWH site?

Although a bat expert is on site, there were pictures showing that bat
species roost in the main building, have the appropriate licences been
sought, and if so what are the long term plans/strategy to protect them on
the NWH site?

Why is the 'temporary' roof still not on the main part of the building, plus
how long is considered temporary?

Why have appropriate licenses been sought after and during the work rather
then before, it cannot be to do with the speed needed in carrying out the
works, ie urgent because the work has been progressively slower and drawn
out then was anticipated?

Kind regards,

Tudalen 342



In anticipation,

Elizabeth Morales, of the Restoration for the North Wales Group.

Tudalen 343



Eitem 3.26

P-04-403 Achub Plas Cwrt yn Dre/ Hen Senedd-Dy Dolgellau

Petition wording:

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i roi cyfarwyddyd i
Lywodraeth Cymru i brynu Plas Cwrt yn Dre, a elwir hefyd yn Hen Senedd-dy
Owain Glyndwr, Dolgellau, cyn bo’r trysor cenedlaethol hwn yn cael ei
werthu ar y farchnad agored a’i golli am byth.

Gwybodaeth ategol: Symudwyd Plas Cwrt yn Dre, a elwir hefyd yn Hen
Senedd-dy Owain Glyndwr, o Ddolgellau i Barc Dolerw, y Drenewydd ym
1886. Bellach ni all y Crynwyr, perchnogion yr adeilad ar hyn o bryd, fforddio
i’'w gynnal a’i gadw ac mae ar werth ganddynt am £55,000. Mae hwn, heb os,
yn drysor cenedlaethol a chredwn y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ei brynu ar
gyfer y genedl .

Petition raised by: Sian Ifan

Date petition first considered by Committee: 2 Gorffennaf 2012

Number of signatures: 218 (Casglwyd 10 llofnod ychwanegol ar ddeiseb
gysylltiol)

Tudalen 344



Items for the attention of the Petition Committee:

o 0w »

E

Letter in response to letter received by Petition Committee from the Heritage Minister.
Article (Welsh version) addressing the issue.

Article (English version) addressing the issue.

Copy of Architect A. B Phipson’s 1875 report on the Old Dolgellau Parliament House property.

Part of Huw J. Owen article.

If possible, I would appreciate these items photocopied for the convenience of each member of the
committee.

Many thanks

= &

Sian Ifan

Tudalen 345

%A &



Yo W

Llysgenhadaeth Glyndwr: 34, Bethesda Court, Prince of Wales Rd, Abertawe SA1 2EY.
®:01792 533806 ¢ E-bost:

F.A.O. Petitions Committee, Welsh Government.

February 6, 2013

Re Petition requesting that the Welsh Government be instructed to purchase and renovate Plas
Cwrt yn Dre aka Old Dolgellau Parliament House, on behalf of the Welsh nation.

Annwyl Committee Members,

Many thanks for your correspondence dated 6 November 2012 inviting me to express my views on the
correspondence that you as a committee had received form the Minister for Housing, Regeneration and
Heritage in regards to my petition. I must first of all apologize to the Cymric speakers amongst you that
this letter is not bilingual. You will note that it is quite a lengthy letter and I work entirely on an
unfunded voluntary basis with constant work awaiting my attention so, as much as I would prefer to, I
just haven’t got enough time to translate everything I do; however, I have produced, both a Welsh and
English version of my article, and am sending you both copies. So, I do hope you will understand the
predicament I’m in If ’'m to get this to you in time for you to be able to take it into consideration. Diolch
for your patience and understanding..

Having read this correspondence, I would, in the first instance, wish to challenge Cadw’s statement in
stating that there is “little evidence to support Plas Cwrt yn Dre’s traditional association with Prince
Owain Glyndwr” . I wrote an article on this issue early in 2012, Cadw and Sain Ffagan have received
copies of this article along with other documents of supporting evidence for the case of the old Dolgellau
Parliament House and I am now enclosing the same article and supporting evidence for your attention as
a committee.

My article hopefully lays out the claim clearly but also, as can be seen in the report of the architect A.
B. Phipson (item D) dated 1875, Mr Phipson clearly refers to the building as “Old Parliament House
Dolgelley”. Further, in his report, he clearly states that he believes the house to be... “of the middle or
later part of the fourteen century and consequently that the traditional connection with Glendwr may be
correct”

I will endeavor not go on to quote further from Mr Phipson’s very interesting report as I have enclosed a
copy for your attention but his professional conclusion was further endorsed by the scholar Hugh J
Owen who wrote in an early edition of “Cylchgrawn Cymdeithas Hanes Sir Feirionydd” (item E)

What also must be taken into consideration of course is the strong local tradition of acknowledging Plas
Cwrt yn Dre as Owain Glyndwr’s old Parliament House. Such traditions do not come out of “thin air”
they have substance which have been passed down as general local knowledge throughout the
generations. Initially, The property was substantial, consisting of a number of buildings and you have
only to look at the plan of the Great Hall to see that this hall could have housed a Parliament of

Tudalen 346



Glyndwr’s most important officials and generals. Also, the name Plas Cwrt yn Dre is another clue, Plas,
of course is Welsh for Palace or Mansion and Cwrt is Court meaning a place to hold Court so,
undoubtedly, the property was a very important one in the middle of the town of Dolgellau.

Cadw, as always, chooses to dismiss such testament when it comes to any history associated with the
native Cymric Princes — and especially so in regards to Prince Owain Glyndwr, demanding ‘concrete
proof’ but, as Mr Phipson states...”The building, independently of its historical association is valuable
archaeologically as a relic of a bye-gone age” and let’s be reminded that he wrote this report in 1875!

When the building was removed from its Dolgellau site to Newtown in the 19" century, it took 32
railway wagons to transport it, so, this in itself indicates that a great deal of the original building and
fittings must have been transported and reconstructed at Newtown. An up to date specialist examination
of the property could determine its age and I would suggest that as Cadw’s obviously disinterested in
conducting such an examination that the North Wales Dendrochonology Project might be approached if
funding was made available.

How Llysgenhadaeth Glyndwr became involved: On understanding that the property had
been placed on the market due to the Quakers being no longer able to maintain it, I travelled to Newtown
to view the property and discuss the situation with the Quakers. I was very upset to witness its current
state of disrepair, broken windows and tiles etc and immediately wrote to Cadw and Sain Ffagan’s
Museum to inform them of the situation. Incredibly, neither was interested in saving what’s left of this
important historical and unique property. I set up the petition out of total despair!

As outlined in my article, in the mid 19" century it had been the intention of a Dolgellau town based
committee, who understood the importance and potential of the Old Parliament house, to raise money to
purchase the property for the town and to renovate it to its original splendor as a museum and a tourist
attraction. Even as it stood then, it was the main attraction in Dolgellau for artists and photographers as
well as for the passing tourist; this again being solid testimony to the fact that its historical importance
was recognized far and wide and undoubtedly, had Samuel Holland not distracted the fundraising for
the Dr Williams School for girls project, the old Parliament House would have been the “Jewel in the
Crown” for Dolgellau as, both, an educational and tourism asset today; a golden opportunity was missed
then — but here we are today, with a Welsh Government and a Welsh Heritage Secretary and an office
within that Welsh Government called Cadw that has been established to “keep” safe such “jewels” of our
history on behalf of our nation. Likewise, we have a “Welsh National History Museum” that has, as its
purpose, the same role in regards to such properties and we have a Welsh Tourism industry that is
struggling to find a truly “unique niche” for Welsh Tourism and yet, not one of these bodies are prepared
to recognize the importance of the Dolgellau Old Parliament House and save it from either being sold
off on the open market or left to decay to the ground. Cadw’s “pathetic and supposed to be appeasing
gesture of promoting its status on paper to a grade 11* building will not save its ultimate fate.

Whatever the reasons are behind Cadw and the present Heritage Minister’s reluctance to promote and
educate in regards to any aspect of Prince Owain GlyndWwr associated history, we, as a nation claiming to
be a confident nation in our own right, cannot — and should not censor our history. The whole of our
history is an on-going development of the tapestry that is our nation and we cannot censor the Prince
Owain Glyndwr history out of that tapestry anymore than we can the Tonypandy, Llanelli or Merthyr
Riots histories.

I suggest that the most serious of consideration is given to purchasing Plas Cwrt yn Dre aka Old
Dolgellau Parliament House for the nation — before the property is lost forever. I further suggest that it
be both examined and accurately dated and then restored as a museum which would exhibit its
“supposed” Owain GlyndWwr association as well as the Baron Owen and Quaker history. It should be

remembered that “definite’ proof may one day come to light in rgfards to the Prince Owain Glyndwr
Tudalen 34



history and by then, the property could be lost and it would be recorded in history as to how it was
allowed to be lost. Note that it was It was ‘instinct’ and ‘persistence’ that revealed the truth in regards to
Richard 111 at this very moment!

Sidn Ifan
C.E.O. Llysgenhadaeth Glyndwr.

Tudalen 348



Trysor Cenedlaethol Arall Ar Fin Cael Ei Golli Am Byth!

Gwyddys y mwyafrif yng Nghymru sydd 4 diddordeb yn hanes ein cenedl - ac yn arbennig yn
hanes ein harwr cenedlaethol mwyaf, Owain Glyndwr a’i Rhyfel am Annibyniaeth, am gysylltiadau
tref Machynlleth a’r cyffiniau 4’r hanes hynny ond faint, sgwn i, sy’n ymwybodol o gysylltiadau’r
arwr 4 thref Dolgellau a’r ffaith fod yna dystiolaeth ddogfennol yn bod yn nodi iddo ef a’i
gynghorwyr gynnal cynulliadau pwysig mewn Senedd-Dy yn y dref honno’n ogystal.

Mae sawl ffynhonnell, yn cynnwys y croniclau Seisnig, yn croniclo i Dywysog Owain Glyndwr
anfon ei ganghellor dawnus, Gruffudd Yonge, ynghyd 4 John Hamner, ei frawd yng nghyfraith, o
Ddolgellau ar y 10fed o Fai 1404 i Ffrainc gyda llythyr pwysig yn eu meddiant yn mofyn cymorth
milwrol Siarl V1. Oherwydd y dystiolaeth ddogfennol sydd wedi goroesi, gallem dderbyn yn eithaf
hyderus fod yr hanes uchod yn gywir ond, yn anffodus, does dim tystiolaeth bendant wedi dod i’r
wyneb - hyd yma, parthed ymhle yn union yn Nolgellau bu i’r llythyr a gyfeiriwyd ato uchod gael ei
gyfansoddi. Serch hynny, yn 81 traddodiad 1leol - sydd wedi goroesi’r canrifoedd, adeilad o’r enw
Plas Cwrt yn Dre, eiddo sylweddol o uchel radd yn ei ddydd ac adeilad a adnabuwyd ar hyd y
canrifoedd fel ‘Hen Senedd-DY Owain Glyndwr’ oedd yr adeilad yn Nolgellau lle arferai Tywysog
Owain Glyndwr gynnal cyfarfodydd gwleidyddol pwysig gyda'i gynghorwyr a phenaethiaid pwysig
eraill y genedl.

Hwyrach nad yw ‘traddodiad lleol” gyfystyr a thystiolaeth ddogfennol bendant ond os cymerir y
dystiolaeth ddogfennol bendant bod y llythyr wedi ei gyfansoddi yn Nolgellau i ystyriaeth, ynghyd
a’r ffaith fod Plas Cwrt yn Dre wedi cael ei adnabod yn lleol i lawr drwy’r canrifoedd fel hen
Senedd - D§ Owain GlyndWwr, yna tybiaf fod yna achos digon cryf dros dderbyn dilysrwydd yr
adeilad yma fel un o adeiladau Cynulliad Tywysog Owain Glyndwr - neu Senedd-Dy hyd yn oed,
fel a’i adnabyddid yn lleol.

Yn ogystal, diolch i arolygiad ac adroddiad a wnaed ar yr adeilad gan bensaer o’r enw A.B.Phipson
yn 1885 (a gyfeiria, gyda llaw, at yr adeilad yn ei adroddiad ac yn ei gynlluniau o’r adeilad fel “Old
Parliament House Dolgelley”) datgelwyd bod rhannau helaeth o’r adeilad yn perthyn i’r 14eg
ganrif. Os felly, roedd yr adeilad ar ei draed cyn cychwyn Rhyfel am Annibyniaeth Owain Glyndvr.

Ta waeth prun ai Cynulliad neu Senedd-Dy sy’n gywir yng nghyswllt pa ddefnydd a wnaed o’r
adeilad gan Dywysog Owain Glyndwr, beth sy’n bwysig, yn fy nhyb i, yw’r ffaith fod y dystiolaeth
ffeithiol, ynghyd a’r gred leol a oroesodd, yn ei hun yn ddigon i roi dilysrwydd i Plas Cwrt yn Dre
fel adeilad y dylid fod wedi ei drysori fel trysor cenedlaethol - ond, i gryfhau’r achos ymhellach
pam y dylid bod wedi gwarchod yr adeilad yma, ymddengys bod yr eiddo wedi bod yn gartref i’r
Barwn Lewis Owen wedi cyfnod GlyndWwr. Roedd y Barwn yn gymeriad pwysig yn Senedd Lloegr
yn y 16eg ganrif, yn Ganghellor y Drysorlys ar gyfer Gogledd Cymru ac yn cynrychioli Sir
Feirionydd yn y Senedd cyn iddo gael ei ladd gan y Gwylliaid Cochion yn 1555.

Erbyn canol y ddeunawfed ganrif, roedd yr hen Senedd-Dy ynghyd a nifer o adeiladau eraill a
ffurfiau’r eiddo a adnabyddid fel Plas Cwrt yn Dre yn brysur dirywio ac yn 1874, gwerthwyd y
cyfan i Mr Edward Jones, perchennog Gwesty'r ‘Royal Ship’.

Ymddengys i’r Hen Senedd-Dy fod yn atyniad i ymwelwyr hyd yn oed yn y cyfnod hynny ac roedd
nifer o bwysigion y dref yn dechrau sylweddoli ei werth. Ffurfiwyd pwyllgor gyda’r nod o godi
arian i brynu ac adfer yr eiddo a dyna pryd benodwyd A.B. Phipson i gynnal archwiliad ar yr
adeilad - ac yn ogystal 4 chadarnhau yn ei adroddiad fod rhannau helaeth o’r eiddo yn perthyn i’r
14eg ganrif, tynnodd sylw at nodweddion o bwys hanesyddol (megis ffram a drws a cholyn wedi eu
naddu o un darn o goed) y dylid eu cadw tran’n atgyweirio.

Amcan bris y gost o atgyweirio oedd rhwng £150 - 200; swm bychan i’w godi i adfer adeilad mor
bwysig hyd yn oed yn y dyddiau hynny ac ar ywd»é?’gﬁvggfbl 875, cynhaliwyd cyfarfod



cyhoeddus yn Neuadd y dref er mwyn trafod y posibilrwydd o brynu’r adeilad hynafol ar gyfer y
dref. Yn 61 papur lleol y Dydd (19 Tachwedd 1875) death Mr Edward Jones i’r cyfarfod a chynnig
Plas Cwrt yn Dre i’r dref am y pris roedd o wedi talu amdano yn yr ocsiwn neu, roedd yn barod,
hyd yn oed, i osod yr eiddo am bum mlynedd i’r dref am y swm rhesymol iawn o £21 y flwyddyn er
mwyn caniatdu digon o amser i’r dref ystyried prynu ond, gwnaed y penderfyniad syfrdanol i beidio
4 lansio apél i brynu Plas Cwrt yn Dre am fod Samuel Holland, Aelod Seneddol Meirionydd ar y
pryd, wedi lansio apél arall i godi £1,000 i sefydlu Ysgol fonedd i ferched sef, Ysgol Dr Williams.

Diwinydd o Wrecsam oedd Dr Daniel Williams; doedd ganddo ddim cysylltiad o gwbl & Dolgellau
ond ar ei farwolaeth yn 1716, gadawodd swm sylweddol o arian i’'w ddefnyddio ar gyfer elusennau
addysgol yng Nghymru ac roedd ymddiriedolaeth yr elusen yn cynnig arian tuag at sefydlu a
chynnal ysgol yng Ngogledd Cymru ar yr amod fod y swm o £1,000 yn cael eu gwarantu’n lleol,
ynghyd a dwy acer o dir ar safle a fyddai’n addas ar gyfer yr ysgol. Byddai wedi gwneud mwy o
synnwyr i godi’t ysgol yn Wrecsam, tref y Dr Williams ond roedd Samuel Holland yn benderfynol
o gael yr ysgol yn Nolgellau ac oherwydd hynny, collwyd y cyfle i brynu Plas Cwrt yn Dre a
blwyddyn yn ddiweddarach, gwerthwyd yr eiddo (ond nid y safle) i Mr Pryce-Jones (a ddaeth yn
ddiweddarach yn Syr Pryce Jones) o’r Drenewydd.

Dymchwelwyd Plas Cwrt yn Dre a danfonwyd neuadd, oriel a grisiau allanol yr Hen Senedd-Dy,
(mewn tri deg a dau o dryciau) ar y rheilffordd i’r Drenewydd. Ailgodwyd y rhan yma o’r adeilad
ym Mharc Dolerw ar stad Syr Pryce Jones ond, yn anffodus, doedd y grefft o ail-leoli heb ei
berffeithio yn y cyfnod hynny a chollwyd dipyn ar gymeriad yr adeilad holl bwysig yma yn ystod yr
ailgodi ond, serch hynny, mae’n parhau i sefyll yn ddarn hynod o bwysig o hanes Cymru o hyd.

Yn ystod y ganrif ddiwethaf, cafodd yr adeilad ei ddefnyddio gan y fyddin yn ystod yr ail rhyfel byd
ac yna gan Gymdeithas y ‘Girl Guides’ yn y pumdegau ac yna, yn 1968, yn anghredadwy, cafodd ei
‘thoi’ yn rhad ac am ddim i’r Crynwyr gan y Fonheddes Sara Pryce Jones - a bu i’r Crynwyr gynnal
eu cyfarfodydd yn yr adeilad tan yn weddol ddiweddar hyd nes iddynt benderfynu nad oedd
ganddynt mo’r modd i’w gynnal bellach felly, cynigwyd yr hen Senedd-Dy am ddim i Sain Ffagan,
yn y lle cyntaf, ac yna i Cadw. Yn anhygoel, bu i’r ddau sefydliad yma, sydd a’r cyfrifoldeb dros
warchod ein henebion hanesyddol, wrthod y cynnig ar y sail nad oedd tystiolaeth bendant parthed y
cysylltiadau hanesyddol - ac yn wir, yn achos CADW (Cipio A Dinistrio Walia) pan aethant ati i
gofrestru’r adeilad yn y Drenewydd yn Adeilad Cofrestredig Radd 2 yn 2008, aethant ati yn ddigon
hy a haerllug i nodi ar y ddogfen cofrestru “Incorrectly termed Glyndwr’s Dolgellau Parliament
House” ahynny heb gymryd unrhyw sylw o dystiolaeth arbenigol y pensaer Phipson na wneud
unrhyw brofion arbenigol a manwl o’r adeilad eu hunain o gwbl!

Y gwir amdani yw nad yw CADW am roi unrhyw ddilysrwydd i unrhyw safle yng Nghymru sydd a
chysylltiadau gwirioneddol dilys ag Owain Glyndwr. Byddai cyfaddef bod hanes ein harwr
cenedlaethol mwyaf yn hanes go iawn drwy roi dilysrwydd i safleoedd brwydrau neu adeiladau
sydd yn bendant wedi chwarae rhan yn ei Rhyfel Fawr am Annibyniaeth ddim yn boddhau eu
meistri Seisnig ac oherwydd, maent yr un mor barod i fanteisio ar bob cyfle i gladdu unrhyw
dystiolaeth ddiriaethol sy’n ymwneud a’r hanes cenedlaethol pwysig yma pryd bynnag mae’n dod
i’r wyneb - yn union fel ag y bu i haneswyr taeog ei wneud i lawr drwy’r oesoedd wedi i ryfel

Glyndwr ddirwyn i ben.

Dyna’r gwir theswm, yn fy nhyb i, pam nad oes gan CADW unrhyw ddiddordeb mewn cynnal
archwiliad manwl ar yr Hen Senedd-Dy a dyna paham nad oedan nhw am dderbyn yr adeilad (fel
rhodd) a’i achub ar ran y genedl.

Erbyn hyn, mae’r hen adeilad hynafol yn y broses o gael ei werthu am £55,000 i aelod o’r Crynwyr
sy’n byw yn Lloegr ond mae’r Crynwyr yng Nghymru wedi dweud eu bod yn barod i dynnu’r
eiddo oddi ar y farchnad os daw cadarnhad oddi wrth CADW, neu’r Ymddiriedolaeth Cenedlaethol
eu bod yn bendant am brynu’r trysor cqna@%(ﬁ 35@" gyfer y genedl - ac mae yna ychydig o



amser ar 0l sy’n caniatau hyn os gweithredir ar frys gan fod y cyfreithwyr sy’n gyfrifol dros y
gwerthiant wedi gofyn i CADW gynnal asesiad newydd o’r eiddo, felly, gellir ddim cario’n mlaen
a’r gwerthiant nes y bydd CADW wedi gwneud hynny.

Yn ogystal, mae hyn yn golygu fod yna gyfle i ni fel cenedl achub yr Hen Senedd-Dy (neu’r hyn
sydd ar 61 ohono) drwy yrru miloedd o lythyrau at Y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol, Cadw a’r
Ymddiriedolaeth Genedlaethol yn mynnu, eu bod yn y lle cyntaf, yn prynu’r adeilad hynafol ar
gyfer y genedl, ac yn ail, yn ei adfer, cymaint ag sy’n bosibl, i’w ogoniant gwreiddiol cyn ei agor i’r
cyhoedd fel amgueddfa a fydd yn olrhain ei hanes o gyfnod Owain Glyndwr i fynnu i’r presennol.
Yn ogystal 4 bod yn atyniad deniadol a thu hwnt o ddiddorol ar gyfer ymwelwyr ac ysgolion,
byddai’n ased pwysig iawn i’r Drenewydd. Felly, apeliaf yn daer ar bawb sy’n darllen yr erthygl
yma i lythyru’n ddi-oed at y cyrff a nodwyd uchod. Dewch i ni beidio ag ail adrodd hanes a cholli’r
cyfle unwaith ac am byth y tro yma i achub yr adeilad hynafol yma. Dewch i ni sicrhau Plas Cwrt
yn Dre fel calennig gwerth ei roi i’r genedl.

Sian Ifan
Prif Weithredwr Llysgenhadaeth Glyndwr

Tudalen 351



S

" GRNTLEMEN, : A 3

50 different in character and 3 rorkmanship from all the other ¢

7o the Committee for the ation of ‘‘The Old Parliament

House®

tion of the building commonly known as the Old Parliament

T have made a careful examina n as |
an historical memorial, its architectural and

House, for the purpose of ascertaining its value as

artistic merits and its present condition ; also the best means for its preservation and its adaptability

P Massewm or -other useful purpose.

The historical interest of the building arises from its traditional connection with the name
of Owen Glendwr, the correctness of which, in the absence of direct or documentary proof, can
only be assumed if not at variance with the probable age Qf the building. Glendwr ﬁr'st appeared
in arms against Henry IV., and caused himself to be proclaimed Prince of Wales, in the year
1400. He assembled the estates of Wales at Machynlleth in 1402, when he was formally
Crowne%e appointed ambassadors to, and formed a league, with Charles VIL. of France i-n 1404,
which treaty was ratified at the camp before Lampeter in January, 1405. The appou‘ltment
of Ambassadors is dated from Dolgelly, as given in Rymers Foedera” Dat apud Doleguells decem
die mensis Mait Mecee quarto ; et principatus mostri quarto ; this was, I presume, the occasion of
the Dolgelly Assembly or Parliament. ) .

There is very little architectural moulding or ornament by which to judge accurately of the
age of the building, which has undergone several alterations and mutilations ; the most ornamental
portion is the timber framing with the ogee headel door, and linen pattern” panels at the end

against the post office ; , this indicates a date not, egrlier than 1a,tg__in_.t.h fifteenti - \cgnim;c:yu.:.l‘out‘it 18- :
A5l . SR e e s T o : : i T bemye»'thq. ;

1

o

pooE ey

sezians

stequenﬂjthaﬁ;i}he traditional connection with’ Gl ndwe ey Bo Torteot,

S i rebuct SRE % e

The building, independently of its historical vdééoc“i;tion, is valuable archaeologically as a
relic of a bye-gone age, as well as for the many features of architectural and artistic interest which
it possesses, and is a very good specimen of a medieval mansion on a small scale ; the accompanying
measured Plans Nos. 1 and 2 will assist in explaining the following description of its arrangement.
The Hall (the chief apartment in a medieval house) is to the right of the entrance passage, from
which it is separated by the screen, and was formerly open to the roof, but is now subdivided and
has had an upper floor inserted. In the screen are two original doorways, one of which is closed ;
over the entrance passage is a small room, formerly the minstrels’ gallery, overlooking the” Hall
through the arch now filled up in the timber partition. To the left of the entrance is a room now
sub-divided, having the cellar underneath, and a chamber, probably the Solar or private parlour
over. At the end of the entrance passage is the wing containing the Kitchen, offices, and an upper
story with three rooms. The original entrance to, the Kitchen is at the end of the passage, the
present doorway from same into court yard being modern. The internal stairs from the Hall are
modern, but are in the original position. The outer steps and doorway from Court Yard to upper
floor over Kitchen are modern, the head of the doorway shows the mortices for the timbers which

“have been removed. I am of opinion that these cooms originally communicated wish the front

portion of the building by a doorway corresponding with the Kitchen doorway underneath.
The most interesting portion of the building, architecturally, is the Kitchzn wing with its
very picturesque timber framing, curiously constructed upper floor with the diagonal tie beams and

~ its ancient fire places.

The upper windows of the kitchen wing are very good but much mutilated, and the
remaining shutters are worthy of note, the hinges being formed of pivots cut out of the solid wood
of the shutter and inserted into sockets in the heads and sills. The door into the Solar chamber is
constructed and hinged in a similar manner.

The other portions of the building of greatest interest are the timber arch of the gallery,
and the linen panelled framing before mentioned at the end of the Hall ; the chimney of the Hall
contains some curious brickwork, which is ancient if not coeval with the original house.

Tudalen 352




The stone walls and chimney at thé e;\

angle posts and part of the original timber framing being now built in the masonry. ~

I have no doubt that the hall and other f)brth;is of the front part of the house were om in} il -
constructed of timber, as indicated by the _:é}';CeHéi;ﬁfbut mutilated framed gable at the endgf ? Y
the proposed street ; the stone front wall with 'fli}ifezen:ﬁrance archway is evidently of very lat *:’;mg
and the windows are entirely modern. i ' i atg,

If it should be decided to preserve the building, the exterior should be put into a substanti 1
state of repair. The outer stone work should be carefully repaired and pointed, that underne 1:]41
the timber framing especially may require to be partially rebuilt. All deﬁci;nt and decaa d
timmbers should be reinstated, and the windows of the kitchen wing restored in their orig]'}:e
character ; the removal of the modern window from the framed gable arid the restoration of ﬂ?e‘
deficient timbers will involve ‘a new window to the upper chamber, this should be made ixi
character with the other old work and placed in the original position in the dormer roof, which
will be seen after the removal of the adjoining cottage. The removal of this cottage will convert
the party partition into an outer wall, which it may be necessary to complete in stone to match the -
front wall of the Hall.

The lath and plaster panels between the timbers should be repaired and restored where
deficient. § '

The slating of the roof should be thoroughly examined and repaired to render the building
water-tight. The framing of the upper story over the kitchen has been thrust outwards by the
roof, and should be secured by an iron tie rod across the building.

In carrying out the above suggestions care should be taken that no existing old timbers are

removed, unless so far decayed as to be useless.
The accompanying sketch No. 8, shows the appearance of the building when externally

it

OLLOWI ol
The hall should be restore

ed, and the window modified sccordingly, and the roofing timbers

back window, should be restor
d; the effect of the hall would then be as shown by

generally of the hall and solar chamber repaire

sketch No. 4.
In the kitchen wing the loft floor should be removed from the roof, and the floor and roof

strengthened by inserting a prop ab each intersection of the floor beams, and between the beams
ing should be laid in these rooms and

and roof principals to prevent further sagging, also new floor
a communication opened with the front portionfbf the premises.

The modern internal partitions are shown on the plans without tint. .

Tn addition to the above the interior generally should be thoroughly cleansed, the plastering
repaired, the woodwork carefully scraped, and the deficient parts 1'esbpréd, and the old doors and
other characteristic joiner’s work carefully preserved where_possible. , o,

Tf it should be determined to utilize the kuilding for the purpose of a local Museum it might
e preferable to remove the ancient internal partitions from the kitchen wing, so as to convert each
d rooms on ground: floor might remain as at

floor into one large room, and the living and ‘be

pregent, far_ogennation as keeper’s apavhments. o e e

— -

The sheet of Sketdhes Wo. B, NMustrakes a fow of the mosgt interes
case the buﬂdiﬁg\ should be destroyed. ;. ’ G
Ttis difficu’ to form an estimate of the
it depends greatly upon the condition the old wor
that from £150 to £200 each for the external and int

ng details, as a

16, Axx STRBRET, Bmm%alen 353

December 9th, 1875.




ABPhipesorn. Areht el
Brmelrg s

it
Il't! i

Ll

! it




== I C%E__‘ ! E“_

|
B
N AUt L

[

Linen panrels in Hall

i s e

Loor with wogden pirol hinges to -
) 'Z//: pee  Chamodr .

AL herfrerore. e
B TR L s Nt

=

VPPER PART

GALLERY

ENTRANGCE

Corracke

GROUND PLAN ' FIRST FLOOR PLAN

'3 ¢ g w___

Scace  or FEET.

/ - Archifau Gwynedd Archives

Nl ddyd copio na
chyhioeddi het: ganlatad

Not to be copied or
publishod without permission .

i A

. Tudalen3ss,



88  Cylshgrawn Cymdeithas Hanes Sir. Feirionnydd

. ““ Appertaining to the date of the building, one cannot refute lightly the opinion of Mr,
Phipson, who, according to his report, ““ made a careful examination of the Building ” and
found that there is very little architectural moulding or ornament by which to judge accurate-
ly of the age of the building. : o

He is definite that the most ornamental portion indicates a date not earlier than late
in the fifteenth century, he Ssq“&g!ly definite in his statement *“ it is so different in character

and in’ workmanship from all the other existing portions that I believe the house itself is of

earlier date probably of the middle or later part of the fourteenth century and consequently
" that the traditional connection with Glendwz may be correct,” ’

I would be inclined to favour the view of Mr. Phipson, who, after all, was obviously trained
in his profession to give such an opinion, as against the opinion of Mr. E, Breese, who, because
certain ornamental features are late fifteenth century, concludes that the whole structure
is of the same period.” '

. If, therefore, it is conceded that part of the building is of the 14th century,
it is not unreasonable to associate it with Glyn Dwr to the extent at any rate

cular building.

Apart from the argument with regard to the structure Mr. Breese also makes

a point against the association of Glyn Dwr with the building 'thafg out of a large
number of writers' who are named by him who' visited Dolgelley in the 18th and
19th centuries only one makes any allusion to this house. Some of this is purely
negative evidence and it is respectfully suggested that the fact that only one of
the many writers named by Mr. Breese referred to this building is no evidence that
it was not associated with Glyn Dwr. - AR T
After consideration of all the facts and as there is no evidence to the contrary

the writer is of the ,_opinion that the Old Parliament House did have associations

with the Welsh Patriot, _ , o .
"+ Whatever may have been the association of Glyn Dwr with this old building
it had association with another famous Welshman as it was the residence of Lewis

Owen, better known as the Baron, by his being a Baron of the Exchequer of North

Wales. ' He ropresented Merioneth in Parliament from 1547 to 1555 and in 1555
on his way back to Dolgelley from the Assizes at Shrewsbury on 11 October he was
murdered near Dugoed, Mallwyd, by relatives of Gwylliaid Cochion Mawddwy *’
(The Red Bandits of Mawddwy) out of revenge for having condemned to death
members of their families. S ;

Dolgelley; . . Hyan J. Owen

Tudalen 356 ¢ R8s,

of his Appointment of the Ambassadors to France having been made in this parti- -



Eitem 3.27

P-04-407 : Achub Llety Gwarchod Kennard Court ar gyfer
Pobl Hyn

Geiriad y ddeiseb: Rydym yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i wrthwynebu cau
Llety Gwarchod Kennard Court ar gyfer pobl hyn. Gorfodwyd y trigolion i
adael yr adeilad a dod o hyd i rywle arall i fyw, am y rheswm ffug bod
asbestos ynddo. Nid yw trigolion y Llety wedi cael cefnogaeth i’w hachos
gan neb, ac maent bron a rhoi’r ffidil yn y to. Mae angen i ni eu cefnogi a’u
cynorthwyo i aros yn eu cartref. Mae rhai trigolion wedi cael eu symud
eisoes, ac mae bygythiad i droi’r rhai sy’n weddill o’u cartref os na fyddant
yn symud. Mae Bron Afon yn targedu pobl agored i niwed, hyn, sy’n 70 oed
a throsodd. Nid yw hyn yn deg, a rhaid rhoi terfyn arno. Mae’n anodd
meddwl am y trigolion, yn y cyfnod hwn yn eu bywydau, yn dioddef y straen
a’r pryder o orfod cael eu hail-gartrefu. Llofnodwch y ddeiseb hon.

Gwybodaeth ategol: Mae’r rhan fwyaf o’r trigolion hyn, ynghyd a’u
cyndeidiau, wedi byw ym Mlaenafon ar hyd eu hoes. Maent wedi cyfrannu at
Flaenafon a’r gymuned. MAE ANGEN EIN CEFNOGAETH NI ARNYNT.’

Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Georgina James
Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 17 Gorffennaf 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 19

Tudalen 357



Eitem 3.28

P-04-420 : Adeiladu Cofeb i Owain Glyndwr
Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i adeiladu Cofeb i Owain Glyndwr , ar raddfa a rhwysg Cofeb William Wallace
yn Stirling, yr Alban. Mae amryw o leoliadau a fyddai’n addas gan gynnwys
Corwen a Machynlleth, i enwi dim ond dau. Os gall Llywodraeth Cymru, yn ol
y son, fod yn cynllunio i ailaddurno cyntedd bloc swyddfeydd Aelodau’r
Cynulliad sy’n costio 200k , yna credwn y gall Llywodraeth Cymru fuddsoddi
swm o arian hyd yn oed yn fwy mewn adeiladu Cofeb i Owain Glyndwr, sef
Tywysog Brodorol Olaf Cymru . Ar 6l ei gwblhau, byddai’n rhoi lleoliad y
Gofeb ar y map gan ddod a chyllid, y mae cymaint o’i angen, i mewn o
dwristiaeth gan roi hwb pellach i ddelwedd Cymru. Felly byddai pawb yn
elwa.

Prif ddeisebydd: Russell Gwilym Morris
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 2 Hydref 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 74

Tudalen 358



P-04-420 - Construct an Owain Glyndwr Monument
Correspondence from Petitioner to Deputy Clerk

hello i did reply but it must of disapeared somewhere . Umm i think the
petition will have to cease then as the size of the project would only be
affordable with government money , and because government says it dont
fund the projects we at standstill . | doubt the millions needed could be
raised via the public by donations in this economic climate . | know the
wallace one in stirling was done via the public but the pound is worth a lot
less these days as it was back then . So even though that cost a lot it was
achievable via the public, an i don’t think this is today sadly .

Thanks Russell

Tudalen 359



Eitem 3.29

P-04-404 Awyrennau Di-Beilot Aberporth

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Erfyniwn ar Lywodraeth Cymru dynnu’r gefnogaeth a roddwyd i awyrennau
di-beilot y DU i gael eu profi yn Aberporth ac i hedfan dros ran helaeth o
Gymru

Gwybodaeth ategol: Mae awyrennau di-beilot yn ddatblygiad pwysig a
pheryglus yn arfogaeth rhyfela. Defnyddir yr awyrennau di-beilot hyn yn
rhwydd, ac yn ddiofal o fywydau’r bobl ddiniwed sy’n aml yn cael eu lladd
Cyflwynwyd y ddeiseb gan: Cymdeithas y Cymod

Ystyriwyd y ddeiseb am y tro cyntaf: 2 Gorffennaf 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 1730+

Tudalen 360



Y (f?

Edwina Hart MBE OStJ AC / AM J -":)}
Y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth
Minister for Business, Enterprise, Technology and Science

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-404
Ein cyf/Our ref EH/00179/13

William Powell AC
AC Canolbarth a Gorllewin Cymru
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk 6& Chwefror 2013

Annwyl William,

Diolch am eich llythyr dyddiedig 23 lonawr yn gofyn am eglurhad pellach o'r
ymateb gwreiddiol a roddais i Ddeiseb P-04-404 ynghylch Systemau di-griw yn
Aber-porth.

Rwyf wedi ystyried y pwyntiau yn eich llythyr ac rwy’'n credu i mi eu hateb, os
oedd hynny'n bosibl, yn fy llythyr diwethaf. Ni allaf fanylu ymhellach ary
gweithgareddau na'r swyddi cysylltiedig.

O ran yr amgylchedd rheoleiddiol, ar hyn o bryd yn y DU, dim ond mewn gofod
awyr o dan gyfyngiadau y ceir hedfan Cerbydau Awyr Di-griw. Bydd y sefyllfa’n
aros fel hyn tan fod yr awdurdodau perthnasol yn fodlon bod y dechnoleg wedi
datblygu ddigon fel bod awyrennau & chriw ac awyrennau di-griw yn gallu
gweithredu’n saff gyda'i gilydd mewn gofod awyr agored, heb gyfyngiadau.

Wrth greu gofod awyr yng Nghymru yn arbennig ar gyfer profi a gwerthuso
Systemau Awyr Di-griw (UAS),m ae gennym yr amodau i ddatblygu ffyrdd o'u
defnyddio at ddibenion sifil, er enghraifft, y gwasanaethau brys; monitro'n tir,

ein harfordir a'r mér; bywyd gwyllt a ffermio. Gall y rhain i gyd, heb os, fod yn

fanteisiol i Gymru. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n cefnogi prosiect Ursula ar hyn o
bryd. Dyma esiampl arall o brosiect sifil sy'n edrych ar y posibilrwydd o’'u
defnyddio i synhwyro o bell ar dir, yn bennaf ar dir ar sy’'n cael ei ffermio’n
ddwys i helpu o ran rheoli tir.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enguiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd = Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.edwina. Hart@Wales. gsi. gov. uk
Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 361



Mae cyfleusterau ParcAberporth yn rhoi Cymru mewn sefylifa gref fel lleoliad
sy'n arwain ym myd Profi a Gwerthuso Systemau Awyr Di-griw. Dyma
farchnad sy'n tyfu, marchnad sydd a'r potensial i ddenu cwmniau technoleg
uchel eu gwerth i Gymru sy’'n mynd i ddod & budd i'r economi.

/é—z-«/b—- c

Tudalen 362



Eitem 3.30

P-04-414 : Swyddi Cymreig

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i
annog Llywodraeth Cymru i gymell cyflogwyr sy’n adleoli i Gymru, neu’n
agor cyfleusterau a marchnadoedd yma, i recriwtio staff lleol a’u hyfforddi
pan fo angen gwneud hynny.

Gwybodaeth ategol:

Mae enghreifftiau o bob cwr o Gymru o swyddi newydd yn cael eu cymryd
gan weithluoedd o’r tu allan i Gymru - gweithluoedd cyfan mewn rhai
achosion. Gallai cytuno ar ddiffiniad o ‘weithiwr allweddol’ helpu i osgoi
sefyllfaoedd fel hyn. Dylid ei gyfyngu i swyddi arbenigol pan nad yw’r sgiliau
neu’r cymwysterau gofynnol ar gael yn lleol a phan na allai pobl leol eu
hennill yn ystod cyfnod byr o hyfforddiant. Fel arall, mae’n gamarweiniol, ar
y gorau, bod gwleidyddion, y cyfryngau ac eraill yn cyhoeddi ‘swyddi
newydd’, pan fo pobl Cymru yn cael eu hamddifadu o’r swyddi hynny, i bob
pwrpas.

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 2 Hydref 2012
Prif ddeisebydd: Royston Jones
Nifer y llofnodion: 65

Tudalen 363



Eitem 3.31

P-03-187 Diddymu'r Tollau ar y ddwy Bont Hafren

Geiriad y ddeiseb
Rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol
Cymru i annog Llywodraeth y DU yn San Steffan i wneud popeth o fewn
ei allu i ddiddymu’r tollau ar ddwy bont Hafren.

Cynigwyd gan: John Warman

Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: Mawrth 2009

Nifer y llofnodion: 23

Tudalen 364



Carl Sargeant AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth L
Minister for Local Governmg

Eich cyf/Your ref P-03-187
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00320/13

William Powell AM

committeebusiness@Wales.g

” d/"‘ | "r

|
|

\

Thank you for your letter of
on the Welsh Economy.

When the report was publish
Government to open discu
governing the Severn Cross
Government’s view that the
future arrangements for the
streams for the benefit of the

Discussions with the UK Gove

(A~

Carl Sargeant AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leg

Minister for Local Governmen

Bae C

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i

eol a Chymunedau
2nt and Communities

= rf
A

Wars
Llywodrsé.aeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Jsi.gov.uk

‘,_.L-f'(/___iFebruary 2013

February about the report on The Impact of the Severn Tolls

on the UK
rangements
the Welsh
determining
re revenue

1ed in n November 2012, the First Minister called
ssions with the Welsh Government on the ar
ings after 2018. The First Minister made clear
Welsh Government should play a central role in
Crossings and in accessing and using any futu
people of Wales.

% i ¥ -
zrnment in relation to the Severn Crossings are ongoing.
|

I a Chymunedau
t and Communities

perdydd » Cardiff Bay
Caerdydd « Cardiff
CF99 1NA

ailgylchu (100%)
Tudalen 365

English Enquiry Line| 0845 010 3300
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg| 0845 010 4400
Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@vales.gsi.gov. uk

Printed on 100% recycled paper




Eitem 3.32

P-03-240 Diogelwch ar ffordd yr A40 yn Llanddewi Felffre

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Oherwydd vy lefel gynyddol o draffig, yn enwedig cerbydau nwyddau trwm,
ar yr A40 ac oherwydd y ddarpariaeth annigonol o balmentydd a
chroesfannau cerddwyr diogel, a gydnabyddir gan yr Asiantaeth
Cefnffyrdd drwy ymchwil a gyflawnwyd ar ran Llywodraeth Cynulliad
Cymru, rydym ni, sydd wedi llofnodi isod, yn galw ar Lywodraeth
Cynulliad Cymru i wella diogelwch ar y ffordd ym mhentre Llanddewi
Felffre, Arberth, Sir Benfro, drwy roi’r mesurau a ganlyn ar waith, a hynny
ar fyrder:

1. Gwella’r palmant annigonol ar hyd ochr ddeheuol yr A40 rhwng
Llandaff Row a phen dwyreiniol y pentref i sicrhau ei fod yn
boddhau safonau diogelwch presennol, a’i fod yn ddigon llydan i
gael ei ddefnyddio’n ddiogel gan gerddwyr, cadeiriau gwthio a
chadeiriau olwyn gan roi ystyriaeth i’r ffaith bod cerbydau nwyddau
trwm yn gyrru heibio’n agos ac yn aml ac yn gyrru'n gyflymach na’r
terfyn cyflymder presennol o 40 mya.

. Gosod camerau cyflymdra yn nwyrain ac yng ngorllewin y pentref.

. Defnyddio system drydanol sydd eisoes yn bodoli ar gyfer
arwyddion i groesi’r ffordd er mwyn darparu goleuadau rhybudd
sy’n fflachio ar adegau pan fydd plant yn croesi’r A40 i ddal eu bws
ysgol.

4. Gosod mesurau i ostegu traffig bob ochr i’r pentref ac ar gyffyrdd i

bwysleisio’r angen i arafu.

5. Gostwng y terfyn cyflymder i 30mya.

w N

Cynigwyd gan: Cyngor Cymuned Llanddewi Felffre
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: Medi 2009

Nifer y llofnodion: 154

Tudalen 366



Carl Sargeant AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau

Minister for Local Governme
Eich cyf/Your ref P-03-240
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00324/13
William Powell AM

committeebusiness@Wales.g

A
A~—CAUY,

| am responding to your lette
from Llanddewi Velfrey Comny

In the next few weeks n
2013/14 financial year for my
and implementation of the sy
roundels and gateway enhanc

The speed limit review for the

=~
UE
7

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

nt and Communities

si.gov.uk

-

) (7 |
Lc? February 2013

-

- of 6th February enclosing the further letter dated 19 January
wnity Council.

1wy officials will be submitting the prioritised bid for the
approval. The bid includes a proposal to undertake the design
veed limit enhancement works in the form of repeater signs,
rements.

A40 between Llanddewi Velfrey and Scotchwell Roundabout,

Haverfordwest will be undertaken in the coming financial year. This will include the

investigation of a 50 mph bt
identified in the speed limit re
and intended to help ensure a

My officials are not aware of
and the Trunk Road Agent w
existing 40 mph limit in the

uffer speed limit to the west of the village. This was first
aview undertaken for the 40 mph section through the village
consistent layout on both approaches.

any formal correspondence between the Community Council
shich suggests that this buffer may only be appropriate if the
village is shortened. They have also advised there are no

emerging safety issues but will continue to monitor the situation. The process to appoint an

Employer's Agent for the A40
and this appointment is currer

| have asked that my officials

N\ !

Carl Sargeant AC / AM

LLanddewi-Penblewin Improvement scheme has commenced
itly programmed for June 2013.

keep you informed of the outcome of this process.

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau

Minister for Local Governmen
Bae C

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i

t and Communities

aerdydd « Cardiff Bay
Caerdydd « Cardiff
CF99 1NA

ailgylchu (100%)
Tudalen 367

English Enquiry Line| 0845 010 3300
Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Printed on 100% recycled paper




Eitem 3.33

P-03-261 Atebion Lleol i Dagfeydd Traffig yn y Drenewydd

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i ohirio penderfyniad ynglyn a’r ffordd osgoi arfaethedig yn y Drenewydd nes
ei bod wedi datblygu a threialu cyfres o fesurau cynaliadwy yn y dref ei hun i
fynd i’r afael a thagfeydd traffig.

Cynigwyd gan: Gary Saady
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: lonawr 2010

Nifer y llofnodion: 37

Gwybodaeth ategol:
Mae dwy ran o dair o’r traffig ar goridor yr A483/A489 yn draffig lleol.

Dylai’r mesurau i fynd i’r afael a thagfeydd traffig ar yr A483/A489 gynnwys
y rheini a gynlluniwyd i wneud defnydd gwell o’r ffyrdd, megis:
e mesurau rheoli traffig i leihau symudiadau sy’n gwrthdaro ar gyffyrdd

e lonydd pwrpasol ar Ffordd y Pwll a Ffordd Llanidloes ar gyfer cerbydau
sy’n troi i’r dde i fynd i safleoedd diwydiannol neu fanwerthu

e cydgysylltu goleuadau traffig
Dylent hefyd gynnwys mesurau sydd wedi’u cynllunio i hyrwyddo dulliau
amgen o deithio, megis:

e rhwydwaith fysiau newydd ar gyfer y dref, a fyddai’n galw heibio i’r
archfarchnadoedd a’r ystadau diwydiannol, gan osgoi’r A483/A489, lle
bo hynny’n bosibl

e gwasanaeth bws bob 15 munud i’r dref

e llwybr troed ar draws Afon Hafren, i’'w gysylltu a’r llwybr ar hyd afon
Llanllwchaearn i Ffordd y Pwl|

e hyrwyddo seiclo a cherdded
Rydym yn cydnabod bod problem yn bodoli ar hyn o bryd sy’n cael ei
hachosi gan gerbydau uchel sy’n gyrru drwy ardaloedd preswyl er mwyn
osgoi’r pontydd rheilffordd isel ar Ffordd Dolfor a Ffordd Llanidloes. Ond
gellir datrys hynny drwy weithredu’r mesurau a ganlyn:

e codi uchder y bont reilffordd ar Ffordd Llanidloes

e adeiladu ffordd gyswllt o Ffordd Dolfor i Heol Ashley ar ystad
ddiwydiannol Mochdre

Tudalen 368



Eitem 3.34

P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd
Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i:
1. Osod cylchfan ger y gyffordd a heol Ceri ac, os bydd llif y traffig yn
gwella, osod cylchfan barhaol yno.
2. Cyhoeddi dyddiad cychwyn cynnar i adeiladu ffordd osgoi i’'r
Drenewydd ac i’r gwaith hwnnw fynd ar drywydd carlam hyd nes ei
gwblhau.

Cyflwynwyd gan: Paul Pavia
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: Mis Mehefin 2011

Nifer y llofnodion: 10 (casglwyd tua 5,000 o lofnodion ar ddeiseb
gysylltiedig).

Tudalen 369



Carl Sargeant AC / AM "\( (ﬁ

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau £
Minister for Local Government and Communities ﬁ}\A

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-261/319
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/00214/13

William Powell AM
Chair Petition's committee

\
|

committeebusiness@Wales.gsi.gov.uk r % ‘February 2013

Thank you for your letter of 23 January on behalf of Mr Paul Pavia about the Newtown
Traffic Study Report issued in April 2012. This report concerned the existing A483 through
Newtown, and in particular the Pool Road / Kerry Road junction. | attach a response to the
queries raised.

My officials met with you recently and provided an update progress on the proposed bypass
for Newtown as follows;

Award of an ECI contract (subject to final approvals) March/April 2013
Publication of Draft Orders Summer 2013
Start of Works Early 2015*

* Subject to statutory consent and agreement of target cost

| would like to seek clarification of your request that any decisions or actions arising from
future local meetings held by the Welsh Government on the bypass are forwarded to the
Committee. During the development of the scheme, my officials carry out an extensive
public engagement exercise and will hold a significant number of meetings with a wide
variety of stakeholders. These meetings which range from those with individuals via a
public liaison officer which will be appointed by the successful contractor, public exhibitions,
to provide information on scheme development to meetings with elected representatives
known as Local Authority Liaison Committees (LALC).

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov. uk
Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 370



To provide an overview of the progress of the scheme, | would propose to issue the
decisions and actions arising from the LALC meetings, which are held quarterly. | would be
grateful if you could confirm your agreement to this approach.

R

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
Minister for Local Government and Communities

Tudalen 371



-\

Carl Sargeant AC / AM N / (gf*

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau .
Minister for Local Government and Communities ,Jil

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Newtown Traffic Study

Response to letter from Mr Paul Pavia, 5 October 2012

The Newtown Traffic Study Report was issued in April 2012. Meetings to present the
results of the report were held by my officials with local councillors and with members of the
public were held in Newtown in July 2012. At the public meeting, my officials acknowledged
that there was an apparent discrepancy between the reported results and anecdotal
evidence from the public as to the severity of the traffic problems. As a result, it was agreed
that additional traffic information would be collected and the analysis of the current problems
would be revisited and checked and potential further improvements considered with
subsequent feedback to a local stakeholder group.

Further studies were completed in Autumn 2012. The first stakeholder meeting was held by
Welsh Government in November 2012 with a number of Newtown town councillors and
Powys County Council councillors including Clir Russell George AM, Clir Joy Jones, Clir
Gemma Bowker, Clir Bob Mills, and Clir Susan Hill, along with representatives from
Newtown Chamber of Trade, Powys County Council Transport department, local access
groups and interest groups. The meeting agreed that further studies should be taken
forward on a number of options to improve four key junctions on both the A483 trunk road
and adjacent county roads. This further study work was completed in January 2013 and
was the subject of the second stakeholder meeting which took place on 28 January.
Further information will be issued shortly on progress on the options being taken forward.

| present below answers to each of the points raised in your letter concerning the Newtown
Traffic Study Report issued in April 2012 (the report). However, please note that some of
the points have been resolved or taken forward as part of the ongoing work. For ease of
reference | have addressed each point in the same order.

e Query over the use of Thursday peak traffic data versus Friday peak data.

The data gathered for the use of Thursday peak versus Friday peak indicated that the worst
case hourly flow occurred on a Thursday, albeit that the Friday peak traffic congestion
lasted for a longer period. However, at the public meeting, my officials agreed that additional
traffic information would be collected and further assessment would be completed.

e Over what period of time was the assessment carried out and at what times of the
day?

The initial site visits were in February 2011 through to March 2012. The times of day
concentrated on the pm peak but inter-peak periods were also observed.

e How did Arup account for traffic that avoids the town completely and commuters
taking alternative routes?

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov. uk
Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper

Tudalen 372



The ATC data showed ftraffic levels out of town and on A483 though town, giving an
indication of the traffic avoiding the A483 through town. This is reflected in the report.
However, the core part of the study was to compare the alternative junction layouts. In
order to make a fair comparison, the same traffic demand was used.

e |n a leaflet produced by Tesco prior to opening they announced the new store would
benefit the town and surrounding area by the construction of a new roundabout on
Pool Road to provide a safe and satisfactory access to the store. Therefore | would
like to understand whose decision it was to remove the roundabout completely and
replace it with traffic signals.

When Tesco submitted a planning application in May 2006 for a superstore development on
the old livestock market site in Newtown, a holding direction was issued by the National
Assembly for Wales.

Subsequent to that and following a Transport Impact Assessment from the developer,
Powys County Council and the Welsh Government jointly funded traffic modelling of the
road network in Newtown. This traffic modelling identified that in order to accommodate a
superstore development on the old livestock market site in Newtown, the access to it
needed to be signalised; the existing roundabout at Kerry Road junction needed to be
replaced by traffic signals; the two new sets of signals and existing three sets of signals
needed to be linked by an Urban Traffic Control system.

As part of the Tesco supermarket development which opened in February 2010, the Pool
Rd / Kerry Rd junction was converted from a roundabout to a signalised junction.

The initial set up of the traffic signals (by the developer) was not completed correctly, and
resulted in significant traffic congestion on the approaches to the junction. In addition, there
were issues with the lane marking of the junction, which restricted visibility for traffic and
exacerbated the congestion.

Ultimately, the granting of Planning Permission for the development and alterations to the
road layout was given by Powys County Council as Planning Authority.

e The Arup report makes reference to several recalibrations of the SCOOT system.
How many times has it been calibrated in total?

The initial calibration of the SCOOT system was undertaken by Siemens as part of the
Tesco development. Subsequently, the signals have been recalibrated four times between
April 2011 and March 2012 by an external consultant employed by the Welsh Government.
Each occasion followed physical alteration to the junction or traffic signals, and were
completed in order to gain the benefit from the alterations without delay.

o The Arup report also stated that any further capacity improvements at the Kerry Road
junction would require third party land or property. Therefore what work have you and
your officials undertaken to look at purchasing third party land?

The scope of the study related to the reinstatement of the previous roundabout and
improvements achievable within the existing highway boundary. The scope did not include
the potential purchase of third party land to facilitate more significant changes to the
junction. However, at the public meeting, it was agreed that this would be investigated in
the subsequent work. This work is in progress currently.

Tudalen 373



¢ \What considerations have been given to construct an improved roundabout with filter
lanes?

There is insufficient space within the existing highway boundary to fit a roundabout with filter
lanes in accordance with current standards. As it would have required third party land, it
was not considered. However, this option was considered as part of the further study work.

e Point 2.5 ARUP Report

From the initial site visits it was clear that the SCOOT system was poorly calibrated with a
lack of coordination between the adjacent junctions. The SCOOT system was then re-
calibrated by an external consultant as Powys officers had not been trained to undertake
this task. As part of the series of recalibrations, Powys officers were provided training such
that they would be able to make minor adjustments to the SCOOT system as necessary.

e Point 3.2.1 ARUP Report concerning the use of Thursday peak traffic data versus
Friday peak data

| have addressed this point in the first part of my response.

o There are references in the Arup report that improvements have been made to the
signalled controlled junction on Pool Road; why was the junction not designed
correctly in the first place?

The junction was designed by the developer and the subsequent improvements carried out
by Powys County Council and the Welsh Government comprised minor changes to kerb
lines, road markings, vehicle detection loops, signal timings and pedestrian detection and
signals. These were all relatively minor in nature, aimed at making best use of the junction
layout.

e Delays have increased on the Kerry Road and Cambrian Bridge to try and alleviate
the delays on the main road. Have these town roads been monitored?

The queuing and delays on the side roads has been considered during the SCOOT
recalibration works. While queuing on these arms has increased, the calibration has aimed
to balance the delay on the side roads with that on the busier main road.

e The traffic flows measured during the study were conducted by counting the number
of vehicles passing a specific point. Theoretically, does this then mean if the traffic is
stationary for an hour with no vehicles passing the point, congestion would not be
measured? If that is not the case how is congestion properly measured, as it seems
to me the greater the levels of congestion, the slower the traffic moves over the
passing point, the less traffic passes the point which would mean the lower the
congestion is registered.

There is no simple, singular definition of congestion. One of the most useful measures is to
consider variation in journey time. In the theoretical case cited, if no vehicles moved for an
hour, this would give a very high average journey time indicating a high level of congestion.
In looking at traffic flows, the key point is to understand traffic demand, rather than the
number of vehicles passing a particular point. As such, during the study historical traffic
patterns and survey locations outside of the Newtown urban area have been considered, in
order to understand the likely levels of traffic that would want to travel through Newtown.

Tudalen 374



Eitem 3.35

P-04-380 Dewch yn o6l a’n Bws! Deiseb yn erbyn diddymu’r
gwasanaethau bws o ddwyrain Llanbedr Pont Steffan, Cwm-ann a
Phencarreg

Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Rydym yn galw am wasanaeth bws ar frys sydd wedi’i drefnu a’i amserlennu’n gywir
ar gyfer yr ardaloedd hyn yr effeithiwyd arnynt a byddem yn annog yr asiantaethau
Ilywodraethol o dan sylw i ymrwymo i hyn ar ein rhan, cyn gynted ag sy’n bosibl.

Gwybodaeth ategol:

Ar 27 Chwefror 2012, dechreuodd Arriva weithredu fel cwmni masnachol yn unig
gan roi diwedd ar unrhyw gymhorthdal yr oedd yn ei gael gan gynghorau sir lleol a
Llywodraeth Cymru, a newidiodd ei wasanaethau i fod yn ‘wasanaethau cyflym’ yn
hytrach na’r gwasanaethau ‘tynnu sylw a chamu ‘mlaen’ blaenorol, sy’n hanfodol yn
yr ardaloedd gwledig iawn hyn.

Mae’r cwmni wedi ailbennu llwybr y gwasanaeth X40 blaenorol fel ei fod yn osgoi
dwyrain Llanbedr Pont Steffan, Cwm-ann a Phencarreg. Mae hynny’n amddifadu
pobl rhag cael mynediad at wasanaethau hanfodol fel eu meddygon teulu, eu
deintyddion, swyddfeydd post a siopau, ac yn amharu ar allu pobl i arfer eu rhyddid
i symud, mewn perthynas a mynediad at y gwasanaethau uchod.

Mae diddymu gwasanaethau bws rheolaidd wedi cael effaith niweidiol iawn ar allu
pob rhan o’n cymunedau i fyw eu bywydau yn 6l eu harfer. Ni ellir gorbwysleisio’r
ffaith amlwg bod diogelwch pobl yn cael ei esgeuluso, oherwydd eu bod bellach yn
ceisio cerdded ar hyd ffyrdd heb balmentydd ac heb eu goleuo sydd a thraffig
cyflym a jygarnotiaid arnynt.

Mae Cynghorau Sir Gar a Cheredigion yn ceisio ymestyn y cynllun ‘Bwcabus’, sef
gwasanaeth a archebir o flaen llaw yn bennaf, ond nad yw ar gael bob amser ac sy’n
gweithredu ar hyn o bryd mewn modd nad yw’n gynaliadwy yn economaidd ac sy’n
aneffeithlon yn amgylcheddol.

Gan mai Llywodraeth Cymru a chynghorau sir lleol wnaeth y penderfyniad i
weithredu’r newidiadau trafnidiaeth hyn, hwy sy’n gyfrifol, o dan eu dyletswydd i
ofalu am bobl Cymru, yn enwedig yr henoed a phobl eraill sy’n agored i niwed, am
ofalu am y bobl sy’n colli eu hannibyniaeth ac sydd mewn perygl cynyddol o gael eu
hynysu. Bydd diffyg gwasanaeth bws digonol hefyd yn effeithio ar yr agweddau
economaidd a chymdeithasol ar fywydau pobl, ac ar eu lles

Cyflwynwyd gan: Sharon McNamara
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 27 Mawrth 2012

Nifer y llofnodion: 505 (479 ar bapur a 26 ar y safle we)

Tudalen 375



Cyngor Sir CEREDIGION

Miss Bronwen Morgan, LL.B.

Prif Weithredwr (Y
Chief Executi N = 01545 572000
RS &_}yy Ffacs’Fax 01545 572009

WA R

CEREDIGION Ccounty Council

3 A Neuadd Cyngor Ceredigion, Penmorfa, Aberaeron, SA46 OPA

bronwenm@ceredigion.gov.uk
www.ceredigion.gov.uk
DX 92401 ABERAERON

B;{‘:'edfad 2nd November, 2012
Hynrg;h f BM

Eich cyf

Your ref P_O4-380

William Powell AC/AM,

Chair, Petitions Committee,
National Assembly for Wales,
Cardiff Bay,

CARDIFF,

CF99 1NA.

Dear William Powell,

Petition against the removal of scheduled Bus services from East Lampeter,
Cwmann and Pencarreg

| refer to your letter dated 22" October, 2012 regarding the above. Please find below
the Authority’s response.

Since 27" of February, 2012 the main bus service from Aberystwyth to Carmarthen
now numbered 40, 20 or 10 have been operated by Arriva Buses Wales on a wholly
commercial basis. This action was undertaken as a business decision by the company
with the consequence that the previous supported service X40 could no longer be
provided under current UK legislation - Transport Act 1985

40 service - Aberystwyth to Carmarthen
20 service - Aberystwyth to Carmarthen and Cardiff
10 service - Aberystwyth to Carmarthen and Swansea

Until 26™ of February, 2012 the X40 TrawsCambria bus service between Aberystwyth
and Carmarthen via Aberaeron and Lampeter was also operated by Arriva Buses
Wales under ‘de-minimis’ contract agreements to both Ceredigion and
Carmarthenshire County Councils, with Ceredigion County Council acting as lead
Authority for the reimbursement of payments to the operator.

The annual revenue subsidy paid to Arriva by Ceredigion County Council and
Carmarthenshire County Council amounted to £137,632. The bus company was also
provided with a fleet of eight dedicated low floor buses (owned by Ceredigion) on a
rental basis to provide high quality vehicles on the route.

Gellir ateb yn G;l;llalguamgs 7@u may reply in Welsh or English



As these arrangements had been in place since 2005, when First Cymru and Arriva
operated the route to form the X40 service, legal advice obtained by the Welsh
Government and Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire County Councils strongly
recommended that the X40 service now needed to be fully re-tendered by April 2012.
It was agreed by the TrawsCymru management group that Carmarthenshire County
Council would take the lead on the new tendering exercise.

At this point Arriva had made no declarations of interest in running the service
commercially and continued to receive the subsidy payment. In fact at one point earlier
the previous year they had asked for a substantially increased payment or would
withdraw the service.

During the tendering exercise, Mr.Michael Morton (Managing Director of Arriva Buses
Wales) wrote to officials of the Welsh Government and Ceredigion County Council,
stating that "Arriva considers the X40 to be a commercial service and.....the entire
section between Aberystwyth and Aberaeron and between Lampeter and Cardiff is
wholly commercial”.

On the day that the tendering exercise closed, Arriva registered a new fully commercial
service from Aberystwyth to Carmarthen via Aberaeron, Lampeter, Llanwnnen and
Llanybydder along the A475 and B4337. This new route deviated from the previous
X40 by omitting the Cribyn section and the route along the A485 from Cwmann to
Llanybydder in Carmarthenshire.

UK legislation precludes the provision of a subsidy by Local Authorities to an operator
to provide a service in competition to a commercial service operating along a route and
as a consequence neither Carmarthenshire or Ceredigion were in a position to provide
support for any other service competing against the Arriva registered services.

The new Arriva services were registered on the new routes as the service time from
Aberystwyth to Carmarthen was reduced.

Since first operating the services Arriva Buses Wales has recently started to reduce
the number of journeys operated especially evening and Sunday journeys on the
corridor.

Arriva gave the Traffic Commissioner the statutory 56 days’ notice of their intention to
start running new commercial bus services on the Aberystwyth to Carmarthen bus
corridor. During this period, staff from the Welsh Government, Carmarthenshire and
Ceredigion County Council's had numerous discussions with Mr Michael Morton and
his senior management team before the launch of the new Arriva services. The
following proposals and arrangements were discussed:

» The continued availability of the successful West Wales Rover Ticket on the corridor,
which is an established and very popular multi operator ticket.

¢ The continued provision of good connections at Aberaeron between the new Arriva
services and other longer distance services linking Aberystwyth and Cardigan.

«Good alternative transport arrangements continued to be provided for statutory school
age scholars whose journeys to and from school could have been seriously disrupted

due to changes to services introduced by Arriva.
2

Tudalen 377



e Arrangements for connections with the expanded Bwcabus rural transport scheme,
enabling passengers to connect to the new Arriva services at key hubs from a wider
number of rural settlements along the corridor.

All of the above arrangements were published in the communities affected by the
Arriva initiated changes.

Working closely with Bus Users Cymru a series of Bus User Surgeries were organised
at key centres, both immediately before and after the changes.

Both Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion County Councils have sought to maximise the
potential of the recently expanded Bwcabus Scheme to offer good connections from a
wider range of rural settlements into the longer distance bus network at key
interchange hubs.

Arriva Buses Wales was invited to participate in the public consultation exercise
undertaken by the Welsh Government on the development of the longer distance
TrawsCymru network in the Autumn of 2010.

Responsibility for promoting the new Arriva commercial service and for informing the
communities of the changes in route operation fell on the operator.

Yours sincerely,

[j /'(gsr sk

g .

g

Miss Bronwen Morgan
Prif Weithredwr
Chief Executive

Tudalen 378



-
Carl Sargeant AC / AM {7‘(&7

Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau _
Minister for Local Government and Communities _ ,JA\A

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-380
Ein cyf/Our ref CS/07366/12

William Powell AM

Chair Petitions Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff CF99 1NA

committeebusiness@VWales.gsi.gov.uk

‘November 2012

Thank you for your letter dated 22 October 2012, regarding the Petition your Committee is
considering on recent changes to local bus services in the Lampeter area.

As your Committee will be aware, the framework for the provision of local bus services in
Wales is determined by the Transport Act 1985, which deregulated the bus network and
gave prominence to the provision of commercially operated services.

Local authorities however, are empowered by the Transport Act 1985 to provide ‘socially
necessary’ local bus services to communities which are not adequately severed by
commercial local bus services. Carmarthenshire County Council and Ceredigion County
Council have chosen to use these powers to provide better bus service links to smaller rural
communities in the Teifi Valley and Lampeter area, using the recently expanded Bwcabus
Scheme (including settlements which were until recently served by the previous X40 service
including Cribyn and Cwmann).

Bwcabus forms a key element of a package of measures being delivered as part of our
Programme for Government, aimed at improving travel opportunities for residents living in
rural communities, and enhancing access to key facilities. The Welsh Government and the
local authorities are monitoring the Bwcabus scheme very closely to ensure it continues to
meet the needs of local residents.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Casfiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 Nudalen 379Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled paper



Following the expansion of the service to the Lampeter area in December last year,
patronage has grown by 67% from 1,400 to 2,339 passengers per month. Customer
feedback has been very positive, with 95% of users stating they were very satisfied or fairly
satisfied with the reliability punctuality of the service and customer service received.
Additional ‘fixed route’ journeys were also introduced using Bwcabus between Ffostrasol,
Llandysul and Pencader to replace the service 41 which was withdrawn by Arriva Buses
Wales in July 2012.

Officials continue to meet regularly with the local authorities to review the operation of
Bwcabus, and other conventional local bus services on the Aberystwyth — Lampeter —
Carmarthen corridor, and explore opportunities to further enhance services.

Carl Sargeant AC /| AM
Y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau
Minister for Local Government and Communities

Tudalen 380



Eitem 3.36

P-04-453 : Gwelliannau ym Maes Awyr Caerdydd
Geiriad y ddeiseb:

Nod y ddeiseb hon yw nodi pryder am y diffyg gwasanaethau yn ein maes
awyr cenedlaethol. Rydym am ddenu rhagor o gwmniau awyrennau a
busnesau i faes awyr Caerdydd, i ddinas Caerdydd ac i gymunedau ehangach
De Cymru. Mae Fly Cardiff yn gobeithio cydweithio a’r maes awyr, a
gweithredu fel dolen rhwng y maes awyr, ei gwsmeriaid a Llywodraeth
Cymru.

Prif ddeisebydd: Kelvin Hayes
Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 29 lonawr 2013
Nifer y llofnodion: 144

Tudalen 381



P-04-453 Improvements at Cardiff Airport :
Correspondence from Petitioner to Chair 19.02.2013

Dear William

First off, many thanks for your recent correspondence and apologies in the late response to it.
I have to admit I am having difficult accessing the information on the PDF of your letter I've
received from my Fly Cardiff colleague. As I currently live in China.

We at Fly Cardiff are somewhat perplexed at why we or indeed some of the people present in
the Wales Air Network groups were not consulted to be part of the task force?

We have also identified the need to promote Wales as a whole and I am also in the early
stages of writing the new Wales Culture Forum content which I hope will act as an education
resource to those curious about Wales and lead to the visit Wales portal. It does however
need to be translated to Arabic or Chinese (which may I suggest the visit Wales site also
should strive to achieve). The WCF came to mind from some of the problems brought about
by Fly Cardiff and also through my own travelling - I constantly get blank looks when asked
where I am from and this really needs to change.

Getting back to the airport. In our time running (voluntarily) Fly Cardiff we have encountered
many myths about why the airport is under performing; the landing fees, the approach road,
not enough affluent people in the catchment area. When I set up Fly Cardiff I wanted to avoid
going down the route of blame or being derogative of anyone who worked there. However it
is plain and simple - we don't have the management or the marketing team to achieve greater
success. Bristol does. So the question really is why can we not bring on board someone with
a track record of running an airport? Cardiff is a great city to live in (providing you can find
work that is) so we need to attract the right people.

The secondary factor is not enough dialogue with people who use the airport and the airlines
to get the correct frequency of flights. I believe if this was addressed this would also act as
catalyst for people and airlines to commit to Cardiff airport and Wales. I dare say the First
Minister's announcement does meet our aims. Let's hope for some positive results arising
from it - it is long overdue.

In the meantime, I thank you once again for your letter.

Sincerely..

Kelvin Hayes (on behalf of Fly Cardiff team)

Tudalen 382



Eitem 3.37

P-04-436 : Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru

Geiriad y ddeiseb

Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i baratoi adroddiad ar Wariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae gan yr Alban adroddiad Government Expenditure and Revenue Scotland.
Ei nod yw gwella dealltwriaeth y cyhoedd o faterion ariannol drwy
ddadansoddi ystadegau ariannol swyddogol Llywodraeth y DU a’r Alban yn
fanwl. Mae’n bryd i Lywodraeth Cymru gyhoeddi adroddiad tebyg fel y gallwn
weld gwir sefyllfa ariannol Cymru.

Prif ddeisebydd: Stuart Evans

Ysytyriwyd am y tro cyntaf gan y Pwyllgor: 15 lonawr 2013

Nifer y llofnodion: 27

Tudalen 383



#ﬁ
Jane Hutt AC / AM /(ﬁ?

Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty e
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House PEA

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref P-04-436 Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref  SF JH 0532/13

William Powell AM

Chair

Petitions Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

[ February 2013

Doov (Mo

Petitions Committee: analysis of Welsh and UK Government financial statistics

Thank you for your letter of 23 January, about the petition proposing that the Welsh
Government issues a report on Government expenditure and revenue in Wales.

At this time, | have no plans to produce a further report on financial statistics, as
comprehensive information is already available on public expenditure in Wales
(published by the Welsh Government on devolved issues, and by the UK Government
on non-devolved matters).

However, it is possible that this situation could change in the future. In its report to the
UK Government, the Commission on Devolution in Wales, chaired by Paul Silk, has
recommended a wide range of financial reforms, including the devolution of several
taxes and borrowing powers. [f those recommendations were implemented by the UK
Government, | can see that there could well be a need for further information to be
made available, especially in relation to the receipts raised by any devolved taxes.

That decision must, however, await the UK Government's response to its Commission
and the discussions that will follow.

S NSNS
Jane Hutt AC/ AM

Y Gweinidog Cyllid ac Arweinydd y Ty
Minister for Finance and Leader of the House

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd » Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence. Jane. Hutt@wales.gsi. gov. uk
Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%) Printed on 100% recycled

paper
Tudalen 384



Eitem 5

P-04-335 Sefydlu Tim Criced Cenedlaethol i Gymru

Geiriad y Ddeiseb:
Rydym yn galw ar Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru i annog Llywodraeth Cymru
i gefnogi’r ymgyrch i sefydlu tim criced cenedlaethol i Gymru.

Cynigwyd gan: Matthew Richard Bumford
Ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor am y tro cyntaf: 11 Hydref 2011
Nifer y llofnodion: 187

Gwybodaeth ategol:

Er bod yr Alban a’r Iwerddon wedi llwyddo i ddod yn aelodau o’r Cyngor
Criced Rhyngwladol a chystadlu yng Nghwpanau’r Byd, mae Cymru wedi
methu a gwneud hynny. Yn wir, nid oes yr un chwaraewr o Gymru wedi
chwarae criced rhyngwladol ers dros bum mlynedd o ganlyniad i fod yn
gysylltiedig a Bwrdd Criced Lloegr. Yn ddiweddar, chwaraeodd tim criced
Cymru a Lloegr nifer o gemau “cartref” ym mhrifddinas Cymru, er nad oedd
yr un chwaraewr o Gymru’n aelod o’r tim. Byddai’n annerbyniol mewn
unrhyw chwaraeon eraill, fel rygbi, i dim nad yw’n cynnwys yr un Cymro, sy’n
chwarae o dan fanner gwlad arall, gyda bathodyn gwlad arall ar ei frest, i fod
yn chwarae gém “gartref” ym mhrifddinas Cymru. Ni fyddai hyn yn
dderbyniol ar gyfer unrhyw chwaraeon eraill, ac ni ddylai fod yn dderbyniol
ar gyfer criced. Nid yw’r trefniadau presennol yn meithrin criced yng
Nghymru ac, mewn gwirionedd, maent yn peri niwed i’r gém oherwydd bod
diffyg cyfle i gricedwyr o Gymru chwarae i’r safon uchaf. Ar hyn o bryd, nid
yw Cymru wedi’i chynrychioli o gwbl mewn criced rhyngwladol ac mae’n
rhaid i hyn newid drwy sefydlu tim criced cenedlaethol i Gymru.

Tudalen 385



	Agenda
	2.1 P-04-459 Cysylltiad rheilffordd uniongyrchol o Faes Awyr Caerdydd i ganol Caerdydd a gorllewin Cymru
	2.2 P-04-460 Moddion nid Maes Awyr
	13.02.24 Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebwr
	Tudalen flaen y Cambrian News 31-1-13 1

	2.3 P-04-461 Achub Pwll Padlo Pontypridd
	2.4 P-04-462 Gwahardd codi baner y Deyrnas Unedig ar adeiladau swyddogol yng Nghymru
	2.5 P-04-463 Lleihau Lefelau Halen mewn Bwyd
	2.6 P-04-464 Gwneud Wenglish yn iaith gydnabyddedig swyddogol yng Nghymru, fel Sgoteg yn yr Alban!
	2.7 P-04-465 Achub llaeth Cymru, a seilwaith a swyddi™r diwydiant
	2.8 P-04-466 Argyfwng Meddygol Œ Atal cyflwyno gwasanaeth iechyd o safon is yng ngogledd Cymru.
	10.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebydd

	2.9 P-04-467 Arholiadau ym mis Ionawr
	2.10 P-04-468 Pryderon am Ddiogelwch Ffordd A48 Cas-gwent
	06.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebydd i'r Cadeirydd

	3.1 P-04-333 Rhoi diwedd ar esgeuluso a gadael ceffylau a merlod drwy orfodi deddfwriaeth ar ddefnyddio microsglodion
	07.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Dirprwy Weinidog Amaethyddiaeth, Bwyd, Pysgodfeydd a Rhaglenni Ewropeaidd at y Cadeirydd
	25.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebwr

	3.2 P-04-383 Yn Erbyn Dynodiad Parth Perygl Nitradau ar gyfer Llyn Llangors
	3.3 P-04-390  Dynodi Gwarchodfa Natur Penrhos Caergybi (parc arfordir) yn Warchodfa Natur Genedlaethol
	29.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Gyngor Cefn Gwlad Cymru at y Cadeirydd
	21.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Cadeirydd

	3.4 P-04-399 Arferion lladd anifeiliaid
	01.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy at y Cadeirydd

	3.5 P-04-417  Achubwch Draeth Morfa ac ataliwch Lwybrau Troed Cyhoeddus 92 a 93 rhag cau
	30.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Cadeirydd

	3.6 P-04-422 Ffracio
	14.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Gymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru at y Cadeirydd

	3.7 P-04-433 Teledu Cylch Cyfyng mewn Lladd-dai
	01.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy at y Cadeirydd

	3.8 P-04-439 Diogelu coed hynafol a choed treftadaeth Cymru ymhellach
	01.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy at y Cadeirydd

	3.9 P-04-445 Achub ein cwn a chathod yng Nghymru rhag cael eu lladd ar y ffyrdd
	05.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Weinidog yr Amgylchedd a Datblygu Cynaliadwy at y Cadeirydd
	Gohebiaeth - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebwr

	3.10 P-04-346 Gofal di-dâl i blant 3 a 4 oed yng Nghymru
	20.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau at y Cadeirydd

	3.11 P-04-437 Gwrthwynebu cofrestru gorfodol ar gyfer plant sy™n derbyn addysg yn y cartref
	19.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau at y Cadeirydd

	3.12 P-04-443 Hanes Cymru
	05.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau at y Cadeirydd

	3.13 P-04-362 Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans ym Mynwy
	04.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol at y Cadeirydd

	3.14 P-04-395 Dylai Ambiwlans Awyr Cymru gael arian gan y llywodraeth
	29.06.2012 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol at y Cadeirydd
	11.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Dirprwy Glerc

	3.15 P-04-367 Achub ein Gwasanaethau Ysbyty
	3.16 P-04-394  Achub ein Gwasanaethau - Ysbyty Tywysog Philip
	01.02.2013 Gohebiaeth -  gan y deisebydd i'r Cadeirydd

	3.17 P-04-430 Y bwriad i gau Uned Mân Anafiadau Dinbych-y-pysgod
	06.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebydd i'r Cadeirydd

	3.18 P-04-431 Preswylwyr Sir Benfro yn erbyn Toriadau i Wasanaethau Iechyd
	30.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - Gan y deisebydd (SCBU) i'r Cadeirydd
	30.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - Bwrdd Iechyd Hywel Dda i'r Cadeirydd

	3.19 P-04-400 Safon Ansawdd NICE ym Maes Iechyd Meddwl
	05.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol at y Cadeirydd
	21.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Gofal & Mind Cymru at y Cadeirydd
	28.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Hafal at y Cadeirydd

	3.20 P-04-440 Dywedwch ‚Na™ i werthu asedau Ysbyty Bronllys
	30.01.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol Addysgu Powys at y Cadeirydd
	Medi 2012 - Dogfen Ymgynghori Cyhoeddus:  New Directions, Gwella Gwasanaethau Gofal Iechyd yn Ne Ddwyrain Powys
	25.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - Gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan y deisebydd

	3.21 P-04-451 Achub Gwasanaethau Ysbyty Brenhinol Morgannwg
	14.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol Cwm Taf at y Cadeirydd

	3.22 P-03-263 Rhestru Parc y Strade
	18.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth at y Cadeirydd

	3.23 P-04-322 Galw am ryddhau gafael Cadw ar eglwysi yng Nghymru
	18.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Tai, Adfywio a Threftadaeth at y Cadeirydd

	3.24 P-04-365 Diogelu adeiladau nodedig ar safle hen Ysbyty Canolbarth Cymru
	04.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Barc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog at y Cadeirydd

	3.25 P-04-381 Adfer Ysbyty Gogledd Cymru
	04.03.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan Gyngor Sir Ddinbych at y Dirprwy Glerc

	3.26 P-04-403 Achub Plas Cwrt yn Dre/ Hen Senedd-dy Dolgellau
	11.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Cadeirydd

	3.27 P-04-407  Achub Llety Gwarchod Kennard Court ar gyfer Pobl Hyn
	3.28 P-04-420 Adeiladu Cofeb i Owain Glyndwr
	18.02.13 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Dirprwy Glerc

	3.29 P-04-404 Awyrennau Di-Beilot Aberporth
	06.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Busnes, Menter, Technoleg a Gwyddoniaeth at y Cadeirydd

	3.30 P-04-414 Swyddi Cymreig
	3.31 P-03-187 Diddymu'r Tollau ar ddwy Bont Hafren
	Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau at y Cadeirydd

	3.32 P-03-240 Diogelwch ar ffordd yr A40 yn Llanddewi Felffre
	26.02.2013 - Gohebiaeth gan y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau at y Cadeirydd

	3.33 P-03-261 Atebion lleol i dagfeydd traffig yn y Drenewydd
	3.34 P-04-319 Deiseb ynghylch Traffig yn y Drenewydd
	19.02.2013 - Gohebiaeth gan y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau at y Cadeirydd

	3.35 P-04-380 Dewch â'n bws yn ôl! Deiseb yn erbyn diddymu™r gwasanaethau bws o ddwyrain Llanbedr Pont Steffan, Cwm-ann a Phencarreg
	02.11.2012 Gohebiaeth - gan Gyngor Ceredigion at y Cadeirydd
	13.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Llywodraeth Leol a Chymunedau at y Cadeirydd

	3.36 P-04-453 Gwelliannau ym Maes Awyr Caerdydd
	19.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y deisebwr at y Cadeirydd

	3.37 P-04-436 Gwariant a Refeniw Llywodraeth Cymru
	18.02.2013 Gohebiaeth - gan y Gweinidog Cyllid at y Cadeirydd

	5 P-04-335 Sefydlu tîm criced cenedlaethol i Gymru: Adroddiad drafft

